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One. Report to Shareholders

Dear Shareholders:

In 2019, with the impact of unknown prospect of US-China trade negotiation, China's
economic slowdown, Europe’s weak growth, and the possibility of the United Kingdom leaving the
EU without agreement, global economic growth significantly slowed down compared to 2018. The
Company’s operating performance was also affected by the above-mentioned changes in the
international market. The double impact from decline in the virtual currency market in the first half
of 2019, followed by Intel CPU stock shortages resulted in unsatisfactory overall operating
performance in the first half of the year. However, with the Company’s strength in the gaming
product market and high-speed computing cloud server over the years, it actively adjusts its overall
sales and product portfolio. In spite of the headwinds due to change in environment, operating
performance still maintains the required standard, and consolidated revenue increased by 1.41%
compared to last year, maintaining at above NT$60 billion.

The 2019 operating outcomes and the summary of 2020 business plan are described as follows:
I. 2019 Business Highlights
(1) Financial and operating highlights
Unit: NT$100 million

. Percentage of
Item 2019 2018 Difference Difference (%)
Operating 617.81 609.24 +8.57 +1.41
income
Gross profit 95.91 101.23 -5.32 -5.26
Net profit after
tax of the parent 19.39 25.67 -6.28 -24.46
company
Item 2019 2018
. . Debt to total assets (%0) 3542 32.37
Financial
o -
structure (%) Long—'germ capital to property 611.64 597.70
& equipment (%)
Current ratio (%) 237.73 264.33
Solvency (%)
Quick ratio (%) 143.22 151.40
Return on assets (%) 5.30 6.90
1 0
Profitability Return on equity (%) 8.02 10.66
(%) .
Profit margin (%) 3.14 4.21
Basic EPS (NT$) 3.05 4.04




(2) New RD/technology innovation outcomes

1. World’s top motherboard
Continue to satisfy esports players with optimal gaming experience and meet
overclocking enthusiasts' demand of product performance and high stability.
GIGABYTE’s Z390 motherboard is the first flagship product in the industry that uses
16-phase IR digital power. Coupled with unprecedented exclusive all-in-one innovation
heat dissipation design, it fully unleashes the extreme performance of the latest Intel®
processor, allowing overclocking gamers to easily achieve excellent overclocking
efficiency of full-core above 5GHz. Also, with its personalized design such as stylish
exteriors and built-in dual lighting effect in digital RGB light, the product won itself the
2019 Red Dot Design Award.

2. Industry-leading graphics card
Launched new generation AORUS high-end graphics card equipped with various
patented innovative technologies. Coupled with industry’s highest grade display chip
based on Turing architecture, it creates the market’s only RGB three-ring dynamic
lighting effect that takes advantage of the persistence of human vision, to perfectly
present the ever-changing amazing effect. Self-developed comprehensive heat
dissipation system equipped with patented stack fan that provides smooth airflow and
unique blade fan design, effectively increases heat dissipation. Exclusive 7 display
output ports, for consumers to easily connect to 3 HDMI displays or 3 DP displays.
Gamers can enjoy AORUS graphics card’s top-end computing performance, as well as
an exquisite visual feast and user experience.

3. Industry’s innovative cloud server
(Al solutions research and development
Developed various server product lines to support massive GPU/FPGA parallel
acceleration, with the aim to increase the computational efficiency in artificial
intelligence training. It also makes use of enterprise products across stations/terminals,
by launching corresponding Al terminal products, from workstations that support
standard PCle card (influence card) to mini computing modules powered by algorithms.
In addition, developed all-flash array storage infrastructure products to provide more
complete and highly-efficient Al suite products, and provide customers with optimal
flash storage and computing advantages, as well as solve complex system maintenance
problems such as isolated data island, speeding up customers’ future discovery and
insight. This solution helps National Cheng Kung University to come in first in the
international “High Performance Computing and Artificial Intelligence (HPC-AI)
Student Competition” and Fan Favorite award in "Germany’s ISC Student Cluster
Competition", one of the world’s top three computing competitions. This is the glory of
Taiwan! This is the glory of GIGABYTE!
®5G architecture integrated solution
5G mobile network is a cross-domain networking service architecture specially
designed for future lifestyle. Currently, 5G architecture deployment is mainly driven
from open-source software and hardware, followed by refurbishing the network
architecture. It upgrades small cell technologies, deploys to the terminal and then
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gradually to SDN hardware with the server as the main body. GIGABYTE has 20 years
of experience in hardware supply in vertical application, and cooperates with 5G chipset
manufacturers, national research and development teams, and networking software
startups. With its early preparation targeting compatibility and software and hardware
optimization, it takes the lead in 5G commercial operations, and seizes business
opportunities in Enhanced Mobile Broadband (eMBB) and business-critical services
with terminals and SDN products.
® Cooperates with AMD in launching EPYC™ platform
Due to EPYC’s excellent cost performance, GIGABYTE has since the launch of its first
generation EPYC, made foresight planning in establishing EPYC product lines
development. Since the launch of AMD's second generation EPYC projects, it has been
involved in complete development work. In 2018, together with AMD, it launched
server product lines such as computing, storage, high-performance computer,
hyperconverged infrastructure, etc., in the world, as well as developed GPGPU Server
for AMD platform, providing more flexible GPU solutions.
. Al gaming laptop
GIGABYTE AORUS gaming laptop, committed to excellence in research and
development, is the world’s first Al laptop. Its NVIDIA® GeForce RTX™ extreme
laptop gaming experience and ray tracing technologies, provide real time unprecedented
movie grade situational effect for the gaming laptop.
. Ultra compact PC Champion Brix™
As an important member of Intel® IoT Solutions Alliance, GIGABYTE is one of the
indispensable cores of the vibrant development of the Internet of Things (IoT)
computing market. We have developed various innovative reference designs for Intel®
new platform, and will further expand to launch a high volume of professional IoT
products and optimized solutions for customers. Featuring industry-leading performance
and security, outstanding product quality and highly flexible input/output (I/0O) design,
GIGABYTE BRIX™ IoT is very suitable for various types of IoT applications.
. Gaming peripherals that won numerous awards
@OWorld’s first tactical AORUS AD27QD gaming monitor that incorporates various
exclusive features and patented technologies
AORUS AD27QD features a full plane 27-inch borderless design, presenting you
with unprecedented gaming audio and video quality, as well as provide various
market's exclusive tactical functions such as Black Equalizer, Aim Stabilizer,
GameAssist, AORUS Dashboard, OSD Sidekick which can be directly controlled
with mouse and keyboard, and AORUS's patented Active Noise Cancelling (ANC).
These designs have won innovative design award in Computex 2019, and best design
award in Computex BC Award, which proves that they are not only high-end tactical
equipment for gaming, but also masterpieces of extreme craftsmanship.
@Breakthrough PCle 3.0 efficiency limit, GIGABYTE launches AORUS RAID SSD
2TB solid state drive
Launches latest high-speed PCle Gen x8 interface AORUS RAID SSD 2TB AIC SSD,
providing up to 1.8 times of performance compared to traditional PCle 3.0 NVMe SSD.
Its cooling fins, comprehensive M.2 exclusive heat sink, active cooling design, and
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AORUS Storage Manager application, allow gamers to monitor and adjust SSD
operating status at all times!

®AORUS Memory Boost function enables easy performance upgrade, provide
industry's ultimate lighting fluency
The latest AORUS RGB memory uses DDR4 XMP design coupled with GIGABYTE's
carefully selected motherboard. Through AORUS Memory Boost, it can swiftly
upgrade memory frequency. It also features the new Wave2 rainbow mode that allows
gamers to customize lighting configuration for the system and other components, and
create unique personal styles.

7. Innovative digital application - Smart Life

Developed cross-domain smart agricultural IoT that is able to reflect and predict
ecological and environmental factors at real time. It comprises soil moisture,
temperature, and growth analysis, and integrates with cloud linkage of backend data
center to conduct monitoring and big data analysis, optimizing production efficiency.
For convenient lifestyle service, GIGABYTE industrial computers are also applied on
smart try-on mirror. It creates complete facial AR/VR, and uses 3D lens experience at
real time for future try-on simulation, generating optimized data for companies in
decision management. In addition, facial recognition is also used together with big data
on smart signage and security access control, analyzing traffic flow for precision
marketing or security. With the exchange of diverse smart technologies, we also
cooperate with the smart glasses industry by combining AR/MR technologies with
GIGABYTE hardware computing analysis, and produce services of better digitization,
and higher efficiency and precision. GIGABYTE Smart Life makes use of innovative
technologies as its basis for upgrading life. With one-stop integration for tracking of
every step, it simplifies modern lifestyle and workload.

II. Summary of 2020 Business Plan

(D

)

Market

Target high-growth markets such as gaming and creators, continue to expand width and
depth, develop products designed to meet user requirements, with features such as
personalization, intelligentization, high efficiency and ease of use, and implement brand
spirit, "Upgrade Your Life!" to all over the world! In terms of cloud server market, cloud
and Al demand is still strong, and 5G application demand will grow. GIGABYTE is

confident to continue to drive the growth in both revenue and profitability.
Product

Expected to develop diverse new generation products and services on open platform:
AORUS gaming peripherals, new generation top series motherboard, new generation
high-end gaming graphics card, innovative computer peripherals and world's first tactical
gaming monitor. System platform comprises: Brix ultra-slim laptop and Al laptop. Cloud
applications comprises: Server products such as 5G application series, Al cloud
computing series, hyper-converged infrastructure series, big data storage service series,
enterprise IT architecture series, etc. Smart applications comprises: AloT application
system solutions, smart recognition services, automotive electronics, photoelectric
integration related application products, etc. Continue to integrate software and hardware,
add new product elements, satisfy different user groups.
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Q)

Marketing .

AORUS will continue to lead the gaming market with its passionate and stunning product
trend, while GIGABYTE will adhere to produce high quality and high efficiency
products in the channel. In recent years, it has successively developed 535G, cloud
computing, AloT and smart applications, so as to cater customers with comprehensive
products.

Sales Channel Establishment

Besides expanding the operating model to B2B2C and strengthening traditional channel
marketing of existing distributors, we also cooperate with e-commerce, and make use of
e-commerce platforms to expand sales and shopping guides, as well as carry out precision
segment marketing and services. The new model can effectively transform competition
into strength, as well as drive the growth of brand and operational performance.
Manufacture

With the uncertainties of the US-China trade war and long-term impact of the pneumonia
outbreak, GIGABYTE continues to enhance automation and intelligentization in Taiwan
manufactured products, resolve manpower problems in the short run, and reduce trade
risk and production cost in the long run.

Service

Continue to make use of Al technologies, accurately meet and satisfy customers' needs
with smart service methods that combine virtuality and reality. We make use of
innovative technologies such as smart recognition technologies, smart lockers, smart
customer service robots, ete. to further increase customer satisfaction.

Social Responsibility

The vision of promoting sustainable development begins from GIGABYTE's corporate
mission, "Innovative Technologies, Upgrade Your Life", and we have established 4 major
sustainable development policies. Based on our expertise in research and development,
and innovation capabilities, we have developed low-carbon technologies. Since the
launch of the Green Action Plan, we have reduced more than 40% of carbon in the past
decade, far exceeding the original target. We also actively respond to Science Based
Targets initiative (SBTi) and Task Force on Climate-related Financial Disclosures
(TCFD), and strive to meet international climate targets and strategies, to generate more
significant performance. We also organize international climate workshops for the future
generation of Taiwan to learn about the global climate change crisis, and practice
sustainability. GIGABYTE Technologies continues to provide friendly products and
services, and care for the society. We take active effort for the good of the people,
environment, and society, and for the sustainability of the earth!

III.Future development strategy, impact from outside compete environment, regulation

environment and overall operation environment:

1. The favorable factors for the Company’s operational development

(1) Early this year, the United States and China reached the first phase of trade negotiation,

and both parties started to adjust the original additional tariffs measures, followed by the
second phase of trade negotiation. US-China trade offense and defense temporarily
come to an end, which will be beneficial for the Company’s overall capacity allocation.



(2) Esports competition has gradually become mainstream events, and esports global output
is expected to exceed USD1.65 billion by 2021.

GIGABYTE ’s main products are gaming motherboard, gaming graphics cards, gaming
laptop and related peripherals. Hence, the rapid growth of global esports output is
favorable for the Company’s future operating performance.

(3) With the arrival of the 5G era, high-performance computing servers and edge computing
development will be future mainstream. In recent years, GIGABYTE sees a fast
revenue growth in network communication equipment. In the future, we will continue
to invest in research and development, and it is expected to drive the Company’s
revenue and profitability.

2. The unfavorable factors for the Company’s operational development

(1) International oil price collapse and global pandemic have weakened both supply and
demand. In the past, it was assumed that a drop in oil price was beneficial for cost
control. However, once it turns info deflation, it will reduce cost advantage, impact the
global economy, and thereby affect the Company’s transnational operations.

(2) The impact of US- China trade has slowed China’s economic growth, and the reduced
purchasing power and purchase demand will impact the Company’s operations in the
region.

(3) With the global outbreak of the new coronavirus, IMF Chief predicts that the
coronavirus epidemic will trigger the worst recession since the Great Depression in the
1930s, and the global economy will shrink by 3%. As the epidemic continues to spread,
lockdown measures of the countries have caused trading activities to stop and
unemployment to increase, which are unfavorable for the Company’s revenue.

(4) In response to the epidemic, major countries swiftly launched QE monetary easing
policy. Cash outflow to Asia may cause appreciation shock to the Taiwan Dollar, which
is unfavorable for GIGABYTE as we rely on exports.

3. Company’s future development strategies

(1) Specialize in a full range of AORUS gaming peripherals, providing gamers with
integrated solutions product experience.

Besides existing AORUS hit products which comprise gaming series motherboard and
graphics card, GIGABYTE actively develops a full range of AORUS peripherals with
excellent firmware technologies and highly integrated performance. GIGABYTE also
develops gaming peripherals such as RGB DRAM Memory Module and AD27QD,
world's first tactical gaming monitor, etc., spectally for gamers. Through system
resource integration and sharing, create an ultimate extraordinary gaming experience for
gamers, and with complete sensory stimulation, immerse gamers in the fast and furious

virtual gaming world, and ultimate magical feast!
(2) In welcoming the 5G era, build high-performance Al clouds, comprehensive server
product lines.

The 5G era is a generation for Al and high-performance clouds. GIGABYTE will
continue to build a full series of high-performance Al cloud server products. It will
provide server product requirements in various different professional fields such as Al
computing, hyper converged computing, big data storage service, multi-media software
development design, enterprise internal IT architecture, etc., and build a new beachhead



for future cloud server development in the era of high-performance cloud. Also,
GIGABYTE will actively invest in the research and development of edge computing,
and apply edge computing architecture on related products. Besides assisting customers
by providing instant response on exception messages, we also carry out preprocessing
on the massive data collected, increasing overall product value brought about by data
processing efficiency.

(3) Integrate opto-mechatronics series of products.
Opto-mechatronics product integration is the key direction of mid- and long-term
development of GIGABYTE. Currently, besides existing motherboards, graphics cards
and server products, GIGABYTE also invests in the research and development of 3D
facial recognition technologies, automotive motor products, industrial computer

products, etc.
(4) Actively invest in the venous industry, and contribute to the earth.

GIGABYTE will actively invest in venous recycling system integration for in-house
products. In the midst of research and developing new products, it will also uphold a
responsible attitude, by recycling and reusing products it produced in the past. Through
existing product maintenance networks, carry out classification, recycling and
dismantling and trimming, continue to promote GIGABYTE’s corporate philosophy of
sustainable development, and contribute to the earth.

Looking forward, GIGABYTE will lay the foundation for its brand, and during the course of
research, innovation, and sustainable development, will continue to generate profit for the Company,
share with shareholders, benefit mankind, and give back to the society.

Wish You Health and Happiness.

Dandy Yeh
Chairman

Chairman: Pei-Cheng Yeh General Manger: E-Tay Li CFO: Chun-Ying Chen



Two. The Company

I. Date established: April 30, 1986
II. Company History

March 1986

September 1986

Gigabyte Industrial Co., Ltd. established with NT$700,000 in
paid-in capital. Commenced manufacturing and sale of
motherboards.

Capital increased to NT$5 million; relocated to Xinyi Road in
Taipei.

August 1987 R&D and international sales departments established for proper
control of product R&D and expansion of global marketing
network. Relocated to Ren-ai Rd. Sec. 4.

November 1987 Successfully developed the new 2MB EMS card product. Focus
now on the development of high value-added products.

March 1989 Successfully developed the new 8MB EMS card product. In-house
R&D capability recognized by the market.

May 1989 Entered into agreement with AMI, a US company, on the 386 BIOS.
The improvement to hardware and software integration helped
increase future market share.

June 1989 Company name changed to "Gigabyte Corporation".

September 1989 Purchased and relocated to new plant site at 4F No. 3 4F Alley 6,
Lane 45, Baoxing Rd., Xindian City.

March 1992 Purchased additional workshop space on 4F and 5F of No. 9, Alley
6, Lane 45, Baoxing Rd., Xindian City, to accommodate new
production capacity.

July 1993 Joint venture with Intel for the development of Pentium
motherboards. R&D capacity recognized by the industry again.

March 1994 Signed agreement with Award Software Inc., a US company, for the

October 1994

right to use its BIOS.

Our Pentium motherboard was recommended by PC Magazine in
the US as the Editor's Choice. This represented recognition by the
international media on the reliability of our product.

March 1996 Passed ISO-9002 quality system certification by RWTUV of
Germany.

July 1996 Public offering of company stock approved.

December 1996 Xindian plant relocated to Pingzhen City in Taoyuan County and
commenced operations. The new site has 9,585m” of floor space
and the latest automated production equipment.

November 1997 Presented with the "6th Fine Product of Taiwan Award" by CETRA.

August 1998 Approval granted for investing in a new plant in China by the Board
of Investment of Ministry of Economic Affairs.

September 1998 Successfully listed on the TSE at NT$172.5 per share.

November 1998 Presented with the "Fine Product of Taiwan Award" for a second
time. This was the first time that the award had ever been presented
a second time to the same company for the same product.

November 1998 Dongguan Gigabyte Electronics Co., Ltd. established for the

manufacturing of computer/IT products and parts.



January 1999
June 1999
September 1999
April 2000
June 2000

July 2000

September 2000
QOctober 2000

March 2001
March 2001

June 2001
June 2001
June 2001
September 2001

September 2001

January 2002
March 2002

May 2002
May 2002

June 2002

January 2003

March 2003
June 2003

Revolutionized the motherboard industry with the launch of
patented Dual BIOS technology.

Ranked 41 by the US Business Week magazine among the world's
top 100 IT companies.

GA-BX2000 and GA-660 ranked No. 1 by the PC Magazine in the
Netherlands.

New corporate headquarters at No. 6 Baogiang Rd. in Xindian
completed and put into service.

Retained eamings were capitalized increasing paid-in capital to
$3,281,352,600.

GDRs (30,000,000 shares of common stock) issued for cash capital
increase. The GDRs were offered to the public in Luxemburg on
July 17 and paid-in capital subsequently increased to
$3,581,352,600.

Pingzheng 2nd Plant and Nanping Plant completed.

Gigabyte formed a strategic alliance with Conventive Advance, a
Linux vendor, and jointly announced the "Appliance Server" and
"TU Rackmount Server" for the Linux platform. The two new
products were designed to provide small and medium enterprise
users as well as general users with powerful and highly efficient
total network solutions.

Successfully issued US$115 million in ECB.

Gigabyte Ningbo Co., Ltd. established for the manufacturing of
computer and IT products.

Presented with the "1st Outstanding Promotion of Fine Taiwan
Product Award".

Gigabyte Maintenance Ningbo Ltd. established for the maintenance
of computer and IT products.

Gigabyte International Trading Ningbo Co., Ltd. established for the
importing and exporting of computer/IT products and parts.

Won the Gold Mind Award at the "2001 National Inventions
Exhibition".

Gigabyte and the Legend Group of China set up a joint venture in
Hong Kong to engage in Contract Electronics Manufacturing
(CEM). This expanded our production capacity, reduced production
costs and increased competitiveness.

Gigabyte became the only motherboard maker in Taiwan to receive
the "Fine Product of Award" for five consecutive years.

GDRs converted by bearers into 291,886 common shares,
increasing paid-in capital to NT$4,594,133,440.

Presented with the "National Product Image Award".

Held new product conference for the announcement of P4, Maya
display card, ZY GMA and IA products.

Presented with a number of product awards from online media in
New Zealand, Hungary, Russia, the U.S., Denmark, Singapore, the
U.K., Germany and France.

Wireless communications R&D team formed at Tainan
Science-based Industrial Park.

Established Russia Office in Moscow.

Hosted joint conference announcing all of the products for 2003
from three business units.



June 2003
October 2003
December 2003
May 2004

May 2004

July 2004
October 2004

December 2004
January 2005

March 2005
March 2005

June 2005

December 2005
December 2005

December 2005
Januvary 2006

March 2006
March 2006
April 2006

June 2006

August 2006

August 2006

QOctober 2006

Set up Ningbo Zhongjia Technology & Trading Co., Ltd. to handle
all sales in China.

Ningbo plant completed and commissioned. The plant is used for
motherboard manufacturing as well as IA and system assembly.
Gigabyte voted the champion of the “"Superior Products of the Year"
for three consecutive years.

Hosted product conference for the G-MAX series of new products
that "Transcend the Limit".

Gigabyte Communications Inc. established for R&D and sales of
communications products.

G-MAX NB-1401 won the "National Image Product Gold Award",
the top industry award.

Gigabyte was once again recognized by the industry at the 15th
"National Quality Awards".

Gigabyte award ceremony at the National Quality Awards.
Gigabyte became the only company to achieve 100% win rate at the
Taiwan Excellence Awards for 8 consecutive years.

Launched the AirCruiser G Desktop Router, the world's first 54
Mbps PCI wireless router.

Presented the first Gigabyte-designed streamlined cell phone at
CeBIT 2005.

Notebook computer and expandable wireless base station presented
with the "13th National Product Image Award", making this the 4th
consecutive year that Gigabyte has won this award.

Gigabyte releases the Windows Mobile 5.0 PDA, the first to feature
TV service.

Launched the Gigabyte g-Cam, the first mobile phone with
7-Megapixel camera.

First company to pass IECQ QC 080000 certification.

Gigabyte, the leader in digital home motherboards, released the first
motherboard in the world designed for Intel Viiv technology.
Gigabyte's full product line-up attracted much attention at CeBIT
2006 in Hannover. For its 20th anniversary, the Company has
successfully diversified into a variety of different fields.

Gigabyte Communications partnered with Synergy Technology
(Asia) to launch the g-Smart PDA running Windows Mobile 5.0
with TV support as well as the g-Cam, the first mobile phone with a
5-Megapixel CCD camera.

New dual-core series of notebook products launched at Gigabyte
product conference.

The W251U notebook named Best Choice of Computex with its
creative, user-friendly, slim and stylish design.

Gigabyte presented with the 14th Gold Award Products of Taiwan
special award for “Distinguished Performance Manufacturer ---
with more than 100 Awards on Outstanding Products over the
years”. Five products also won the Silver Award, an unprecedented
feat.

Named "Outstanding Brand of Taiwan" by the Ministry of
Economic Affairs for 2 consecutive years.

Gigabyte won the National Design Award- Product Design Gold
Award with its G-Pad, a cooling device for notebook PCs.
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October 2006
November 2006
December 2006

December 2006

May 2007

June 2007

July 2007

July 2007
December 2007
April 2008

May 2008

August 2008

October 2008

November 2008

April 2009

April 2009
June 2009
October 2009
November 2009
December 2009
January 2010

February 2010
March 2010

Gigabyte won the Good Design Award in Japan with its g-Smart 1
and W251U.

Successfully issued US$100 million in ECB for a second time.
Gigabyte Education Foundation held the 5th G-DESIGN Contest.
The contest was officially renamed as the G-DESIGN Wild
Thoughts Contests starting this year.

Gigabyte United Inc. established. The new subsidiary takes over the
existing Gigabyte branded channel desktop PC motherboard an
display card business.

Gigabyte’s GV-NX76T256-RH graphics card won Best Choice at
COMPUTEX Taipei 2007

Gigabyte achieved a 100% win rate for 10 consecutive years at the
15th Taiwan Excellence Awards

GIGABYTE named a Taiwan TOP 20 Global Brand for the 4th
consecutive year

GIGABYTE GSmart t600 PDA Phone won the Taiwan Excellence
Gold Award

GIGABYTE G-Pad, Roll Pad won the iF Product Design Award
2008.

Gigabyte wins the 16th Taiwan Excellence Award for the 11th
consecutive year.

The Multi-Media IP-TV Box Glee Cube won the grand award in
“Taiwan Golden Award 2008”. Both the notebook cooler pad “Roil
Pad” and smart phone “GSmart MS820” also won the “2008
Taiwan Excellence Award Silver Medal”.

Board Meeting approved the merger of “Gigabyte” motherboard
and graphic card subsidiary “Gigabyte United Inc.” effective from
October 1. -

GA-EP45-UD 3P series P45 motherboard with “Ultra Durable 3”
technology released.

Strategic alliance of Gigabyte, Intel and Chunghwa Telecom
launches the first MID (Mobile Internet Device) ---GIGABYTE
M528.

Gigabyte launched the Booktop M1022M, an innovative
multi-purpose portable notebook that can be transformed into PC by
using a plug and play dock.

Gigabyte Intel X58 series motherboard authorized by n-Vidia to use
SLI technology for increased graphical performance.

Gigabyte ranked 19th in the “2009 Taiwan Info Tech 100” for its
innovative value.

Gigabyte’s Booktop M1022 awarded the “2009 Golden Pin Design
Award”, making it the only laptop winner.

Gigabyte is the first in the industry to roll out a USB 3.0 SATA 6
Gbps solution based on AMD platform,

At 18th “Taiwan Excellence Award”, Gigabyte achieved a 100%
win rate for 12th consecutive years.

Gigabyte’s USB motherboard is the first to receive the USB-IF
certification.

Gigabyte rolls out its first P55 chipset UD7 mother board.
Gigabyte rolls out the industry’s lightest laptop and a Netbook
powered by Intel’s latest Pine Trail-M platform.
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April 2010

July 2010
September 2010
December 2010
January 2011

February 2011

March 2011

April 2011
May 2011

July 2011
November 2011

January 2012

February 2012
October 2012

November 2012

December 2012

December 2012

April 2013
April 2013
June 2013
December 2013

December 2013

Gigabyte is the first in the industry to roll out a mother board that
possesses iPad USB power supply functionality.

Gigabyte is the first in the industry to roll out a Mini-ITX
motherboard featuring USB 3.0.

Gigabyte ranked 17th in a survey of international Taiwanese brands
value.

At the 19th “Taiwan Excellence Award”, Gigabyte achieved a 100%
win rate for the 13th consecutive year.

Gigabyte rolls out new generation of motherboards that support
Intel Core Duo (Sandy Bridge) processors.

Gigabyte announced a new G1-Killer gaming motherboard,
providing gamers superior graphics, superior audio, superior speed,
and superior durability for ultimate performance.

Gigabyte X58 A-OC motherboard is the world's first motherboard
designed specifically for overclocking.

Gigabyte K8100 gaming keyboard won the Red Dot design award
in Germany.

Gigabyte GA-X58A-UD9 won the “19th Taiwan Excellence Awards
Silver Medal™.

Gigabyte G1 Assassin won the "Innovation and Design Award" at
the 2012 Taipei International Computer Show.

GIGABYTE named one of the 100 major brands in Taiwan.
Gigabyte Education Foundation recognized for service to social
education by the Ministry of Education.

At the 20th “Taiwan Excellence Award”, Gigabyte achieved a 100%
win rate for the 14th consecutive year.

GIGABYTE passed AEO certification.

In the Survey on Taiwan’s International Brands (2012), conducted
by Interbrand, managed by the Taiwan External Trade Development
Council, and sponsored by the Ministry of Economic Affairs,
Gigabyte proved its solid brand prestige, ranking 22nd among
Taiwan’s international brands.

Gigabyte participated in the Best Business Paradigm Award
sponsored by the Taoyuan County Government and received
“Sensible Workplace — Best Business Paradigm Award.”

At the 21th “Taiwan Excellence Award”, Gigabyte achieved a 100%
win rate for the 15th consecutive year.

The Company was awarded the Corporate Sustainability Award of
Industry Elite Award in the information products and services
category by the Industrial Development Bureau, MOEA.
Gigabyte’s Aivia Neon won Germany’s 2013 Red Dot Product
Design Award.

Gigabyte’s P2542G gaming notebook and GTX 680 performance
display card won the Silver Medal at the 21st Taiwan Excellence
Awards.

Gigabyte won the Innovation Design Award at Computex 2013.

At the 22nd “Taiwan Excellence Award”, Gigabyte achieved a
100% win rate for the 16th consecutive year.

The Company received the “2013 Carbon Reduction Mark Superior
Award” from the Environmental Protection Administration,
Executive Yuan
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April 2014

August 2014

October 2014

November 2014

December 2014

March 2014

May 2015

June 2015

June 2015
December 2015

January 2016
May 2016
December 2016
May 2017

May 2017
November 2017
December 2017

December 2017

February 2018

November 2018

Gigabyte’s BRIX super-micro PC system won the Silver Medal at
the 22nd Taiwan Excellence Awards.

Gigabyte won the New Star Award in the large-scale enterprise
category in the 2014 CommonWealth Magazine "Corporate
Citizenship Awards".

Gigabyte won the Taoyuan County Government "8th Taoyuan
Excellent Enterprise Award" and "2014 Excellent Employer
Award".

Gigabyte won the "Taiwan CSR Report Awards - Bronze Medal,
Large Enterprises, Electronics Industry II" and "TCSA Climate
Leadership Award".

The "AORUS X3 Plus" 13" e-sports notebook and
"GA-Z97X-Gaming G1 Multimedia Motherboard" were recognized
at the 23rd Taiwan Excellence Awards.

"AORUS Thunder K7 and M7" received the 2015 Red Dot Design
Award in Germany

Top 30™ enterprise and top 7™ enterprise in technology and
traditional industries according to the CSR Survey by Global View
Magazine.

Excellence in the private sector category of the National
Environmental Education Awards.

“AORUS X5” won the COMPUTEX BC Award and Dé&I Award
Perfect Score! 100% winning rate at the “Taiwan Excellence
Awards”.

“AORUS X5 15-inch Gaming Laptop” and “AORUS X7 D.T.
17-inch Gaming Laptop” won the CES Innovation Award.

Ranked Taiwan’s top 40™ enterprise and top 16™ enterprise in the
electronics industry in the CSR Survey by Global View Magazine.
The AERO 14 and AROUS X7 DT gaming notebooks won the 25th
Taiwan Excellence Awards. Total strike, perfect performance!

The BRIX VR won the 2017 COMPUTEX dé&i Award.

Ranked Taiwan’s top 40th enterprise in the Model Enterprise in the
electronics industry according to the CSR Survey by Global View
Magazine.

"AORUS X9 Gaming Laptop" wins the CES 2018 CES Innovation
Award.

"X299 AORUS Gaming 9 Top Gaming Motherboard" wins the 26th
Taiwan Excellence Silver Award.

The company wins the 10th Taiwan Corporate Sustainability
Awards (TCSA) Recognizing "Taiwan Top 50 Corporate
Sustainability Prize", "Climate Leadership Awards" and the "Gold
Award from the Taiwan TOp50 Corporate Sustainability Report
Awards”,

AORUS X7 Packaging featuring recycle fiber of plant and
Environmental protection wins iF World Design Award 2018.

The company wins the 11th Taiwan Corporate Sustainability.
Awards (TCSA) Recognizing "Taiwan Top 50 Corporate
Sustainability Prize", "Climate Leadership Awards" and the "Gold
Award from the Taiwan TOp50 Corporate Sustainability Report
Awards”.

_13_



March 2019
April 2019

May 2019

May 2019
October 2019
November 2019
February 2020

February 2020

"Z390 AORUS XTREME WATERFORCE Motherboard” wins the
2019 Red Dot Design Award.

"X399 AORUS XTREME Top Gaming Motherboard " wins the
27th Taiwan Excellence Award.

AORUS AD27QD won Computex 2019 Innovative Design Award
and was rated as the Best Design in the Best Choice (BC) Award.
AERO 15 won the Best Notebook of the Year Award in the
European Hardware Association Awards 2019.

The notebook of AERO creator won the Taiwan Excellence Awards.
Z390 AORUS XTREME WATERFORCE All-In-One Gaming
Motherboard won the Silver Award of the 28th Taiwan Excellence
Awards.

X570 AORUS XTREME Motherboard won the 2020 iF Design
Award.

AORUS CV27Q Tactical Gaming Monitor won the 2020 iF Product
Design Award.
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(2) Major functional departments:

Office of the President

Coordinate the operation and management of the Company, map out and

implement the objectives for corporate development and business plans.

General Manager
Office

Develop the company's managerial strategies, set operating targets, monitor

and evaluate the implementation and performance of operating targets.

Auditing Office

Investigate and evaluate the viability, reasonability and effectiveness of the

Company control systems.

Operations

Management Center

Coordinate the functions of finance, accounting, share registration, budgeting,
general affairs, legal affairs and the maintenance of computer system, software

and hardware.

Operations
Management Center-
Sustainable

Development Office

An office for corporate social responsibility (CSR) strengthens the green
supply chain management (GSCM), assists the business unit with the
development of low-carbon technology for the dedication of developing low
carbon products, thus promoting sustainable development in accordance with

high ethical standards and norms.

Manufacturing BU

Responsible for the production and manufacturing of computer mainboards,

graphic cards and Internet products, and the assembly of PC systems.

Channel Solution
BU

Responsible for design and R&D and sales of motherboard, multimedia

products and video adapter.

Network & Comm.  |BU Responsible for design and R&D and sales of Network and

BU Communication products and ODM products.

Mobility Product BU |Responsible for design and R&D of notebook products.

Customer Service Responsible for nationwide and worldwide after-sales support and service for
Center all products.

Automotive Responsible for automated driving assistance and flest management systems

Electronics Business

Division

design and development of high value-added safety assisted driving kits and

car networking products.

Smart Optical

Business Division

Responsible for the design, development, and marketing of new
technologically integrated products for photoelectric systems, for the
development of projects of ODM clients, and for the provision of technical

services for photoelectric-related applications within the group.
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The Major Shareholder of Institutional Shareholders April 14, 2020

The Name of institutional shareholders Major shareholder Proportion
Liu, Keng-Wei 40.00%
. . Liu, Hsiao-Yu 40.00%

Wi ., Ltd, 2 -
Ming Wei Investment Co., Ltd Yang, Hsueh-Ching 10.00%
Liu, Ming-Hsiung 9.99%
Shi Jia Investment Co,, Ltd. Ma, Shih-Jie 93.33%
Yuueyeh Development Investment Limited. Tseng, Chun-Ming 95.00%
Shi Da Investment Limited Ko, Cong-Yuan 80.00%
Yeh, Pei-Chen 27.50%
Xi Wei Investment Co., Ltd. Tsai, Li-Mei 27.50%
Yeh, Yu-Chang 15.00%

Profiles of Directors (2)
April 14, 2020

Meet One of the Following Professional Qualification Requirements, Tegether . Number of
N with at Least Five Years Work Experience Status of independence (Note 2) Other Public
Qualification | 3 Trstrmotar or Higher A Judge, Public Prosecutor, [Have Work Companies in
Position in a Department of |Attorney, Certified Public  |Experience in the Which the
Commerce, Law, Finance, |Accountant, or Other Areas of Individual is
Accounting, or Other Professional or Technical ~ (Commerce, Law, Concurrently
Academic Department Specialist Who has Passed a |Finance, or tlabtalalstielzlelololule Setvingas an
Related to the Business National Examination and | Accounting, or Independent
Name Needs of the Company ina  |been Awarded a Certificate  [Otherwise Director
{(Note 1) Public or Private Junior in a Profession Necessary for{Necessary for the
College, College or the Business of the Company | Business of the
University Company
Yeh, Pei-Chen v v v | v vy ]|v]|v
Ming Wei Investment
Co., Lid. v v vlvlv|v|v]|v
Representative:
Liu, Ming-Hsiung
Shi Jia Investment Co.,
Led. . v v VIV ||V ||
Representative:
Ma, Mou-Ming
Yuei Yei Development
Investment !..td. v vl slrlvlvlvle
Representative:
Tseng, Chun-Ming
Shi Da Investment
Limited v vl vliv|vlv|vlv|riv|v]|v
Representative:
Ko, Cong-Yuan
| Xi Wei Investment Co.,
L, v lv|v|v v vlv|v
Representative:
LI, E-Tay
Wang, Hwei-Min '3 v FARArEr AT A A2 Araran:
Chan. Yi-Hung v V] vI]vy|vivI v I vy |vivi]vY
Huang, Wen-lai v VI v v ||| ]y

Note 1:The number of fields may be adjusted depending on the content,
Note 2:Respective director and supervisor who meet the following qualifications 2 years before assumption of office or at the time of assumption office shall puta v in the

€3]
@

3

@
(%)

®

M

®

(&)

appropriate space.

Not an employee of the Company or its affiliates.

Not a director or supervisor of the company or any of its affiliates (the same does not apply, however, in cases where the person is an independent director of the cotnpany, its
parent company, subsidiary or any subsidiary of the same parent company established pursuant to this act or local regulations).

Not a natural-person sharelholder who holds shares, together with those held by the person's spouse, minor children, or held by the person under others’ nawmes, in an aggregate
of one percent or more of the total number of issued shares of the company or ranking in the top 10 in holdings.

Not a manager listed in (1) or a spouse, second degree kin or closer, or a direct blood relative of third degree or closer to anyone listed in (2) and (3).

Not a director, superviser, or empioyee of a corporate shareholder that directly holds 5% or more of the total number of issued shares of the company or of a corporate
shareholder that ranks among the top five in shareholdings or of a corporate shareholder that appoints a representative, as provided in Paragraphs 1 or 2, Atticle 27 of the
Company Act, to act as a director or supervisor of the company (the same does not apply, lowever, in cases where the person is an independent director of the company, its
parent company, subsidiary or any subsidiary of the same parent company established pursuant to this act or local regulations),

Not a director, superviser, or employee of other companies controlled by the same person with more than half of the company's director seat or voting shares (the same does not
apply, however, in cases where the person is an independent director of the company, its parent company, subsidiary or any subsidiary of the same parent company established
pursuant to the this act or local regulations).

Not a director, supervisor, or employee of another company or institution of the same person or spouse who is the company’ s chairman, president, or persens with equivalent
position (ihe same does not apply, however, in cases where the person is an independent director of the company, its parent company, subsidiary or any subsidiary of the same
parent company established pursuant & this act or local regulations).

Not a director, supervisor, manager or shareholder holding 5% or more of the shares, of a specified company or institution that has a financial or business relationship with the
company (the same does not apply, however, in cases where the specified company or institution hold 20% or more but less than 50% of the company's shares and the person is
an independent director of the company, its parent company, subsidiary ot any subsidiary of the same parent company established pursuant to this act or local regulations).

Not a professional who provides auditing service or provides commercial, legal, financial, accounting services or consultation, for which a cumulative compensation of less
than NT$500,000 is obtained in the past two years, to the Company or its affiliates, nor is an owner, partner, director, supervisor, or manrager, or the spouse of any of the above,
of a sole proprictorship, partnership, company, or instifution that provides such services to the Company or its affiliates; provided, this restriction does not apply to a member of
the remuneration committee, public tender offer review committee, or special committee for merger/consolidation and acquisition, who exercises powers pursnant to the
Securities and Exchange Act or fo the Business Mergers and Acquisitions Act or related laws or regulations.

(10) Mot having a marital relationship, or a relative within the second degree of kinship te any other director of the Company.
(11) Not under any of the categories stated in Article 30 of the Company Act.
(12) Not being elected as representative to the government or an institution under Article 27 of the Company Act.
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(4) Compensation for Managers
December 31, 2019; Unit: NTD1,000/1,000 shares

Title Name o . Ratio of the tgtal to
1) (*1) Stock dividends | Cash dividends TOTAL the net earnings
after tax(%)
President Yeh, Pei-Chen
Senior VP Liu, Ming-Hsiung
Senior VP Ma, Mou-Ming
Senior VP Tseng,Chun-Ming
Senior VP and
General Manager |Lin, Huo-Yuan
of BU (Note2)
Lqu:,;pg gencral Li, E-Tay
General Manager |Meng,
of BU Hsian-Ming
Vice General
Manager of the |Lu, Zheng-Wei
US Platform
Vice General
Z Manager and
U% Special Assistant (Chen, Jin-Ting 0 69,000 69,000 3.56%
i Center
Business Unit
Vice President Chen, Chen-Shun
Business Unit e
Vice President Lin, Ying Yu
Dusiness Mt |uang, Shun Chi
Business Unit
Vice President Chen, Jun-Cheng
Business Unit
%:;ﬁfmlogy Hou, Chih-Jen
Officer
C.0.0. Bai, Guang-Hua
C.EO. Chen, Chun-Ying
General Counsel |{Chiu, Chih Peng
Note 1:  This refers to the scheduled profit (including stock and cash) to be allocated to managers that was approved
by the board meeting before surplus is allocated to the shareholders, if, however, the allocation cannot be
estimated, the allocation should then be calculated based on last year’s actual distribution percentage. The
stock of TWSE and TPEX companies should be calculated based on the fair value regulated by the
Guidelines Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers. The surplus of non-TWSE
and TPEX companies is calculated based on the net value of the closing day of the current accounting period.
Net profit after tax refers to the net profit after tax in the most recent year. For entities that have adopted
IFRSs, net profit after tax refers to the entity’s or the individual financial statement’s net profit after tax in the
most recent year.
The name and title of each individual manager should be disclosed respectively, while surplus can be
disclosed in summary.
According to the Taiwan-Finance-Securities-1II-0920001301 issued on March 27, 2003, the applicable scope
of the managers is as follows:
(1) General Manager and equivalent level;
(2) Vice General Manager and equivalent level;
(3) Director and equivalent level;
(4) Financial supervisor;
(5) Accounting supervisor;
(6) Other managers and authorized personnel.
Note 2:  Huo-Yuan Lin, senior vice president and general manager of the business group, retired in September 2019.
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(IV) A comparative description with analysis on the ratio taken by the gross total of
remuneration paid by Giga-Byte and all firms covered in the consolidated financial
statements to Giga-Byte’s directors, president and vice presidents to the net earnings
after tax over the past two years. Please describe as well the policies, criteria and
composition of remuneration, procedures to fix remuneration, their interrelationship

with Giga-Byte’s business performance and future risks.

Item

2018
the ratio taken by the gross total of
remuneration paid by Giga-Byte and all
firms covered in the consolidated
financial statements to Giga-Byte’s
directors, president and vice presidents

2019
the ratio taken by the gross total of
remuneration paid by Giga-Byte and all
firms covered in the consolidated
financial statements to Giga-Byte’s
directors, president and vice presidents
to the net earnings after tax

to the net earnings after tax

required, should there be any additional
allocation and changes to remuneration
to directors and supervisors.

Title and All firms covered All firms covered
Description Giga-Byte the consolidated Giga-Byte the consolidated
financial statements financial statements
Directors
GM & Vice GM 17.47% 17.47% 20.55% 20.55%
Title . . The remuneration of president and vice
e The remuneration of directors .
Description ‘ presidents
1.Policies of The remuneration of directors is| Carried out in accordance with the
remuneration | calculated according to the Company’s | Company's Remuneration Management
articles of incorporation. The approval | Regulations, Employee Performance
of the meeting of shareholders is | Review Regulations, Business Unit

Financial Performance Calculation and
Review Principles, and the Performance
Bonus Evaluation and Distribution
Rules,

2.Criteria and
composition of

Based on the weight allocation of the
business responsibility and guarantee

Includes base salary, living allowance,
food allowance, duty allowance, travel

remuneration

Articles of Incorporation, resolved by
the board meeting, and approved by the
general meeting of shareholders.

remuneration | responsibility of directors. allowance, holiday bonuses and
performance bonuses.

3.Procedures to | The appropriation of surplus is | Their salaries are fixed based on their

fix proceeded in accordance with the | educational and professional

backgrounds, performance and service
seniority and approved in accordance
with the Company’s delegation of

Giga-Byte's
business
performance
and future risks

operation supervision responsibilities,
detailing business operation direction,
transforming crisis into new business
opportunities.

authorization.
4.Interrelationship | Based on the Company’s performance | Remuneration is paid based on target
with and profitability. Fulfilling business | achievement rate, performance,

profitability and contribution of the
respective BU. Strengthening employees’
loyalty to achieve the common goal of
balancing gains and losses between
employers and employees and tide over

the risky economic landscape together.
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III. Corporate Governance
() The operation of BOD
In 2019, BOD held__ 7 meeting (A), the attendance of the directors is as follows.

) Ratio of actual
. Actual Authorized .
Title Name(Note 1} . ) attending (%) Remark
attending B attending
[B/A] (Note 2)
Successive
Chairman Yeh, Pei-Chen 7 0 100% June 11, 2018
Re-election
Vi Ming Wei Investment Co., Successive
ice
. Ltd. Representative: 7 0 100% June 11, 2018
Chairman ) ) . .
Liu, Ming-Hsiung Re-election
Shi Jia Investment Co., Successive
Director Ltd. Representative: 7 0 100% June 11, 2018
Ma, Mou-Ming Re-election
Yuei-yei Kai Fa )
Successive
. Investment Ltd.
Director . 7 0 100% June 11, 2018
Representative: ,
. Re-election
Tseng, Chun-Ming
Shi Da Investment Limited Successive
Director Representative: Ko, 6 1 85.71% June 11, 2018
Cong-Yuan Re-election
Xi Wei Investment Co., New
Director Ltd. 7 0 100% June 11, 2018
Representative: Li, E-Tay Re-election
New
Independent L
. Wang, Hwei-Min 7 0 100% June 11, 2018
Director ]
Re-election
Successive
Independent i
. Chan, Yi-Hung 6 1 85.71% June 11, 2018
Director .
Re-election
Successive
Independent )
. Huang, Wen-lai 3 4 42.86% June 11, 2018
Director .
Re-election
Important notice
I.  When BOD is under any one of the following circumstances, the date, session, and proposal of board
meecting; the opinion of independent directors; and the BOD’s response to such opinions shall be
specified:
(DMatters specified in Article 14-3 of the Securities and Exchange Act
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Matters Opinions or
Specified in Objections

Date of Meeting P | and Resoluti Article 14-3 of of
(Session) roposal and Resolutions the Securities | Independent
and Exchange Directors
Act
*Approval of 2019 annual accountant entrust
and remuneration proposal. v None

January 15th, 2019
(The 5nd session of 12th)

Opinions of Independent Directors: None.

Company's opinions to Independent Directors: None.

Resolution: The resolution is approved by all of the directors present at the
meeting.

March 15th, 2019
(The 6nd session of 12th)

sApproval of 2018 Employee and director
remuneration distribution proposal.

»Amendment of the company's “Asset
Acquisition and Disposal Operating and
Handling Procedure”

*Amendment of the company's “Financial
Derivatives Transactions Operating
Procedures”

sAmendment of the company's “Loaning of
Company Funds Operating Procedures”

*Amendment of the company's “Endorsement
and Guarantee Operating Procedure”

Vv None

Opinions of Independent Directors: None.

Company's opinions to Independent Directors: None.

Resolution:

The first proposal was unanimously approved without objection by attending
directors, except for directors who recused themselves due to a conflict of
interest and have explained the contents in which they have an interest in the
meeting and did not attend discussion and voting in person or on behalf of
another member. The second to fifth proposals were passed by all attending
directors as proposed.

May 15th, 2019
(The 8nd session of 12th)

*Approval of evaluation and suggestions to
2018 distribution of remuneration to \Y None
directors

Opinions of Independent Directors: None.

Company's opinions to Independent Dircctors: None.

Resolution:

Due to the avoidance of interest relations, the directors have explained the
important contents regarding their interest relations; also, they didn't attend or
authorize any personnel to attend the discussion and voting. All the other
directors present at the meeting approved the matter without any disagreement.

IL.

November 14th, 2019
(The 11nd session of 12th)

eIndependence evaluation of CPAs of the \' None
Company

Opinions of Independent Directors: None.

Company's opinions to Independent Directors: None.

Resolution: The resolution is approved by all of the directors present at the
meeting.

(INOther BOD resolutions for the records or written statements regarding the objection or qualified
opinion of independent directors: None.

Status of directors’ avoidance of conflicts of interest in relevant proposals:

(1)The discussion focused on the distribution of remuneration to directors on March 15th, 2019 and May

15th, 2019, The relevant directors should not be involved in the discussion and voting of the matter

regarding remuneration to director respectively.

(2)Salary of managers (annual salary adjustment): The salary of managers proposed by the Board of
Directors on March 15, 2019 involves the salary of individual director's representative who is also a
managet. Those directors involved do not participate in discussion and voting.
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Iv.

(3) Appointment of Remuneration Committee member: The appointment of Remuneration Committee
member proposed by the Board of Directors on June 12, 2019 involves the remuneration of individual
director. Those directors involved do not participate in discussion and voting.

(4) Appointment of new president: The appointment of new president proposed by the Board of Directors
on November 14, 2019 involves individual director's representative who is also a president. Those
directors involved do not participate in discussion and voting.

Listed and over-the-counter companies shall disclose the evaluation cycle and periods, scope, method,

and content of evaluation and other information relevant to the self (or peer) evaluation of board of

directors : Please see Note 3.

An evaluation on the goal of improving the functions of the Board in the current year and the most recent

year (such as forming an audit committee and improving information transparency) and its

implementation: See below
(1)  Targets for improving the competency of the Board of Directors

a. The BOD of this Company formed the Audit Committee on June 17, 2015 to replace the duty
of supervisors and the re-election of the 2™ Audit Committee on June 11 2018. The
committee is formed by three independent directors and holds a committee meeting at least
once a quarter. The major duties and functions of the Audit Commiittee are as follows:

Audit the presentation adequacy of the Company’s financial statements, selection (dismissal)
and independency and performance of CPAs, the effectiveness of implementation of the
Company’s internal control, the Company’s compliance with relevant laws and regulations
and rules; and the Company’s control of existing and potential risks.

b. The BOD of this Company established the Remuneration Committee in December 2011 and

re-elected members of the fourth term on June 11, 2018. Mr. Wang, Hwei-Min(independent
Director) was reelected as the chairman of the Remuneration Committee of the fourth term.
The major duties and functions the Remuneration Committee are as follows:

*  Regularly evaluate and advise on the policy, system, standards and structure of the annual and
long-term performance targets and remuneration of Gigabyte directors, supervisors and
executives.

* Evaluate and advise on the meeting of performance targets by Gigabyte directors, supervisors
and executives as well as the content and amount of individual remuneration.

¢. The BOD of this Company established the "Internal Material Information Processing SOP" in
Qctober, 2011.

(2)  Evaluation of execution

*  The Remuneration Committee is functioning well.

*  Gigabyte's disclosure of important information follows a principle of honesty and integrity.
Disclosure has been accurate, timely and fair,

Note 1:  For institutional directors, disclose the names and the names of their representatives.
Note2: (1) If directors leave their positions before the end of the year, the service termination day

should be stated in the remarks section. The actual attendance rate (%) is calculated with
the number of times the Board meets when they are on the Board and the actual number of
times that member attends.

(2)  Before the end of the year, if there is an election of the Board, the names of new and old
directors should both be filled out, and whether a director is old, new, or re-elected should
be filled out in the remarks section in the remarks section, as should the re-election date.
The actual attendance rate (%) is calculated with the number of times the Board meets
when they are on the Board and the actual number of times that member attends.

Note 2: Implementation status of the evaluation of the Board of Directors:

Evaluation | Evaluation | Evaluation Evaluation Content of Evaluation
Cycle Period Scope Method
Impleme (2020/02/01 | (1)Board of |(1)Board internal |{1)Degree of participation in the Company's
nted once |~ Directors self-assessment operations; quality of board decisions; board
ever year (2021/01/31 | (2)Individual |(2)Director composition and structure; selection of suitable
directors self-assessment board directors and continuing professional

education; and internal control.

(2)Alignment of the goals and missions of the
company; awareness of the duties of a director;
participation in the operation of the company;
management of internal relationship and
communication; director’s professionalism and
continuing education;, internal control.
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(I1) The operation of the Audit Committee

1. The operation of Audit Committee..

In 2019, the Audit Committee held 6 committee meetings (A), and the attendance
of independent directors is as follows:

Title Name Actual Proxy Actual Remarks
attendance (B) attendance attendance rate
(%) [B/A] (note)
Independent New
c P Wang, Hwei-Min 6 0 100% June 11,2018
Director .
Re-clection
Independent New
Di P Chan, Yi-Hung 5 1 83.33% Tune 11, 2018
wrector -
Re-election
Independent New
naep Huang, Wen-lai 2 5 33.33% June 11,2018
Director .
Re-election

1. This Company formed the Audit Committee on June 17, 2015 to audit:

(1)
@)
(3)
)
()

the adequacy of presentation of the Company’s financial statements,

the selection (dismissal) and independency and performance of CPAs,

the effectiveness of implementation of the Company’s internal control,

the Company’s compliance with relevant laws and regulations and rules; and
the Company’s control of existing and potential risks. -

2. The duties and functions of the Audit Committee include:

L

2
3

“
()
(6)
%)
®
®)

Establishment or amendment of an internal control system according to Article 14-1 of the Securities
and Exchange Act.

Evaluation of the internal control system.

Establishment or amendment of operating procedures for financial or operational actions of material
significance, such as acquisition or disposal of assets, derivatives trading, extension of monetary loans
to others, or endorsements or guarantees for others, according to Article 36-1 of the Securities and
Exchange Act.

Matters involving the personal interest of a director.

Transactions of material assets or derivatives.

A material monetary loan, endorsement, or provision of guarantee.

The offering, issuance, or private placement of any equity-type securities.

The appointment or dismissal of CPAs, or their compensation.

The appointment or discharge of financial, accounting, or internal auditing officers.

(10) Annual financial statements or biannual financial statements.
(11) Any other material matter specified by the Company or competent authorities.
3. Other information to disclose:

M

When the Audit Committee is under any one of the following circumstances, the date, session, and

proposal of committee meeting; the opinion of committee members; and the committee’s response to

such opinions shall be specified:

(I) Matters specified in Article 14-5 of the Securities and Exchange Act : Audit Committee's opinions
or resolutions approved are as follows:

Matters Matters not
Specified in approved by all the
Date of Meeting Proposal and Resolutions Article 14-5 of | members of Audit
(Session) P the Securities Committee, but
and Exchange | approved by 2/3 of
Act directors
*Approval of 2019 annual accountant v None

entrust and remuneration proposal,

January 15th, 2019 The Resolution of Audit Committee: Approved by all the members of Audit
(The 5nd session of 2th) Committee.

The company's opinions proposed to Audit Committee; Approved by all the
directors present at the meeting.
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March 15th, 2019
(The 6nd session of 2th)

Individual financial statements and
consolidated financial statements of 2018.
*2018 statement on the internal audit
system.

*Amendment of the company's “Asset
Acquisition and Disposal Operating and
Handling Procedure”

*Amendment of the company's “Financial
Derivatives  Transactions  Operating v None
Procedures™

*Amendment of the company's “Loaning
of Company Funds Operating Procedures”

sAmendment of  the company's
“Endorsement and Guarantee Operating
Procedure”

*Change of CPA who audits the Company's
financial reports

The Resolution of Audit Committee; Approved by all the members of Audit
Committee.

The company's opinions proposed to Audit Comunittee: Approved by all the
directors present at the meeting.

August 13th, 2019
{The 9nd session of 2th)

2019 Q2  consolidated financial v None
statements of the Company.

The Resolution of Audit Commitiee: Approved by all the members of Audit
Committee.

The company's opinions proposed to Audit Committee: Approved by all the
directors present at the meeting.

November 14th, 2018
(The 10nd session of 2th)

*Independence evaluation of CPAs of the
Company v None
«Approval of 2020 Audit Plan

The Resolution of Audit Committee : Approved by all the members of Audit
Committee.

The company's opinions proposed to Audit Committee: Approved by all the
directors present at the meeting.

@

€)

(II) Matters other the above unapproved by the Audit Committee but resolved by over two thirds of all

directors: None

Specify the name of independent directors, proposal content, reasons for the need of avoidance of

conflicts of interest, and involvement in voting for implementation of the avoidance of conflicts of

interest in independent directors: None,

Communication between independent directors and the internal chief auditor and accountant (shall

include communication on the company’s material financial and sales affairs, including the topics,

methods, and results of communication):

1) Apart from submitting the audit report to each independent director for review each month, the
chief auditor will report material issues found in the audit to the BOD or board members.

2) When auditing or reviewing quarterly consolidated statements (annual and including individual
financial statements) of this Company at the planning and completing stages, CPAs consolidate
information and communicate with the Audit Committee in writing or face to face according to
SAS No. 39 “Communications with Those Charged with Governance” and Letter
Tai-Cai-Zheng-Liu-Zi No. 0930105373 issued by the Securities and Futures Bureau dated March
11, 2004.

Note: (1)

(2

When there are independent directors resign before the end of a fiscal year, the service

termination day should be stated in the remarks section. The actual attendance rate (%) is
calculated based on the number of Audit Committee meetings that have been held in that

year and the actual number of meetings that have attended .

Before the end of a fiscal year, if there is a re-election of indepednet directors, the names
of new and current independent directors should both be listed in the remarks coloum and
their status: current, new, or re-elected, and the date of re-election shall be specified. The

actual attendance rate (%) is calculated based on the number of Audit Committee
meetings that have been held in that year and the actual number of meetings that have
attended.
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IV) Composition, Duties, and Operations of the Remuneration Committee:
The Company’s Board established the Compensation Committee in December 2011 and
elected members for the fourth term of the committee on June 11, 2018. Mr. Wang,
Hwei-Min(independent director) was consecutively elected to a fourth term of the

chairman of the Compensation Committee.

1. Information on the members of the Compensation Committee

ualification

Meet One of the Following Professional

Qualification Requirements, Together

with at Least Five Years Work Experience

Status of independence (Note 2)

An Instructor |A Judge, Public |Have
or Higher Prosecutor, Work
Positionina [Attorney, Experien
Department of|Certified Public [ce in the Number of
Commerce, |Accountant, or |Areas of QOther Public
Law, Finance, |Other Commerc Companies in
. Accounting, |Professional or [e, Law, Which the
Identity . .
or Other Technical Finance, Individual is
Category Remark
(Note 1) Academic Specialist Who |or Concurrently
ote
Department |hasPasseda [Accounti |1 (2|3 |4 (5167 |89 [10]Serving asan
Related to the |National ng, or Remuneration
Business Examination  |Otherwis Committee
Needs of the |and been e Member
Company in a |Awarded a Necessar
Public or Certificate in a |y for the
Private Junior |Profession Business
College, Necessary for  |of the
College or the Business of |Company
Name University the Company
Independ W New
ndependent ang, .
) P g i v v IV ivIviiv vy v vy v None Appointed on
Director Hwei-Min
June 11, 2018
Independ Ch New
ndependent an,
P v |v|v|v|v|v|v|v|v|v|v| None |Appointed on
Director Yi-Hung
June 12,2019
Successive
Yang, :
Other . v VI VIV Y Y None Appointed on
Cheng-Li
June 11,2018
Cai, Successive
Other Zheng-Zhe v VI VIV Y None  |Appointed on
(Note3) June 11, 2018
Successive
W, Jie-Xin
Other v VIVIVIVIVIS| Y Y Y None Appointed on
(Note3)
June 11,2018
Note 1; Please fill out Department of directors, independent directors or other
Note2:  Respective director and supervisor who meet the following qualifications 2 years before assumption of office or at the

time of assumption office shall put a “¥™ in the appropriate space.

0y

Not an employee of the Company or its affiliates.
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Note3:

@

3

Q)
)

(6)

™

(®)

®

(10}

Not a director or supervisor of the company or any of its affiliates (the same does not apply, however, in cases
where the person is an independent director of the company, its parent company, subsidiary or any subsidiary of
the same parent company established pursuant to this act or local regulations).

Not a natural-person shareholder who holds shares, together with those held by the person's spouse, minor
children, or held by the person under others' names, in an aggregate of one percent or more of the total number of
issued shares of the company or ranking in the top 10 in holdings.

Not a manager listed in (1) or a spouse, second degree kin or closer, or a direct blood relative of third degree or
closer to anyone listed in (2) and (3).

Not a director, supervisor, or employee of a corporate shareholder that directly holds 5% or more of the total
number of issued shares of the company or of a corporate shareholder that ranks among the top five in
shareholdings or of a corporate shareholder that appoints a representative, as provided in Paragraphs 1 or 2,
Article 27 of the Company Act, to act as a director or supervisor of the company (the same does not apply,
however, in cases where the person is an independent director of the company, its parent company, subsidiary or
any subsidiary of the same parent company established pursuant to this act or local regulations).

Not a director, supervisor, or employee of other companies controlled by the same person with more than half of
the company’s director seat or voting shares (the same does not apply, however, in cases where the person is an
independent director of the company, its parent company, subsidiary or any subsidiary of the same parent
company established pursuant to the this act or local regulations).

Not a director, supervisor, or employee of another company or institution of the same person or spouse who is the
company’s chairman, president, or persons with equivalent position (the same does not apply, however, in cases
where the person is an independent director of the company, its parent company, subsidiary or any subsidiary of
the same parent company established pursuant to this act or local regulations).

Not a director, supervisor, manager or shareholder holding 5% or more of the shares, of a specified company or
institution that has a financial or business relationship with the company (the same does not apply, however, in
cases where the specified company or institution hold 20% or more but less than 50% of the company's shares
and the person is an independent director of the company, its parent company, subsidiary or any subsidiary of the
same parent company established pursuant to this act or local regulations).

Not a professional who provides auditing service or provides commercial, legal, financial, accounting services or
consultation, for which a cumulative compensation of less than NT$500,000 is obtained in the past two years, to
the Company or its affiliates, nor is an owner, partner, director, supervisor, or manager, or the spouse of any of the
above, of a sole proprietorship, partnership, company, or institution that provides such services to the Company or
its affiliates; provided, this restriction does not apply to a2 member of the remuneration committee, public tender
offer review committee, or special committee for merger/consclidation and acquisition, who exercises powers
pursuant to the Securities and Exchange Act or to the Business Mergers and Acquisitions Act or related laws or
regulations.

Not under any of the categories stated in Article 30 of the Company Act.

Cai, Zheng-Zhe and Wy, Jie-Xin resigned in June 2019.

2. The powers and jurisdiction of the Compensation Committee
* On aregular basis, evaluate and recommend on the Company’s policies, institutions, standards, and structure of the

annual and long-term performance targets and compensation for directors, supervisors, and managers.

* Evaluate and recommend on the level of performance of the Company’s directors, supervisors, and managers, and

the nature and amount of their compensation
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3. The operation of the Compensation Committee
(1) The Company’s Compensation Committee consists of three members. Four members
from the 4th committee.
(2) The duration of this term: June 17, 2015 to June 16, 2018(3™ committee), the 4
committee is from June 11, 2018 to June 10, 2021. In 2019, the Compensation
Committee held 4 committee meetings (A). The attendance record of members is as
follows

Title

Actual
attending
B

Authorized

Name attending

Ratio of actual
attending (%)
[B/A] (Note)

Remark

Convener

Wang, Hwei-Min

4 0

100%

New
Appointed on
June 11, 2018

Committee

Chan, Yi-Hung

100%

New
Appointed on
June 12, 2019

Committee

Yang, Cheng-Li

100%

Successive
Appointed on
June 11, 2018

Committee

Cai, Zheng-Zhe

66.67%

Successive
Appointed on
June 11, 2018
Resigned on
June 12, 2019

Committee

W, Jie-Xin 3 0

100%

Successive
Appointed on
June 11, 2018
Resigned on
June 12, 2019

Other matters that should be documented:
L. Recommendations of the Compensation Committee rejected or modified by the Board: None
II.  Resolutions of the Compensation Committee that met opposition or reservation from

members and have been documented: None.

III. Extracts from important agendas in the 2019 Remuneration Committee meeting:

Date of Meeting Agenda and follow-up Remarks and
(Session) Other
Recommendations
January 15th, | *Assessment and recommendation on the year-end bonus for None
2019 managers of the Company
(The 2nd *The Company's regulations on the performance bonus of each None
session of 4th) business groups for 2019

Resolutions adopted by the Remuneration Committee: Passed by all committee members as

proposed.

Actions taken by the company in response to the opinion of the Remuneration Committee:

Passed by all attending directors as proposed.
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March 15th, *Assessment and recommendation on the distribution of None
2019 compensations to employees and directors in 2018

(The 3nd » Assessment and recommendation on the salary (annual salary None

session of 4th) adjustment) for managers of the Company

Resolutions adopted by the Remuneration Committee: Passed by all committee members as

proposed.

Actions taken by the company in response to the opinion of the Remuneration Committee:
Passed by all attending directors as proposed. The first proposal will be reported to the
2020 Annual Shareholders’ Meeting.

May 14th, 2019 | *Assessment and recommendation on 2018 distribution of None

(The 4nd remuneration to directors

session of 4th) | Resolutions adopted by the Remuneration Committee: Passed by all committee members as

proposed.

Actions taken by the company in response to the opinion of the Remuneration Committee:

Passed by all attending directors as proposed.

August 13th, *Assessment and recommendation on the Company's distribution of None
2019 remuneration for managers in 2018 in accordance with business
{The 5nd performance

session of 4th) | Resolutions adopted by the Remuneration Committee: Passed by all committee members as

proposed.

Actions taken by the company in response to the opinion of the Remuneration Committee:

Passed by all attending directors as proposed.

Note: (1) Before the end of the year, if a member of the compensation committee leaves his
position, his termination date should be noted in the remarks section. The actual
attendance percentage is calculated according to the number of meetings and actual
attendance during the term of the committee.

(2) Before the end of the year, if there is a re-election of the Compensation Committee,
the former and current committee members should both be listed. In the remarks
section, whether a member is newly elected or reelected should be noted, along with
the election date. The actual attendance percentage is calculated according to the
number of meetings and actual attendance during the term of the committee.
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(IX) Status of Enforcement of Internal Control System:

L

IL

III.

Iv.

VL

VIL

Gigabyte Technology Co., Ltd. has conducted an internal audit in accordance with its Internal Contrel Regulation
covering the period from January 1 to December 31, 2019 and hereby declares as follows:

Gigabyte Technology Co., Ltd.

Statement of Internal Control
Date: March 13, 2020

The Company acknowledges and understands that, the establishment, enforcement and preservation of internal
control system is the responsibility of the Board and the managers, and that the Company has already established
such system. The purpose is to reasonably ensure the effect and efficiency of operation (including profitability,
performance and security of assets), the reliability of financial reporting and the compliance with relevant legal
rules

There is limitation inherent to an internal control system, no matter how perfect the design. As such, effective
internal control system may only reasonably ensure the achievement of the aforementioned goals. Further, the
operation environment and situation may vary, and hence the eftectiveness of the internal controls system. The
internal control system of the Company features a self-monitoring mechanism. Once identified, any shortcoming
will be corrected immediately.

The Company judges the effectiveness of the internal control system in design and enforcement in accordance
with the “Criteria for the Establishment of Internal Control System of Public Offering Companies” (hereinafter
referred to as “the Criteria”). The Criteria is instituted for judging the effectiveness of the design and enforcement
of the internal control system. There are five components of effective internal control as specified in the Criteria
with which the procedure for effective internal control are composed by five elements, namely: 1. Control
environment, 2. Risk Evaluation and feedback, 3. Control Operation, 4. Information and Communication, and 5.
Monitoring, Each of the elements in turn contains certain audit items, and shall be referred to the Criteria for
details.

The Company has adopted the aforementioned internal control system for internal audit on the effectiveness of
the design and enforcement of the internal control system

Based on the aforementioned audit findings, the Company holds that it has reasonably preserved the achievement
of the aforementioned goals at December 31, 2019(including the monitoring over the subsidiaries), including the
effectiveness and efficiency in operation, reliability in financial reporting and compliance with relevant legal
rules, and that the design and enforcement of internal control are effective.

This statement of declaration shall form an integral part of the annual report and prospectus on the Company and
will be announced. If there is any fraud, concealment and unlawful practice discovered in the content of the
aforementioned information, the Company shall be liable to legal consequences under Article 20, Asticle 32,
Article 171 and Article 174 of the Securities and Exchange Act.

This statement of declaration has been approved unanimously by the Board in a session held on March 13, 2020
with the presence of night directors (including proxies).

Gigabyte Technology Co., Ltd.
Chairman: Yeh, Pei-Chen

General Manger: Liu, Ming-Hsiung

Note 1:

Note 2:

For public companies, when there is a shortage in the design or implementation of the
internal control system in any period of the year, companies should state and explain the
shortage they noted in the 4™ item in Statement of Internal Control by adding an explanatory
paragraph and also state the plans and execution status before balance sheet date.

The date of the statement will be the “the day the fiscal year ends™.
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2. Where the Company may be requested to conduct an audit on its internal
control system by external auditors, is there any audit report for disclosure:
None.

(X) Any personnel of the Company sentenced by law, punished by internal regulation
due to violation of internal control system, major shortcomings and status of
corrective action in the most recent year to the day this report was printed: None.

(XI) Important resolutions at the shareholders' meeting and the meeting of Board of
Directors in recent years and in the current year (till printing of the annual report):
1.  Significant Resolutions from Shareholders’ General Meeting and Their

Implementation
Date Significant Agenda Implementation
2019.06.12 | 1. Recognize our Company’s business Approved.
report and financial statements from
2018.
2.Recognize our Company’s earnings Approved. 2019.7.21 has been
distribution for 2018. ratified as the stock dividend
distribution date, and the cash
dividend has been distributed
on 2019.8.12,(NTS3 cash
dividends per share)
3.Approval of amendments of the Approved. The agenda has
Company’s “Articles of been carried out as resolved in
Incorporation” the shareholders’ meeting.

4. Approval of amendment of the Approved. The agenda has
company's “Asset Acquisition and been carried out as resolved in
Disposal Operating and Handling the shareholders’ meeting.
Procedure”

5. Approval of amendment of the Approved. The agenda has
company's “Financial Derivatives been carried out as resolved in
Transactions Operating Procedures” the shareholders’ meeting.

6. Approval of amendment of the Approved. The agenda has
company's “Loaning of Company been carried out as resolved in
Funds Operating Procedures™ the shareholders’ meeting.

7. Approval of amendment of the Approved. The agenda has
company's “Endorsement and been carried out as resolved in
Guarantee Operating Procedure” the shareholders’ meeting.
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2.

Important Resolutions of Meetings of the Board of Directors

Date

Important Resolution

2019.1.15

Resolution of 2019 annual accountant entrust and remuneration proposal.

Resolution of assessment and recommendation on the year-end bonus for
managers of the Company

2019.3.15

Amendment of the company's “Asset Acquisition and Disposal Operating and
Handling Procedure”

Amendment of the company's “Financial Derivatives Transactions Operating
Procedures”

A amendment of the company's “Loaning of Company Funds Operating
Procedures”

Amendment of the company's “Endorsement and Guarantee Operating
Procedure”

Amendments of the Company’s “Articles of Incorporation”

Confirmed the Company’s “Standard Process for Handling Directors’
Requests”

The company's 2019 Budget proposal

Change of CPA who audits the Company's financial reports

Resolution of 2018 the distribution of remuneration to employees and
directors

Resolution of 2018 individual and consolidated financial reports

2018 Annual Internal Control System declaration

Resolution of 2019 shareholder's regular session regarding the date, location
and agenda

Resolution of 2019 shareholder's regular session regarding the place and
period accepting shareholder's proposal

2019.04.16

Approval of the Company’s 2018 profit distribution proposal

Approval of the Company’s 2018 Business reports

2019.05.14

Amendments of the Company’s “Recognition of Doubtful Debt Provision,
RMA, and Inventory Loss”

Approval of evaluation and suggestions to 2018 distribution of remuneration
to directors

2019.06.12

Scheduled the 2019 basis date of ex-dividend for stocks

Resolution of the Company's appointment of the 4th Remuneration
Committee member

Resolution of the company's proposal of continuing the credit transactions
with China Trust Commercial Bank (CTBC Bank).

2019.08.13

Resolution of the Company's plan for purchasing machinery and equipment
for the expansion of the Nanping Plant

2018.11.14

Approval of 2020 Audit Plan

Amendments of the Company’s “Recognition of Doubtful Debt Provision,

RMA, and Inventory Loss”
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Date  |Important Resolution

Resolution of the company's proposal of continuing the credit transactions
with E. Sun Bank J

Resolution of the company's proposal of continuing the credit transactions
with Xindian Branch of Mega International Commercial Bank

Resolution of the company's proposal of continuing the credit transactions
with Beixin Branch of Chang Hwa Commercial Bank

The evaluation of the company's CPA independence

Resolution of the Company's nomination of E-Tai Lee as the new GM

Resolution of investment in Senyun Precise Optical Co.,Ltd. for Chi-Ga
Investment

2020.01.15 [Resolution of investment in Max Linear Inc.

Resolution of the company's 2020 Certified Public Accountants (CPA) entrust
and remuneration

Resolution of assessment and recommendation on the year-end bonus for
managers of the Company

2020.03.13 12019 Annual Internal Control System declaration

Resolution of 2019 individual and consolidated financial reports

Resolution of 2020 shareholder's regular session regarding the place and
period accepting shareholder's proposal

Resolution of 2020 shareholder's regular session regarding the period and the
place of accepting the application

Amendment to the Company’s “Rules of Procedure for Board Meetings”

Amendment to the Company’s “Rules of Procedure for Shareholder
Meetings”

Amendment to the Company's Operating Procedures for the Management of
Financial Reporting and Preparation Process

The company's 2020 Budget proposal

2020.04.16 |Approval of the Company’s 2019 profit distribution proposal

Approval of the Company’s 2019 Business reports

(XII) Dissents from directors or supervisors on major resolutions of the Board that
have been recorded or provided with written statement in the most recent year
and up to the publication date of the annual report: None.

(XIII) Resignation or Dismissal of the Company’s Key Individuals, Including the
Chairman, CEQ, and Heads of Accounting, Finance, Internal Audit, Corporate
Governance and R&D in the most recent year to the day this report was printed:

04/14/2020
Title Name Date of Date of Reasons for
Appointment Termination Resignation or
Dismissal
General Liu, Adjustment of .
Manager Ming-Hsiung 2015/01/15 2020/01/01 position
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IV.Information regarding auditing fee:
In NTD 1,000

Items . .
Auditing Fee|Non-audit fee Total
Scale
1 Below NTD2,000 v 1,820
2 [NTD2,000-NTD4,000
3 |[NTD4,000-NTD6,000
4  INTD6,000-NTD8,000
5 |NTD8,000-NTD10,000
6  |[More than NTD10,000 v 10,613
Fees paid to CPAs
In NTD 1,000
Non-auditing fee
. Registration .
CPAs firm | CPAs name Aufd_mng with I;A u.d’:] Note
ee System |industrial and| Human Other TOTAL crio
design | commercial | Resources | (Note 2)
administratio
n authorities
Lin Non-audit expenses
Se—K’ai includes expenses
PWC Public Whole | for transfer pricing,
Accountants 10,613 O 100 0 1,720 1,820 Year advance pricing
Wang, (2019) | arrangements and
Fang-yu change registration
efc.
Note 1:  Replace the current year if the Company accountant or firm shall be requested during the audit were presented

and the reasons for the replacement in the remarks column shows, and order disclosure of audit and non-audit
fees and other information.

Note 2:  Non-auditing fee should be listed out separately according to type of services; the content of services should be
listed out in NOTE if the “other” item in non-auditing fees exceeds 25% of the total non-auditing fee.

V.Information regarding replacement of CPAs: N/A due to internal rotation of the accounting

firm. :

VLService by Giga-Byte’s chairman, president, managerial officers in charge of finance or
accounting having served with the office(s) or affiliate(s) of the auditing CPAs: None,
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VII. Transfer of and lien on shares by directors, supervisors, managers and shareholders
holding more than 10% of the outstanding shares in the most recent year until the date

this report is printed:
2019 By April 14, 2020
. Change in the . Change in the
Title Name Change. in the quaﬁtity of Change: in the quaﬁtity of
quantity of shares under quantity of shares under
shares held lien shares held lien
Cl'lamnan and CEO, Yeh, Pei-Chen 0 0 0 0
Gigabyte
Ming Wei Investment
Vice Chairman Co., Ltd'. ] 0 0 0 0
Representative:
Liu, Ming-Hsiung
Yuei-yei Kai Fa
Director Investment I."td' 0 0 0 0
Representative:
Tseng, Chun-Ming
Shih-Chia Investment
Director Co,, Ltd. C(_)rporate 0 0 0 0
representative: Ma,
Mou-Ming
Shih Dah Investment
Director Co., Ltd. corporate 0 700,000 0 0
representative: Ko, 0 (700,000) 0 0
Cong-Yuan
Xi Wei Investment Co.,
Director Ltd. corporafe 0 0 0 0
representative: Li,
E-Tay
Independent Director|  Wang, Hwei-Min 0 0 0 0
Independent Director Chan, Yi-Hung 0 0 0 0
Independent Director Huang, Wen-lai 0 0 0 0
Giga'byte Senior Vice Ma, Mou-Ming 0 0 0 0
President
(S}eirgl;%%P of Liu, Ming-Hsiung 0 0 0 0
Manufacturing _ 0 0 0 0
Business Unit Cheng, Chun-Ming (325,000) 0 0 0
Senior VP
Senior VP and
President of Mobility Lin, Hua-Yuan 0 0 0 0
Product BUNotel)
Group General Li, E-Tay 0 0 0 0
Manger
Manufacturing
Business Unit Meng, Hsian-Ming 0 0 0 0
President
Channel Solution
Business Unit .
. . Hong, Wen-Chi 0 0 0 0
Senior Special
Assistant
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Title

Name

2019

By April 14, 2020

Change in the
quantity of
shares held

Change in the
quantity of
shares under
lien

Change in the
quantity of
shares held

Change in the
quantity of
shares under
lien

CFO, Operations
Management Center
and Financial &
Accounting HQ

Chen, Chun-Ying

Operations
Management Center
Overseas Subsidiary
Management
Division.

Vice General
Manager of the US
Platform

Lu, Zheng-Wei

C.0.0.,
Operation
Management Center

Bai, Guang-Hua

Brand Marketing
Division, Vice
President and Special
Assistant to the
President

Chen, Jin-Ting

Network and
Communications

Business Unit
Product Center AVP

Chen, Zhang-Xiang

President’s office,
manager special
agsistant

Chen, Shi-Cheng

(209)

[=X=]

o O

[ =

Chief Technology
Officer,

Network and
Communications BU

Hou, Chi-ren

Channel Solution
Business Unit

M/B Research&
Development Center,
Vice General
Manage

Chen, Chen-shun

Channel Solution
Business Unit, Sales
Marketing Center,
America& Asia
Platform ,

Senior AVP

Liao, Chi- Li

0
(12,000)

=

[ar]

Channel Solution
Business Unit, Sales
Marketing Center,
Europe Platform,
Senior AVP

Hsiao, Wen-Ta
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Title

Name

2019

By April 14, 2020

Change in the
quantity of
shares held

Change in the
quantity of
shares under
lien

Change in the
quantity of
shares held

Change in the
quantity of
shares under
lien

Channel Solution
Business Unit, Sales
Marketing Center,
Motherborad
Development
Division, Senior AVP

Liu, Wen- Chung

Channel Solution
Business Unit,

M/B Research&
Development Center,
software office, AVP

Deng, Yi-Ming

Channel Solution
Business Unit,
M/B Research&
Development
Center, Firmware
Division II,
Senior AVP

Tseng, Wei-Wen

Channel Solution
Business Unit,
M/B Research&
Development
Center, AVP

Liao, Che-Hsien

0
(2,000)

[ =]

VP
Mobility Product BU

Lan, Jun-Kun

Network and
Communications

Business Unit
Product Center AVP

Chen, Yun-Di

AVP

Overseas
Manufacturing
Dongguan Gigabyte
Ningbo Gigabyte

Ko, Wei-Ti

Operation
Management Center
Legal and IP Affairs
Div,,General Counsel

Chiu, Chih-Peng

Manufacturing
Business Unit Chief
Engineering Division
AVP

Sun, Wu-Hsiung

Vice General
Manager, Channel
Solution Business
Unit, Gaming
Products Research
&Design Center

Huang, Shun-Chih
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Title

Name

2019

By April 14, 2020

Change in the
quantity of
shares held

Change in the
quantity of
shares under
lien

Change in the
quantity of
shares held

Change in the
quantity of
shares under
lien

Vice General
Manager, Channel
Solution Business
Unit

Lin, Ying-Yu

AVP, Customer
Service Center

Lin, Chi-Ching

Senior AVP,
Advanced E-Auto
Research Center

Gu Rui-Lin

Vice General
Manager, Mobility
Product BU

Chen Jun-Cheng

AVP,

Information
Technology Division,
Operation
Management Center
&Spokesman,

Public Relationship
Department

Sun, Guo-Ren

AVP

Mobility Product BU
Material
Management
Division(Note2)

He Qiao-Feng

Notel: Retired in September, 2019.
Note2: Resigned in March, 2020.
Information on counterparties of share transfers or pledges who are related parties by directors,
supervisors, managers, and shareholders owning more than 10% of shares outstanding: None.
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VIIL Top ten shareholders and relationship between the shareholders

SHAREHOLD| TOP 10 OF SHAREHOLDERS
INGS UNDER| TO CONFORM TO THE ROC

THETITLE | STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL | REMARK
OF ATHIRD | ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

SHAREHOLDING
HAREHOLDINGS | S BY SPOUSE

NAME (*1) BY SELF-OWNED |AND UNDERAGE

CHILDREN PARTY NO.3
Shares Ratio | Shares | Ratio | Shares | Ratio Name Re;?ll;i];m-
Liu, Ming-Hsiung 41,168,918| 6.48%| 3,822,579 0.60% Mi"g‘ggilﬁrfmm Director
Yuanta Funds 33,264,405] 5.23%
Yeh, Pei-Chen 30,151,237 4.74%)| 5,821,063 0.92% Mi”g‘é"zilr’d‘:’f‘"“e“t Director
Ma, Mou-Ming 23,673,383| 3.72%| 470,914 |0.07%
JPMorgan Chase Bank

N.A. Taipei Branch in
custody for Schroder 16,871,000| 2.65%
International Selection
Fund Emerging Asia

Liu, Ming-Hsiung | Director
Ming Wei Investment

0,
Co., Ltd. 14,062,200( 2.21%

Yeh, Pei-Chen Director

Representative: Yang,
Xue-Qing

Citigroup Inc. is
entrusted USA Citi

Private to manage Eaton
Asia Fund

New Labor Pension
Fund

3,822,579( 0.60%|41,168,918|6.48%

11,656,498 1.83%

10,005,500( 1.57%

JPMorgan Chase Bank
N.A. Taipei Branch in 9,847,162| 1.55%
custody for Norges Bank

Shi Da Investment
Litnited 9,408,000( 1.48%

Representative: Yang,

g, B,
Ya-Ting 9,000| 0.00%| 36,000 |0.01%

Note 1;  All of the top ten shareholders should be listed. Names of the corporate shareholders and the representatives
thereof should be listed separately.

Note2:  Ratio means the shareholding by self-owned, spouse and underage children, and the title of a third party as of
total these three titles of shares.

Note3:  Relationship between shareholders listed above, including corporations and natural persons, should be
disclosed.
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IX. Companies directly or indirectly invested by the Company, the directors and supervisors
of the Company, managers and the proportion and quantity of shareholdings on the same

company

December 31, 2019/Unit: share; %

Invested by directors,

Invested companies Invested by the SUPErvisors, Managers,\  Total investment
Company or by direct or indirect
subsidiaries
Item Quantity |Proportion] Quantity |Proportion|Proportion|Proportion
of shares |of holdings| of shares |of holdings| of shares |of holdings|
G.B,T, Inc, 54,116 48.63% 57.169 51.37% 111.285 100%
G.B.T. Technology Trading GmbH 0 100% 0 - 0 100%
Freedoan International Group Ltd. 142,671,692 100% 0 -| 142.671.691.54 100%
Charleston Investments Limited 0 -|  57,032.141.68 100%| 57.032.141.68 100%
Donpguan Gipabyte Electronics Co., Ltd. 0 - 0 §00% 0 100%
GBT Tech. Co. Ltd, 800,000 100% 0 - 800,000 100%
Chi-Ga Investment Corp. 293,756.500 100% 0 - 253,756,500 100%
G.B.T. LBN Inc. 0 - 0 100% 0 100%
Gipa Future Limited 0 - 82,819,550 100% 82,819,550 100%
Ningbo Gigabyte Co., Ltd, 0 - ] 100% 0 100%)
Ningbo Best-Yield Repair and Maintenance Co., Ltd. 0 - 1] 100% 0 100%!
Ningho Gigabyte Intermational Trading Co. 0 - 0 100% 0 100%
|Gipa-Byte Technology B.V. 8.500 100% L] - 8,500 100%
Giga-Trend Intemational Investment Group Ltd. 0 - 65,290,000 100% 65,290,000 100%
Ningho Zhung Jia Technology Trading Co., Ltd: 0 - 0 100% 0 100%
Gigabyte Technology Py, Ltd, 2,400,000 100% 0 - 2,400,000 100%
Aonus Pte. Ltd, 0 - 3.073.000 100% 3,073,000 100%
Giga-Byte Communications Inc, 2,145,880 99.86% 0 - 2,145,880 59.86%
Giga-Trend International Management Group Ltd. 0 - 600,000 60% 600.000 60%
|Gigabyte Technology (India) Private Limited 4,600,000 100% 0 - 4.600.000 100%
G-Style Co,, Ltd. 72,000,000 100% 0 - 72,000,000 100%
BYTE Intermational Co., Ltd. 3,000,000 100% 0 - 3,000,000 100%
Giga Advance (Labuan) Limited 0 0 10,600 100% 10,000 100%
Nippon Gipa-Byte Corp. 1,000 100% 0 - 1,600 100%
Gipabyte Technology Poland SP Z.0.0. 0 - 100 100% 100 100%
| Gipabyte Technology ESPANA S.L.U. 5,000 100% 0 - 5.000 100%
Gigabyte Information Technology Commerce Limited
Company 8.008 100% 0 - 8,000 100%
Gigazone Holdings Limited ] - 34,500 100% 34.500 100%
 Gigabyte Technology LLC. 168.000 100% 0 - 168.000 100%
 Gipabyte Trading Inc, 0 - 50,000 100% 50.000 100%
Senyun Precise Optical Co., Ltd. 0 - 54,727,814 86.24% 54,727,814 86.24%
0GS Europe B.V. 0 - 3,000 100% 3.000 100%
Shenzhen Best Yield Service Co., Ltd. 0 - 0 100% 0 100%
Selita Precision Co., Ltd. 0 - 5,000,000 100% 5.000,000 100%
SenYun Precision Optical (Dongguan} Co., Ltd. 0 - 0 100% 0 100%
Gigaipc Co., Ltd. 0 - 20,000,000 100% 20,000,000 100%
Zaozhuang Bestyield Resources Recycling Co., Ltd, 0 - 0 100% 0 100%

Note 1:

proportion of sharehioldings are shown in the above table.
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If the invested companies are limited liability companies, only the amount of investments and
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(I)The structure of shareholdings

April 14, 2020

. . Other
Sharcholder Govement .Pm_anc?lal institutional | FINI and FIDI | Natural persons Treasury Total
agencies institutions . stock
Quantity nvestors
Number of 0 26 183 297 52,493 0 52,999
shareholders
Quantity of 0 35,669,803 144,590,432 167,807,250 287,621,401 0| 635,688,886
shares held
Proportion of 0% 5.61% 22.75% 26.40% 45.24% 0% 100%
holdings
(IIMThe diversification of shareholdings
Face amount at NTD10/share
April 14, 2020
Ranking of shareholding Sﬂ‘;ﬁ’;ﬁi Quantity of shares held P‘Eﬂ‘l’gﬁ;’g‘; of
1-999 17,243 2,480,450 0.39%
1,000-5,000 29,372 60,184,397 9.47%
5,001-10,000 3,623 28,198,461 4,44%
10,001-15,000 942 11,971,027 1.88%
15,001-20,000 559 10,431,154 1.64%
20,001-30,000 406 10,313,672 1.62%
30,001-40,000 184 6,598,577 1.04%
40,001-50,000 144 6,712,549 1.06%
50,001-100,000 212 15,012,659 2.36%
100,001-200,000 107 15,596,933 2.45%
200,001-400,000 56 15,779,088 2.48%
400,001-600,000 35 17,340,688 2.73%
600,001-800,000 16 10,993,549 1.73%
800,001-1,000,000 19 16,837,449 2.65%
1,000,001 and more 81 407,238,233 64.06%
Total 52,999 635,688,886 100.00%

(IV)List of dominant shareholders

April 14, 2020

Shares| Quantity of shares | Proportion of
Name of dominant shareholders held sharcholdings
Liu, Ming-Hsiung 41,168,918 6.48%
Yuanta Funds 33,264,405 5.23%
Yeh, Pei-Chen 30,151,237 4.74%
Ma, Mou-Ming 23,673,383 3.72%
JPMorgan Chase Bank N.A. Taipei Branch in custody for Schroder 16,871,000 2.65%
International Selection Fund Emerging Asia
Ming Wei Investment Limited 14,062,200 2.21%
Citigroup Inc. is entrusted USA Citi Private to manage Eaton Asia Fund 11,656,498 1.83%
New Labor Pension Fund 10,005,500 1.57%
JPMorgan Chase Bank N.A. Taipei Branch in custody for Norges Bank 9,847,162 1.55%
Shi Da Investment Limited 9,408,000 1.48%
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(V) The market price, net value, earning and dividend per share and related information in the

last two years
Year
Subject 2018 2019 By March 31, 2020
Marke|Highest 90.00 56.30 60.30
t price
per |Lowest 36.20 38.00 36.35
share Avera
(Note g 58.78 48.54 52.02
1)
Net |Cum-dividend 37.89 38.22 -
value
Per (Ex-dividend 34.89 (Note2) 36.02(Note 7) -
share
‘Weighted average number of 635,688,886 635,688,386 )
EpS [shares
EPS (Note 3) 4.04 3.05 -
Cash dividend (Dollar) 3.00 2.20 -
Divid
end |Stock |From retained earnings - - -
per |divided |prom capital reserve - - -
share
Accumulated unpaid dividends - - -
Analy P/E ratio{Note 4) 14.55 15.91 -
sis on |P/P ratio(Note 5) 19.59 22,06 -
ROI Cash dividend yield(Note 6) 5.10% 4.53% -

Note 1:The information comes from TWSE’s after-market trading information.
Note 2:The basis is the number of shares already occurred in previous years and filled out according to the

distribution resolved by the shareholders’ meeting next year.

Note 3:If retrospective adjustments are required for share distribution without consideration, earnings per

share before and after the adjustment should be listed.

Note 4P/E Ratio = Average closing price per share over the year / earnings per share.

Note 5Price / Dividend Ratio = Average closing price per share over the year / cash dividend per share.
Note 6Cash Dividend Yield = Cash Dividend per Share / Average closing price per share over the year.
Note 7Distribution for 2019 is based on the resolution of the Board of Directors on April 16, 2020.

(VD) Dividend policy and implementation

1.

Dividend policy:

The Company is under an environment of keen competition in the industry and
a high level of uncertainty. In addition, the enterprise is at the mature stage of the life
cycle. In consideration of the capital requirement for operation and long-term
financial planning and meeting the needs of the shareholders in cash inflow, the
Company, as a matter of principle, will appropriate 5% to 80% of the accumulated
unpaid income as dividend for the shareholders. Cash dividend will be paid at no less
than 5% of the total amount of dividend to be paid out, and such proportion will be
adjusted by the resolution of the General Meecting depending on the actual profit
position and availability of capital. The proposal of dividend payment presented by
the board will be based on the industry level in dividend payment for maintaining
proper balance and stability. Stock dividend will be paid out by the capitalization of
capital surplus, and will be made in conjunction with cash dividend and in accordance
with applicable legal rules.
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2.

The dividend payment plan as proposed in this General Meeting:
Unit: Share; NTD

Subject New shares Amount

Accumulated unpaid income
(8,424,170,391)

5% ) 421,208,520
80% 6,739,336,313
Cash dividend from retain earnings (@$2.2) - 1,398,515,549

(VII) The impact on the Company’s operations and EPS of the stock dividend proposed by this
shareholders’ meeting: None.

As proposed at the present shareholders’ meeting, cash dividend from retained earnings

and capital reserve shall be distributed, without the issuance of bonus shares.
(VIID)Compensation for Employees and Fees for Directors and Supervisors

1.

The percentage or range of compensation for employees and remuneration for
directors stated in the Company’s Articles of Incorporation:

If there is a profit after the annual closing of books, this Company shall
appropriate 3-10% as compensation for employees and not more than 3% as
remuneration for directors. If there are accumulative deficits, the amount for covering
the losses of previous years shall first be retained. The compensation for employees
described above shall be distributed in either stock or cash, and the remuneration for
directors shall be distributed in cash. Compensation shall be approved by over half of
the directors at a board mecting attended by two-third of the board members. In
addition, the compensation for employees and directors shall be reported to the
meeting of shareholders
Bases for estimating the compensation for employees and remuneration for directors
this period, calculating compensation for employees in stock, and accounting solution
for differences between actually distributed amount and estimated amount:

The compensation for employees and remuneration for directors and supervisors are
estimated based on the balance from deducting accumulative losses in previous years
from the income. If there is balance, this Company shall appropriate 3-10% as
compensation for employees and not more than 3% as remuneration for directors.
The compensation for employees is calculated at the closing price one day before the
date of the resolution made by the meeting of BOD and in consideration of the impact
on the ex-right and ex-dividend date.

There is no difference between the actual distribution amount of 2019 compensation
for employees and remuneration for directors resolved by the BOD and the adopted
estimates. Where there is a difference between the actual distribution amount and the
estimates, the difference will be listed as a loss of the distribution year.

Information on the proposal on compensation for employees made by the board:

The board resolved in favor of the motion presented for the paid out of retained
earnings for 2019and the details are described as follows:

Unit: NTD/share

Subject Quantity Amount
Compensation for employee (10%): i 245.385.163
Compensation for employee -cash T
Fees for directors (1.87%) - 46,000,000

Note: The above amounts are the same as that estimates for 2019,
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IIL.

IV.

VL

VIL

VIIL

4,  Retained earnings 2018 released as cash dividend to employees and fees for directors

and supervisors:

Unit: NTD/share

Subject Quantity Amount
Compensation fc.Jr employee (10%)): i 328,323,019
Compensation for employee -cash
Fees for directors (1.4%) - 46,000,000

Note: The amounts of remuneration actually paid to the abovementioned employees and
directors are consistent with those presented in the financial statements for 2018, i.e.
TWD 328,323,019 for employees and TWD 46,000,000 for directors.

(IX) Stock buyback

In 2019 and as of the publication date of the annual report, our company has not bought

back treasury stock.

Corporate bonds

No corporate bonds that have not expired yet.

Status of preferred stock
None.

Condition of GDRs
None.

Employee Stock Options:

The Company completed the employee stock options issuance in 2017, From 2019 through to the
publication date of this year’s annual report, no employee stock options had been issued.

Issuance of New Restricted Stock for Employees

None.

Issuance of New Stock from Merger or Acquisition of Other Companies' Stock

None.

Status of Capital Utilization Plan
Not applicable.
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I.The business

)
1.

3.

Five. Review of Operation

Scope of Operation

Content of business

(1)
)
(3)
(4)
()
()
Q)

(8)
)
(10)
(11)
(12)
(13)

Manufacturing of computers and related components

Information software services.

Machinery wholesaling.

Manufacturing of electronic parts and components.

Digital information supply services.

Manufacturing of wireless communications machines and devices.
Manufacturing of prohibited telecommunications transmitters
equipment.

Importing of prohibited telecommunications transmitters and equipment.
Information software wholesaling.

Computers and business machine and equipment wholesaling.
Telecommunication equipment wholesaling

Telecommunication equipment retailing.

Any other business not banned or restricted by law with the exception of
business that required special permission.

and

Business distribution:

Unit: NTD1,000

Proportion 2017 2018 2019

Prima
Sales value % Sales value % Sales value %
Products
Motherboards&| 54 1519151 g375|  49327,587] 8097 48,874,963  79.11
graphic cards
Others 9,733,566 16.25 11,596,003 19.03 12,906,291 20.89
Total 59,884,781 100.00 60,923,590 100.00 61,781,254, 100.00

Note 1:The above table shows net sales revenues.
Current products:
(1) AORUS gaming tactical products.
(2) All Core 5GHz+ Ultra Performance Motherboard.
(3) Real Time Ray Tracing Technology High Performance Graphics Card.
(4) Al smart pens, notebook computers.
(5) Al solution cloud server.
(6) 5G architecture integrated solution server.
(7) Ultra illuminating peripheral products.
(8) Optoelectronic products.
(9) IoT application system solution.
(10) Automotive electronics
(11) Smart living application product.
4. New product development plans:

1)
(2)
(3)
(4)
)

AORUS gaming tactical products.

High-end series of motherboard for the most updated platform.
New-generation super series professional graphics card.
New-generation Al premium creator laptop.

New-generation Al high-performance gaming laptop.
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(6) New-generation Intel, AMD, ARM64 server series.
(6) Ultra illuminating peripheral products.
(7) Latest Al cloud solution.
(8) Innovative PC peripherals.
(9) Optoelectronic products.
(10) IoT application system solution.
(11) Automotive electronics
(12) Smart living application product.

(II) Industry Overview:
1.Industry status and developments

Market research institutions IDC and Gartner reported in 2019 that the global PC
market finally saw stable growth performance again throughout the year, since 2011.
IDC projected a global PC shipment of approximately 270 million units in 2019 with
annual increase of 2.7%. Gartner estimated an annual shipment of 260 million units,
with annual increase of 0.6%. Although the numbers differed slightly, both IDC and
Gartner drew the same conclusion with regards to the current development trend of the
PC market. In the first quarter of 2018, the global PC market began growing again ever
since its growth 6 years ago. Nevertheless, the PC market grew throughout the entire
2019, marking the first all year-round growth since 2011. The PC market was positively
affected by the end of Microsoft's support for Windows 7 update, which drove a
demand for upgrading to Windows 10. Furthermore, a shortage of Intel® processor
occurred in mid-2019, at which point the market began considering using AMD®
processor, which eased the situation a bit. Meanwhile, the easing of the global trade
tension also helped the market to grow steadily.
In 2020, eSports became popular, new-generation products such as Intel®, NVIDIA®,
and AMD® were introduced, and the Chinese government introduced a policy for
promoting safe and controllable PCs that are manufactured locally. These events are
expected to prompt the replacement of PC operating systems, and all year round growth
of the market is anticipated.
The availability of a full spectrum of gaming experiences has led to the diversification
of gaming monitors as increasingly more types and brands of gaming dashboards are
being introduced. As a result, the growth momentum of the market is expected to
continue in the next few years. According to the latest surveys, shipment of gaming
monitors increased by more than 50% in 2019 as compared to 2018. Meanwhile,
product features and enhancement are the focus of development. Gigabyte introduced
the world's first-ever tactical gaming monitor combining six major patents and
innovative technologies. The gaming monitor has won Computex and multiple other
awards domestically and internationally. It delivered excellent sales performance, with
more room for improvement projected in 2020.
The growth of the server market slowed down in 2019 due to global trade trends,
relocation of production lines, and other factors. However, the demand for servers
recovered slowly in the second half of 2019 as the trade tension between China and the
United States gradually eased. Nevertheless, data center remains the main driving force
of the market. Market forecast shows that the first quarter of 2020 is affected by delays
in some parts of the supply chain. Although server shipment is affected, the pandemic
accelerated increase in demand for more remote online services. In general, demand for
cloud infrastructures will increase rather than decrease. If the pandemic can be
controlled in the second quarter of 2020, shipment is expected to recover and the server
market will still maintain a growth outlook all year round this year.
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The global market in 2020 was affected by the coronavirus disease. Although the
post-market visibility remains unclear, we predict that delayed demand will emerge
slowly as new-generation products are being introduced. Moreover, the vigorous
development of gaming peripherals and server market predicts outstanding business
performance this year.

2. The associations of the upstream, mid-stream and downstream industries

Upstream Mid-Stream Downstrea
——Special IC —
CPU
Semiconduc SRAM
Logic circnit clamp
Programmable ROM
Diode — Motherboard
— — | Network
— - [} Computer
_ _
PCB psU
Metallic plastic CPU socket
Connectors
Sockets
i~ | Computer I
Desktop PC
Keyboards
Soft/Hard Driv
Basic /O Systems
Seftware 08
L_| Other [/0
Aewricae | —— Notebook

Increased specialization in the supply chain of the IT manufacturing industry is

leading to closer integration between all of its parts.

3. Product trends and competition
(1)Product development trend

Thanks to the advancement of semiconductor techniques, a complete line of
new-generation products such as Intel®, NVIDIA® graphic cards, and AMD® in
2020 as well as Gigabyte's new products this year will be both exciting and
mind-blowing. Our products are based on printed circuit boards that create a full
spectrum of ftactical gaming product experiences by using Gigabyte's main
specialization in innovative research, development, and high-quality performance
coupled with a full series of award-winning tactical products. The Al-integrated and
Xrite™ Pantone® calibration-certified AERO laptop series and DESIGNARE
memory series, which are one of its kind in the industry, are the best action
platform of content creators. The products will also be extended to include digital
interactions such as VR, AR, and MR to create VR interactive scenarios that will

lead everyone in the future of technology.

The hottest trending topic throughout 2019 is 5G! A broad and diverse range of
practical applications is developed through the integration of automated objects, Al,
and edge computing, illustrating a desirable future of smart living. Gigabyte
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integrates the technologies it has developed over the years across different domains
and disciplines. Specifically, it integrates AloT and smart cloud services to develop
a new generation of product integrated services, including smart agriculture, smart
retailing, smart recognition, and smart living. The cross-domain smart agricultural
IoT developed by Gigabyte is able to reflect and predict ecological and
environmental factors in real time. The application comprises soil moisture,
temperature and growth analysis, and integrates with cloud linkage of back-end
data center to conduct monitoring and big data analysis for production optimization.
For convenient lifestyle services, GIGABYTE industrial computers are also used in
smart try-on mirror. By creating complete facial AR/VR, and using 3D lens
experience in real time for future try-on simulations, these computers generate data
that can be used to optimize business decision management. In addition, facial
recognition is also used together with big data on smart signage and security access
control to analyze traffic flow for precision marketing or security protection. These
brand-new software/hardware integrated solutions realizing the most popular
trending technologies one by one reflect exactly Gigabyte's new-generation smart
living circle that lives up to and even surpasses customers' expectations.

In a smart era of Internet of Everything, corporate business to personalized
services are converged and integrated in a data center for storage, computing, and
analysis. A data center plays the most important role in the future of technologies.
In recent years, Gigabyte has been committed to the research, development, and
integration of smart cloud services, providing best solutions to service
characteristics of various applications including big data, AI computing,
hyper-converged computing framework. These solutions are widely accepted by
customers in the market and also contribute to continuous profit growth, This year,
the Industrial Technology Research Institute (ITRI) combined G5 iMEC software
integrated network and cloud virtual technology, created core mobile network
services, and provided the MEC edge computing platform, transforming Taiwan
into a pioneer of 5G technologies. Furthermore, Al deep learning training is a smart
application required for future corporate transformation and for bolstering corporate
competitiveness. Gigabyte also continues to work closely with ITRI on this project.
By using Gigabyte server for computing performance, we attempt to build a deep
learning environment where automated parameters and computing model accuracy
are calibrated to greatly improve computing efficiency and shorten training time
and integrate different smart services, thereby satisfying the needs of enterprises for
rapid transformation.

Autonomous vehicles are now extremely popular. Gigabyte is invested in the
research and development of automotive electronics to drive into a new world of
smart transportation in full speed. We developed a self-driving decision controller
PILOT, which is used in self-driving buses to control the bus (e.g., stop, accelerate
or decelerate, turn left or right). The Gigabyte PILOT family is an excellent product
of our R&D initiatives on the most important design (performance, functionality,
and safety) of self-driving cars.

As Gigabyte continues to pursue sustainable operations, “Upgrade Your Life” is
the guiding principle and goal that we continuously aim to achieve, not only
focusing on the industry but also on the sustainable values in the economical,
environmental and social context. To that end, we arc aggressively operationalizing
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our “Reduce, Share, Love the Earth, Collaborate” sustainable development strategy.
In regards to products, starting from the original design, we have faken into account
the effect of carbon emission, successfully implementing packaging for the eSports
notebooks made of 100% agricultural waste like rice husks. In regards to the
environment, we¢ have continued working with the UNEP-approved
Plant-for-the-Planet foundation to kick start the “Make Earth Green Again”
program, working hand-in-hand with the consumers and collaborative partners to
make the mission of “Upgrade Your Life” a focal point for all of us.
(2)Competition

The PC market was saturated and competitive for many years. The gaming
market quickly outgrew the high-performance PC market. At one point in time,
manufacturers specialized in gaming products, which provided a focus for the PC
business to move forward. Following years of development, the gaming PC market
developed vigorously from desktop computers, laptops, peripherals, monitors, and
the underlying eSports games, forming a complete industrial ecology. The market
slowly matured in 2019. Although it continued to grow, the extent of growth remains
incomparable to the past because of market competitors and other related factors. In
recent years, Gigabyte and Intel have vigorously promoted creator PCs in smart
laptops, first followed by PCs and peripheral products. Recently, manufacturers
generally believe that creator PCs will drive the next wave of growth of the PC
market. Intel also indicated that the gaming tndustry had not yet matured a few years
ago, nor did it realize at the time that the industry could develop so rapidly. In
addition to gaming PCs, gaming monitors, mouse, peripherals, and platforms have
also been established, forming a complete industry chain. In the next few years, the
creator market is expected to cast a different picture.

Gigabyte has always continued to research and develop product functions are
the completely in line with consumers' habits and provide the most suitable product
experiences and services. Through user interaction and experience sharing, we
satisfy the needs of different people and create the most desirable value for
customers by combining smart analysis with cloud computing.

(IIT) Technology and R&D:

Continuing research and development is a Gigabyte legacy. Every year, we
appropriate at least three per cent of sales revenue to research and development to
secure key hardware and software technology for future growth and devote product
value innovation and brand sustainable development. In recent years, our efforts have
been rewarded by numerous international awards, such as iF and Red Dot. Moreover,
Gigabyte products have been exhibited in the President’s Office of the Republic of
China and Taoyuan International Airport to represent the achievements of Taiwan
brands. All these show Gigabyte’s solid technical capacity and R&D power.

1. Spending on research and development in the last two years until the date this report is

printed:
Unit: NTD1,000
Subject 2018 2019 By March 31, 2020
R & D spending 1,868,136 2,020,307 557,588

Source: Consolidated financial report certified (audited) by CPA
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2. Successful technologies or products developed over the two previous years up until the
date of publication:
(1)2019
a.Top notch mainboard on the planet

Continue to satisfy esports players with optimal gaming experience and meet

overclocking enthusiasts' demand of product performance and high stability.

@ Regarding power supply design, GIGABYTE Z390 motherboard is the first
flagship product in the industry that uses 16-phase IR digital power. Coupled
with 8+8 Solid-pin CPU Power Connectors, the motherboard offers incredible
precision in delivering power to the motherboard's key components and
unleashes the extreme performance of the latest Intel® 8-core processor,
allowing enthusiasts to obtain the absolute maximum performance from the all
core SGHz technology and truly achieve control over the motherboard with the
new processor performance.

@ Regarding heat dissipation design, the GIGABYTE Z390 AORUS XTREME
WATERFORCE uses an unprecedented innovation heat dissipation design.
With an all-in-one water-cooling thermal design, the product not only provides
the most perfect heat dissipation solution for processors, VRM, chipset, and
M.2 SSD to ensure system stability and low temperature under full loading
application and gaming. With stylish exteriors and built-in dual lighting effect
in digital RGB light design, the product can assist gamers or liquid cooling
enthusiasts to build the most high-quality, personalized liquid cooling heat
dissipation system. This well-designed product won the 2019 Red Dot Design
Award.

b.Industry-leading graphics card
Launched new generation AORUS high-end graphics card equipped with various
patented innovative technologies. Coupled with industry’s highest grade display
chip based on Turing architecture, it creates the market’s only RGB three-ring
dynamic lighting effect that takes advantage of the persistence of human vision, to
perfectly present the ever-changing amazing effect. Self-developed
comprehensive heat dissipation system equipped with patented stack fan that
provides smooth airflow and unique blade fan design, effectively increases heat

dissipation. Exclusive 7 display output ports, for consumers to easily connect to 3

HDMI displays or 3 DP displays. Gamers can enjoy AORUS graphics card’s

top-end computing performance, as well as an exquisite visual feast and user

experience.

@ This year, Gigabyte launched the world's first real-time ray tracing and Al
graphic card for its ,
AORUS RTX 2070 Gaming Box. With ts compact and stylish design, the
product is small and easy to carry. The built-in NVIDIA Turing architecture
graphics card GeForce RTX 2070 and Thunderbolt™ 3 plug and play for
high-speed transmission not only enable the 3D graphics capability of
ultrabook laptop PC but it can also turn the ultrabook laptop PC into a gaming
platform with real-time ray tracing and Al, allowing consumers to enjoy a new
generation of ultimate gaming experience anytime, anywhere.

@ Gigabyte launched the the Radeon™ VII graphics cards built upon the world's
first 7nm gaming GPU
Using the 7nm processor technology and based on the second-generation AMD
"Vega" architecture, Radeon™ VII is equipped with 3840 stream processors
and 16GB of ultra-fast second-generation High-Bandwidth Memory (HBM2).
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It is designed to deliver exceptional performance and amazing experiences for
the latest AAA, esports and Virtual Reality (VR) titles, demanding 3D
rendering and video editing applications, and next-generation compute
workloads.

¢. Industry’s innovative cloud server

D AI solutions research and development
Developed various server product lines to support massive GPU/FPGA parallel
acceleration, with the aim to increase the computational efficiency in artificial
intelligence training. It also makes use of enterprise products across
stations/terminals, by launching corresponding Al terminal products, from
workstations that support standard PCle card (influence card) to mini
computing modules powered by algorithms. In addition, developed all-flash
array storage infrastructure products to provide more complete and
highly-efficient Al suite products, and provide customers with optimal flash
storage and computing advantages, as well as solve complex system
maintenance problems such as isolated data island, speeding up customers’
future discovery and insight. This solution helps National Cheng Kung
University to come in first in the international “High Performance Computing
and Artificial Intelligence (HPC-AI) Student Competition” and Fan Favorite
award in "Germany’s ISC Student Cluster Competition”, one of the world’s top
three computing competitions. This is the glory of Taiwan! This is the glory of
GIGABYTE!
@S5G architecture integrated solution

5G mobile network is not merely a simple hardware upgrade for improving
network speed; it also involves multiple conditions and requirements, such as
network speed, lag, the number of connected devices, and service quality. This
network is a cross-domain network service architecture designed for future
lifestyles. Currently, 5G architecture deployment is mainly driven from
open-source software and hardware, followed by refurbishing the network
architecture. It upgrades small cell technologies, deploys to the terminal and
then gradually to SDN hardware with the server as the main body. GIGABYTE
has 20 years of experience in hardware supply in vertical application, and
cooperates with 5G chipset manufacturers, national research and development
teams, and networking software startups. With its early preparation targeting
compatibility and software and hardware optimization, it takes the lead in 5G
commercial operations, and seizes business opportunities in Enhanced Mobile
Broadband (¢MBB) and business-critical services with terminals and SDN
products.

®Cooperates with AMD in launching EPYC™ platform
Due to EPYC’s excellent cost performance, GIGABYTE has since the launch of
its first generation EPYC, made foresight planning in establishing EPYC product
lines development. Since the launch of AMD's second generation EPYC projects,
it has been involved in complete development work. In 2018, together with
AMD, it launched server product lines such as computing, storage,
high-performance computer, hyperconverged infrastructure, etc., in the world, as
well as developed GPGPU Server for AMD platform, providing more flexible
GPU solutions.
d. Al gaming laptop

Gigabyte continues to pursue excellence in the research and development of
AORUS gaming laptop PCs. In an increasingly competitive gaming laptop
market, Gigabyte persists in their quest for high-end performance, with a focus
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on producing new product lines that meet customers' needs. Powered by All
Intel® Inside technology and the NVIDIA® GeForce RTX™, the world's first
Al gaming laptop technology, AORUS gaming laptop PCs will provide the
ultimate laptop gaming experiences. Launching gaming laptop PCs with
real-time ray-tracing technology enables the end goal of gaming graphic
technology to be realized. This technology can simulate the physical behavior of
light to bring real-time cinematic-quality rendering to even the most visually
intense games like never before.
e. Ultra compact PC Champion Brix™
As an important member of Intel® IoT Solutions Alliance, GIGABYTE is one of
the indispensable cores of the vibrant development of the Internet of Things (IoT)
computing market. We have developed various innovative reference designs for
Intel® new platform, and will further expand to launch a high volume of
professional IoT products and optimized solutions for customers. Featuring
industry-leading performance and security, outstanding product quality and
highly flexible input/output (I/O) design, GIGABYTE BRIX™ JoT is very
suitable for various types of IoT applications.
f. Gaming peripherals that won numerous awards
®The world's first tactical gaming monitor, AORUS AD27QD, combining
multiple exclusive features and patented technologies, is a 27 inch flat screen
frameless monitor. It uses an IPS panel with QHD (2560x1440, 2K) resolution
and a 144Hz refresh rate in 1ms (MPRT) response time. Not only is the view
angle up to 178 degrees, it also meets 95% DCI-P3 standards along with 10 bits
color; it has also passed VESA certified DisplayHDR 400 standards, enabling
the tactical AORUS AD27QD gaming monitor to give users spectacular display
quality. More importantly, the monitor has numerous exclusive tactical features,
such as Black Equalizer, Aim Stabilizer, GameAssist, hardware navigation
AORUS Dashboard, OSD Sidekick, and the world’s most unique feature of all,
the Active Noise Cancelling (ANC) function, all of which are designed to let
gamers defeat their enemies in the game and gain the ultimate victory. AORUS
AD270QD won the Computex 2019 Innovative Design Award and was rated as
the Best Design in the Computex Best Choice (BC) Award, proving that this
product is not only a high-end tactical equipment for gaming, but also a
masterpiece of sophisticated craftsmanship.
@Breakthrough PCle 3.0 efficiency limit, GIGABYTE launches AORUS RAID
SSD 2TB solid state drive
Gigabyte launched the AORUS RAID SSD 2TB AIC Expansion Card which
delivers up to 6.2GB/s read/write speeds through the PCle Gen x8 interface.
With a RAID controller and four built-in 512GB NVMe M.2 SSDs, it
outperforms traditional PCle 3.0 NVMe SSDs by over 1.8 times. AORUS
RAID SSD 2TB features large internal cooling fins, a dual sided thermal pad,
M.2 baseplate, and an active cooling design. Using the AORUS GStorage
Manager, gamers can monitor and adjust their SSD operating status at all
times!
@AORUS Memory Boost function enables easy performance upgrade, provide
industry's ultimate lighting fluency
The latest AORUS RGB MEMORY 16GB 3600MHz memory uses DDR4
XMP 3600 16G (8GB*2 design. Pairing the new AORUS RGB Memory with
carefully selected GIGABYTE motherboards enables the use of the AORUS
Memory Boost to accelerate DDR4 speeds to 3733MHz for superior memory
performance. It also features the new Wave2 rainbow mode that allows gamers
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to customize lighting configuration for the system and other components, and
create unique personal styles.

g. Innovative digital application - Smart Life
Developed cross-domain smart agricultural IoT that is able to reflect and predict
ecological and environmental factors at real time. It comprises soil moisture,
temperature, and growth analysis, and integrates with cloud linkage of backend
data center to conduct monitoring and big data analysis, optimizing production
efficiency. For convenient lifestyle service, GIGABYTE industrial computers
are also applied on smart try-on mirror. It creates complete facial AR/VR, and
uses 3D lens experience at real time for future try-on simulation, generating
optimized data for companies in decision management. In addition, facial
recognition is also used together with big data on smart signage and security
access control, analyzing traffic flow for precision marketing or security. With
the exchange of diverse smart technologies, we also cooperate with the smart
glasses industry by combining AR/MR technologies with GIGABYTE hardware
computing analysis, and produce services of better digitization, and higher
efficiency and precision. GIGABYTE Smart Life makes use of innovative
technologies as its basis for upgrading life. With one-stop integration for
tracking of every step, it simplifies modern lifestyle and workload.

(2) By the report publication date

a. Top notch mainboard on the planet
GIGABYTE X570 AORUS XTREME motherboard is based off the new AMD
X570 chipset. In addition to offering support for the new PCle 4.0 architecture to
deliver ultra-high transfer speeds, it is also equipped with extensive functions.
The motherboard packs a 16-phase digital power design for the most stable
power management along with Fins-Array stacked fin heatsink technology,
Direct Touch heatpipe, and a Nanocarbon baseplate for advanced cooling. The
first fanless thermal design earned much praise for its ability to keep
temperatures low even under high load operations and enables users to extract the
full potential from their 3rd gen. AMD Ryzen™ processors. The X570 AORUS
XTREME has also won the iF design award 2020.
We expect to develop a new generation of Intel®400 series motherboard.
We expect to develop a new generation of AMD® Zen 3 series motherboard.

b. Industry-leading graphics card
Gigabyte has developed the new-generation SUPER™ series chip graphics card
featuring more CUDA core counts and better performance frequency, including
GeForce® RTX 2080 SUPER™, GeForce® RTX 2070 SUPER™, GeForce®
RTX 2060 SUPER™, GeForce® GTX 1660 SUPER™, and GeForce® GTX
1650 SUPER™ among other gaming graphics card. The SUPER™ series
graphics cards are built with GIGABYTE WINDFORCE cooling system,
anti-turbulence alternate spinning fans, unique blade fan, composite heat-pipe
with direct contact GPU, and 3D active fan. Gigabyte has created new
water-cooled design series, GAMING OC WHITE series, TURBO series and
WINDFORCE OC series for Triple fan or Dual fan, providing gamers with more
diversified choices to build their own battle station. This year, Gigabyte will also
launch the EAGLE series designed exclusively for young gaming enthusiasts in
pursuit of uniqueness and innovation, as well as a new graphics card series
crafted for creators.
Gigabyte has developed the AORUS Radeon™ RX5700 XT premium gaming
graphics card, which is built upon the RDNA architecture. The product is
equipped with the WINDFORCE 3x cooling system with alternate spinning fans.
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It uses 7nm processor technology and supports PCI Express 4.0 transmission
interface, delivering excellent powerful performance. Coupled with RGB Fusion
2.0, protection metal backplate, and GIGABYTE certified ultra-durable

materials,

the AORUS Radeon™ RX5700 XT enables gamers to experience top computing
performance of AORUS and overwhelming aesthetics in a smooth working state.
We expect to develop a new generation of NVIDIA® premium gaming graphics
card.

We expect to develop a new generation of AMD® premium gaming graphics
card.
. Industry’s innovative cloud server

Gigabyte is the only brand in the industry to propose a complete line of
platformed products after the market introduction of AMD® Zen platform.
Following the success of the AMD® processor in the market, Gigabyte also
gained widespread response as seen by its increased market share. Feeling
unsatisfied still, Gigabyte will in the upcoming year further expand products that
support AMD® processors, thereby widening the gap with its competitors:

-We will introduce root-of-trust (RoT) chip in GIGABYTE R series server in
advance to prepare for the complete introduction of the next generation products,
providing future consumers with safer options of Internet devices.

-We will integrate all types of heat dissipation technologies in GIGABYTE H
series server products, including water cooling, oil cooling, and immersion
cooling. Given the increase in computing frequency, high-temperature
components in the market, and user environmental challenges from 5G mobile
networking, Gigabyte will introduce solutions that are no longer confined to
computing, but instead it will focus on providing customers with complete sets of
computing devices.

-We will infroduce AMD®A+A product portfolios in G series server.
AMD®ROME processor and Radeon graphics accelerators are the only
commercial x86 computing product supporting PCle 4.0 high-speed convergence.
The market's first GIGABYTE ROME server product supporting AMD®Radeon
graphics accelerators not only provides options of faster AI products and
supercomputing, but also ends the monopoly NVIDIA® has had in the
accelerator market.

-Based on the hardware cross-generation compatible design of the AMD®
platform, Gigabyte will complete the software and firmware technologies that
support next-generation processors, and provide samples of the new-generation
AMD® products for testing before launch and for global distribution.

-We will simultaneously plan AMD® products and start introducing AMD®
next-generation Radeon graphics accelerators for application in server products.
The new-generation GIGABYTE G series server will provide products that
support PCle expansion slots and meet OAM standards.

-Since the global launch of the first ARM64 server in 2013, Gigabyte has been
the pioneer of ARM servers. For this reason, Ampere Computing the chip maker
sought assistance from Gigabyte at the start of its product development. On
March 3, Ampere unveiled its first Altra processor and provided clients with
samples of the R272-P30 server for development. Apart from ARM64 CRB
product, Gigabyte also cooperated with Ampere Computing in a chip
development project to develop a series of products powered by the Altra
platform, including terminal servers for 5G network edge computing. In addition
to working with Ampere Computing to launch the world's first ARM64 server
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fitted with PCle 4.0, Gigabyte also joined forces with other major manufacturers
of ARM, such as Qualcomm® and NVIDIA®, to continuously introduce server
products for network acceleration or AI computing.
Given the increase in components with higher computing frequency in the market
and user environmental challenges from 5G mobile networking, Gigabyte will
introduce solutions that are no longer confined to computing; instead, it will
provide total solutions that include cooling system designs. Gigabyte will also
integrate different heat dissipation technologies in Intel® and ARM products, in
addition to AMD®, and in server racks that meet OCP regulations. Thus, we
provide consumers with a greater diversity of product options, thereby rending a
true one-stop shopping service.

d.Al gaming laptop
Gigabyte in widely recognized as the developer of premium creator laptop PCs
and high-performance gaming laptop PCs. At the 2020 International CES, which
is largest consumer electronics exhibition in the world, we showcased a full series
of our laptop products, including the made for creators AERO series and the
hardcore gamer AORUS series.
-The latest AORUS 17, featuring the world's first laptop to equip OMRON®
mechanical switches, provides gamers with sensational keyboard feedback and
luxurious even backlit keys. Visitors will also find concept models such as the
ultra-thin OMRAON based mechanical keyboard, giving keyboard lovers
unlimited room for imagination. GIGABYTE also announced in advance that in
2020, more mechanical keyboard based AORUS members will be introduced for
gamers at the top of the pyramind.
-GIGABYTE launched the AERO 15 OLED and AERO 17 HDR laptops for
creators. The AEROQ series laptops not only have powerful performance that can
greatly reduce media processing times, they are also the world's only laptop with
X-Rite™ Pantone® calibration certified, guarantecing accurate display colors.
The portability for creators are also fine-tuned, by equipping the AERO with a
large 94 Wh battery in an ultra-portable chassis, giving creators an extended 8
hours of battery usage to create anything anywhere. Laptops built with Microsoft
Azure Al provide users with the best and the most perfect user environment for
job creation or gaming experience.

e. Gigabyte launched the world's first tactical gaming monitor:
AORUS AD27QD
-For gaming monitors, in addition to continuing the high-order product line of
AORUS, this year, GIGABYTE launched multiple new gaming series monitors,
one of which is the ultrawide 21:9 1000R gaming monitor featuring a 1000R
curved display, a curvature that matches perfectly the curvature of human vision.
The monitor provides excellent immersive gaming feel and also incorporates
GIGABYTE tactical monitor functions. In addition, we will also launch the
KVM+ cross-platform switching monitors that are uniquely innovative to
GIGABYTE. With our innovative KVM+ technology, the monitor with its
keyboard and mouse enables users to conveniently operate different platforms
such as mobile phone, tablet computer, laptop, desktop PCs, etc, with different
operating systems, including Windows, Mac OS, i0S, and Android, thereby
becoming a true operating center equipped with all types of information
equipment platform.
We launched more advanced high-end gaming products for the perfect gaming
experience: '
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-We developed the AORUS K1 gaming keyboard with quality that matches the
high quality requirements of previous products. AORUS K1 is equipped with the
German CHERRY MX key-switch with a service life of up to 50 million
keystrokes. The keyboard is simple and features floating key design for easy
cleaning, braided cable and cable-routing design, multi-layer fast function keys,
all key programmable with on-board memory, and RGB Fusion 2.0 lighting
customizable function. Along with the entire AORUS system, the keyboard can
be easily customized using a single software operating interface. AORUS K1 is
crafted for professional gamers and provides better gaming experience.

-Gigabyte launched the flagship AORUS C700 GLASS case. In addition to
different RGB lighting designs in the exterior, the glass case features a durable
4mm tempered glass side panel designed with elements symbolizing the spirit of
AORUS, an attractive exterior, and an internal capacity that is greatly increased
to not only provide maximum support to E-ATX motherboards but also satisfy
the needs of advanced gamers. Furthermore, the case is compatible with up to
420 mm fans and liquid cooling radiators and features spacious interior and
customizable configurations to eliminate installation and compatibility problems.
Users can easily build a high-performance gaming platform with excellent
cooling effect.

(IV) Long- and short-term business development plan:
Short-term plan:

(1)Market
Target high-growth markets such as gaming and creators, continue to expand width
and depth, develop products designed to meet user requirements, with features such
as personalization, intelligentization, high efficiency and ease of use, and implement
brand spirit, "Upgrade Your Life!" to all over the world! In terms of cloud server
market, cloud and Al demand is still strong, and 5G application demand will grow.
GIGABYTE is confident to continue to drive the growth in both revenue and
profitability.

(2)Product
Expected to develop diverse new generation products and services on open platform:
AORUS gaming peripherals, new generation top series motherboard, new generation
high-end gaming graphics card, innovative computer peripherals and world's first
tactical gaming monitor. System platform comprises: Brix uvlira-slim laptop and Al
laptop. Cloud applications comprises: Server products such as 5G application series,
Al cloud computing series, hyper-converged infrastructure series, big data storage
service series, enterprise IT architecture series, etc. Smart applications comprises:
AloT application system solutions, smart recognition services, automotive
electronics, photoelectric integration related application products, etc. Continue to
integrate software and hardware, add new product elements, satisfy different user
groups. :

(3)Marketing
AORUS will continue to lead the gaming market with its passionate and stunning
product trend, while GIGABYTE will adhere to produce high quality and high
efficiency products in the channel. In recent years, it has successively developed 3G,
cloud computing, AloT and smart applications, so as to cater customers with
comprehensive products.

(4)Sales Channel Establishment
Besides expanding the operating model to B2B2C and strengthening traditional
channel marketing of existing distributors, we also cooperate with e-commerce, and
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make use of e-commerce platforms to expand sales and shopping guides, as well as
carry out precision segment marketing and services. The new model can effectively
transform competition into strength, as well as drive the growth of brand and
operational performance.

(5)Manufacture

With the uncertainties of the US-China trade war and long-term impact of the
pneumonia outbreak, GIGABYTE continues to enhance automation and
intelligentization in Taiwan manufactured products, resolve manpower problems in
the short run, and reduce trade risk and production cost in the long run.

(6)Service

Continue to make use of Al technologies, accurately meet and satisfy customers'
needs with smart service methods that combine virtuality and reality. We make use of
innovative technologies such as smart recognition technologies, smart lockers, smart
customer service robots, etc. to further increase customer satisfaction.

(7)Social Responsibility

The vision of promoting sustainable development begins from GIGABYTE's
corporate mission, "Innovative Technologies, Upgrade Your Life", and we have
established 4 major sustainable development policies. Based on our expertise in
rescarch and development, and innovation capabilities, we have developed
low-carbon technologies. Since the launch of the Green Action Plan, we have
reduced more than 40% of carbon in the past decade, far exceeding the original target.
We also actively respond to Science Based Targets initiative (SBTi) and Task Force
on Climate-related Financial Disclosures (TCFD), and strive to meet international
climate targets and strategies, to generate more significant performance. We also
organize international climate workshops for the future generation of Taiwan to learn
about the global climate change crisis, and practice sustainability. GIGABYTE
Technologies continues to provide friendly products and services, and care for the
society. We take active effort for the good of the people, environment, and society,
and for the sustainability of the earth!
Long-term plan:

(1) Gigabyte focuses on gaming and other durable high-performance markets.
Leveraging the leading status of AORUS, we continue to translate consumers'
expectation into high-end tactical products that create a full spectrum of product
experience in tactical gaming and transform our advantages into a competitive edge
for the company.

(2) Gigabyte continues to engage in diversified development, using our years of R&D
experience to introduce different innovative products, including 5G, AloT, Al, edge
computing, smart living, and cloud application services, extend market
opportunities from different areas, expand our business operation, and continue to
create profit and growth opportunities for the company.

(3) In a fast-changing market, Gigabyte continues to engage in smart transformation,
integrate corporate operations with machine learning, big data, and other innovative
technologies, and optimize business efficiency. Gigabyte upholds the principle of
making use of innovative technologies as its basis for upgrading life, continues to
make improvements, and became the winner of all time.

II.Market and Sales
(I) Market Analysis
1. Main product (service) market regions:
To further expand company’s performance, improve channel management and
strengthen customers’ satisfactions, we have service sites all around the globe including
Western Europe, Eastern Europe, China, Northeast Asia, Southeast Asia, Australia,
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India, Middle East, North America, South America and Australia in order to provide
after-sales, product and consulting services.

Sales volume and value over the last three years:
Unit: NT$1,000

Year 2017 2018 2019

Region Amount % Amount % Amount %

Asia 23,888,974 39.89 23,086,287 37.89 22,631,182 36.63
Europe 19,050,960 31.81 21,073,660 34.59 21,018,146 34.02
North America 9,857,624 16.46 11,421,629 18.75 12,903,626 20.89
Other regions 4,405,701 7.36 3,457,737 5.68 3,579,577 5,79
Domestic sales 2,681,522 448 1,884,277 3.00 1,648,723 2.67
Total 59,884,781] 100.00 60,923,590 100.00 61,781,254 100.00

2 Market share, future supply & demand in the market, and growth potential:

(1)Market Share
Gigabyte is inherently committed to cultivating the sales market. Thanks to our
positive brand image and word of mouth, we have always maintained the first
or second place in the motherboard market. Our AORUS high-end gaming
products and tactical series products have received multiple international
awards, thereby further solidifying our leading position in the industry.
Gigabyte actively develops 5G technologies along with AloT, edge computing,
hyperconverged computing architecture, and various smart cloud services,
which is why we are continuously growing in the cloud server market.
Gigabyte aims to continuously strive toward becoming the second largest
distributor in the industry and the most competitive brand in the market, with
satisfactory services, leading performances, and innovative products.

(2)Market Supply
With the rapid advancement of semiconductor technologies, AMD® and
NVIDIA® have launched new high-performance products in 2019. Influenced
by the fierce competition in the CPU market, the overall PC market delivered
outstanding performance in 2019, finally putting an end to its years of weak
growth. A new wave of business opportunities and stronger growth momentum
in the market can be expected in 2020, following the announcement of
new-generation Intel®, NVIDIA®, AMD® products, the introduction of new
eSports games, the convergence of CPU shortage problems, and the successive
completion of high-order product lineups for gaming and content creators.

Cloud, Big Data, and Internet of Things are super popular in recent years, with
5G applications adding to the speed and scale of market explosion, which
suggests that 5G networks will be the biggest and most popular market player
in the future.

(3)Market Demand
The end of Microsoft's support for Windows 7 has driven a demand for
upgrading to Windows 10, which positively affected the overall PC market in
2019. IDC projected that the global PC shipment will reach 270 million units,
growing annually at 2.7% all year round. According to growth numbers
projected by NVIDIA® and AMD®, the replacement of PC operating systems
is anticipated given the constant pursuit of high performance in the PC market,
the continuous increase in demand, and the enforcement of the Chinese policy
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for promoting safe and controllable PCs that are manufactured locally. Despite
the short-term impact of the coronavirus disease, we believe that the delayed
demand will emerge slowly as new-generation products are being introduced
and as the epidemic situation improves. Coupled with the growth momentum
of the server market, market demand is expected to grow against the trend.
3.  Competition Niche; Advantageous and Disadvantageous Factors for the Prospects
of Development; and Responding Strategies
a.Industry development and vision

Favorable Factors Unfavorable Factors Countermeasures
®By dint of new operating | ®Mobile computing has | ®Develop diverse and
mode, new platforms, new | slowly transformed | innovative  productsbased

architecture, new
technologies and new
services, niche products of

high quality, high
performance and high value
can be continuously

introduced to meet market
demand.

®With the advent of eSports
development, Gigabyte' s
top-notch  eSports  brand
AORUS continue to extend
its reach and depth in the
market, leading double digit
growth.

®Market growth is facilitated
by the rapid development of
various smart cloud
computing applications (e.g.,
5G, IoT, block chain, big

data, Al computing,
hyperconverged computing
architecture).

®We have production capacity
that can provide high quality,
great flexibility and low cost.
®Continue to strive towards
“Reduce, Share, Love the
Earth, Collaborate” and
produce friendly products,
services and care for the
society. Actively create
sustainable value to achieve
our goal of mufual benefit for
the greater good fo Gigabyte,
the environment and society.

consumer habits, driving
the merging of and and
cloud computing or the
switch from land-based to
cloud based computing;
making the market
ecosystem more diverse and
complex.

®The market and business

operations  have  been
challenged by the
uncertainties from
international politics and
economics which have
resulted in fluctuations
especially in tax rates,
exchange rates, prices of
raw materials and logistics
costs.

on cloud technology, cloud
application services, cloud
servers and smart digital
living. Respond to diverse
market and application
needs by providing specific
solutions accordingly and

enhance brand
competitiveness.
®Prepare  for responsive

action to be taken in the
face of uncertain
international politics and
economics by appropriate

adjustment of regional
proportion, the flexibility
and cost of locations

selected for production.

®The channel markets in

various areas were scattered
and were not vulnerable to
fluctuations in a single area,
resulting in  operational
dilemma. In order to reduce
operational risks, in
addition to improving the
response speed of supply
chains, it is necessary to
pay close attention to
market changes and
strengthen the transfer of
operational risks.
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b. Product development and operational management

Favorable Factors

Unfavorable Factors

Countermeasures

®We have the top-notch and
most innovative R&D team
in the industry, our products

have won numerous
international awards, and we
can provide the most

amazing product experience.
®Gigabyte’s core competence
is to provide a omprehensive
suite of smart living
applications focused on the
customer’s needs. Conduct
R&D targeted at the software
and hardware needs in
diverse domains. Leverage
digital interaction to create a
fantasy space for an
immersive user experience.
®Turn R&D and product
advantages into brand and
channel competitiveness to
promote brand image.
®Excellent corporate image,
comprehensive management
systems, financially healthy
with sufficient capital.
®Let green technology and
product be the measures of
our customers trust and
reliance on Gigabyte.
Increase the competitiveness
of the Company’s green
technology and create more
value for sustainable business
operation.

®The stagnant growth of the
PC market has reduced the
profitability of the relevant
industries.

®Shorter product lifespans,
rapid price fluctuations,
consumer market demand,
component supply,
exchange rate fluctuations,
changing cost of raw
materials have added to the
challenges facd by the
business.

®Export-oriented practice
prone to Forex volatility.

@ Continue diversified
operations and the R&D of
diverse equipment and
services while focusing on
the stars of tomorrow —
eSports and cloud
computing. Implement the
product and market
diversification strategy to
improve profit.

®everaging our competence
in R&D, excellence in
channels management and
rapid and flexible response
to market changes, the
business management team
has segmented the various
markets and products,
collaborating with first-rate
international suppliers and
using technology, standards,
scheduling and service to
stay ahead of the
competition and seize
market opportunities,

®Pay close attention to Forex
volatility and promptly
adjust Forex position when
appropriate to minimize
exchange risk.
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¢. Marketing

Favorable Factors Unfavorable Factors Countermeasures
®cSports cards and peripheral | ®With  rapidly  evolving | ®Further cultivate the
products have the top market  dynamics, in | channel markets, pays close

position in many countries
across the world. Where we
are placed in 1st position,
continue to maintain the lead
with intensive relationship
management and building.
®Cloud applications and server
market are developing
vigorously. In future,
integrating 5G and popular
AloT applications will
facilitate market
development.

®With the market trending
towards diversification,
Gigabyte will conduct R&R
on the software and hardware
needs of a diverse range of
markets and professional
domains to provide new and
innovative products and
solutions, for market
satisfaction.

®Generate 100% customer
satisfaction through
segmented marketing and
after-sales service.

addition to industry
competitors, we are now
faced with opponents that
could come from any
domain, intensifying the
competition and causing
adverse effect on profit.

attention to market trends
and product development,
respond to segregation of
different  markets and
products with by providing
intelligent, personalized and
customized products. By
providing products catering
to consumers' needs for
personalization, we can

keep away from price
competition and quickly
respond to and capture

market changes to improve
profitability.

(II) Primary use and production process of premium products:

1.Primary functions of major products: computer motherboards and 3D drawing
accelerator cards are the key core assembled in PCs.
The mini computer system is Gigabyte's unique ultra-thin and lightweight computer
with stylish appearance, maintaining the same upgradeability as high-performance

desktops.

With high computing power, servers can provide various services to numerous Internet
users and is an indispensable and important device in the cloud environment.

-102-




2.Production Process:

Product design by R&D
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(IIT) The supply of key materials:

Name of Name of key Primary source of supply
product materials Primary source of supply Status
INTEL Stable
Chipset & IC NVIDIA Stable
AMD tabl
Mother Stable
board & GLOBAL BRANDS MANUFACTURE LTD. Stable
Graphic card Stablo
Other key Foxconn Interconnect Technology Ltd.
components LOTES CO., LTD Stable
Golden Elite Technology (Shenzhen) Ltd. Stable

(IV) List of customers or suppliers representing more than 10% of the total purchase or sales
in any of the last two years:

1. List of customers that have imported an annual total of at least 10% of Gigabyte's
sales volume in either year of the last two years:
Unit; NTD 1,000
2018 2019 2020 Q1
Percentage {Relation Percenta | Relatio Percentage | Relatio
to annual | ship geto nship to annual | nship
No.| Name Amount purchase |with the| Name Amount annual [with the| Name Amount purchase |with the
(%) Compan purchase | Compa (%) Compa
y (%) ny ny
1 | Nvidia 18,192,633 38.91| None | Nvidia 16,451,439| 31.63| None | Nvidia 5,587,944 32.78| None
2 | INTEL 6,850,926 12.77| None | INTEL 6,290,475 12.09] None | INTEL 1,669,957 9.80| None
Other 28,609,962 53.32 Other 29,272,610 5628 Other 9,788,183 5742
Total Total Total
purchase 53,653,521 100.00 purchase 52,014,5241 100.00 puschase 17,046,084 100

Given the Change in the product portfolios and market environment, there are Changes in the suppliers, buyers, amount and proportions to total purchase and

sales,

2.
years:

None.

(V) Production volume and value over the last two years:
Unit: 1,000 pieces; NTD million

. 2018 2019
Production Producti
Vo and value|* *° [1;10 ' production | Production | Production| Production | Production
Product . volume value capacity volume value
capacity
f}"if;}s‘er boards& graphic | e occl  5s34|  43400| 16276  14492] 40,061
Others 956 2,157 16,477 719 694 15,877
Total 17,922 17,691 59,870 16,995 15,186 55,938

(VD) Sales volume and value over the last two years

Unit: 1,000 pieces; NTD million

Sales value and 2018 2019
volume| Domestic sales Export Domestic sales Export

Volume| Value | Volume | Value |Volume| Value |Volume| Value
Product
Mother boards& 360| 1408 14066| 48543 282]  oa0| 14017 47935
graphic cards
Others - 1,352 -l 9,621 - 709 - 12,197
Total 369 2,760 14,066 58,164 282 1,649] 14,017 60,132

Note; This table lists net sales

-1
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1I1.Profiles on employees over the last two years as of the date of publication
March 31, 2020

Year 2018 2019 2020
March 31
Line personnel 693 720 702
Number of Supporting 1,892 1,917 1,954
employees personnel
Total 2,585 2,637 2,656
Average age 38.7 39.5 39.3
Average year of service 9.8 10.2 10.2
Doctorate 0.3% 0.3% 0.3%
Master 14.4% 14.4% 14.8%
Education | University 68.6% 68.6% 68.5%
(%) | High school 13% 13.7% 13.5%
High school 3.7% 394 2.0%
below

Source: Statistical data compiled by Gigabyte

IV.Information on environmental protection expenditure in the most recent year and up to the
publication date of the annual report
(I) Losses and fines due to pollution in the most recent year: None.
(II) Future responding strategies and possible expenditure:

In its 2019 Global Risk Report, the World Economic Forum (WEF) indicated that
extreme weather events and natural disasters were the risks of greatest concern. On May
11, 2019, atmospheric carbon dioxide exceeded 415 parts per million (ppm), according to
scientists from Scripps Institution of Oceanography and NOAA Mauna Loa Atmospheric
Baseline Observatory. In September, Australia declared a state of emergency as wildfires
bring a "catastrophic” threat to the entire Sydney area and the coast of East Australia. In
November, Venice, Italy was flooded when the high waters exceeded a level of 150 cm
three times. These events show us that the sustainable development of corporate
operations requires a focus on climate risks.

Countries in the world have thus tightened their environmental regulation. Every
year the EU increases the substances of very high concern (SVHC) in REACH and adds
to RoHS2 four controlled items for plasticizer that will take effect on July 22, 2019.
Environmental and social issues have always been our concerns. To effectively mitigate
and address to environmental and regulatory impacts, we began conducting assessments
on supply chain sustainability in 2012, Apart from assessing and advising our existing
suppliers on quality, punctuality, service, cost and hazardous substance management, we
also require suppliers to conform to the Code of Conduct for Responsible Business
Alliances and non-use of conflict minerals. In addition, we will promote energy saving,
emission reduction, water saving, and waste reduction to protect Earth together with
suppliers in pursuit of sustainable development and increased competitiveness.
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Projected environmental protection spending three years ahead:

Currency: in NTD 1,000

2017 2018 2019 2020
A. The content of 1.Continue to promote |1.We will promote use |.Launch Gigabyte’s 1. Promote
anti-pollution the Operation Gigabyte | of carbon-free Reduce 333 program.| sustainability funds
equipment planned  |333 and team up with natural packaging Organize the to encourage
to procure or suppliers fo materials to make “Reduce, Share, consumption
spending continuously reduce our products Love the Earth reduction within the
product emissions environmentally Alliance” supplier group by providing
reduction for friendly and conference and share | awards and
Earth—our home consumer-friendly. with the suppliers incentives such as
2.Complete the product |  This is not only our “reduce” cases Plant Reduction
life cycle and ETA sustainable, but also | and our strategy and | Award and rewards

system to reduce
product carbon
emissions,
3.0ptimize the energy
on-line monitoring
system, improve the
VFD pump of the
central
air-conditioning
system, development
PV generation, and
update the cooling
equipment of the
cooling tower.

cost-effective, so
that consumers can
easily identify our
products and form
awareness in
recovery and that
Gigabyte's corporate
purpose of
"Revolutionize
Technology,
Beautify Life" can
be served.

2.Continue to promote

GIGABYTE 333
reduction plan, in
promoting "MFCA
Material Flow Cost
analysis" From a
practical working
surface waste
reduction; External
held "reduction *
Share « Love the
Earth Alliance"
supplier of the
General Assembly,
and suppliers Share
Gigabyte case actual
reduction,
sustainable
development
strategy and as a
further invitation to
suppliers to
participate in Make
Earth Green Again
project to plant trees
for the Earth, for the
Earth sustainable
dedicated force.

3.We will continue to

promote the "Green
garth « create
hope with trees”
campaign and call
on consurers'
response to the
one-laptop-for-
one-tree campaign.
As soon as
consumers complete
the registration

actions for
sustainable
development.

2.0Organize the

“Friendly Produt
Design Competition”
to coach and
encourage tertiary
students to be
innovative use their
creativity to design
products that are
friendly to the
consumer,
environment and
society based on
their concept of
sustainability.

3. Organize the
“Climate Academy”
to educate
schoolchildren about
the global climate
crisis and inculcate
in them the ability
and courage to solve
the crisis.

for those who
propose reduction
and low-carbon
product ideas.

2.Launch Gigabyte's

Reduce 333 program.
Organize the
“Reduce, Share,
Love the Earth
Alliance” supplier
conference and share
with the suppliers
our “reduce” cases
and our strategy and
actions for
sustainable
development.
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2017 2018 2019 2020
procedures online,
Gigabyte will
donate money
needed in tree
planting for the
consumers to plant
trees of hope for the
Earth.
B. Expected Effectively reduce Effectively cut cost, Effectively cut cost, Encourage partners in
improvement waste quantity and reduce waste quantity |reduce waste quantity |the value chain to work
carbon emissions, and |and carbon emissions, |and carbon emissions, |with us to reduce waste,
enhance energy and and enhance energy and|and enhance energy and [water, carbon, and
resource efficiency. resource efficiency. resource efficiency. plastic, and bring new
opportunities and social
value for the company.
C. Amount
- environmental 37,235 34438 47,300 43,655
protection
spending
- procurement of - - - -
equipment  for
environmental
protection
process

(IIl) The Impact of Environmental-Protection-Related Expenditure on the Company:

1.

Impact on Net Profit :

Promoting friendly design and sustainable development is our Company’s
established policy and a global trend. Our Company considers the complete
lifecycle of products covering raw material acquisition; product design,
manufacture, and use; and recycling, to reduce environmental impact and
environmental load, provide customers with high-quality and high-efficiency
products, extend product lifespan, and reduce electronic waste. While pursuing
environmental protection, we also improve product competitiveness. All Gigabyte
products comply with our Harmful Chemical Substances Requirements (HCSR)
to reduce the potential risks of products and pursue sustainable development for
the enterprise and environment. Although implementing eco-design and
sustainable development did not increase our Company’s production capacity but
reduced our Company’s net profit, they enable our Company to secure market
share and promote brand image.

We promoted the MFCA Material Flow Cost Analysis in 2017 as we knew
that by using the "loss cost" approach, the "waste reduction analysis" could
improve the efficiency of use of materials and save costs. At the same time, we
took account of material flow cost analysis for the purpose of environmental
protection, thereby providing the industry with the best practices on sustainable
resource management process. Continue to promote the “Gigabyte Technology
Reduce 333 Program”, encouraging reduction in carbon, water and waste to
improve resource efficiency and decrease operating costs.

Impact on our Status in the Competition

friendly design, environmental protection, energy saving, and emission
reduction have become global trends and universal values. In recent years, we
have been promoting friendly design, elimination of hazardous substances, and
ISO 14064, In response to the tightening international environmental regulations,
we work together with suppliers through supplier management and supplier
guidance, We also observe local laws and {Responsible Business Alliance (RBA)
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Code of Conduct} at a high moral standard. We also request suppliers on the
supply chain to comply with environmental protection, safety and health, labor
rights, and labor condition standards, including “Conflict-Mineral-Free” policy;
respect for employees; fair treatment of female and male employees;
accountability toward production process and the environment. Besides improving
organizational competitiveness, such awareness will be beneficial to enhance the
global market share of Taiwan’s 3C industries, so as to prevent measures to
promote environmental protection and sustainable development from reducing our
global competitiveness. Establish “Reduce, Share, Love the earth, Alliance” and
convene the supplier conference to share with the supplies Gigabyte’s actions to
reduce carbon, waste, water, plastic and the sustainability trend. Growing
together with the supplier, generating win-win together.
3.  Impact on the Company’s mage
Since 2010, we have voluntarily published the “Gigabyte Corporate Social
Responsibility Report” according to the Global Reporting Initiative (GRI) in both
Chinese and English to report to all stakeholders Gigabyte’s efforts, determination,
and achievements in sustainable development. After winning in 2014 the
Excellence in National Environmental Education from New Taipei City, we won
in 2015 again the Excellence in National Environmental Education in the private
sector category; in 2017, we were rated as a Model Enterprise in the electronics
industry according to the CSR Survey by Global View Magazine, TCSA Climate
Leader Award (as one of the 10 award winning enterprises), TOP50 Taiwan
Sustainable Enterprise Award (among the 9 enterprises in technology sector, we
ranked the 6th place), TOP50 Enterprise Sustainable Report Gold Award and ISO
140014+ Award. In 2018, the Vision “CSR Survey” published the Top 5 in the
technology industry. The Top 50 gold award for corporate sustainability once
again confirmed Gigabyte’s progress made in driving sustainable development.
“The calling of the corporation is to provide the consumer with products that are
safe and of high quality. Helping the consumer to safeguard the environmental
impact of our products is the corporation’s responsibility.” All products bearing
the Gigabyte brand are produced with the principle of being environmentally
friendly, actively pursuing the goals of low carbon, no contamination and zero
waste. [n 2018, we published Taiwan’s first ever product environment report to
describe the effect of the raw materials used and the production process of
Gigabyte’s products on the environment. We affirm the Company's practice in
sustainable development. We will make continuous efforts to spread our social
influence to make Gigabyte the industry's perpetual leader.
(IV) Our Company’s Committed Environmental Protection Expenditures and Our Response
to EU Environmental Guidelines Are Listed as Follows:
1. Committed Significant Environmental Protection Expenditures:

(1) Our Company has passed ISO 14001 environmental management system
certification, requiring first level suppliers to install environmental management
systems. Currently, all first level suppliers of Gigabyte have earned the ISO
14001 certification and are striving for pollution prevention and clean
production. :

(2) In 2005, our company became the first system brand company in the world that
received the IECQ QC 080000 standard certification. Our products went through
a lead-free manufacturing process. We also introduced green material
management system and established a green supply chain. Through Green
Supply Chain Management (GSCM), we coordinated systematically with
suppliers and connect ourselves to relevant standard evaluation and recognition
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processes. We effectively communicate with suppliers. We trace, manage, and
even eliminate components that contain restricted or banned chemical
substances.

(3) The Company has passed the ISO45001 occupational health and safety
management system verification. We will continuously improve the Company’s
safety and health systems to prevent accidents and keep them under control, and
strive for sustainable operations with zero occupational hazards.

(4) The lifecycle carbon emission audit based on PAS 2050 carbon footprint standard
has been completed for MD-300 Set-Top Box, one of our Company’s Chennel
sales products. The British Standard Institute (BSI) has issued a certificate of
product carbon footprint verification for this audit engagement.

(5) Our Company promotes green design and recycling processes that are in
compliance with all international environmental regulations.

(6) Apart from developing the clean production mechanism, developing
energy-saving products, improving production process, and enhancing efficiency,
we specifically implemented the ISO14064 GHG inventory system to disclose
the GHG inventory and management information of this Company with the GHG
report, so as to exactly capture the sources of GHG emissions, promote total
participation and consensus, and continuously promote GHG emissions, mitigate
global warming, and fulfill CSR.

(7) We activated the “Green Action Program” in 2009 to organize celebrity talks,
sustainability and environment education, eco working holiday, and “One
Thousand Miles” environmental service events for over 82,218 participants. With
these activities, we have enabled employees to understand the importance of
environmental protection, improved their awareness of sustainability and
environmental protection, and equipped them with the basic knowledge, attitude,
and skill for environmental protection. By activating the “Green Action Program
2.0”in 2016, we have established the Gigabyte Green Action Culture and
promoted the eco-design concept to all employees to create new value for green
products and pursue sustainable development for the enterprise and environment.

(8) We organized the “Green Product Innovation Activity: Innovation - Value -
Sustainability”. Based on the main theme “going green is free”, we encourage
employees to design green product with “Innovation + Value + Sustainability”. As
long as we are on the right track, “going green is free!” In 2016, we organized
the “Save the Ocean; Reduce Plastics Movement” poster design competition.
This was followed in 2017 by the “Reduce, Share, Love the Earth” friendly
product design competition to develop tertiary students, letting them present
innovative and creative ideas on sustainability, incorporating the economic
principles of recycling. Starting at the origin, introducing the economics of
recycling from the design phase of the product right through to the end phase of
recycling, targeting the environment, society and the consumer to create friendly
products.

(9) We put the mitigation and adaptation of climate change as part of enterprise
sustainable operations and implement countermeasures in terms of GHG
management and routine operations. We also build the eco-design-focus
“G-Home Sustainable Eco-Roof” and promote it through industry-government
-academia cooperation in order to provide a reference for an integrated,
multifunctional solution for the mitigation and adaptation of climate change,
aggressively reduce environmental load, and fulfill corporate social
responsibility.

In June 2017, G-HOME, Gigabyte's sustainable living roof project, was certified
by the Environmental Protection Administration, Executive Yuan. This did not
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only let G-HOME serve the purpose of promoting green roofs, but also turned
Gigabyte into a great corporate citizen in the education field and called on
everyone to cherish the seeds of caring love of the environment and achieve
harmony between man and the environment, as of December 2019 there were
3,189 participants.

(10)For continuous reduction of product carbon emissions, we activated the carbon
footprint calculation system for all products in 2016. By implementing this
system, we hope to simplify the calculation of process of product carbon
emissions and review the carbon emissions of products at each stage of the
product life cycle. Apart from comparing the environmental impacts of each raw
material and production process and finding opportunities and methods to reduce
carbon emissions, we hope to provide a reference for developing friendly
products. In 2018, we published Taiwan’s first ever environmental product report,
expanding the impact assessment data to include the effect on air quality and
acidification of land/water domains. R&D personnel use this data to examine
the environmental impact of the various products as they move through the
different phases in their lifespan. The results of the study will form the basis
identifying opportunities for reducing the environmental impact and develop
plans for operationalization. We hope that you will join us in protecting the
environment. To that end, Gigabyte Technology has compiled the environmental
impact of our products and the recycle data in this environmental product report.
We hope that this open sharing of information will help all of us to understand
the environmental characteristics of each category of product and motivate each
of us, be it the manufacturer or the consumer, to do our bit for a sustainable
environment.

(11)By analyzing the effects and benefits of “G-Home Sustainable Eco-Roof” and
“One Thousand Miles” of Gigabyte to Green Club with SROI, we found that
both projects can bring positive social and environmental effects. In terms of
benefits, we found that every NT$1 spent on “G-Home Sustainable Eco-Roof”
can yield NT$8.04 back; and every NT$1 spent on “One Thousand Miles” can
yield NT$5.45 back.

The Company sell its products directly and indirectly to EU, or areas governed by

RoHS.

The compliance of the Company with RoHS is 100%. In 2017, in response to the

RoHS 2 restriction on phthalates and the amended REACH regulations, we

officially updated the HCSR to version 4.3, adjusting the control levels (Level B

— Level A) of the 4 restricted phthalates (DEHP, BBP, DBP, DIBP) and added 2

restricted materials (DBB, PFOSF). All suppliers will be required to comply with

Gigabyte’s guidelines on the control of hazardous materials and be subjected to

audit by Gigabyte.

The Company has been granted by the following companies or agencies the green

product accreditation on environmental protection and ODM customer

accreditation rate: 100%.

(1) The first company in Taiwan being accredited the SGS IECQ QC080000
RoHS green product.

(2) Approved by MOEA for a grant for supervision in Green Project in 2006,
and complete the establishment and adaptation of GP system in 2007.

(3) Recognition by international giant firms: Lenovo (IBM), Fujitsu, Hitachi,
NEC, Toshiba, Samsung, LG, Acer, HP.

(4) Equipment, production process, inspection standards and points of control
are in place. There are also the ODM Mass Production and inspection for
delivery locations with yield rate meeting the requirements of the customers.
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(5) By the end of Q1 2006, the Company has attuned to full compliance with
RoHS and has met the requirement of EU as early as July 2006.

(6) Complete the process and product evaluation of Halogen Free in 2008 to
respond to the requirement of future environment protection law.

(7) As the first company in the world, we passed the third-party certification
(BSI) of carbon footprint inventory with our STB (MD-300) according to
PAS2050 on September 29, 2010. We also cooperated with 15 suppliers to
arrange carbon footprint and inventory training for (raw) materials with the
purpose of understanding the impact of the product on the environment at
each phase of its life cycle. We also hope to build a basic database and use it
as a basis for the development of green products to reduce impact on the
environment and fulfill our responsibility to society.

V.Labor-Management Relation in the most recent year until the date this report is printed

The status of employee welfare, continuing education, training, retirement system and
others, and the agreement between the labor and the management and protection of
employee benefits and rights:

I

1.

Employee insurance:

In addition to labor insurance and health insurance for employees and their
dependents, we take out group insurance for each employee including life
insurance, accident insurance, hospitalization insurance and medical payment for
accidents and cancer as well as overseas travel insurance to protect the lives of
employees and their families.

Annual wage adjustment and bonus:

The wage adjustment will be implemented in accordance with annual price
index, the wage adjustment ratio of the civil servant, the wage adjustment
standard in the industry and the performance appraisal result. In addition, there is
a bonus when sales targets are achieved.

Holiday bonuses

Gigabyte provides employees with holiday bonuses ever Duanwu Festival
and Mid-autumn Festival as well as end-of-year bonuses before the Chinese Lunar
New Year.

Fringe benefits provided by the employee welfare committee

The employee welfare committee of the Company is organized under law
and by elected representatives of the employees. They will be responsible for the
planning and execution of employee welfare. Examples are the organization for
local and overseas traveling trips, gifts for the three major festivals, birthday gift
vouchers, subsidized for matrimonial, celebration and funeral occasions,
scholarships for the children of employees, special offers by participating shops,
recreation and entertainments, social functions, language training programs, and
the Company will subsidize employees in taking local or overseas trips for
pleasure. The amount of subsidy will vary with the years of service
Training and development of employees: according to the training system of the
career development

Develop training development system using core career as mainstream and
emphasis on the cultivation of professional management, at the same time, host
arts and humanity seminars irregularly to widen employees’ views and balance out
career and life. Establish e-leaming platform to provide an irregular learning
environment. Our scheduled training includes educational training for newcomers,
professional management training, pre career training, specialized skill training,
product enhancement training, general training, English language lesions and
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(D)

g-learning program.
Employee stock ownership program

Since 2010, Gigabyte has provided stock ownership for employees above a
certain rank. These employees may convert a percentage of their monthly salaries
or bonuses to a trust to acquire company shares. Gigabyte will also provide
additional funds for encouragement so that employees can also benefit from the
Company's profits and strengthen the loyalty and bond with the employees.

Reward for innovation

Any new idea for positive contribution to the Company proposed by
employees will be rewarded, including management, marketing planning, research
and development and production.

Feedback:

The opinion of staff is important. Therefore, the suggestion box and

message board are used to find out the opinion of staff on the management system,
executive leadership, welfare system and work environment for good labor
relations. There has never been a labor dispute in the history of our company.
After July 2005, the employer contributes labor pension that is six percent of
monthly wages of the employee into the individual account of the employee at
Labor Insurance Bureau due the change in policy that requires individual
retirement account, The retirement system of the Company has been instituted in
accordance with the Labor Standards Law. The Company hires an actuarial expert
to work on the job, and appropriate 2% to 15% of the total salaries disbursed for
each month as a contribution to the pension fund liability at the approval of the
Taipei County Government. Such contribution, which is 2% for current period,
will be deposited at the trustee account at the Bank of Taiwan under the title of the
Pension Fund Supervisory Committee.

Any losses suffered by the company in the most recent fiscal year and up to the annual

report publication date due to labor disputes (including labor inspection results found in
violation of the Labor Standards Act, specifying the disposition dates, disposition
reference numbers, the articles of law violated, and the content of the dispositions): The
labor-management relation has been harmonious since the establishment of the
Company in 1986. No loss has ever been inflicted from this cause.

VI.Major agreements
(D Agreements expiring within one year: None.

(II) Agreements still in force:
Type of contract Contracting parties Term of agreements Content Restriction
Patent Prohibition on
License Agreement QUALCOMM 2006/7/21- indefinite authorization  |assignment of
Incorporated )
rights
. Patent Prohibition on
License Agreement HDMI Licensing, LLC 2223?{18/9" expiry of every authorization assignment of
P rights
. Patent Prohibition on
License Agreement DTS , Inc. 2014/4/24- expiry of every authorization  |assignment of
patent .
rights
Patent Prohibition on
License Agreement AMI, Taiwan Branch 2018/1/1- 2020/12/31 authorization  |assignment of

rights
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Six. Financial Position

I.Condensed balance sheet, income statement and auditors’ opinions covering the period of last five

years

(1) Condensed Balance Sheet and Statement of Comprehensive Income -IFRS
Condensed Balance Sheet (Entity) - IFRS

Unit: NT$1000

Year Financial information covering the last five years (Notel)
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

Item
Current assets 21,437,954 24,821,408 26,488,634 22,746,564 24,581,192
Property, plant and equipment{Note2) 2,259,952 2,213,725 2,160,918 2,462,212 2,519,945
Intangible assets 23,648 27,774 14,014 41,766 22,861
Other assets(Note2) 8,767,128 8,210,714 9,398,723 10,543,158 11,279,156
Total assets 32,488,682 35,273,621 38,062,289 35,793,700 38,403,154
Current liabilities Cum-dividend 9,440,375 11,914,724 13,402,546 11,165,092 13,511,756
Ex-dividend 11,013,032 13,551,761 15,945,302 13,072,159 Not distributed yet
Non-current liabilities 509,339 548,392 569,842 545,133 593,587
Total liabilities Cum-dividend 9,049,714 12,463,116 13,972,388 11,710,225 14,105,343
Ex-dividend 11,522,371 14,100,153 16,515,144 13,617,292} Not distributed yet
E;lr“;i’ attributable to owners of the 22,538068]  22,810,505] 24080001 24,083,475 24,297,811
Equity 6,290,629 6,291,179 6,356,889 6,356,889 6,356,889
Capital Cum-dividend 4,601,581 4,602,046 3,962,314 3,924,357 3,896,889
surplus Ex-dividend 4,601,581 3,972,416 3,962,314 3,924,357| Not distributed yet
Retained Cum-dividend 11,399,606 12,092,633 13,840,935 13,417,437 13,426,344
earnings Ex-dividend 0,826,949 11,085,226 11,298,179 11,510,370| Not distributed yet
Other Equity 247,152 -175,353 -70,237 384,792 617,689
.| Treasury stock 0 0 0 0 0
Non control Equity 0 0 0 0 0
Total equity Cum-dividend 22,538,968 22,810,505 24,089,901 24,083,475 24,297,811
Ex-dividend 20,966,311 21,173,468 21,547,145 22,176,408 | Not distributed yet

* [If the Company compiles financial statements on an entity basis, the Company should additionally compile the
entities' condensed balance sheets and consolidated profit & loss statements for the last 5 years.
*  TFor companies that have adopted IFRSs for less than five years, the companies should also compile the following

table (2) under ROC GAAP.

Note 1:  Years during which the financial statements have not been audited by CPAs should be noted.
Note 2:  If the Company has performed asset revaluation in the current year, the Company should state the date when

the revaluation was performed and the revaluation gain amount.

Note 3:  The figures after the aforementioned distribution are based on the shareholders® meeting resolution in the

following year.

Note 4:  If the financial information have been revised or compiled as directed by the competent authorities, list the
amended or re-compiled data with clear annotations and explanation.
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Condensed Statement of Comprehensive Income (Entity) - IFRS

Unit: 1000 NTD

Year Financial Information covering the last five years (Note 1)
Item 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
Revenue 47,662,757 49,735,072 57,213,666 57,984,926 62,383,990
Gross profit 6,996,041 7,314,934 8,089,336 7,650,552 7,209,865
Operating income 1,476,134 1,934,481 1,974,088 1,756,180 1,390,845
Non-operating income & expenses 880,033 899,318 1,066,623 1,152,727 771,621
Pre-tax profit 2,356,167 2,833,795 3,040,711 2,908,907 2,162,466
Net Income from continuing 1,920,065 2202864 2786411 2,566,512 1,939,241
operations
Eaming of discontinued operation _ _ _ _ _
Net income (loss) 1,920,065 2,292,864 2,786,411 2,566,512 1,939,241
Other comprehensive income (net -254,090 -449,685 74,414 15,130 209,630
after tax)
g:r‘if d°°mpr"‘h"'ns“’° income for the 1,665,975 1843179 2.860825| 2,581,642 2,148,871
Egeﬁ‘t"’ﬁt attributable to owner of 1,920,065 2202,864] 2786411 2,566,512 1,939,241
Net profit attributable to
non-controlling interests - - - — -
Total comprehensive income 1,665,975 1843,179| 2860825 2,581,642 2,148,871
attributable to owner of parent
Total comprehensive income
attributable to non-controlling _ _ _ _ _
interests
EPS (§) 3.05 3.64 441 4.04 3.05

* If the Company compiles financial statements on an entity basis, the Company should additionally compile the
entities' condensed balance sheets and consolidated profit & loss statements for the last 5 years.
*  For companies that have adopted IFRSs for less than five years, the companies should also compile the following

table (2) under ROC GAAP.
Note 1:
Note 2:
Note 3:

amended or re-compiled data with clear annotations and explanation.
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CPAs have audited the consolidated financial information in previous years referred to above.
Losses from discontinued units are shown as net earnings after deduction of income tax.
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Condensed Balance Sheet (Consolidated ) - IFRS

Unit: 1000 NTD

Year Financial information covering the last five years (Note 1) Financial

information as

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 of March 31,

Item 2020 (Note 3)
Current assets 27,846,683 30,955,717 33,623,284| 28,959,419 30,109,160 33,309,072
Property, plant and 4,022,766| 3,905,043| 3,876,017 4,131,468 4,085,922 4,142,412

equipment(Note2)

Intangible assets 34,144 54,230 33,056 51,998 30,789 52,398
Other assets{Note2) 1,337,040 1,309,060 1,265,315 2,591,710 3,485,670 2,588,909
Total assets 33,240,633 36,224,050 38,797,672 35,734,595 37,711,541 40,092,791
Current liabilities Cum-dividend| 10,132,956 12,651,024 13,983,138| 10,955,638 12,665,285 15,028,083
Ex-dividend 11,705,613 14,288,061 16,525,804 12,862,705|Not distributed yet |Not distributed yet
Non-current liabilities 554,258 604,083 582,210 610,201 693,145 927,400
Total liabilities Cum-dividend| 10,687,214| 13,255,107] 14,565,348 11,565,929 13,358,430 15,955,483
Ex-dividend 12,259,871 14,892,144| 17,108,104 13,472,996/ Not distributed yet |Not distributed yet
E%“;z:;?‘b“‘able oownersof | 15 539 068| 22,810,505 24,089,901| 24083475 24207811 24,089,152
Equity 6,290,629 6,291,179 6,356,889 6,356,889 6,356,889 6,356,889
Capital surplus Cum-dividend 4,601,581 4,602,046 3,962,314 3,924,357 3,896,889 3,896,889
Ex-dividend 4,601,581 3,972,416] 3,962,314 3,924,357 Not distibuted yet [Not distributed yet
Retained Cum-dividend| 11,399,606 12,092,633| 13,840,935| 13,417,437 13,426,344 14,107,888
earnings Ex-dividend 0,826,949| 11,085,226 11,298,179] 11,510,370|Not distributed yet |Not distributed yet
Other Equit 247,152 -175,353 -70,237 384,792 617,689 -272.514
Treasury stock 0 0 0 0 0 0
Non control Equit 14,451 158,438 142,423 85,191 55,300 48,156
Total shareholder’s |Cum-dividend| 22,553,419| 22,968,943] 24,232,324 24,168,666 24,353,111 24,137,308
equity Ex-dividend | 20,980,762| 21,331,906] 21,689,568| 22,261,599|Not distributed yet |Not disiributed yet

* If the Company compiles financial statements on an entity basis, the Company should additionally compile the
entities' condensed balance sheets and consolidated profit & loss statements for the last 5 years.
*  For companies that have adopted IFRSs for less than five years, the companies should also compile the following
table (2) under ROC GAAP.

Note 1:
Note 2:

the revaluation was performed and the revaluation gain amount.

Note 3:
Note 4:

following year.

Note 5:

amended or re-compiled data with clear annotations and explanation.
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Condensed Statement of Comprehensive Income (Consolidated) - IFRS

| Unit: 1000 NTD
- Financial information covering the last five years Financial
car (Note 1) information as
Item of March 31,
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 (Note 2)
Revenue 50,828,792| 52,347,389 59,884,781] 60,923,590 61,781,254] 17,233,147
Gross profit 8,761,412 9,069,697 10,198.857] 10,123214]  9,590,869] 2,792,003
Operating income 1,251,738]  1,688,998] 2226350  2,275,588] 1,447,233 675,019
Non-operating income & 1,419.921| 1273323 949,277 677,183 816,015 258,507
CXPENSES
Pre-tax profit 2,671,659  2962321]  3,175627]  2,952,771] 2,263,248 933,526
Net Income from counting 1,922,700 2,284,350 2,713,506 2,496,125 1,907,543 674,653
operations
Earning of discontinued
operation - = - - = =
Net income(loss) 1,022,700 2284350  2,713,506] 2,496,125 1,907,543 674,653
Sfﬂ;:;)c"mpmhens“'e ncome(aet -254,090  -449,685 74,409 15,127 209,630  -890,456
Total comprehensive income for 1,668,610 1,834,665 2,787,915 2,511,252} 2,117,173 -215,803
the period
E;Lffﬁt attributable to owner off - 55 065]  2902864] 2786411 2566512 1,939,241 681,544
. [Net profit attributable to 2,635 8514] 72,905 70,387 31,698 6,891
non-controlling interests
Total comprehensive income 1,665975| 1,843,179  2,860,825|  2,581,642|  2,148871|  -208,659
attributable to owner of parent
Total comprehensive income
attributable to non-controlling 2,635 -8,514 72,910 70,390 -31,698 -7,144
interests
EPS (8) 3.05 3.64 4.41 4.04 3.05 1.07

* If the Company compiles financial statements on an entity basis, the Company should additionally compile the
entities' condensed balance sheets and consolidated profit & loss statements for the last 5 years.
*  For companies that have adopted IFRSs for less than five years, the companies should also compile the following

table (2) under ROC GAAP.
CPAs have audited the consolidated financial information in previous years referred to above.

Note 1:

Note2:  CPAs have reviewed the consolidated financial information in the current quarter referred to above
Note 3:  Losses from discontinued units are shown as net earnings after deduction of income tax.
Note 4:  If the financial information have been revised or compiled as directed by the competent authorities, list the
amended or re-compiled data with clear annotations and explanation.
(II) Name of Public Accountants in the last five years and opinions:
Year Public auditors Opinion
2015 Xiao, Chun-Yuan; Wang, Fang-yu Modified unqualified
2016 Xiao, Chun-Yuan; Wang, Fang-yu Ungqualified opinion with explanatory
paragraph
2017 Xiao, Chun-Yuan; Wang, Fang-yu Unqualified opinion with explanatory
paragraph
2018 Xiao, Chun-Yuan; Wang, Fang-yu Ungualified opinion with explanatory
paragraph ,
2019 Lin, Se-Kai; Wang, Fang-yu(Note 1) Unqualified opinion with explanatory
paragraph

Note 1 ¢ There has been reorganization of the PWC Public Accountants. Therefore, Xiao, Chun-Yuan, CPA
and Wang Fang-yu, CPA were changed to Lin, Se-Kai, CPA and Wang, Fang-yu, CPA as the
public auditors to the Company in 2019.
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II. Financial analysis for the past five years

(1) Financial Analysis (Entity) - IFRS

Year (Note 1) Financial analysis for the past five years
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
Subject (Note 3)
Liabilities to assets ratio (%) 30.63 35.33 36.71 32,72 36.73
Financial
structure Long-term capital to Property, plant and
equipment ratio (%) ’ 1,019.86 1,055.19 1,141.17 1,000.26 987.78
Current ratio (%) 227.09 208.33 197.64 203.73 181.92
e Quick mtio %) 135.47 129.86 134.65 96.05 114.39
Debt service coverage ratio 7,960.85 8,120.60| 10,632.86] 10,464.69 088.88
A/R tumover {time) 9.70 9.82 9.76 9.75 8.23
Average days of payment 38 37 37 37 44
Inventory turnover (time) 4.75 4.83 5.57 5.02 538
Utility | A/P turnover (time) 7.35 6.37 5.71 6.41 7.11
Average daily sales 77 76 66 73 68
Property, plant and equipment tumover (time) 21.20 22.23 26.16 25.08 25.04
Total assets turnover (time} 1.46 1.47 1.56 1.57 1.68
Return on Assets (%) 5.87 6.77 7.60 6.95 5.23
Return on equity (%) 8.51 10.11 11.88 10.66 8.02
... |Net income before tax as a percentage of
Profitability paid-in capital (%) (Note 7) 37.46 45.04 47.83 45.76 34.02
Net profit rate (%) 4,03 4.61 4.87 4.43 311
EPS () 3.05 3.64 4.41 4.04 3.05
Cash flow ratio (%) 36.71 29.60 28.80 -23.69 24.68
Cash flow | Cashi flow adequacy ratio (%) 85.39 93.79 118.78 63.27 70.48
Cash reinvestment ratio (%) 7.15 7.79 8.45 -19.72 5.40
Operation leverage 1.22 1.18 1.19 1.22 1.27
Leverage
Financial leverage 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Reasons for Changes in financial ratios in the last 2 years; (for changes of 20% or more)
1. Ability to repay debt: The company's interest expense is extremely low, Due to the poor profitability this year, the
interest expense increased slightly, which resulted in a reduction in the Debt service coverage ratio.
2.Profitability: Mainly due to the decline of the coin-mining machine boom this year, the company no longer sells
coin-mining machines, the supply and demand of graphics card products returned to normal, and the gross profit of]
related products decreased compared with the previous year.

* If the Company compiles financial statements on an entity basis, the Company should compile a separate financial

analysi

s for each entity.

* For companies that have adopted JFRSs for less than five years, the companies should also compile the following
table (2) under ROC GAAP,

Note 1:
Note 2:

CPAs have audited financial information for the years listed above.

Publicly traded companies or companies whose stocks are traded over the counter of securities dealers should
also include the current year financial information as of the quarter before the publication date of the annual

report in the analysis.
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Note3:

Note 4.

Note 5:

Note 6:

Note 7:

The equation for calculation shall be stated at the end of this table in the annual report.

1.

Financial structure

(1)  Liabilities to assets ratio = total liabilities/ total assets.

(2) Long-term capital to Property, plant and equipment ratio = {Gloss shareholder’s equity +
Non-current liabilities)/ Net Property, plant and equipment.

Ability to repay debt

(1)  Current ratio = current assets/current liabilities

(2)  Quick ratio = (current assets- inventory — prepayments)/current liabilities

(3)  Debt service coverage ratio=EBIT/interest expense for current pericd.

Utility

(1) Account receivable (including account receivable and note receivable from business) turnover =
net sales/average balance of account receivable (including account receivable and note receivable
from operation).

(2)  Average daily payment=365/account receivable turnover

{3) Inventory turnover= cost of goods sold/average inventory

(4)  Account payable (including account payable and note payable from operation) turnover = cost of
goods sold/average balance of account payable (including account payable and note payable from
operation).

(5)  Average daily sales = 365/inventory turnover

(6)  Property, plant and equipment turnover = net sales /Average Net Property, plant and equipment.

(7)  Total assets turnover = net sales/ Average total assets.

Profitability

(1)  Return on Assets = [Earning + interest expenses x (1-tax rate)]/average total assets.

(?)  Return on Equity = Earning /average net equity

(3)  Net profit rate = Earning/net sales

(4) Eaming per share = (Equity attributable to owners of the parent — dividend from preferred
shares)/weighed average number of outstanding shares (Note 4).

Cash Flow

(1)  Cash flow ratio = {net sales — variable cost and expenses from operation)/operating income.

(2)  Cash flow adequacy ratio = net cash flow from operation over the last five years/(capital spending
+addition to inventory + cash dividend) over the last five years. ‘

(3)  Cash reinvestment ratio = (net cash flow from operation — cash dividend)/ (gross Property, plant
and equipment + long-term investment + other Non-current assets + working capital) (Note 5).

Leverage:
(1) Operation leverage= (net sales — variable cost and expenses from operation)/operating income
(Note 6).

(2)  Financial leverage= operating income/(operating income-operating expenses).

While evaluating the formulas for EPS mentioned above, the following factors must be taken into
consideration:

1.

2.

The number of common shares shall be based on the weighed average method and not the outstanding
shares as of the end of the year.

Where there may be additional capital raised from the issuance of new shares or may be treasury shares
trade, the outstanding period of the shares shall be considered in calculating the weighed average number
of outstanding shares.

‘Where there may be the capitalization of retained eamings or of capital surplus, adjustment shall be made
in proportion to the amount capitalized when calculating the eamning per share for the previous year and
the interim period. The term of the capitalization of retained earnings or capital surplus for new capital is
not required for consideration.

If the preferred shares are non-convertible accumulated preferred shares, the dividend for current period
(whether or not being paid out) should be deducted from earning or added to earning. If the preferred
shares are not accumulative, dividend for preferred shares should be deducted from eaming if there is a
surplus. If there is loss after taxation, no adjustment is required.

When conducting analysis on cash flow, pay attention to the followings:

L.

2.
3.

4,
5. The gross amount of property, plant, and equipment is the total balance of property, plant, and equipment

Cash flow from operation shall be referred to the net cash inflow from operation as stated in the statement
of cash flow.

Capital spending shall be referred to cash outflow for capital investment each year.

Addition to inventory shall be referred to the value at the end of the ending period is greater than that of
the beginning period. If there is decease in inventory, put a zero.

Cash dividend includes cash dividend for common and preferred stocks.

before subtracting accumulated depreciation.

The securities issuer should classify operating costs and operating expenses as fixed or variable. If estimates
or subjective judgment is involved in such classification, the accounting staff must pay attention to the
reasonableness and maintain the consistency of such classification.

If the stocks of the Company do not have par value of have par values other than NT$10, the calculation of
percentage of paid-in capital is calculated with the ratio of equity attributable to the parent company in the
balance sheet.
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Financial Analysis ( Consolidated) - IFRS

Year (Note 1) . . . Financial
Financial analysis for the past five years analysis as

of March

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 | 31,2020

Subject (Note 3) (Note 2)
Liabilities to assets ratio (%) 32.15 36.59 37.54 32.37 3542 39.80

Financial
structure Long-t ital to Property, plant and
ng-term capi perty, plant an
equipment ratio (%) 574.06 599.60 636.53 597.70 611.64 603.91
Cutrent ratio (%) 274.81 244.69 240.46 264.33 237,73 221.65
s e |Quick ratio (% 176.00 16791 177.65| 151.40] 14322 12531
Debt service coverage ratio 1,858.73 30.92 814.22 699.22 209.69 348.42
A/R tumover (time) 8.99 9.86 9.90 9.74 9.93 9.07
Average days of payment 41 37 37 37 37 40
Inventory turnover (time) 4,87 4.81 5.45 5.03 4.57 4.57
Utility | A/P turnover (time) 7.97 6.69 6.01 7.31 8.30 6.93
Average daily sales 75 76 67 73 80 80
Property, plant and equipment_tumover (time) 12.32 13.21 15.39 15.22 15.04 16.75
Total assets turnover (time) 1.52 1.51 1.60 1.63 1.68 1.77
Retum on Assets (%) 5.74 6.84 7.44 6.90 5.30 7.03
Retumn on equity (%) 8.51 10.11 11.88 10.66 8.02 11.27
... |Net income before tax as a percentage of
Profitability paid-in capital (%) (Note 7) 42.47 47.09 49.9¢6 46.45 35.60 58.74
Net profit rate (%) 3.78 4.38 4.65 421 3.14 395
EPS ($) 3.05 3.64 441 4,04 3.05 1.07
Cash flow ratio (%) 34,55 33,22 27.92 -21.31 30.68 -7.02
Cash flow |C3sh flow adequacy ratio (%) 113.52 116.98 132.38 80.06 84.83 52.67
Cash reinvestment ratio (%) 6.58 9.50 7.94 -18.04 7.44 -3.88
Operation leverage 1.59 1.43 1.35 1.36 1.55 1.29
Leverage

Financial leverage 1.00 1.06 1.00 1.00 1.01 1.00

Reasens for Changes in financial ratios in the last 2 years: (for changes of 20% or more)
1.Ability to repay debt: The company's interest expense is extremely low. Due to the poor profitability this year, the

interest expense increased slightly, which resulted in a reduction in the Debt service coverage ratio.

2 Profitability: Mainly due to the decline of the coin-mining machine boom this year, the company no longer sells
coin-mining machines, the supply and demand of graphics card products returned to normal, and the gross profit of
related products decreased compared with the previous year.

* If the Company compiles financial statements on an entity basis, the Company should compile a separate financial

analysis for each entity.
* For companies that have adopted IFRSs for less than five years, the companies should also compile the following

table (2) under ROC GAAP.
CPAs have audited financial information for the years listed above.
Publicly traded companies or companies whose stocks are traded over the counter of securities dealers should
also include the current year financial information as of the quarter before the publication date of the annual

Note 1:
Note 2:

report in the analysis.
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Note3:

Note 4.

Note 5:

Note 6:

The equation for calculation shall be stated at the end of this table in the annual report.

1. Financial structure
(1)  Liabilities to assets ratio = total liabilities/ total assets.

(2) Long-term capital to Property, plant and equipment ratio = (Gloss shareholder’s equity -+
Non-current liabilities)/ Net Property, plant and equipment.
2. Ability to repay debt
(1)  Current ratio = current assets/current liabilities
(2)  Quick ratio = {current assets- inventory — prepayments)/current liabilities
(3)  Debt service coverage ratio=EBIT/interest expense for current period.
3. Utility
(1)  Account receivable (including account receivable and note receivable from business) turnover =
net sales/average balance of account receivable (including account receivable and note receivable
from operation}.

(2)  Average daily payment=365/account receivable turnover

(3) Inventory turnover= cost of goods sold/average inventory

(4)  Account payable (including account payable and note payable from operation) turnover = cost of
goods sold/average balance of account payable (including account payable and note payable from
operation).

(5)  Average daily sales = 365/inventory turnover

(6)  Property, plant and equipment turnover = net sales /Average Net Property, plant and equipment.

(7)  Total assets turnover = net sales/ Average total assets.

4. Profitability

(1)  Return on Assets = [Earning + interest expenses x {1-tax rate)]/average total assets.

(2)  Return on Equity = Earning /average net equity

(3)  Net profit rate = Earning/net sales

(4)  Earning per share = (Equity attributable to owners of the parent — dividend from preferred
shares)/weighed average number of outstanding shares (Note 4).

5. CashFlow
(1)  Cash flow ratio = (net sales — variable cost and expenses from operation)/operating income.

(2)  Cash flow adequacy ratio = net cash flow from operation over the last five years/{capital spending
-~addition to inventory + cash dividend) over the last five years.

(3)  Cash reinvestment ratio = (net cash flow from operation — cash dividend)/ (gross Property, plant
and equipment -+ long-term investment + other Non-current assets + working capital) (Note 5).

6. Leverage:

(1)  Operation leverage= (net sales — variable cost and expenses from operation)/operating income
(Note 6).
(2)  Financial leverage= operating income/(operating income-operating expenses).

While evaluating the formulas for EPS mentioned above, the following factors must be taken into

consideration:

1. The number of common shares shall be based on the weighed average method and not the ocutstanding

shares as of the end of the year.

2.  Where there may be additional capital raised from the issuance of new shares or may be treasury
shares trade, the outstanding period of the shares shall be considered in calculating the weighed average
number of outstanding shares.

3. Where there may be the capitalization of retained earnings or of capital surplus, adjustment shall be
made in proportion to the amount capitalized when calculating the earning per share for the previous year
and the interim period. The term of the capitalization of retained earnings or capital surplus for new
capital is not required for consideration.

4,  If the preferred shares are non-convertible accumulated preferred shares, the dividend for current
period (whether or not being paid out) should be deducted from earning or added fo earning. If the
preferred shares are not accumulative, dividend for preferred shares should be deducted from eaming if
there is a surplus. If there is loss after taxation, no adjustment is required.

When conducting analysis on cash flow, pay attention to the followings:

1. Cash flow from operation shall be referred to the net cash inflow from operation as stated in the
statement of cash flow.
Capital spending shall be referred to cash outflow for capital investment each year.
Addition to inventory shall be referred to the value at the end of the ending period is greater than that
of the beginning period. If there is decease in inventory, put a zero.

4, Cash dividend includes cash dividend for common and preferred stocks.

5. The gross amount of property, plant, and equipment is the total balance of property, plant, and equipment
before subtracting accumulated depreciation.

The securities issuer should classify operating costs and operating expenses as fixed or variable. If estimates

or subjective judgment is involved in such classification, the accounting staff must pay attention to the

reasonableness and maintain the consistency of such classification.

w

Note 7:If the stocks of the Company do not have par value of have par values other than NT$10, the calculation of

percentage of paid-in capital is calculated with the ratio of equity attributable to the parent company in the
balance sheet.
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II.  Audit Committee’s Review Report on 2019 Financial Statement

Audit Committee Approval/Audit Report

This Audit Committee has approved the individual financial statements of the Company and the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for fiscal year 2019 that have been passed by the
Board of Directors. The CPA firm PwC Taiwan was then retained to audit such statements by CPAs
Se-Kai Lin and Fang-yu Wang and issued the “unqualified opinion with explanatory paragraph”
audit report. These statements have been reviewed and determined to be compliant with all relevant
laws and regulations. In addition, this Audit Committee has audited the business report and earnings
allocation proposal of fiscal year 2019 passed by the Board of Directors and determined they have
complied with relevant laws and regulations. This report is thus issued in accordance with Article
14-4 of the Securities and Exchange Act and Article 219 of the Company Act.

To

Annual Meeting of Shareholders of GIGA-BYTE TECHNOLOGY CO., LTD.

Hwei-Min Wang
Convener
Audit Committee

16 April 2020
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IV. Audited Unconsolidated Financial Statements inthe most recent year

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Giga-Byte Technology Co., Ltd.

Opinion
We have audited the accompanying parent company only balance sheets of Giga-Byte Technology Co.,
Ltd. as at December 31, 2019 and 2018, and the related parent company only statements of

comprehensive income, of changes in equity and of cash flows for the years then ended, and notes to the
parent company only financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, based on our audits and the report of the other auditors, as described in the Other matters
section of our report, the accompanying parent company only financial statements present fairly, in all
material respects, the parent company only financial position of the Company as at December 31, 2019
and 2018, and its parent company only financial performance and its parent company only cash flows
for the years then ended in accordance with the “Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial
Reports by Securities Issuers”.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with the “Regulations Governing Auditing and Attestation of
Financial Statements by Certified Public Accountants” and generally accepted auditing standards in the
Republic of China (ROC GAAS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Parent company only Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Professional Ethics for
Certified Public Accountants in the Republic of China (the “Code™), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the parent company only financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the parent company only financial statements as a whole and, in
forming our opinion thereon, we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Key audit matters for the parent company only financial statements of the current period are stated as
follows:

Occurrence of revenue from significant new counterparty

Description

Please refer to Note 4(27) for the accounting policies on revenue recognition. For the year ended
December 31, 2019, the parent company only operating revenue amounted to NT$62,383,990 thousand.

The Company’s revenue is derived from numerous customers from different countries and there was no
revenue from a single customer that exceeded 10% of the parent company only operating revenue. Given
that the verification of the existence of the transaction counterparty is critical to the revenue recognition,
the occurrence of revenue from significant new counterparty was identified as a key audit matter.

How our audit addressed the matter

Our key audit procedures performed in respect of the above included the following:

1. Interviewed with management and obtained an understanding of the revenue recognition policy, and
the consistency of the policy application during the financial reporting periods.

2. Obtained an understanding and tested credit check procedures for significant new counterparty.
Verified that the transaction with significant new counterparty has been properly approved and agreed
with supporting documentation, which include searching transaction counterparty’s related
information.

3. Obtained an understanding and tested the selling price and credit term of significant new counterparty.

4, Interviewed with management and obtained an understanding for the reason of accounts receivable
overdue from significant new counterparty in order to evaluate the reasonableness.

5. Sampled and tested detailed revenue schedule of significant new counterparty and verified the
original supporting documentation.

6. Sent accounts receivable confirmation letter to significant new counterparty. Investigated the reason
and tested reconciling items made by the Company if the result in confirmation reply did not
correspond to records, or tested collections after the balance sheet date if no confirmation reply was
received.
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Assessment of allowance for valuation of inventory loss

Description
Please refer to Note 4(12) for the accounting policies on evaluation of inventories; Note 5(2) for
uncertainty of accounting estimates and assumption on inventory evaluation; and Note 6(5) for the

details of the inventories. As of December 31, 2019, the inventories and allowance for valuation loss
amounted to NT$9,073,619 thousand and NT$242,765 thousand, respectively.

The Company is primarily engaged in manufacturing and selling of computer hardware equipment and
related components. Due to the short life cycle of electronic products and the price is highly subject to
market fluctuation, the risk of incurring inventory valuation losses or having obsolete inventory are
relatively high. Inventories held for sale in the ordinary course of business are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value; Valuation loss are recognised for those inventories which exceed certain aging
period or individually identified as obsolete inventories based on its net realisable value.

Given that the amount of inventories is significant and that the individually identified net realisable value
of obsolete inventories has uncertainty based on prior industry experience, the evaluation of the
allowance for valuation loss was identified as a key audit matter.

How our audit addressed the matter
Our key audit procedures performed in respect of the above included the following:

1. Interviewed with management and obtained an understanding of the policy and process on evaluation
of the allowance for valuation loss, and the consistency of the policy and process application during
the financial reporting periods.

2. Obtained an understanding of the warehouse management procedures, reviewed annual physical
inventory count plan and participated the annual inventory count. Evaluated the effectiveness of
management control on identifying and managing obsolete inventories.

3. Tested the appropriateness of system logic in inventory aging report which management adopted for
inventories valuation purpose, and verified that obsolete inventories which exceeded a certain aging
period were included in the report,

4. Evaluated the reasonableness of obsolete or damaged inventory items which were identified by
management, reviewed related supporting documentation, and compared to the results obtained from
the observation of physical inventory count.
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5. For inventories which exceeded a certain period of aging and individually identified as obsolete and
damaged, discussed with management and obtained supporting documentation of the evaluation on
net realisable value, and performed recalculation.

Other matter — Report of other auditors

We did not audit the financial statements of certain investee companies. Those financial statements were
audited by other auditors, whose reports thereon have been furnished to us, and our opinion expressed
herein, in so far as it relates to the amounts included in the financial statements was based solely on the
reports of the other auditors. The aforementioned equity investments were $21,193 thousand and
$48,519 thousand, representing 0.05% and 0.14% of total parent company only assets as of December
31, 2019 and 2018, respectively, and total net comprehensive loss were $27,326 thousand and $28,382
thousand, representing (1.27%) and (1.10%) of total parent company only comprehensive loss for the
years then ended, respectively.

Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the parent
company only financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the parent company only financial
statements in accordance with the “Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by
Securities Issuers”, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of parent company only financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the parent company only financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance, including audit committee, are responsible for overseeing the
Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the parent company only financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the parent company only financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ROC GAAS will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
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of users taken on the basis of these parent company only financial statements.

~As part of an audit in accordance with ROC GAAS, we exercise professional judgment and maintain

professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

1.

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the parent company only financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion., The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures

that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting

estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the parent company only financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the parent company only financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the parent company only financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Company to express an opinion on the parent company only financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We
remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the parent company only financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.

Se-Kai Lin Fang-Yu Wang
For and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers, Taiwan
March 13, 2020

The accompanying parent company only financial statements are not intended to present the financial position and results of
operations and cash flows in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in countries and jurisdictions other
than the Republic of China. The standards, procedures and practices in the Republic of China governing the audit of such
financial statements may differ from those generally accepted in countries and jurisdictions other than the Republic of China.
Accordingly, the accompanying parent company only financial statements and report of auditors are not intended for use by
those who are not informed about the accounting principles or auditing standards generally accepted in the Republic of China,
and their applications in practice.

As the financial statements are the responsibility of the management, PricewaterhouseCoopers, Taiwan cannot accept any
liability for the use of, or reliance on, the English translation or for any errars or misunderstandings that may derive from the
translation.
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GIGA-BYTE TECHNOLOGY CO., LTD.

PARENT COMPANY ONLY BALANCE SHEETS

DECEMBER 31. 2019 AND 201§

{(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars)

December 31, 2019 December 31, 2018
Assets Notes Amount % Amount %
Current assets
1100 Cash and cash equivalents 6(1) $ 5,197,276 14 4,442,162 12
1110 Financial assets at fair value through 6(2)
profit or loss - current 473,217 1 441,694 1
1136 Financial assets at amortised cost- 6(3)
current 90,000 - 161,192 1
1150 Notes receivable, net 6(4) 2,995 - 4,057 -
1170 Accounts receivable, net 6(4) 3,628,543 9 3,107,344 9
1180 Accounts receivable-related parties, net 7 5,938,535 16 2,485,227 7
1200 Other receivables 84,063 - 82,130 -
1220 Current income tax assets 41,713 - - -
130X Inventories, net 6(5) 8,830,854 23 11,682,710 33
1410 Prepayments 293,084 1 311,382 1
1470 Other current assets 8 912 - 28,666 -
11XX Total current assets 24,581,192 64 22,746,564 64
Nan-current assets
1535 Financial assets at amortised cost-non-  6(3) and 8§
current 158,040 - - -
1550 Investments accounted for using equity  6(6) and 7
method 10,543,543 28 10,056,148 28
1600 Property, plant and equipment, net 6(7) 2,519,945 7 2,462,212 7
1755 Right-of-use assets 6(8) 61,817 - - -
1780 Intangible assets 22,861 - 41,766 -
1840 Deferred income tax assets 6(22) 371,164 1 360,291 1
1900 Other non-current assets 8 144,592 - 126,719 -
15XX Total non-current assets 13,821,962 36 13,047,136 36
IXXX  Total assets $ 38,403,154 100 35,793,700 100
(Continued)
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GIGA-BYTE TECHNOLOGY CO.. LTD.
PARENT COMPANY ONLY BALANCE SHEETS
DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND 2018

(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars)

December 31, 2019 December 31, 2018
Liabilities and Equity Notes Amount % Amount %
Liabilities
Current liabilities
2130  Contract liabilities - current 6(16)and7 ¢ 370,694 1 % 277,495 1
2150 Notes payable 54,092 - 9,736 -
2170 Accounts payable 7,042,552 19 5,033,718 14
2180  Accounts payable-related parties 7 1,982,318 5 1,395,431 4
2200 . Other payables 6(10) 3,379,716 9 3,446,339 10
2230 Current income tax liabilities - - 366,508 1
2250  Provisions for liabilities - current 6(11) 513,568 i 433,059 1
2280 Lease liabilities-current N 43,549 - - -
2300  Other current liabilities 125,267 - 202,806 -
21XX Total current liabilities 13,511,756 35 11,165,092 31
Non-current liabilities
2570  Lease liabilities-non-current 18,641 - - -
2600  Other non-current liabilities 6(12) 574,946 2 545,133
25XX Total non-current liahilities 593,587 2 545,133
2XXX  Total liabilities 14,105,343 37 11,710,225 33
Equity
Capital stock 6(13)
3110  Common stock 6,356,889 17 6,356,889 18
Capital surplus 6(14)
3200  Capital surplus 3,896,889 10 3,924,357 11
Retained earnings 6(15)
3310  Legal reserve 4,381,896 11 4,125,245 11
3320 Special reserve 426,354 1 426,354 1
3350 Unappropriated retained eamnings 8,618,094 23 8,865,838 25
Other equity
3400  Other equity 617,689 1 384,792 1
3IXXX  Total equity 24,297,811 63 24,083,475 67
Significant events after the balance sheet 11
date
3X2X  'Total liabilities and equity $ 38,403,154 100 § 35,793,700 100

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these parent company only financial statements.
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GIGA-BYTE TECHNOLOGY CO.. LTD,
PARENT COMPANY ONLY STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2019 AND 2013

(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars, except for earnings per share)

2019 2018
[tems Notes Amount % Amount %
4000  Operating revenue 6(16) and 7 $ 62,383,990 100 $ 57,984,926 100
5000  Operating costs 6(5)(20)(21) and 7
{ 55,174,125) ( 89 ( 50.334.374) ( 8N
5900 Gross profit 7,209,865 11 7.650,552 13
Operating expenses 6(20)(21) and 7
6100 Selling expenses ( 2,790,497) ( 4 ( 3,010,539) ( 5)
6200 General and administrative
expenses ( 1,180,797) ( 2) ( 995,010) ( 2)
6300 Research and development expenses ( 1,844,292) ( H( 1,902,570} ( 3)
6450 Expected credit (losses) gains 6(20) ( 3,434 - 13,742 -
6000 Total operating expenses ( 5,819,020) ( 9 ( 5,894,372} ( 10)
6900  Operating profit 1,390,845 2 1,756,180 3
Non-operating income and expenses
7010 Other income 6(17) 506,174 1 568,641 1
7020 Other gains and losses 6(18) 66,286 - 158,478 -
7050 Finance costs 6(8)(19) ( 2,189) - { 278) -
7070 Share of profit of subsidiaries, associates and  6(6)
joint ventures accounted for under the equity
method 201,350 - 425,886 1
7000 Total non-operating income and expenses 771,621 1 1,152,727 2
7900  Profit before income tax 2,162,466 3 2,908,907 5
7950 Income tax expense 6(22) ( 2231,225) - ( 342,395) ( 1)
8200  Profit for the year $ 1,939,241 3 3 2.566.512 4
Other comprehensive income (loss), net
Components of other comprehensive income
(loss) that will not be reclassified to profit or
loss
8311 Remeasurements of defined benefit plans 6(12) (% 29,084) - 5 17,336 -
8330 Share of other comprehensive income of
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures
accounted for using equity method,
components of other comprehensive income
that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 509,446 1 127,094 -
8349 Income tax related to components of other 6(22)
comprehensive income that will not be
reclassified to profit or loss 5,817 - 256 -
8310 Components of other comprehensive
income (loss) that will not be reclassified
to profit or loss . 486,179 1 144,686 -
Components of other comprehensive income
(loss) that will subsequently be reclassified to
profit or loss
8361 Exchange differences arising from translation
of foreign operations ( 276,549) ( 1) ( 129.556) -
8360 Components of other comprehensive
income (loss) that will be reclassified to
profit or loss { 276,549) ( 1) ( 129,556) -
8300  Other comprehensive income for the year, net 5 209,630 - § 15,130 -
8500  Total comprehensive income for the year b 2.148,871 3 5 2,581,642 4
9750  Basic earnings per share 6(23) 3 305 § 4.04
9850  Diluted carnings per share 6(23) 5 . 302 8§ 3.98

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these parent company only financial statements.
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GIGA-BYTE TECHNOLOGY CO.. ITD.

PARENT COMPANY ONLY STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND 2018

{(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars)

-132-

Notes 2019 2018
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before income tax 2,162,466 2,908,907
Adjustments to reconcile profit before income tax to net
cash provided by operating activities
Income and expenses having no effect on cash flows
Depreciation 6(NB2H) 274,233 157,176
Amortization 6(20) 84,175 135,516
Profit from lease medification 6(18) 13) -
Expected credit losses (gains) 6(20) 3,434 ( 13,742)
Gain on valuation of financial assets at fair value 6(2)(18) 8,035) ( 1,792)
through profit or Joss
Interest expense 6(19) 2,189 278
Interest income 6(17) 54,410) ( 62,632)
Share of profit of subsidiaries and associates 6(6)
accounted for using the equity method 201,350 ) ( 425,886 )
Loss on disposal of investments accounted for 6(6)(18) 15 -
using equity method
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment ~ 6(18) 2,005) ( 5,193)
Changes in assets/liabilities relating to operating
activities
Net changes in assets relating to operating activities
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 23,488) ( 18,895)
Notes receivable 1,062 1,295
Accounts receivable 3,977,941 ) 712,880
Other receivables 2,661) 27,819
Inventories 2,851,856 3,301,624 )
Prepayments 17,864 67,029)
Other current assets 3,660 ( 27,927)
Net changes in liabilities relating to operating
activities
Contract liabilities 93,199 145,037
Notes payable 44356  ( 8,892)
Accounts payable 2,595,721  ( 2,809,484 )
Other payables 68,056) 95,202
Provisions for liabilities 80,509 ( 11,647 )
Other current liabilities 77,539) 69,383
Other non-current liabilities 575 2,214
Cash generated from (used in) operations 3,799,816 ( 2,499,036 )
Interest received 55,138 64,390
Dividends received 118,834 -
Interest paid 2,189) ( 278)
Income tax paid 636,502 ) ( 210,185)
Net cash generated from (used in) operating
activities 3,335,097 2,645,109 )
{Continued)



GIGA-BYTE TECHNOLOGY CO., LTD.

PARENT COMPANY ONLY STATEMENTS OF CASH FL.OWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND 2018

(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars)

Notes 2019 2018
Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of financial assets at amortised cost (3 1,776 } ($ 161,192 )
Aclil:t;:l:i)n of investments accounted for using equity 6(6) and 7(2) ( 200000 ¢ $72,089)
Proca.aeds fro‘m disposal of investments accounted for 6(6)
using equity method 535 -
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment 6(24) ( 286,185) ( 267,419)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 2,097 5,463
Acquisition of intangible assets ( 51,084) ( 79,598 )
Decrease in guarantee deposit paid 1,378 472
Increase in other non-current assets { 89,621) ( 30,563)
Net cash used in investing activitics { 624.656) ( 1,404,926 )
Cash flows from financing activities
Cash dividends paid 6{15) ( 1,907,067 ) ( 2,542,756 )
Repayments of principal portion of lease liabilities 6(25) ( 48,414) -
Increase (decrease) in guarantee deposit received 6(25) 154 ( 1,561)
Net cash used in financing activities ( 1,955,327) ( 2,544317)
Net increase (decrease} in cash and cash equivalents 755,114 ( 6,594,352 )
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 4,442,162 11,036,514
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 5,197,276 g 4,442,162

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these parent company only financial statements.
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GIGA-BYTE TECHNOLOGY CO., LTD.
NOTES TO THE PARENT COMPANY ONLY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31,2019 AND 2018
(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars, except as otherwise indicated)

1. HISTORY AND ORGANISATION

Giga-Byte Technology Co., Ltd. (the “Company’’) was incorporated as company limited by shares under
the provisions of the Company Act of the Republic of China (R.O.C.). The address of the Company’s
registered office is No.6, Baogiang Rd., Xindian Dist., New Taipei City, Taiwan (R.O.C.). The Company
is primarily engaged in the manufacturing, processing and trading of computer peripheral and component
parts. The Company’s shares have been traded on the Taiwan Stock Exchange since September 24, 1998.

2. THE DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUANCE OF THE PARENT COMPANY ONLY
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND PROCEDURES FOR AUTHORISATION

These parent company only financial statements were authorised for issuance by the Board of Directors
on March 13, 2020.

3. APPLICATION OF NEW STANDARDS, AMENDMENTS AND INTERPRETATIONS

(1) Effect of the adoption of new issuances of or amendments to International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS”) as endorsed by the Financial Supervisory Commission (“FSC”)

New standards, interpretations and amendments endorsed by the FSC effective from 2019 are as

follows:
Effective date by
International Accounting
New Standards, Interpretations and Amendments Standards Board
Amendments to IFRS 9, ‘Prepayment features with negative January 1, 2019
compensation’
IFRS 16, ‘Leases’ January 1, 2019
Amendments to IAS 19, ‘Plan amendment, curtailment or settlement’ January 1, 2019
Amendments to IAS 28, ‘Long-term interests in associates and joint January 1, 2019
ventures’
IFRIC 23, ‘Uncertainty over income tax treatments’ January 1, 2019
Annual improvements to IFRSs 2015-2017 cycle January 1, 2019

Except for the following, the above standards and interpretations have no significant impact to the
Company’s financial condition and financial performance based on the Company’s assessment.

IFRS 16, ‘Leases’

A. IFRS 16, ‘Leases’, replaces IAS 17, ‘Leases’and related interpretations and SICs. The standard
requires lessees to recognise a ‘right-of-use asset” and a lease liability (except for those leases
with terms of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets). The accounting stays the same
for lessors, which is to classify their leases as either finance leases or operating leases and account
for those two types of leases differently. IFRS 16 only requires enhanced disclosures to be
provided by lessors.
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B. The Company has elected to apply IFRS 16 by not restating the comparative information
(referred herein as the ‘modified retrospective approach’) when applying “IFRSs” effective in
2019 as endorsed by the FSC. Accordingly, the Company increased ‘right-of-use asset’ by
$91,249, increased ‘lease liability’ by $90,367 and decreased prepayments by $882 with respect
to the lease contracts of lessees on January 1, 2019.

C. The Company has used the following practical expedients permitted by the standard at the date
of initial application of IFRS 16:
(a) Reassessment as to whether a contract is, or contains, a lease is not required, instead, the
application of IFRS 16 depends on whether or not the contracts were previously identified as
leases applying IAS 17 and IFRIC 4.
(b)The use of a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with reasonably similar characteristics.
(c) The accounting for operating leases whose period will end before December 31, 2019 as
short-term leases and accordingly, rent expense of $17,351 was recognised for the year ended
December 31, 2019.
(d) The exclusion of initial direct costs for the measurement of ‘right-of-use asset’.
(e) The use of hindsight in determining the lease term where the contract contains options to
extend or terminate the lease.
D. The Company calculated the present value of lease liabilities by using the weighted average
incremental borrowing interest rate range from 0.14%~1.67%.

E. The Company recognised lease liabilities which had previously been classified as ‘operating
leases’ under the principles of IAS 17, ‘Leases’. The reconciliation between operating lease
commitments under IAS 17 measured at the present value of the remaining lease payments,
discounted using the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate and lease liabilities recognised as of
January 1, 2019 is as follows:

Operating lease commitments disclosed by applying IAS 17 as at $ 103,281
December 31, 2018

Less: Short-term leases ( 9,213)

Less: Low-value assets ( 857)

Total lease contracts amount recognised as lease liabilities by applying 93,211
IFRS 16 on January 1, 2019

Incremental borrowing interest rate at the date of initial application 0.14%~1.67%

Lease liabilities recognised as at January 1, 2019 by applying IFRS 16 90,367

(2) Effect of new issuances of or amendments to IFRSs as endorsed by the FSC but not yet adopted by

the Company
New standards, interpretations and amendments endorsed by the FSC effective from 2020 are as

follows:
Effective date by
International Accounting
New Standards, Interpretations and Amendments Standards Board
Amendment to IAS 1 and IAS 8, ‘Disclosure Initiative-Definition of January 1, 2020
Material’
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3)

Effective date by
International Accounting

New Standards, Interpretations and Amendments Standards Board
Amendments to IFRS 3, ‘Definition of a business’ January 1, 2020
Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7, ‘Interest rate benchmark January 1, 2020

reform’

The above standards and interpretations have no significant impact to the Company’s financial
condition and financial performance based on the Company’s assessment.
IFRSs issued by IASB but not yet endorsed by the FSC

New standards, interpretations and amendments issued by IASB but not yet included in the IFRSs
as endorsed by the FSC are as follows:

Effective date by
International Accounting
New Standards, Interpretations and Amendments Standards Board
Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28, “Sale or contribution of assets To be determined by
between an investor and its associate or joint venture’ International Accounting
Standards Board
IFRS 17, ‘Insurance contracts’ January 1, 2021
Amendments to IAS 1, ‘Classification of liabilities as current or non- January 1, 2022

current’

The above standards and interpretations have no significant impact to the Company’s financial
condition and financial performance based on the Company’s assessment.

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these parent company only financial
statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the periods presented,
unless otherwise stated.

1)

@)

Compliance statement

The parent company only financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the
‘Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers’.

Basis of preparation

A. Except for the following items, these parent company only financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention:

(a)Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.
(b)Defined benefit liabilities recognised based on the net amount of pension fund assets less
present value of defined benefit obligation.

B. The preparation of financial statements in conformity with International Financial Reporting
Standards, International Accounting Standards, IFRIC Interpretations, and SIC Interpretations as
endorsed by the FSC (collectively referred herein as the “IFRSs”) requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process
of applying the Company’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of
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judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the parent
company only financial statements are disclosed in Note 5.

(3) Foreign currency translation

Items included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the Company operates (the “functional currency”). The
parent company only financial statements are presented in New Taiwan dollars, which is the
Company’s functional currency.

A. Foreign currency transactions and balances
(a)Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions or valuation where items are remeasured.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

(b)Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the period end are re-
translated at the exchange rates prevailing at the balance sheet date. Exchange differences
arising upon re-translation at the balance sheet date are recognised in profit or loss.

(c)Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies held at fair value
through profit or loss are re-translated at the exchange rates prevailing at the balance sheet
date; their translation differences are recognised in profit or loss. Non-monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies held at fair value through other comprehensive
income are re-translated at the exchange rates prevailing at the balance sheet date; their
translation differences are recognised in other comprehensive income. However, non-
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are not measured at fair
value are translated using the historical exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.

(d)AIl other foreign exchange gains and losses based on the nature of those transactions are
presented in the statement of comprehensive income within ‘other gains and losses’.

B. Translation of foreign operations

(@) The operating results and financial position of all the subsidiaries and associates that have a
functional currency different from the presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

i. Assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are translated at the closing exchange
rate at the date of that balance sheet;

ii. Income and expenses for each statement of comprehensive income are translated at average
exchange rates of that period; and

iii. All resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income.

(b)When the foreign operation partially disposed of or sold is a subsidiary, cumulative exchange
differences that were recorded in other comprehensive income are proportionately transferred
to the non-controlling interest in this foreign operation. In addition, even when the Company
retains partial interest in the former foreign subsidiary after losing control of the former
foreign subsidiary, such transactions should be accounted for as disposal of all interest in the
foreign operation.
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(4) Classification of current and non-current items

A. Assets that meet one of the following criteria are classified as current assets; otherwise they are
classified as non-current assets:

(a) Assets arising from operating activities that are expected to be realised, or are intended to be
sold or consumed within the normal operating cycle;

(b) Assets held mainly for trading purposes;
(c) Assets that are expected to be realised within twelve months from the balance sheet date;

(d) Cash and cash equivalents, excluding restricted cash and cash equivalents and those that are
to be exchanged or used to settle liabilities more than twelve months after the balance sheet
date.

B. Liabilities that meet one of the following criteria are classified as current liabilities; otherwise
they are classified as non-current liabilities:

(a) Liabilities that are expected to be settled within the normal operating cycle;
(b) Liabilities arising mainly from trading activities;
(c) Liabilities that are to be settled within twelve months from the balance sheet date;

(d) Liabilities for which the repayment date cannot be extended unconditionally to more than
twelve months after the balance sheet date. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the
counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its
classification.

(5) Cash equivalents

Cash equivalents refer to short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. Time deposits
that meet the definition above and are held for the purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments
in operations are classified as cash equivalents. However, if the maturity date is longer than three
months, it shall be classified as financial assets at amortised cost and based on its maturity date to
determine current or non-current assets.

(6) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

A. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are financial assets that are not measured at
amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income.

B. On a regular way purchase or sale basis, financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised and derecognised using settlement date accounting.

C. At initial recognition, the Company measures the financial assets at fair value and recognises the
transaction costs in profit or loss. The Company subsequently measures the financial assets at
fair value, and recognises the gain or loss in profit or loss.

D. The Company recognises the dividend income when the right to receive payment is established,
future economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Company and the amount
of the dividend can be measured reliably.
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(7)

(8)

©)

Financial assets at amortised cost

A. Financial assets at amortised cost are those that meet all of the following criteria:
(@) The objective of the Company’s business model is achieved by collecting contractual cash
flows.
(b) The assets’ contractual cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest.

B. The Company’s time deposits which do not fall under cash equivalents are those with a short
maturity period and are measured at initial investment amount as the effect of discounting is
immaterial.

Accounts and notes receivable

A. Accounts and notes receivable entitle the Company a legal right to receive consideration in
exchange for transferred goods or rendered services.

B. The short-term accounts and notes receivable without bearing interest are subsequently measured
at initial invoice amount as the effect of discounting is immaterial.

Impairment of financial assets

For financial assets at amortised cost, at each reporting date, the Company recognises the
impairment provision for 12 months expected credit losses if there has not been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition or recognises the impairment provision for the lifetime
expected credit losses (ECLS) if such credit risk has increased since initial recognition after taking
into consideration all reasonable and verifiable information that includes forecasts. On the other
hand, for accounts receivable that do not contain a significant financing component, the Company
recognises the impairment provision for lifetime ECLs.

(10) Derecognition of financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to receive the cash flows
from the financial asset expire.

(11) Leasing arrangements (lessor) — operating leases

Lease income from an operating lease (net of any incentives given to the lessee) is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

(12) Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined using the
weighted-average method. The cost of finished goods and work in progress comprises raw materials,
direct labour, other direct costs and related production overheads (allocated based on normal
operating capacity). It excludes borrowing costs. The item by item approach is used in applying the
lower of cost and net realisable value. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less the estimated cost of completion and applicable variable selling
expenses.

(13) Investments accounted for using equity method subsidiaries

A. Subsidiaries are all entities controlled by the Company. The Company controls an entity when
the Company is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity.
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B. Unrealised gains or losses occurred from the transactions between the Company and
subsidiaries have been offset. The accounting policies of the subsidiaries have been adjusted
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Company.

C. The Company’s share of its subsidiaries’ post-acquisition profits or losses is recognised in profit
or loss, and its share of post-acquisition movements in other comprehensive income is
recognised in other comprehensive income. When the Company’s share of losses in a subsidiary
equals or exceeds its interest in the subsidiary, the Company continues to recognise losses
proportionate to its ownership.

D. Pursuant to the “Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities
Issuers,” profit (loss) for the year and other comprehensive income (loss) for the year reported
in the parent company only financial statements, shall be equal to profit (loss) for the year and
other comprehensive income (loss) attributable to owners of the parent reported in the
consolidated financial statements, equity reported in the parent company only financial
statements shall be equal to equity attributable to owners of parent reported in the consolidated
financial statements.

(14) Property, plant and equipment

A.Property, plant and equipment are initially recorded at cost. Borrowing costs incurred during
the construction period are capitalised.

B. Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to
profit or loss during the financial period in which they are incurred.

C.Land is not depreciated. Other property, plant and equipment apply cost model and are
depreciated using the straight-line method to allocate their cost over their estimated useful lives.
Each part of an item of property, plant, and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation
to the total cost of the item must be depreciated separately.

D.The assets’ residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at each financial year end. If expectations for the assets’ residual values and useful
lives differ from previous estimates or the patterns of consumption of the assets’ future
economic benefits embodied in the assets have changed significantly, any change is accounted
for as a change in estimate under IAS 8, ‘Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Errors’, from the date of the change. The estimated useful lives of property, plant
and equipment are as follows:

Buildings and structures 3~55 years
Machinery and equipment 3~ 9 years
Research and development equipment 3~ 8 years
Office equipment 3~ 5 years
Other tangible operating assets 3~10 years
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(15) Leasing arrangements (lessee) —right-of-use assets/lease liabilities
Effective 2019

A. Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability at the date at
which the leased asset is available for use by the Company. For short-term leases or leases of
low-value assets, lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the
lease term.

B. Lease liabilities include the net present value of the remaining lease payments at the
commencement date, discounted using the incremental borrowing interest rate. Lease payments
are comprised of the following: Fixed payments, less any lease incentives receivable.

The Company subsequently measures the lease liability at amortised cost using the interest
method and recognises interest expense over the lease term. The lease liability is remeasured
and the amount of remeasurement is recognised as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset when
there are changes in the lease term or lease payments and such changes do not arise from
contract modifications.

C. At the commencement date, the right-of-use asset is stated at cost comprising the following:
(a) The amount of the initial measurement of lease liability;
(b) Any lease payments made at or before the commencement date; and
(c) Any initial direct costs incurred by the lessee.

The right-of-use asset is measured subsequently using the cost model and is depreciated from
the commencement date to the earlier of the end of the asset’s useful life or the end of the lease
term. When the lease liability is remeasured, the amount of remeasurement is recognised as an
adjustment to the right-of-use asset.

(16) Operating leases (lessee)
Prior to 2019

Payments made under an operating lease (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are
recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

(17) Intangible assets

A. Computer software

Computer software is stated at cost and amortised on a straight-line basis over its estimated
useful life of 1 to 2 years.

B. Trademark right (indefinite useful life)

Trademark right is stated at cost and regarded as having an indefinite useful life as it was
assessed to generate continuous net cash inflow in the foreseeable future. Trademark right is
not amortised, but is tested annually for impairment.

(18) Impairment of non-financial assets

A. The Company assesses at each balance sheet date the recoverable amounts of those assets where
there is an indication that they are impaired. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount
by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount
is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell or value in use. When the circumstances
or reasons for recognizing impairment loss for an asset in prior years no longer exist or diminish,
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the impairment loss is reversed. The increased carrying amount due to reversal should not be
more than what the depreciated or amortised historical cost would have been if the impairment
had not been recognised.

B. The recoverable amounts of intangible assets with an indefinite useful life are evaluated
periodically. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount.

(19) Notes and accounts payable

A. Accounts payable are liabilities for purchases of raw materials, goods or services and notes
payable are those resulting from operating and non-operating activities.

B. The short-term notes and accounts payable without bearing interest are subsequently measured
at initial invoice amount as the effect of discounting is immaterial.

(20) Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability specified in the contract
is discharged or cancelled or expires.

(21) Provisions

Warranty provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of past events, and it is probable that an outflow of economic resources will
be required to settle the obligation and the amount of the obligation can be reliably estimated.
Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle
the obligation on the balance sheet date, which is discounted using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects the current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
obligation. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to passage of time is
recognised as interest expense. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

(22) Employee benefits

A. Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are measured at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected
to be paid in respect of service rendered by employees in a period and should be recognised as
expenses in that period when the employees render service.

B. Pensions

(@) Defined contribution plans

For defined contribution plans, the contributions are recognised as pension expenses when
they are due on an accrual basis. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the
extent of a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments.

(b) Defined benefit plans

I. Net obligation under a defined benefit plan is defined as the present value of an amount
of pension benefits that employees will receive on retirement for their services with the
Company in current period or prior periods. The liability recognised in the balance sheet
in respect of defined benefit pension plans is the present value of the defined benefit
obligation at the balance sheet date less the fair value of plan assets. The net defined
benefit obligation is calculated annually by independent actuaries using the projected
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(23)

(24)

unit credit method. The rate used to discount is determined by using interest rates of
government bonds (at the balance sheet date) of a currency and term consistent with the
currency and term of the employment benefit obligations.

ii. Remeasurement arising on defined benefit plans is recognised in other comprehensive
income in the period in which they arise and are recorded as retained earnings.

iii.Past service costs are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
C. Termination benefits

Termination benefits are employee benefits provided in exchange for the termination of
employment as a result from either the Company’s decision to terminate an employee’s
employment before the normal retirement date, or an employee’s decision to accept an offer of
redundancy benefits in exchange for the termination of employment. The Company recognises
expense as it can no longer withdraw an offer of termination benefits or it recognises relating
restructuring costs, whichever is earlier. Benefits that are expected to be due more than 12
months after balance sheet date shall be discounted to their present value.

D. Employees’ compensation, directors’ and supervisors’ remuneration

Employees’ compensation and directors’ and supervisors’ remuneration are recognised as
expenses and liabilities, provided that such recognition is required under legal or constructive
obligation and those amounts can be reliably estimated. Any difference between the resolved
amounts and the subsequently actual distributed amounts is accounted for as changes in
estimates. If employee compensation is distributed by shares, the Company calculates the
number of shares based on the closing price at the previous day of the board meeting resolution.

Employee share-based payment

For the equity-settled share-based payment arrangements, the employee services received are
measured at the fair value of the equity instruments granted at the grant date, and are recognised
as compensation cost over the vesting period, with a corresponding adjustment to equity. The fair
value of the equity instruments granted shall reflect the impact of market vesting conditions and
non-vesting conditions. Compensation cost is subject to adjustment based on the service conditions
that are expected to be satisfied and the estimates of the number of equity instruments that are
expected to vest under the non-market vesting conditions at each balance sheet date. Ultimately,
the amount of compensation cost recognised is based on the number of equity instruments that
eventually vest. The aforementioned grant date represents the grant date resolved by the Board of
Directors.

Income tax

A. The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in profit
or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income
or items recognised directly in equity, in which cases the tax is recognised in other
comprehensive income or equity.

B. The current income tax expense is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries where the Company and its
subsidiaries operate and generate taxable income. Management periodically evaluates positions
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taken in tax returns with respect to situations in accordance with applicable tax regulations. It
establishes provisions where appropriate based on the amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities. An additional tax is levied on the unappropriated retained earnings and is recorded
as income tax expense in the year the stockholders resolve to retain the earnings.

C. Deferred income tax is recognised, using the balance sheet liability method, on temporary
differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the parent company only balance sheet. However, the deferred income tax is not accounted for
if it arises from initial recognition of goodwill or of an asset or liability in a transaction other
than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising on
investments in subsidiaries and associates, except where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary difference is controlled by the Company and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred income tax is determined using
tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the balance sheet date
and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.

D. Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised. At each
balance sheet date, unrecognised and recognised deferred income tax assets are reassessed.

E. Current income tax assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the balance
sheet when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset on the balance sheet when the entity has the legally
enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current tax liabilities and they are levied by
the same taxation authority on either the same entity or different entities that intend to settle on
a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

F. A deferred tax asset shall be recognised for the carryforward of unused tax credits resulting
from acquisitions of equipment or technology, research and development expenditures and
equity investments to the extent that it is possible that future taxable profit will be available
against which the unused tax credits can be utilised.

(25) Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares or stock options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

(26) Dividends

Dividends are recorded in the Company’s financial statements in the period in which they are
approved by the Company’s shareholders. Cash dividends are recorded as liabilities.

(27) Revenue recognition

Sales of goods

A. The Company manufactures and sells computer peripheral and component parts. Sales are
recognised when control of the products has transferred, being when the products are delivered
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to the customers. Delivery occurs when the products have been shipped to the specific location,
the risks of obsolescence and loss have been transferred to the customers, and either the
customers has accepted the products in accordance with the sales contract, or the Company has
objective evidence that all criteria for acceptance have been satisfied.

B. Revenue from these sales is recognised based on the price specified in the contract, net of the
estimated indirect tax, volume discounts, sales returns and allowances. Accumulated experience
is used to estimate and provide for the volume discounts, using the expected value method, and
revenue is only recognised to the extent that it is highly probable that a significant reversal will
not occur. The estimation is subject to an assessment at each reporting date. The sales usually
are made as the time interval between the transfer of committed goods or service and the
payment of customer does not exceed one year, the Company does not adjust the transaction
price to reflect the time value of money.

C. The Company’s obligation to provide a repair for faulty products under the standard warranty
terms is recognised as a provision.

D. A receivable is recognised when the goods are delivered as this is the point in time that the
consideration is unconditional because only the passage of time is required before the payment
is due.

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND KEY SOURCES OF ASSUMPTION
UNCERTAINTY

The preparation of these parent company only financial statements requires management to make critical
judgements in applying the Company’s accounting policies and make critical assumptions and estimates
concerning future events. Assumptions and estimates may differ from the actual results and are
continually evaluated and adjusted based on historical experience and other factors. Such assumptions
and estimates have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year; and the related information is addressed below:

(1) Critical judgements in applying the Company’s accounting policies

None.

(2) Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

Evaluation of inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value. For inventory which is saleable
and obsolete inventory that is checked item by item, the net realizable values are determined based
on industrial experience. Management’s judgement on determining such net realizable value involves
material judgement.

6. DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTS

(1) Cash and cash equivalents

December 31,2019 December 31, 2018

Cash on hand and petty cash $ 2,683 $ 2,269
Checking accounts and demand deposits 2,845,591 3,637,080
Time deposits 2,349,002 802,813

$ 5,197,276 $ 4,442,162

~145-



@)

3)

A. The Company transacts with a variety of financial institutions all with high credit quality to
disperse credit risk, so it expects that the probability of counterparty default is remote.

B. The Company reclassified the pledged bank deposits with more than three months maturity to
“Financial assets at amortised cost”, please refer to Notes 6(3) and 8 for the details.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets mandatorily measured at fair value December 31, 2019 December 31, 2018
through profit or loss

Beneficiary certificates $ 456,549 $ 307,318
Government bonds 16,298 79,923
Corporate bonds - 64,257
472,847 451,498

Valuation adjustment 370 ( 9,804)
$ 473,217 $ 441,694

A. Amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss are listed below:

Financial assets mandatorily measured at fair 2019 2018
value through profit or loss
Beneficiary certificates $ 8,030 $ 320
Debt instruments 5 1,472
$ 8,035 $ 1,792

B. The Company has no financial assets at fair value through profit or loss pledged to others.

C. Information relating to credit risk of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is
provided in Note 12(2).

Financial assets at amortised cost

December 31, 2019 December 31, 2018

Current items:
Time deposits with more than three months

maturity $ 90,000 $ 161,192
Non-current items:
Pledged bank deposits $ 158,040 $ -

A. Amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to financial assets at amortised cost are listed
below:

2019 2018
Interest income $ 1,131 $ 765
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(4)

C.

D.

As at December 31, 2019 and 2018, without taking into account any collateral held or other
credit enhancements, the maximum exposure to credit risk in respect of the amount that best
represents the financial assets at amortised cost held by the Company was $248,040 and
$161,192, respectively.

Details of the Company’s financial assets at amortised cost pledged to others as collateral are
provided in Note 8.

Information relating to credit risk of financial assets at amortised cost is provided in Note 12(2).

Notes and accounts receivable

December 31, 2019 December 31, 2018

Notes receivable $ 299 $ 4,057
Accounts receivable $ 3,650,987 $ 3,126,354
Less: Allowance for uncollectible accounts ( 22,444) ( 19,010)
$ 3,628,543 $ 3,107,344
A. The ageing analysis of accounts receivable and notes receivable that were past due but not
impaired is as follows:
December 31, 2019 December 31, 2018
Accounts Notes Accounts Notes
receivable receivable receivable receivable
Not past due $ 3,143,718 $ 2995 $ 2,602,457 $ 4,057
Up to 30 days 478,410 - 504,224 -
31 to 60 days 15,828 - 2,542 -
61 to 90 days 2,078 - 6,660 -
Over 90 days 10,953 - 10471 -

@

$ 3,650,987 $ 299 $ 3,126,354 $ 4,057

The above ageing analysis was based on past due date.

. As at December 31, 2019 and 2018, and January 1, 2018, the balances of receivables (including

notes receivable) from contracts with customers amounted to $3,653,982, $3,130,411 and
$3,993,629, respectively.

. The Company has no notes and accounts receivable pledged to others.

. As at December 31, 2019 and 2018, without taking into account any collateral held or other credit

enhancements, the maximum exposure to credit risk in respect of the amount that best represents
the Company’s notes and accounts receivable were $2,995 and $4,057, $3,628,543 and
$3,107,344, respectively.

. Information relating to credit risk of accounts receivable and notes receivable is provided in Note

12(2).
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(5) Inventories

December 31, 2019
Allowance for

Cost valuation loss Book value
Raw materials and supplies $ 2,952,608 ($ 124,625) $ 2,827,983
Work in progress 1,939,178 ( 319) 1,938,859
Finished goods and merchandise
inventories 4,181,833 ( 117,821) 4,064,012
$ 9,073,619 ($ 242,765) $ 8,830,854
December 31, 2018
Allowance for
Cost valuation loss Book value
Raw materials and supplies $ 3,891,733 ($ 112,539) $ 3,779,194
Work in progress 998,515 ( 1,272) 997,243
Finished goods and merchandise
inventories 7,320,383 ( 414,110) 6,906,273

$ 12,210,631 ($ 527,921) $ 11,682,710
The cost of inventories recognised as expense for the period:

Years ended December 31

2019 2018
Cost of inventories sold $ 54,623,582 $ 49,402,043
Cost of warranty 835,699 557,134
(Gain on reversal of valuation) loss on valuation ( 285,156) 375,197

$ 55,174,125 $ 50,334,374

For the year ended December 31, 2019, the Company reversed a previous inventory write-down and
accounted for as reduction of cost of goods sold because of the sale of obsolete inventories.
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(6) Investments accounted for using the equity method

December 31, 2019 December 31, 2018

Subsidiaries

Freedom International Group Ltd. $ 5,944,077 $ 5,971,052
Giga Investment Co. 3,635,838 2,983,967
G-Style Co., Ltd. 311,878 341,953
G.B.T. Technology Trading GmbH 299,218 307,710
BYTE International Co., Ltd. 87,874 57,211
Giga-Byte Technology B.V. 63,713 148,731
G.B.T. Inc. 44,294 79,195
Giga-Byte Communication Inc. 22,898 35,194
G.B.T. Technology LLC others 133,753 131,135

$ 10,543,543 $ 10,056,148

A. Please refer to Note 4(3) in the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December

B.

31, 2019 for more information on the Company’s subsidiary.

For the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, shares of profit from subsidiaries accounted
for using equity method were $201,350 and $425,886, respectively, based on the audited financial
statements.

. Gigabyte Global Business Corporation completed the liquidation on April 17, 2019, returning

proceeds of $535 and recognised losses on disposal of investments of $15.

. The Company participated in the capital increase raised by Giga Investment Co. with $200,000

and $600,000 on November 18, 2019 and July 12, 2018, respectively. The share interest remains
100% after the capital increase.

. The Company participated in the capital increase raised by BYTE International Co., Ltd. with

$23,744 on March 29, 2018. The share interest remains 100% after the capital increase.

The Company participated in the capital increase raised by Giga-Byte Technology Trading
GmbH with $107,721 and $140,624 on August 1, 2018 and November 15, 2018, respectively.
The share interest remains 100% after the capital increase.
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(8) Leasing arrangements —lessee

Effective 2019

A. The Company leases various assets including buildings and transportation equipment. Rental
contracts are typically made for periods of 1 to 3 years. Lease terms are negotiated on an
individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. The lease agreements
do not impose covenants, but leased assets may not be used as security for borrowing purposes.

B. Short-term leases with a lease term of 12 months or less comprise of buildings and business
vehicles. Low-value assets comprise multifunction printers. As at December 31, 2019, payments
of lease commitments for short-term leases amounted to $638.

C. The carrying amount of right-of-use assets and the depreciation charge are as follows:

Year ended
December 31, 2019 December 31, 2019

Carrying amount Depreciation charge

Buildings $ 36,663 $ 26,683
Transportation equipment 25,154 22,551
$ 61,817 $ 49,234

D. For the year ended December 31, 2019, the additions to right-of-use assets was $23,077.
E. The information on profit and loss accounts relating to lease contracts is as follows:

Year ended
December 31, 2019

Items affecting profit or loss

Interest expense on lease liabilities $ 1,743
Expense on short-term lease contracts 17,351
Expense on leases of low-value assets 3,377

F. For the year ended December 31, 2019, the Company’s total cash outflow for leases was $70,885.

(9) Leasing arrangements — lessor

Effective 2019

A. The Company leases various assets including land and buildings. Rental contracts are typically
made for periods of 1 to 7 years. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain
a wide range of different terms and conditions.

B. For the year ended December 31, 2019, the Company recognised rent income in the amount of
$14,256, based on the operating lease agreement, which does not include variable lease
payments.

C. The maturity analysis of the lease payments under the operating leases is as follows:

December 31, 2019

2020 $ 8,726
2021 6,258
2022 5,944
2023 2,781

$ 23,709
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(10) Other payables

December 31, 2019 December 31, 2018
Wages, salaries and bonus payable $ 2,366,707 $ 2,416,337

Employees’ compensation and remuneration for 291,385 374,323
directors and supervisors

Marketing payable 244,634 193,258
Shipping and freight-in payable 153,137 120,895
Royalties payable 75,159 66,776
Others 248,694 274,750

$ 3,379,716 $ 3,446,339

(11) Provisions

A. Movement analysis of the provision for warranty is as follows:

2019 2018
At January 1 $ 433,059 $ 444,706
Additional provisions 835,699 557,134
Used during the period ( 755,190) ( 568,781)
At December 31 $ 513,568 $ 433,059

B. The Company gives warranties on the peripherals and accessories of computer hardware sold.
Provision for warranty is estimated based on the historical repair records of the product.

(12) Pensions

A. The Company has a defined benefit pension plan in accordance with the Labor Standards Act,
covering all regular employees’ service years prior to the enforcement of the Labor Pension Act
on July 1, 2005 and service years thereafter of employees who chose to continue to be subject
to the pension mechanism under the Act. Under the defined benefit pension plan, two units are
accrued for each year of service for the first 15 years and one unit for each additional year
thereafter, subject to a maximum of 45 units. Pension benefits are based on the number of units
accrued and the average monthly salaries and wages of the last 6 months prior to retirement. The
Company contributes monthly an amount equal to 2% of the employees’ monthly salaries and
wages to the retirement fund deposited with Bank of Taiwan, the trustee, under the name of the
independent retirement fund committee. Also, the Company would assess the balance in the
aforementioned labor pension reserve account by the end of December 31, every year. If the
account balance is insufficient to pay the pension calculated by the aforementioned method to
the employees expected to be qualified for retirement next year, the Company will make
contributions to cover the deficit by next March.
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(a) The amounts recognised in the balance sheet are determined as follows:
December 31, 2019 December 31, 2018

Present value of defined benefit obligations  ($ 800,796) ($ 764,063)
Fair value of plan assets 228,240 221,165
Net defined benefit liability ¢ 572,556) (% 542,898)

(b)Movements in net defined benefit liabilities are as follows:
2019

Present value of
defined benefit Fair value of  Net defined

obligations plan assets  benefit liability
At January 1 % 764,063) $ 221,165 ($ 542,898)
Current service cost ( 3,570) - ( 3,570)
Interest (expense) income ( 7,602) 2,241 ( 5,361)
Past service cost 4,684 - 4,684
( 770,551) 223,406 ( 547,145)
Remeasurements:
Return on plan assets (excluding - 7,863 7,863
amounts included in interest income or
expense)
Change in demographic assumptions ( 6,684) - ( 6,684)
Change in financial assumptions ( 24,306) - ( 24,306)
Experience adjustments ( 5,957) - ( 5,957)
( 36,947) 7,863 ( 29,084)
Pension fund contribution - 3,673 3,673
Paid pension 6,702 ( 6,702) -
At December 31 (6 800,796) $ 228,240 (% 572,556)
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2018

Present value of
defined benefit Fair value of Net defined

obligations plan assets  benefit liability
At January 1 $ 776,787) $ 218,767 ($ 558,020)
Current service cost ( 4,735) - ( 4,735)
Interest (expense) income ( 9,657) 2,770 ( 6,887)
Past service cost 4,496 - 4,496
( 786,683) 221,537 ( 565,146)
Remeasurements:
Return on plan assets (excluding - 6,220 6,220
amounts included in interest income or
expense)
Change in demographic assumptions ( 3,099) - ( 3,099)
Change in financial assumptions ( 24,054) - ( 24,054)
Experience adjustments 38,269 - 38,269
11,116 6,220 17,336
Pension fund contribution - 4,912 4,912
Paid pension 11,504 ( 11,504) -
At December 31 (6 764,063) $ 221,165 (% 542,898)

(c) The Bank of Taiwan was commissioned to manage the Fund of the Company’s defined benefit

pension plan in accordance with the Fund’s annual investment and utilization plan and the
“Regulations for Revenues, Expenditures, Safeguard and Utilization of the Labor Retirement
Fund” (Article 6: The scope of utilization for the Fund includes deposit in domestic or foreign
financial institutions, investment in domestic or foreign listed, over-the-counter, or private
placement equity securities, investment in domestic or foreign real estate securitization
products, etc.). With regard to the utilization of the Fund, its minimum earnings in the annual
distributions on the final financial statements shall be no less than the earnings attainable from
the amounts accrued from two-year time deposits with the interest rates offered by local banks.
If the earnings is less than aforementioned rates, government shall make payment for the
deficit after being authorized by the Regulator. The Company has no right to participate in
managing and operating that fund and hence the Company is unable to disclose the
classification of plan assets fair value in accordance with IAS 19 paragraph 142. The
composition of fair value of plan assets as of December 31, 2019 and 2018 is given in the
Annual Labor Retirement Fund Utilization Report announced by the government.

(d)The principal actuarial assumptions used were as follows:

Years ended December 31
2019 2018

Discount rate 0.75% 1.00%

Future salary increases 3.00% 3.00%

Future mortality rate was estimated based on the 5th Experience Mortality Table from Taiwan
Life Insurance.
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Because the main actuarial assumption changed, the present value of defined benefit
obligation is affected. The analysis was as follows:

Discount rate Future salary increases

Increase 0.25% Decrease 0.25%  Increase 0.25%  Decrease 0.25%

December 31, 2019

Effect on present
value of defined
benefit obligation ($ 24,434) $ 25504 $ 24,873 ($ 23,968)

December 31, 2018

Effect on present
value of defined
benefit obligation ($ 24,070) $ 25133 $ 24,574 ($ 23,669)

The sensitivity analysis above is based on one assumption which changed while the other
conditions remain unchanged. In practice, more than one assumption may change all at once.
The method of analysing sensitivity and the method of calculating net pension liability in the
balance sheet are the same.
The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not
change compared to the previous period.

(e) Expected contributions to the defined benefit pension plans of the Company for the year
ending December 31, 2020 amounts to $14,199.

(f) As of December 31, 2019, the weighted average duration of that retirement plan is 12 years.
The analysis of timing of the future pension payment was as follows:

Within 1 year $ 8,217
1-2 year(s) 20,917
2-5 years 82,951
Over 5 years 762,521

$ 874,606

. Effective July 1, 2005, the Company has established a defined contribution pension plan (the
“New Plan”) under the Labor Pension Act (the “Act”), covering all regular employees with
R.O.C. nationality. Under the New Plan, the Company contributes monthly an amount based on
6% of the employees’ monthly salaries and wages to the employees’ individual pension accounts
at the Bureau of Labor Insurance. The benefits accrued are paid monthly or in lump sum upon
termination of employment. The pension costs under the defined contribution pension plans of
the Company for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018 were $84,888 and $81,331,
respectively.
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(13) Share capital
As of December 31, 2019, the Company’s authorized capital was $9,500,000, consisting of 950,000
thousand shares of ordinary stock (including 250,000 thousand shares reserved for employee stock
options and for convertible bonds issued by the Company), and the paid-in capital was $6,356,889
with a par value of $10 (in dollars) per share. All proceeds from shares issued have been collected.
The number of the Company’s ordinary shares outstanding during 2019 and 2018 is both
635,688,886 shares.

(14) Capital surplus

Pursuant to the R.O.C. Company Act, capital surplus arising from paid-in capital in excess of par
value on issuance of common stocks and donations can be used to cover accumulated deficit or to
issue new stocks or cash to shareholders in proportion to their share ownership, provided that the
Company has no accumulated deficit. Further, the R.O.C. Securities and Exchange Law requires
that the amount of capital surplus to be capitalised mentioned above should not exceed 10% of the
paid-in capital each year. Capital surplus should not be used to cover accumulated deficit unless the
legal reserve is insufficient.

(15) Retained earnings

A. Under the Company’s Articles of Incorporation, the current year’s earnings, if any, shall first be
used to pay all taxes and offset prior year’s operating losses and then 10% of the remaining
amount shall be set aside as legal reserve, unless accumulated legal reserve has reached an
amount equal to the Company’s paid-in capital. And then special reserve shall be set aside or
reversed according to the laws or decrees or the regulations of competent authorities.
Appropriation (5% ~ 80%) of the remainder plus prior year’s accumulated retained earnings shall
be proposed by the Board of Directors, and resolved by the stockholders when distributed by
issuance of new shares. The Company’s dividend policy is as follows: not less than 5% of total
distribution amount shall be distributed in the form of cash. If the cash dividend is less than ten
cents (NT$0.1) per share, such dividend shall be distributed in the form of shares.

B. Except for covering accumulated deficit or issuing new stocks or cash to shareholders in
proportion to their share ownership, the legal reserve shall not be used for any other purpose.
The use of legal reserve for the issuance of stocks or cash to shareholders in proportion to their
share ownership is permitted, provided that the balance of the reserve exceeds 25% of the
Company’s paid-in capital.

C. In accordance with the regulations, the Company shall set aside special reserve from the debit
balance on other equity items at the balance sheet date before distributing earnings. When debit
balance on other equity items is reversed subsequently, the reversed amount could be included
in the distributable earnings.

The amount previously set aside by the Company as special reserve of $426,354 on initial
application of IFRSs in accordance with Jin-Guan-Zheng-Fa-Zi Letter No. 1010012865, dated
April 6, 2012, shall be reversed proportionately when the relevant assets are used, disposed of or
reclassified subsequently.

D. The appropriation of earnings for 2018 and 2017 had been resolved by stockholders on June 12,
2019 and June 11, 2018. Details are summarized below:
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Years ended December 31

2018 2017
Dividends Dividends
per share per share
Amount (in dollars) Amount (in dollars)
Legal reserve $ 256,651 $ 278,641

Cash dividends 1,907,067 $ 3.00 2,542,756 $ 4.00

E. As of the date of the auditor’s report, the appropriation of retained earnings for 2019 has not been
resolved by the Board of Directors. Information about employees’ compensation (bonus) and
directors’ and supervisors’ remuneration of the Company as resolved by the Board of Directors
and reported to the shareholders will be posted in the “Market Observation Post System” at the
website of the Taiwan Stock Exchange.

F. For the information relating to employees’ compensation and directors’ and supervisors’
remuneration, please refer to Note 6(21).

(16) Operating revenue

December 31, 2019 December 31, 2018
62,383,990 $ 57,984,926

Revenue from contracts with customers $

A. Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers

The Company derives revenue from the transfer of goods and services at a point in time in the
following major product lines and segments:
Year ended December 31, 2019

Global brand Other
Product Types business group  business group Total
Peripheral cards $ 24,725,656 $ 649,640 $ 25,375,296
Main boards 23,987,181 669,371 24,656,552
Computer servers - 7,889,147 7,889,147
Others 2,906,769 1,556,226 4,462,995

$ 51619606 $ 10,764,384 $ 62,383,990

Year ended December 31, 2018

Global brand Other
Product Types business group  business group Total
Peripheral cards $ 27373817 $ 505,098 $ 27,878,915
Main boards 19,504,013 1,070,996 20,575,009
Computer servers - 7,271,587 7,271,587
Others 976,837 1,282,578 2,259,415
$ 47854667 $ 10,130,259 $ 57,984,926
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B. Contract liabilities
The Company has recognised unearned receipts as revenue-related contract liabilities amounting
to $370,694, $277,495 and $132,458 as of December 31, 2019 and 2018 and January 1, 2018,
respectively.
Revenue recognised that was included in the contract liability balance at the beginning of the
period is as follows:

Years ended December 31
2019 2018

Revenue recognised that was included in the contract
liability balance at the beginning of the period

Unearned receipts $ 277,495 $ 132,458
(17) Other income

Years ended December 31

Interest income : 2019 2018
Interest income from bank deposits $ 46,445 $ 53,455
Interest income from financial assets at fair value 3,442 4,358
through profit or loss

Interest income from financial assets measured at 1,131 765
amortised cost

Others 3,392 4,054

Total interest income 54,410 62,632

Rent income 14,256 14,262

Other income, others 437,508 491,747

$ 506,174 $ 568,641

(18) Other gains and losses

Years ended December 31

2019 2018

Foreign exchange gains $ 61,144 $ 151,493
Gains on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 8,035 1,792
Gains on disposal of property, plant and equipment 2,005 5,193
Gains arising from lease modification 13 -
Losses on disposal of investments ( 15) -
Others ( 4,896) -

$ 66,286 $ 158,478

(19) Finance costs
Years ended December 31
2019 2018

Interest expense $ 2,189 $ 278
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(20) Expenses by nature

Years ended December 31

2019 2018
Cost of goods sold $ 53806692 $ 49,316,590
Employee benefit expense 3,322,747 3,446,616
Warranty cost of after-sale service 835,699 557,134
Marketing service charge 373,802 320,082
Depreciation and amortisation 358,408 292,692
Transportation expenses 186,037 178,975
Expected credit losses (gains) 3,434 ( 13,742)
Other costs and expenses 2,106,326 2,130,399

$ 60,993,145 $ 56,228,746

(21) Employee benefit expense

Years ended December 31

2019 2018
Wages and salaries $ 2,882,787 $ 3,018,391
Labor and health insurance fees 193,431 183,835
Pension costs 89,135 88,457
Directors’ remuneration 52,752 52,646
Other personnel expenses 104,642 103,287

$ 3,322,747 $ 3,446,616

A. In accordance with the Articles of Incorporation of the Company, a ratio of distributable profit
of the current year, after covering accumulated losses, shall be distributed as employees’
compensation and directors’ remuneration. The ratio shall be 3%~10% for employees’
compensation and shall not be higher than 3% for directors’ remuneration.

B. For the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, employees’ compensation was accrued at
$245,385 and $328,323, respectively; while directors’ remuneration was both accrued at $46,000.
The aforementioned amounts were recognised in salary expenses.

The employees’ compensation and directors’ and supervisors’ remuneration were estimated and
accrued based on 10% and 1.87% of distributable profit of current year for the year ended
December 31, 2019. The employees’ compensation and directors’ and supervisors’ remuneration
resolved by the Board of Directors were $245,385 and $46,000, and the employees’
compensation will be distributed in the form of cash.

Employees’ compensation and directors’ and supervisors’ remuneration of 2018 as resolved by
the Board of Directors were in agreement with those amounts recognised in the 2018 financial
statements.

Information about employees’ compensation and directors’ and supervisors’ remuneration of the
Company as resolved by the Board of Directors will be posted in the “Market Observation Post
System” at the website of the Taiwan Stock Exchange.
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(22) Income tax
A. Income tax expense
(a) Components of income tax expense:

Current tax:

Current tax on profits for the period
Prior year income tax overestimation
Total current tax

Deferred tax:

Origination and reversal of temporary differences

Impact of change in tax rate
Income tax expense

Years ended December 31

2019 2018
$ 243,883 $ 517,564
( 15,602) ( 39,052)
228,281 478,512
( 5,056) ( 103,452)
- ( 32,665)
$ 223,225 $ 342,395

(b) The income tax (charge)/credit relating to components of other comprehensive income is as

follows:

Remeasurement of defined benefit obligations
Impact of change in tax rate

Years ended December 31

2019 2018
$ 5817) $ 3,468
- ( 3,724)
& 5817) ($ 256)

B. Reconciliation between income tax expense and accounting profit:
Years ended December 31

Tax calculated based on profit before tax and statutory $

tax rate
Expenses disallowed by tax regulation
Tax exempt income by tax regulation
Effect from investment tax credits

Changes in assessment of realisation of deferred tax
assets

Prior year income tax overestimation
Separate taxation

Impact of change in tax rate

Income tax expense
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2019 2018
432,493 $ 581,781
725 35,116
( 21,359) -
( 75,735) ( 71,184)
( 105,680) ( 131,601)
( 15,602) ( 39,052)
8,383 -
- ( 32,665)
$ 223225 $ 342,395




C. Amounts of deferred tax assets or liabilities as a result of temporary difference are as follows:

Year ended December 31, 2019
Recognised in

Recognised other
in profit comprehensive
January 1 or loss income December 31
Deferred tax assets
Provision for warranty expense 3 86,612 $ 16,102 $ - $ 102,714
Loss on inventory 105,584 ( 57,031) - 48,553
Pension expense 46,710 115 - 46,825
Unrealised profit on intercompany
sales 59,855 23,794 - 83,649
Unrealised exchange loss 45 10,668 - 10,713
Remeasurement of defined benefit
obligations 21,360 - 5,817 27,177
Others 40,125 11,408 - 51,533
$ 360,291 $ 5056 $ 5817 $ 371,164
Year ended December 31, 2018
Recognised in
Adjustments  Recognised other
under new in profit ~ comprehensive
January 1 standards or loss income December 31
Deferred tax assets
Provision for warranty
expense $ 75601 $ - $ 11011 $ - % 86,612
Loss on inventory 25,963 - 79,621 - 105,584
Amount of allowance for
bad debts that exceed the
limit for tax purpose 2,999 ( 651) ( 2,348) - -
Pension expense 39,327 - 7,383 - 46,710
Unrealised profit on
intercompany sales 17,715 - 42,140 - 59,855
Unrealised exchange loss 2,092 - ( 2,047) - 45
Remeasurement of defined
benefit obligations 21,104 - - 256 21,360
Others 47,310 - ( 7,185) - 40,125
232,111 ( 651) 128,575 256 360,291

Deferred tax liabilities
Others ( 7,542) - 7,642 - -
$ 224569 ($ 651)$ 136,117 $ 256 $ 360,291

D. The Company has not recognised taxable temporary differences associated with investment in
subsidiaries as deferred tax liabilities. As of December 31, 2019 and 2018, the amounts of
temporary difference unrecognised as deferred tax liabilities were $356,093 and $120,652,
respectively.

E. The Company’s income tax returns through 2017 have been assessed and approved by the Tax
Authority.

F. Under the amendments to the Income Tax Act which was promulgated by the President of the
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Republic of China on February 7, 2018, the Company’s applicable income tax rate was raised
from 17% to 20% effective from January 1, 2018. The Company has assessed the impact of the

change in income tax rate.
(23) Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share

Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders

Diluted earnings per share

Assumed conversion of all dilutive potential
ordinary shares

—Employees’ compensation

Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders plus
assumed conversion of all dilutive potential
ordinary shares

Basic earnings per share

Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders

Diluted earnings per share

Assumed conversion of all dilutive potential
ordinary shares

—Employees’ compensation

Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders plus
assumed conversion of all dilutive potential
ordinary shares

(24) Supplemental cash flow information

Investing activities with partial cash payments

Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Add: Opening balance of payable on equipment

Less: Ending balance of payable on equipment
Cash paid during the year
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Year ended December 31, 2019
Weighted average
number of ordinary  Earnings
shares outstanding  per share
Amount after tax (share in thousands) (in dollars)

$ 1,939,241 635,689 $ 3.05
- 6,386
$ 1,939,241 642,075 $ 3.02

Year ended December 31, 2018
Weighted average
number of ordinary  Earnings
shares outstanding  per share
Amount after tax (share in thousands) (in dollars)

$ 2,566,512 635,689 $ 4.04
- 9,202
$ 2,566,512 644891 $ 3.98
Years ended December 31
2019 2018
$ 287,618 $ 282,040
14,621 -
( 16,054) ( 14,621)
$ 286,185 $ 267,419




(25) Changes in liabilities from financing activities

2019
Liabilities
Guarantee from financing
Lease liability deposits received activities-gross
At January 1 $ 90,367 $ 2,235 $ 92,602
Changes in cash flow from financing activities ( 48,414) 154 ( 48,260)
Interest paid (Note) ( 1,743) - ( 1,743)
Changes in other non-cash items 21,980 - 21,980
At December 31 $ 62,190 $ 2,389 § 64,579
Note: Listed under cash flows from operating activities.
2018
Liabilities
Guarantee from financing
deposits received activities-gross
At January 1 $ 3,796 $ 3,796
Changes in cash flow from financing activities ( 1,561) ( 1,561)
At December 31 $ 2235 $ 2,235
7. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(1) Names of related parties and relationship
Names of related parties Relationship with the Company
Gigabyte Technology Pty. Ltd. (G.B.T.-AU) The Company’s subsidiary
Giga-Byte Technology B.V. (G.B.T.-NL) "
Giga-Byte Technology (India) Private Limited B
(G.B.T.-India)
Giga-Byte Technology Trading GmbH (G.B.T.-GmbH) "
Nippon Giga-Byte Corp. (G.B.T.-Japan) n
Gigabyte Information Technology Commerce Limited ,
Company (G.B.T.-Turkey)
Gigabyte Technology LLC (G.B.T.-Korea) "
G-Style Co., Ltd. (G-Style) ”
Giga-Byte Communication Inc. (Giga-Byte B
Communication)
BYTE International Co., Ltd. (BYTE International) "
Giga Investment Corp. (Giga Investment) "
G.B.T., Inc. (G.B.T.-USA) "
Giga Advance (Labuan) Limited (Giga Advance) The Company’s Indirect subsidiary
G.B.T. LBN Inc. (G.B.T.-LBN) "
Senyun Precision Optical Co., Ltd. (Senyun Precision) "
Selita Precision Co., Ltd. (Selita Precision) "
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(@)

Names of related parties Relationship with the Company

Ningbo BestYield Tech. Services Co., Ltd. (Ningbo

Dongguan Gigabyte Electronics Co., Ltd. (Dongguan

GIGAIPC CO., LTD. (GIGAIPC) The Company’s Indirect subsidiary
Ningbo Giga-Byte International Trade Co., Ltd. (Ningbo

/!

Giga-Byte International Trade)

/!

BestYield)

Ningbo Zhongjia Technology Co. Ltd. (Ningbo Zhongjia) "
Ningbo Gigabyte Technology Co., Ltd. (Ningbo

/7

Gigabyte)

/7

Gigabyte)

Significant related party transactions

A. Operating revenue

Years ended December 31

2019 2018
Sales of goods:
G.B.T.-USA $ 12,624,549 $ 9,271,853
Ningbo Zhongjia 12,236,148 -
Subsidiaries 2,417 ,053 1,566,489
Indirect subsidiaries 296,327 126,384
Giga Advance - 11,769,568

$ 27,574,077 $ 22,734,294

The sales prices to related parties were based on the agreed contracts. Credit terms to related
parties were within 30~90 days after receipt of goods. Credit terms to third parties were up to 60
days after receipt of goods.

B. Purchases

Years ended December 31

2019 2018
Purchases of goods:
Subsidiaries $ 1,575 $ 9,522
Indirect subsidiaries 529,581 467,095
$ 531,156 $ 476,617

All purchases from related parties are based on negotiated terms because the related products are
unique and cannot be purchased from third parties. The payment terms for related parties are not
significantly different from those with third parties. The payment term for third parties is 30 days
after receipt of goods or 60~90 days for monthly billing.
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C. Manufacturing overhead-Processing expense

Years ended December 31
2019 2018

G.B.T.-LBN $ 1,579,568 $ 1,901,133

The payments to G.B.T.-LBN were for the subcontracts to Dongguan Gigabyte and Ningbo Giga-
Byte which were arranged through G.B.T.-LBN.

D. Warranty expense
Years ended December 31

2019 2018

Ningbo BestYield $ 310,324 $ -
G.B.T.-USA 74,265 -
Giga Advance - 214,700
G.B.T.-NL 30,195 49,117
Subsidiaries 49,032 37,671
Indirect subsidiaries 11,097 10,322

$ 474913 $ 311,810

Warranty expense is the expenditure arising from the after-sales maintenance service provided
by the related party in the area where the related party is. The price is calculated based on the
actual incurred cost, and the payment term is 30 days for monthly billing.
E. Marketing service charge (Shown as “Selling expenses”)
Years ended December 31

2019 2018
G.B.T.-NL $ 134911 $ 105,761
G.B.T.-AU 38,658 52,128
G.B.T.-Japan 27,012 23,488
Subsidiaries 48,411 53,039
Indirect subsidiaries - 5,847
$ 248992 $ 240,263

Marketing service charge is the expenditure arising from the business development rendered by
the related party in the area where the related party is located. The price is calculated based on
the actual incurred cost, and the payment term is 30 days for monthly billing.
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F. Professional service fees (Shown as “Selling expenses”)

Years ended December 31

2019 2018
G.B.T.-NL $ 139,621 $ 114,877
Subsidiaries 28,925 255
Indirect subsidiaries 5,804 6,159
$ 174350 $ 121,291

Professional service fee is the service expenditure arising from the staff who provided business
development and after-sales maintenance services in the area where the related party is located.
The price is calculated based on the actual incurred cost, and the payment term is 30 days for
monthly billing.
G. Accounts receivable
December 31, 2019  December 31, 2018

G.B.T.-USA $ 3,640,567 $ 1,843,922
Ningbo Zhongjia 1,439,651 -
Subsidiaries 518,572 448,363
Indirect subsidiaries 339,745 192,942

$ 5938535 $ 2,485,227

H. Accounts payable
December 31, 2019 December 31, 2018

Subsidiaries $ 6,717 $ 2,509
Indirect subsidiaries 1,975,601 1,392,922
$ 1982318 $ 1,395,431

I. Unearned receipts (Shown as “Contract liabilities™)
December 31, 2019  December 31, 2018

Indirect subsidiaries $ 193,809 $ -
J. Property transactions -Acquisition of financial assets
Year ended
December 31, 2019
Accounts No. of shares  Objects Consideration
Investments
Giga Investment accounted for using 20,000,000  Stock $ 200,000

equity method
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Year ended
December 31, 2018
Accounts No. of shares  Objects Consideration
Giga Investment Investments 60,000,000 Stock $ 600,000
accounted for using
equity method

BYTE International 7 2,374,437 " 23,744
G.B.T.-GmbH " - 4 248.345
$ 872,089

(3) Key management compensation

Years ended December 31

2019 2018
Salaries and other short-term employee benefits $ 398,539 § 448,488
8. PLEDGED ASSETS
The Company’s assets pledged as collateral are as follows:
Book value
Pledged asset December 31, 2019 December 31, 2018 Purpose

Pledged asset - current

(accounted for as “Other

current assets”)

- Demand deposits $ - % 24,094 Project grants and

collateral loan

Pledged asset - non-current
(accounted for as “Other non-
current assets”)

- Time deposits $ - % 60,978 Guarantee for the
customs duties

Pledged assets - non-current
(accounted for as “Financial
assets at amortised cost -
non-current”)

- Demand deposits $ 96,942 $ - Repatriated offshore
funds

Guarantee for the
- Time deposits 61,098 - customs duties

$ 158,040 $ -

-168-



9. SIGNIFICANT CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND UNRECOGNISED CONTRACT

10

11.

12.

COMMITMENTS

None.

. SIGNIFICANT DISASTER LOSS

None.
SIGNIFICANT EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

On February 4, 2020, the Board of Directors of the subsidiary, Freedom International Group Ltd.
resolved to increase its capital by issuing 34,000 thousand ordinary shares amounting to USD 3,400

thousand, and the Company acquired all 34,000 thousand ordinary shares.
OTHERS
(1) Capital management

The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and to maintain an optimal
capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, issue employee stock

option or buyback and retire treasury stock.
(2) Einancial instruments

A. Financial instruments by category
December 31, 2019

December 31, 2018

Financial assets
Financial assets mandatorily measured at

fair value through profit or loss $ 473,217 441,694
Financial assets at amortised cost
Cash and cash equivalents 5,197,276 4,442,162
Financial assets at amortised cost 248,040 161,192
Notes receivable 2,995 4,057
Accounts receivable (including related 9,567,078 5,592,571
parties)
Other receivables 84,063 82,130
Guarantee deposits paid 25,316 26,694
$ 15,597,985 10,750,500
Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Notes payable $ 54,092 9,736
Accounts payable (including related 9,024,870 6,429,149
parties)
Other payables 3,379,716 3,446,339
Guarantee deposits received 2,389 2,235
Lease liabilities 62,190 -
$ 12,523,257 9,887,459
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B. Financial risk management policies

(@) The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including
foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

(b) Risk management is carried out by a treasury department (Company Treasury) under policies
approved by the Board of Directors. Company treasury identifies, evaluates and hedges
financial risks in close co-operation with the Company’s operating units. The Board
provides written principles for overall risk management, as well as written policies covering
specific areas and matters, such as foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, use
of derivative financial instruments and non-derivative financial instruments, and investment
of excess liquidity.

C. Significant financial risks and degrees of financial risks
(@) Market risk
Foreign exchange risk

i. The Company operates internationally and is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising
from various currency exposures, primarily with respect to the USD and RMB. Foreign
exchange risk arises from future commercial transactions, recognised assets and
liabilities and net investments in foreign operations.

Ii. Management has set up a policy to require divisions to manage their foreign exchange
risk against their functional currency.

iii. The Company’s businesses involve some non-functional currency operations (the
Company’s functional currency is NTD). The information on assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies whose values would be materially affected by the
exchange rate fluctuations is as follows:

December 31, 2019
Foreign currency

amount Exchange  Book value
(In thousands) rate (NTD)
(Foreign currency: functional
currency)
Financial assets
Monetary items
USD:NTD $ 388,294 30.106 $ 11,689,979
RMB:NTD 47,803 4.323 206,652
Non-monetary items
USD:NTD $ 5,663 30.106 $ 170,483

Investments accounted for using
equity method
USD:NTD $ 212,906 30.106 $ 6,409,736
Financial liabilities
Monetary items
USD:NTD $ 252,799 30.106 $ 7,610,767
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December 31, 2019

Foreign currency

amount Exchange  Book value
(In thousands) rate (NTD)
RMB:NTD 266,111 4.323 1,150,398

December 31, 2018

Foreign currency

amount Exchange Book value
(In thousands) rate (NTD)
(Foreign currency: functional
currency)
Financial assets
Monetary items
USD:NTD $ 276,657 30.733 $ 8,502,500
RMB:NTD 70,433 4.476 315,258
Non-monetary items
USD:NTD $ 837 30.733 % 25,724
Investments accounted for using
equity method
USD:NTD $ 201,917 30.733 $ 6,205,515
Financial liabilities
Monetary items
USD:NTD $ 130,000 30.733 $ 3,995,290
RMB:NTD 492,495 4.476 2,204,408

iv. The total exchange gain (loss), including realised and unrealised arising from significant
foreign exchange variation on the monetary items held by the Company for the years
ended December 31, 2019 and 2018 amounted to $61,144 and $151,493, respectively.

v. Analysis of foreign currency market risk arising from significant foreign exchange

variation:

Year ended December 31, 2019

Sensitivity analysis

Effect on other

Degree of Effect on profit ~ comprehensive
variation or loss income
(Foreign currency: functional
currency)
Financial assets
Monetary items
USD:NTD 1% $ 116,900 $ -
RMB:NTD 1% 2,067 -
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Financial liabilities

Monetary items
USD:NTD
RMB:NTD

(Foreign currency: functional
currency)

Financial assets

Monetary items
USD:NTD
RMB:NTD

Financial liabilities

Monetary items
USD:NTD
RMB:NTD

Price risk

Year ended December 31, 2019

Sensitivity analysis

Effect on other

Degree of Effect on profit  comprehensive

variation or loss income
1% $ 76,108 % -
1% 11,504 -

Year ended December 31, 2018

Sensitivity analysis

Effect on other

Degree of Effect on profit  comprehensive

variation or loss income
1% $ 85,025 $ -
1% 3,153 -
1% $ 39953 $ -
1% 22,044 -

i. The Company’s equity securities, which are exposed to price risk, are the held financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss. To manage its price risk arising from investment
in equity securities, the Company diversifies its portfolio. Diversification of the portfolio
is done in accordance with the limits set by the Company.

ii. The Company invests in beneficiary certificates. The prices of equity securities would
change due to the change of the future value of investee companies. If the prices of these
equity securities had increased/decreased by 1 % with all other variables held constant,
pre-tax profit for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018 would have
increased/decreased by $4,570 and $3,078, respectively, as a result of gains/losses on
equity securities classified as at fair value through profit or loss.
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Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The bond funds and fixed interest rate bond invested by the Company was held mainly
for trading purposes, and the cash flow of which are affected by the market interest rate.

i. For fixed interest rate bond investments held by the Company classified as financial assets

mandatorily measured at fair value through profit or loss, changing in market interest
rates would affect their fair values. As at December 31, 2019 and 2018, if market interest
rates had increased/decreased by 1 % with all other variables held constant, pre-tax profit
for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018 would have increased/decreased by
$162 and $1,339, respectively.

(b) Credit risk

Vi.

Vii.

Credit risk refers to the risk of financial loss to the Company arising from default by the
clients or counterparties of financial instruments on the contract obligations. The main
factor is that counterparties could not repay in full the accounts receivable based on the
agreed terms, and the contract cash flows of debt instruments at fair value through profit
or loss.

The bond fund held by the Company was issued by well-known foreign banks and
securities investment trust companies owned by or affiliated with domestic financial
holding companies with good credit standing. Since the Company trades with several
securities investment trust companies, the credit risk is relatively low.

The corporate bonds and financial bonds invested by the Company have been evaluated
to have a good credit rating, and it is expected that the counterparty will not default, so
the credit risk is extremely low. The maximum loss to the Company is the total amount
of all book value.

The Company manages their credit risk taking into consideration the entire Company’s

concern. According to the Company’s credit policy, each local entity in the Company

is responsible for managing and analysing the credit risk for each of their new clients

before standard payment and delivery terms and conditions are offered. Internal risk

control assesses the credit quality of the customers, taking into account their financial

position, past experience and other factors. Individual risk limits are set based on

internal or external ratings in accordance with limits set by the Board of Directors. The

utilisation of credit limits is regularly monitored.

The Company adopts the assumptions under IFRS 9, the default occurs when the

contract payments are not expected to be recovered.

The Company adopts following assumptions under IFRS 9 to assess whether these has

been a significiant increase in credit risk on that instrument since intial recognition:

If the contract payments were past due over 30 days based on the terms, there has been

a significant increase in credit risk on that instrument since initial recognition.

The following indicators are used to determine whether the credit impairment of debt

instruments has occurred:

(i) It becomes probable that the issuer will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganization due to their financial difficulties;

(if) The disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial
difficulties;
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viii.

(iii) Default or delinquency in interest or principal repayment; and

(iv) Adverse changes in national or regional economic conditions that are expected to
cause a default.

The Company classifies customers’ accounts receivable in accordance with credit

rating of customer, insurance coverage and collaterals. The Company applies the

modified approach using provision matrix to estimate expected credit loss under the

provision matrix basis.

The Company used the forecastability of macroeconomic growth by the International
Monetary Fund to adjust historical and timely information to assess the default
possibility of accounts receivable. As at December 31, 2019 and 2018, the provision
matrix is as follows:

Up to 30 31 to 60
Not past due days past due days past due

December 31, 2019

Expected loss rate 0.91% 1.02% 9.96%
Total book value $ 2,769,767 $ 444725 $ 14,135
Loss allowance $ 10,652 $ 862 $ 169
61 to 90
days past due Over 90 days Total
Expected loss rate 36.16% 100%  0.91%~100%
Total book value $ 2,048 $ 10,634 $ 3,241,309
Loss allowance $ 127  $ 10,634 $ 22,444
Up to 30 31 to 60

Not past due days past due days past due

December 31, 2018

Expected loss rate 0.11%~1.13%  0.14%~1.38%  0.85%~8.47%
Total book value 3 2,602,457 $ 504,224 $ 2,542
Loss allowance $ 6,538 $ 717 $ 22
61 to 90
days past due Over 90 days Total
Expected loss rate 4.52%~45.18% 10%~100%  0.11%~100%
Total book value $ 6,660 $ 10,471 $ 3,126,354
Loss allowance $ 1446 $ 10,287 $ 19,010
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X.

Xi.

Movements in relation to the Company applying the modified approach to provide loss

allowance for notes and accounts receivable are as follows:

At January 1
Provision for impairment

At December 31

At January 1_IAS 39

Adjustments under new
standards

AtJanuary 1 _IFRS 9
Reversal of impairment loss
Write-off

At December 31

2019
Notes Accounts
receivable receivable Total
$ - $ 19,010 $ 19,010
- 3.434 3.434
$ - 3 22444 § 22,444
2018
Notes Accounts
receivable receivable Total
$ - 9 38,673 $ 38,673
- ( 3.831) ( 3.831)
- 34,842 34,842
- 13,742) ( 13,742)
- ( 2.090) ( 2.090)
$ - 3 19.010 $ 19,010

Considering the credit insurance on accounts receivable, the abovementioning amounts

were not recognised as allowance for uncollectible accounts amounting to $24,235 and
$29,499 as at December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

For provisioned loss in 2019 and 2018, the impairment losses and the reversal of
impairment losses arising from customers’ contracts amounted to ($3,434) and $13,742,

respectively.

For investments in debt instruments at amortised cost, the credit rating levels are

presented below:

Group 1
Group 2

December 31, 2019

Lifetime
Significant
increase in  Impairment
12 months _credit risk _of credit Total
$ 90,000 $ - $ - $ 90,000
158,040 - - 158,040
$ 248,040 $ -3 - $§ 248,040
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Group 1

December 31, 2018

Lifetime
Significant
increase in  Impairment
12 months _credit risk _of credit Total
$ 161,192 $ - $ -$ 161,192

Group 1: Time deposits with more than three months maturity.

Group 2: Pledged time deposits.

(c) Liquidity risk

i.  Company treasury monitors rolling forecasts of the liquidity requirements to ensure it
has sufficient cash to meet operational needs while maintaining sufficient headroom on
its undrawn committed borrowing facilities at all times.

ii. The table below analyses the Company’s non-derivative financial liabilities into
relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the balance sheet date to
the contractual maturity date for non-derivative financial liabilities. The amounts
disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows:

December 31, 2019

Notes payable
Accounts payable
Other payables
Lease liability

December 31, 2018

Notes payable
Accounts payable
Other payables

Between 1
Less than 1 year and 2 years Over 2 years Total
$ 54092 $ - 3 - 3 54,092
9,024,870 - - 9,024,870
3,379,716 - - 3,379,716
44,639 15,408 3,470 63,517
Between 1
Lessthan 1 year and 2 years Over 2 years Total
$ 9,736 $ - 3 - % 9,736
6,429,149 - - 6,429,149
3,446,339 - - 3,446,339

iii. The Company does not expect the timing of occurrence of the cash flows estimated
through the maturity date analysis will be significantly earlier, nor expect the actual
cash flow amount will be significantly different.

(3) Fair value information

A. The different levels that the inputs to valuation techniques are used to measure fair value of
financial and non-financial instruments have been defined as follows:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the
entity can access at the measurement date. A market is regarded as active where a
market in which transactions for the asset or liability take place with sufficient
frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis. The fair
value of the Company’s investment in beneficiary certificates, corporate bonds and
government bond are included in Level 1.
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Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.
Level 3: Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

. The carrying amounts of the Company’s financial instruments not measured at fair value
(including cash and cash equivalents, financial assets at amortised cost (Cash in banks), notes
receivable, accounts receivable (including related parties), other receivables, guarantee deposits
paid, pledged assets, notes payable, accounts payable (including related parties), other payables
and guarantee deposits received) are approximate to their fair values.

. The related information of financial and non-financial instruments measured at fair value by
level on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the assets and liabilities as at
December 31, 2019 and 2018 is as follows:

(@) The related information of natures of the assets and liabilities is as follows:
December 31, 2019 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Recurring fair value measurements
-assets

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Equity instrument $ 457,052 $ - $ - $ 457,052
Debt instrument 16,165 - - 16,165
$ 473217 $ - $ - $ 473217

December 31, 2018 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Recurring fair value measurements
-assets

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Equity instrument $ 307,755 $ - 9 - $ 307,755
Debt instrument 133,939 - - 133,939
$ 441694 $ - 3 - $ 441694

(b) The methods and assumptions the Company used to measure fair value are as follows:

i. The instruments the Company used market quoted prices as their fair values (that is, Level
1) are listed below by characteristics:

Government bonds
Listed shares Open-end fund and corporate bonds

Market quoted price Closing price Net asset value Weighted average quoted price
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I. Except for financial instruments with active markets, the fair value of other financial
instruments is measured by using valuation techniques or by reference to counterparty
quotes. The fair value of financial instruments measured by using valuation techniques
can be referred to current fair value of instruments with similar terms and characteristics
in substance, discounted cash flow method or other valuation methods, including
calculated by applying model using market information available at the balance sheet date.

iii. When assessing non-standard and low-complexity financial instruments, for example,
debt instruments without active market, the Company adopts valuation technique that is
widely used by market participants. The inputs used in the valuation method to measure
these financial instruments are normally observable in the market.

iv. For high-complexity financial instruments, the fair value is measured by using self-
developed valuation model based on the valuation method and technique widely used
within the same industry. The valuation model is normally applied to derivative financial
instruments, debt instruments with embedded derivatives or securitised instruments.
Certain inputs used in the valuation model are not observable at market, and the Company
must make reasonable estimates based on its assumptions.

v. The output of valuation model is an estimated value and the valuation technique may not
be able to capture all relevant factors of the Company’s financial and non-financial
instruments. Therefore, the estimated value derived using valuation model is adjusted
accordingly with additional inputs, for example, model risk or liquidity risk and etc. In
accordance with the Company’s management policies and relevant control procedures
relating to the valuation models used for fair value measurement, management believes
adjustment to valuation is necessary in order to reasonably represent the fair value of
financial and non-financial instruments at the balance sheet date. The inputs and pricing
information used during valuation are carefully assessed and adjusted based on current
market conditions.

vi. The Company takes into account adjustments for credit risks to measure the fair value of
financial and non-financial instruments to reflect credit risk of the counterparty and the
Company’s credit quality.

D. For the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, there was no transfer between Level 1 and
Level 2.

E. For the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, there was no transfer into or out from Level
3.

13. SUPPLEMENTARY DISCLOSURES
(1) Significant transactions information

A. Loans to others: None.
B. Provision of endorsements and guarantees to others: None.

C. Holding of marketable securities at the end of the year (not including subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures): Please refer to table 1.
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D. Acquisition or sale of the same security with the accumulated cost exceeding $300 million or
20% of the Company’s paid-in capital: None.

E. Acquisition of real estate reaching $300 million or 20% of paid-in capital or more: None.
F. Disposal of real estate reaching $300 million or 20% of paid-in capital or more: None.

G. Purchases or sales of goods from or to related parties reaching $100 million or 20% of paid-in
capital or more: Please refer to table 2.

H. Receivables from related parties reaching $100 million or 20% of paid-in capital or more:
Please refer to table 3.

I. Trading in derivative instruments undertaken during the reporting periods: None.
J. Significant inter-company transactions during the reporting periods: Please refer to table 4.
(2) Information on investees

Names, locations and other information of investee companies (not including investees in Mainland
China): Please refer to table 5.

(3) Information on investments in Mainland China

A. Basic information: Please refer to table 6.

B. Significant transactions, either directly or indirectly through a third area, with investee
companies in the Mainland Area: Please refer to table 7.

14. OPERATING SEGMENTS

None.
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V. Audited Consolidated Financial Statements in the most recent year

GIGA-BYTE TECHNOLOGY CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Declaration of Consolidated Financial Statements of Affiliated Enterprises

For the year ended December 31, 2019, pursuant to “Criteria Governing Preparation of Affiliation
Reports, Consolidated Business Reports and Consolidated Financial Statements of Affiliated
Enterprises,” the company that is required to be included in the consolidated financial statements of
affiliates, is the same as the company required to be included in the consolidated financial statements
of parent and subsidiary companies under IFRS 10. Also, if relevant information that should be
disclosed in the consolidated financial statements of affiliates has all been disclosed in the consolidated
financial statements of parent and subsidiary companies, it shall not be required to prepare separate
consolidated financial statements of affiliates.

Hereby declare,

GIGA-BYTE TECHNOLOGY CO., LTD.

Dandy Yeh

March 13, 2020
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Giga-Byte Technology Co., Ltd.

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Giga-Byte Technology Co., Ltd.
and subsidiaries (the “Group”) as at December 31, 2019 and 2018, and the related consolidated
statements of comprehensive income, of changes in equity and of cash flows for the years then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, based on our audits and the report of the other auditors, as described in the Other
matters section of our report, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all
material respects, the consolidated financial position of the Group as at December 31, 2019 and 2018,
and its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the years then ended in
accordance with the “Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers”
and the International Financial Reporting Standards, International Accounting Standards, IFRIC
Interpretations, and SIC Interpretations as endorsed by the Financial Supervisory Commission.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with the “Regulations Governing Auditing and Attestation of
Financial Statements by Certified Public Accountants” and generally accepted auditing standards in the
Republic of China (ROC GAAS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of Professional Ethics for
Certified Public Accountants in the Republic of China (the “Code™), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed
in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole and, in forming our
opinion thereon, we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Key audit matters for the Group’s consolidated financial statements of the current period are as
follows:

Revenue from significant new counterparties

Description

Please refer to Note 4(32) for the accounting policies on revenue recognition. For the year ended
December 31, 2019, the consolidated operating revenue amounted to NT$61,781,254 thousand.

Giga-Byte Technology Group’s revenue is derived from numerous customers from different countries
and there was no revenue from a single customer that exceeded 10% of the consolidated operating
revenue. Given that the verification of the existence of the transaction counterparty is critical to the
revenue recognition, the occurrence of revenue from significant new counterparties was identified as
a key audit matter.

How our audit addressed the matter

Our key audit procedures performed in respect of the above included the following:

1. Interviewed with management and obtained an understanding of the revenue recognition policy, and
the consistency of the policy application during the financial reporting periods.

2. Obtained an understanding and tested credit check procedures for significant new counterparties.
Verified that the transactions with significant new counterparties have been properly approved and
agreed with supporting documentation, which include searching transaction counterparty’s related
information.

3. Obtained an understanding and tested the selling price and credit term of significant new
counterparties.

4. Interviewed with management and obtained an understanding for the reason of accounts receivable
overdue from significant new counterparties in order to evaluate the reasonableness.

5. Sampled and tested detailed revenue schedules of significant new counterparties and verified the
original supporting documentation.

6. Sent accounts receivable confirmation letters to significant new counterparties. Investigated the
reason and tested reconciling items made by the Group if the result in confirmation reply did not
correspond to records, or tested collections after the balance sheet date if no confirmation reply was
received.
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Assessment of allowance for valuation of inventory loss

Description

Please refer to Note 4(14) for the accounting policies on evaluation of inventories; Note 5(2) for
uncertainty of accounting estimates and assumption on inventory evaluation; and Note 6(6) for the
details of the inventories. As of December 31, 2019, the inventories and allowance for valuation loss
amounted to NT$11,828,947 thousand and NT$484,655 thousand, respectively.

Giga-Byte Technology Group is primarily engaged in manufacturing and selling of computer hardware
equipment and related components. Due to the short life cycle of electronic products and the price is
highly subject to market fluctuation, the risk of incurring inventory valuation losses or having obsolete
inventory are relatively high. Inventories held for sale in the ordinary course of business are stated at
the lower of cost and net realisable value; Valuation loss are recognized for those inventories which
exceed certain aging period or individually identified as obsolete inventories based on its net realisable
value.

Given that the amount of inventories is significant and that the individually identified net realizable value
of obsolete inventories has uncertainty based on prior industry experience, the evaluation of the
allowance for valuation loss was identified as a key audit matter.

How our audit addressed the matter

Our key audit procedures performed in respect of the above included the following:

1. Interviewed with management and obtained an understanding of the policy and process on
evaluation of the allowance for valuation loss, and the consistency of the policy and process
application during the financial reporting periods.

2. Obtained an understanding of the warehouse management procedures, reviewed annual physical
inventory count plan and participated in the annual inventory count. Evaluated the effectiveness of
management controls on identifying and managing obsolete inventories.

3. Tested the appropriateness of system logic in inventory aging report which management adopted for
inventories valuation purpose, and verified that obsolete inventories which exceeded a certain aging
period were included in the report.

4. Bvaluated the reasonableness of obsolete or damaged inventory items which were identified by
management, reviewed related supporting documentation, and compared to the results obtained from
the observation of physical inventory count.

5. For inventories which exceeded a certain aging period of aging and individually identified as
obsolete and damaged, discussed with management and obtained supporting documentation of the
evaluation on net realisable value, and performed recalculation.
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Other matter — Report of other auditors

We did not audit the financial statements of certain consolidated subsidiaries and investments
accounted for using the equity method. Those financial statements were audited by other auditors,
whose reports thereon have been furnished to us, and our opinion expressed herein, in so far as it relates
to the amounts included in the financial statements was based solely on the reports of the other auditors.
The aforementioned equity investments were $21,193 thousand and $48,519 thousand, representing
0.06% and 0.14% of total consolidated assets as of December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively, and
total net comprehensive loss were $27,326 thousand and $28,382 thousand, representing (1.29%) and
(1.13%) of total consolidated comprehensive loss for the years then ended, respectively.

Other matter — Parent company only financial statements

We have audited and expressed an unmodified opinion with Other matter paragraph on the parent
company only financial statements of Giga-Byte Technology Co., Ltd. as at and for the years ended
December 31, 2019 and 2018.

Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the
consolidated financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with the “Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by
Securities Issuers” and the International Financial Reporting Standards, International Accounting
Standards, IFRIC Interpretations, and SIC Interpretations as endorsed by the Financial Supervisory
Commission, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance, including audit committee, are responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
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guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ROC GAAS will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ROC GAAS, we exercise professional judgement and maintain

professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

1.

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures

that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting

estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease
to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,

including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Se-Kai Lin Fang-Yu Wang
For and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers, Taiwan
March 13, 2020

The accompanying consolidated financial statements are not intended to present the financial position and results of
operations and cash flows in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in countries and jurisdictions other
than the Republic of China. The standards, procedures and practices in the Republic of China governing the audit of such
financial statements may differ from those generally accepted in countries and jurisdictions other than the Republic of
China. Accordingly, the accompanying consolidated financial statements and report of independent accountants are not
intended for use by those who are not informed about the accounting principles or auditing standards generally accepted in
the Republic of China, and their applications in practice.

As the financial statements are the responsibility of the management, PricewaterhouseCoopers, Taiwan cannot accept any
liability for the use of, or reliance on, the English translation or for any errors or misunderstandings that may derive from
the translation.
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GIGA-BYTE TECHNOLOGY CO.. LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
DECEMBER 31. 2019 AND 2018
(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars)

December 31, 2019

December 31, 2018

Assets Notes Amount % Amount %
Current assets

1100 Cash and cash equivalents 6(1) $ 9,907,845 26 % 8,610,907 24

1110 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss - 6(2)
current 729,427 2 891,231 3
1136 Financial assets at amortised cost - current 6(4)and 8 705,762 2 1,162,817 3
1150 Notes receivable, net 6(5) 2,996 - 3,047 -
1170 Accounts receivable, net 6(5) 6,619,142 18 5,813,268 16
1200 Other receivables 129,617 - 105,666 -
1220 Current income tax assets 44,613 - - -
130X Inventories, net 6(6) 11,344,292 30 11,520,153 32
1410 Prepayments 604,762 2 680,974 2
1470 Other current assets 6(7) and 8 20,704 - 171,356 1
1IXX Total current assets 30,109,160 80 28,959,419 81

Non-current assets

1517 Financial assets at fair value through other 6(3)
comprehensive income—non-current 2,223,790 6 1,714,344 5
1535 Financial assets at amortized cost-non-current 6(4)and § 211,075 1 - -
1550 Investments accounted for using the equity method 6(8) 21,193 - 48,519 -
1600 Propetty, plant and equipment, net 69 4,085,922 11 4,131,468 12
1755 Right-of-use assets 6(10) 182,698 - - -
1760 Investment property, net 6(12) 50,991 - 57,315 -
1780 Intangible assets 30,789 - 51,998 -
1240 Deferred income tax assets 6(30) 542,738 1 522,362 1
1900 Other non-current assets 6(13)and 8 253,185 1 249,170 1
15XX Total non-current assets 7,602,381 20 6,775,176 19
1XXX Total assets $ 37,711,541 100 $ 35,734,595 100

{Continued)
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GIGA-BYTE TECHNOLOGY CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND) 2018

(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars)

December 31, 2019 December 31, 2018
Liabilities and Equity Notes Amount % Amount %
Liabilities
Current liahilities
Short-term borrowings 6(14) b 289,088 1 3 309,722 1
Confract liabilities-current 6(24) 247,156 1 335,964 1
Notes payable 58,116 - 11,465 -
Accounts payable 7,230,678 19 5272720 15
Other payables 6(15) 3,934,910 10 3,834,550 10
Current income tax liabilities 27,662 - 446,037 1
Provisions for liabilities - current 6(16) 556,798 1 433,059 1
Lease liabilities-current 84,216 - - -
Other current liabilities 6(17) 236,661 1 jza2r 1
Total current liabilities 12,665,285 33 10,955,638 30
Non-current liabilities
Long-term borrowings 6(18) 3,000 - 10,833 -
Deferred income tax liabilities 6(30) - - 77 -
Lease liabilities-non-current 57,696 - - -
Other non-current liabilities 632,449 2 599,381 2
Total non-current liabilities 693,145 2 610,291 2
Total liabilities 13,358,430 35 11,565,929 32
Equity
Equity attributable to owners of the parent
Capital stock 6(21)
Common stock 6,356,889 17 6,356,889 18
Capital surplus 6(22)
Capital surplus 3,896,889 11 3,924,357 11
Retained earnings 6(23)
Legal reserve 4,381,896 12 4,125245 12
Special reserve 426,354 1 426,354 1
Unappropriated retained earnings 8,618,094 23 8,865,838 25
Other equity
Other equity 617,689 1 384792 1
Total equity attributable to owners of the parent 24,297,811 65 24,083,475 68
Non-controlling interest 55,300 - 85191 _ -
Total equity 24,353,111 65 24,168,666 _ 68
Total liabilities and equity $ 37711541 100 $ 35,734,593 _100

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements,
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GIGA-BYTE TECHNOLOGY CO.. LTD, AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2019 AND 2018
(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars, except for earnings per share)

2019 2018
Itmes Notes Amount % Amount %
4000 Operating revenue 6(24) $ 61,781,254 100 § 60,923,590 100
3000  Operating costs 6(6)(28)(29) (__ 52,190,385) (_ 34) (__ 50,800,376) (_ 83)
5900 Gross profit 9,590,369 l 10,123,214 17
Operating expenses 6(28)(29)
6100 Selling expenses ( 4280298) ( D ( 4339500 (7
6200 General and administrative expenses ( 1,814.616) (  3) ( 1,649.904) ( 3)
6300 Research and development expenses ( 2,020307) ( 3) ( 1,868,136) ( 3)
6450 Expected credit gains 6(28) and
12(2) ( 8415 - 9,934 .
6000 Total operating expenses ( 8,143,636) ( 13) ( 7,847,626) ( 13)
6900  Operating profit 1,447,233 3 2,275,588 4
Non-operating revenue and expenses D

7010 Otherincome 6(12)(25) 96183 1 825045 1
7020 Other gains and losses 6(26) 56,445 - 117,450) -
7050 Finance costs 6(14)(27) ( 10,845) -« 4,229) -
7060 Share of loss of associates and joint ventures accounted for ®)

using the equity method ( 25,768) - ( 26,183) -
7000 Total non-operating revenue and expenses 816,015 1 677,183 1
7900  Profit before income tax 2,063,248 _4. 2,952,771 5
7950 Income tax expense 6(30) ( 355,705) (_1) ( 456,646) { 1)
8200  Profit for the year $ 1,907,543 3 0% 2496125 4

(Continued}
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GIGA-BYTE TECHNOLCGY CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND 2018

(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars, except for earnings per share})

2019 2018
[tems Notes Amount % Amount %
Other comprehensive income-net
Components of other comprehensive income (loss) that will
not be reclassified to profit or loss
8311 Remeasurements of defined benefit plans 6(19) (3 29,084) - 3 17,336 -
8316 Unrealised gain on valuation of investment in equity 6(3)
instruments measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income 509,446 1 127,094 -
8349 Income tax related to components of other comprehensive 6(30)
income that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 5,817 - 256 -
8310 Components of other comprehensive loss that will not
be reclassified to profit or loss 486,179 1 144,686 -
Components of other comprehensive income that will be
reclassified to profit or loss
8361 Exchange differences arising from translation of foreign
operations ( 276,549) ( 1} { 129,559) -
8360 Components of other comprehensive loss that will be
reclassified to profit or loss { 276,549) ( 1) ( 129,559) -
8300  Other comprehensive income, net $ 209,630 - 5 15,127 -
8500  Total comprehensive income for the year $ 2,117,173 3 0§ 2511252 4
Profit attributable to:
8610 Owners of parent $ 1,939,241 3§ 2,566,512 4
8620 Non-conirelling interest ( 31,698) - ( 70,387} -
Total $ 1,907,543 3 0§ 2,496,125 4
Comprehensive income attributable to:
8710 Owners of parent $ 2,148,871 3§ 2,581,642 4
8720 Non-controlling interest ( 31,698) - ( 70,390) -
Total $ 2,117,173 3 8 2511252 4
9750  Basic ecarnings per share 6(31) 5 305 % 4.04
9850  Diluted earnings per share 3.02 § 3.98

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements,
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GIGA-BYTE TECHNOLOGY COQ.. LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2019 AND 2018
{Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars)

Notes 2019 2018

Cash flows from operating activities:
Profit before income tax $ 2,263,248 $ 2,952,771
Adjustments to reconcile profit before income tax to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Income and expenses having no effect on cash flows

Depreciation 6(9)(10)(28) 598,733 438,400
Depreciation charge on investment property 6(12) 4,350 5,026
Amortisation 6(28) 102,148 158,118
Profit from lease modification 6(26) { 13) -
Expected credit loss (gain} 6(28) and
12(2) 28415 ( 9,934)

{Gain) loss on valuation of financial assets at fair value 6(2)(26)

through profit or loss ( 63,616) 36,277
Interest expense 6(27) 10,845 4,229
Interest income 6(25) ( 109,497) ( 107,387 )
Dividends income 6(25) { 135974) ( 58,430)
Share of loss of associates and joint ventures accounted fer ~ 6(8)

using equity method 25,768 26,183
Gain on disposal of investments accounted for using equity  6(26)

method - ( 707)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 6(26) 6,723 12,103

Changes in assets/liabilities relating to operating activities
Net changes in assets relating to operating activities

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 225420 12,241)
Notes receivable 51 1,110
Accounts receivable ( 832,441) 875,535
Other receivables ( 23,223) 105,495
Inventories 174,539 ( 2,965,921)
Prepayments 75330 ( 566,025)
Other current assets 44,630 249727
Net changes in liabilities relating to operating activities
Contract liabilities ( 28,808 ) 9,010
Notes payable 46,651 ( 11,316 )
Accounts payable 1,957,958 ( 3,310,679 )
Other payables 98,927 107,452
Provisions for liabilities 123,739 118,862 )
Other current liabilities ( 75,127) 39,973
Other non-current liabilities 32,727 46,547
Cash generated from (used in) operations 4,491,503 ( 2,093,546 )
Interest received 108,769 109,144
Dividend received 135,974 58,430
Interest paid ( 10,845) ( 4,229 )
Income tax paid ( 839,146 ) ( 404,216 )
Net cash generated from (used in) operating activities, net 3,886,255 ( 2,334,417)
{Continued)
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GIGA-BYTE TECHNOLOGY CO.. LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2019 AND 2018
{Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars)

Cash and cash equivalents af end of year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Notes 2019 2018
Cash flows from investing activities:
Acquisition of financial assets at amortised cost $ - (8 656,395)
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at amoritsed cost 418,198 -
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment 6(33) ( 565,650) ( 610,408 )
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 4,520 9,356
Acquisition of intangible assets _ ( 51,164 ) ( 80,421)
Increase in refundable deposits ( 3315) { 3,065)
Proceeds from capital reduction of financial assets at fair 6(3)
value through other comprehensive income - 9,010
Acquisition of financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income - ( 599,979)
Increase in other non-current assets ( 87,436) ( 15,448)
Net cash used in investing activities ( 284,847) ( 1,947,350)
Cash flows from finaneing activities:
Decrease in short-term borrowings 6(34) ( 20,634) 19,967 )
Repayments of long-term debt 6(34) ( 8,166) ( 2,001}
Proceeds from long-term debt - 15,000
Increase (decrease) in deposits received 6(34) 341 ( 560 )
Cash dividends 6(23) ( 1,907,067 ) ( 2,542,756 )
Repayments of principal portion of lease liabilities 6(34) ( 91,030) -
Cash dividends paid to non-controlling interest { 1,743 ) ( 3,329)
Changes in non-controlling interest 3,550 38,737
Net cash used in financing activities ( 2,024749) ( 2,514,876 )
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash cquivqlcnts ( 279,721) ( 44,043 )
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 1,296,938 ( 6,840,691 )
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 8,610,907 15,451,598

9,907,845

8,610,907




GIGA-BYTE TECHNOLOGY CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND 2018

(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars, except as otherwise indicated)

1. HISTORY AND ORGANISATION
Giga-Byte Technology Co., Ltd. (the “Company”) was incorporated as company limited by shares
under the provisions of the Company Act of the Republic of China (R.O.C.). The address of the
Company’s registered office is No.6, Baogiang Rd., Xindian Dist., New Taipei City, Taiwan (R.O.C.).
The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred herein as the “Group”) are engaged in the
manufacturing, processing and trading of computer peripheral and component parts. The Company’s
shares have been traded on the Taiwan Stock Exchange since September 24, 1998.

2. THE DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUANCE OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND PROCEDURES FOR AUTHORISATION

These consolidated financial statements were authorised for issuance by the Board of Directors on
March 13, 2020.

3. APPLICATION OF NEW STANDARDS, AMENDMENTS AND INTERPRETATIONS

(1)Effect of the adoption of new issuances of or amendments to International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”) as endorsed by the Financial Supervisory Commission (“FSC”)

New standards, interpretations and amendments endorsed by the FSC effective from 2019 are as

follows:
Effective Date by
International Accounting
New Standards, Interpretations and Amendments Standards Board
Amendments to IFRS 9, ‘Prepayment features with negative January 1, 2019
compensation’
IFRS 16, ‘Leases’ January 1, 2019
Amendments to IAS 19, ‘Plan amendment, curtailment or January 1, 2019
settlement’
Amendments to IAS 28, ‘Long-term interests in associates and joint January 1, 2019
ventures’
IFRIC 23, ‘Uncertainty over income tax treatments’ January 1, 2019
Annual improvements to IFRSs 2015-2017 cycle January 1, 2019

Except for the following, the above standards and interpretations have no significant impact to the
Group’s financial condition and financial performance based on the Group’s assessment.

IFRS 16, ‘Leases’

A.TFRS 16, ‘Leases’, replaces IAS 17, ‘Leases’ and related interpretations and SICs. The standard
requires lessees to recognise a 'right-of-use asset' and a lease liability (except for those leases
with terms of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets). The accounting stays the same
for lessors, which is to classify their leases as either finance leases or operating leases and account
for those two types of leases differently. IFRS 16 only requires enhanced disclosures to be
provided by lessors.
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B. The Group has elected to apply IFRS 16 by not restating the comparative information (referred
herein as the ‘modified retrospective approach’) when applying “IFRSs” effective in 2019 as
endorsed by the FSC. Accordingly, the Company increased ‘right-of-use asset’ by $233,085,
increased ‘lease liability’ by $190,460, decreased other non-current assets by $41,743 and
decreased prepayments by $882 with respect to the lease contracts of lessees on January 1, 2019.

C. The Group has used the following practical expedients permitted by the standard at the date of
initial application of IFRS 16:

(a) Reassessment as to whether a contract is, or contains, a lease is not required, instead, the
application of IFRS 16 depends on whether or not the contracts were previously identified
as leases applying IAS 17 and IFRIC 4.

(b) The use of a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with reasonably similar
characteristics.

(c) The accounting for operating leases whose period will end before December 31, 2019 as
short-term leases and accordingly, rent expense of $88,479 was recognised in the 2019.

(d) The exclusion of initial direct costs for the measurement of ‘right-of-use asset’.

(e) The use of hindsight in determining the lease term where the contract contains options to

extend or terminate the lease.

D. The Group calculated the present value of lease liabilities by using the weighted average
incremental borrowing interest rate range from 0.65%~8.17%.

E. The Group recognised lease liabilities which had previously been classified as ‘operating leases’
under the principles of IAS 17, ‘Leases’. The reconciliation between operating lease
commitments under IAS 17 measured at the present value of the remaining lease payments,
discounted using the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate and lease liabilities recognised as of
January 1, 2019 is as follows:

Operating lease commitments disclosed by applying IAS 17 as at December $ 345,157
31,2018
Less: Short-term leases ( 65,923)
Less: Low-value assets ( 857)
Total lease contracts amount recognised as lease liabilities by applying
IFRS 16 on January 1, 2019 278,377
Incremental borrowing interest rate at the date of initial application 0.65%~8.17%
Lease liabilities recognised as at January 1, 2019 by applying IFRS 16 $ 190.460

(2)Effect of new issuances of or amendments to IFRSs as endorsed by the FSC but not yet adopted by
the Group
New standards, interpretations and amendments endorsed by the FSC effective from 2020 are as
follows:

Effective date by
International Accounting
New Standards, Interpretations and Amendments Standards Board
Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8, ‘Disclosure Initiative-Definition January 1, 2020

of Material’
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Effective date by
International Accounting

New Standards, Interpretations and Amendments Standards Board
Amendments to IFRS 3, ‘Definition of a business’ January 1, 2020
Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7, ‘Interest rate January 1, 2020

benchmark reform’

The above standards and interpretations have no significant impact to the Group’s financial
condition and financial performance based on the Group’s assessment.
(3)IFRSs issued by IASB but not yet endorsed by the FSC

New standards, interpretations and amendments issued by IASB but not yet included in the IFRSs
as endorsed by the FSC are as follows:

Effective Date by
International Accounting

New Standards, Interpretations and Amendments Standards Board
Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28, ‘Sale or contribution of assets To be determined by
between an investor and its associate or joint venture’ International
Accounting Standards
Board
Amendments to IFRS 17, ‘Insurance contracts’ January 1, 2021
Amendments to IAS 1, ‘Classification of liabilities as current or non- January 1, 2022
current’

The above standards and interpretations have no significant impact to the Group’s financial
condition and financial performance based on the Group’s assessment.

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements
are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the periods presented, unless
otherwise stated.

(1)Compliance statement

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with the
“Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers”, International
Financial Reporting Standards, International Accounting Standards, IFRIC Interpretations, and SIC
Interpretations as endorsed by the FSC (collectively referred herein as the “IFRSs”).

(2)Basis of preparation

A. Except for the following items, these consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention:

(a)Financial assets and at fair value through profit or loss.
(b)Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income.

(c)Defined benefit liabilities recognised based on the net amount of pension fund assets less
present value of defined benefit obligation.

B. The preparation of financial statements in compliance with IFRSs requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process
of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement
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or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements are disclosed in Note 5.

(3)Basis of consolidation

A. Basis for preparation of consolidated financial statements:

(a) All subsidiaries are included in the Group’s consolidated financial statements. Subsidiaries
are all entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity. Consolidation of subsidiaries
begins from the date the Group obtains control of the subsidiaries and ceases when the Group
loses control of the subsidiaries.

(b)Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains or losses on transactions between
companies within the Group are eliminated. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
adjusted where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

(c)Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are attributed to the owners
of the parent and to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income is attributed to
the owners of the parent and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

(d)Changes in a parent’s ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not result in the parent losing
control of the subsidiary (transactions with non-controlling interests) are accounted for as
equity transactions, i.e. transactions with owners in their capacity as owners. Any difference
between the amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of
the consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity.

(e)When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the Group remeasures any investment retained
in the former subsidiary at its fair value. That fair value is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition of a financial asset or the cost on initial recognition of the associate or joint venture.
Any difference between fair value and carrying amount is recognised in profit or loss. All
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to the subsidiary
are reclassified to profit or loss on the same basis as would be required if the related assets or
liabilities were disposed of. That is, when the Group loses control of a subsidiary, all gains or
losses previously recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to the subsidiary
should be reclassified from equity to profit or loss, if such gains or losses would be reclassified
to profit or loss when the related assets or liabilities are disposed of.
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B. Subsidiaries included in the consolidated financial statements:

Ownership(%)

December 31,

Investor Subsidiary Main activities 2019 _ 2018 Description
The Company Freedom International Group  Holding company 100.00 100.00
Ltd.
" G.B.T,, Inc. Sales of computer 48.63  48.63
information products
” G.B.T. Technology Trading Promotion of computer 100.00 100.00
GmbH information products
" Nippon Giga-Byte Corp. Promotion of computer 100.00 100.00
information products
” GBT Tech. Co., Ltd. Promotion of computer 100.00 100.00
information products
" Giga-Byte Technology B.V. Sales of computer 100.00 100.00
information products
" Gigabyte Technology Pty. Ltd. Promotion of computer 100.00 100.00
information products
" Chi-Ga Investment Corp. Holding company 100.00 100.00
" Gigabyte Technology (India) ~ Promotion and repairing 100.00 100.00
Private Limited of computer information
products
" G-Style Co., Ltd. Selling of notebooks 100.00  100.00
" BYTE International Co., Ltd. = Repairing of computer 100.00 100.00
information products
" Giga-Byte Communications Selling of 99.86  99.86
Inc. communications
" Gigabyte Technology ESPANA Promotion of computer 100.00 100.00
S.L.U. information products
" Gigabyte Global Business Selling of ODM products - 100.00 Notel
Corporation
" Gigabyte Information Promotion of computer 100.00 100.00
Technology Commerce information products
Limited Company
" Gigabyte Technology LLC Promotion of computer 100.00  100.00
information products
Freedom International Charleston Investments Limited Holding company 100.00 100.00
Group Ltd.
" Giga Future Limited Holding company 100.00 100.00
" G.B.T. LBN Inc. Sales of computer 100.00 100.00
information products
” G.B.T. Inc. Sales of computer 51.37  51.37
information products
" Gigabyte Trading Inc. Selling of ODM products ~ 100.00 100.00
" Giga Advance (Labuan) Sales of computer 100.00 100.00
Limited information products
” Aorus Pte. Ltd. Promotion of computer 100.00 100.00
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Ownership(%)

December 31,

Investor Subsidiary Main activities 2019 _ 2018 Description
G.B.T. Technology Gigabyte Technology Poland ~ Promotion and repairing 100.00 100.00
Trading GmbH SPZ0.0. of computer information
products
Charleston Investments Dongguan Gigabyte Electronics Manufacturing of 100.00 100.00
Limited Co., Ltd. computer information
products
" Ningbo Giga-Byte International Sales of computer 100.00 100.00
Trade Co., Ltd. information products
" Ningbo Best Yield Technology Repairing of computer 100.00 100.00
Services Co., Ltd. information products
Giga Future Limited ~ Ningbo Giga-Byte Technology Manufacturing of 100.00 100.00
Co., Ltd. computer information
products
Ningbo Giga-Byte Ningbo Zhongjia Technology  Sales of computer 100.00 100.00
International Trade Co., Ltd. information products
Co., Ltd.
Chi-Ga Investment Gigatrend International Holding company 100.00 100.00
Corp. Investment Group Ltd.
" Giga-Trend International Venture capital 60.00 60.00
Management Group Ltd. management and
consulting business
" Gigazone Holdings Holding company 100.00 100.00 Note 2
Limited
" Selita Precision Co., Ltd. Manufacturing of bicycle ~ 100.00 100.00
and parts
" Green Share Co., Ltd. Wholesale of information - 51.00 Note3
system
" Senyun Precise Optical Co., Ltd Manufacturing and selling ~ 86.24  76.86 Note 4
of mold and industrial
plastic products
" GIGAIPC CO., LTD. Selling of computer 100.00 100.00
information products
Gigazone Holdings Gigazone International Selling of PC peripherals - 5227 Note5
Limited (Shenzhen)
Ningbo Zhongjia Gigazone International Selling of PC peripherals - 4773  Note5
Technology Co., Ltd.  (Shenzhen)
Ningbo BestYield Shenzhen BestYield Tech. Repairing of computer 100.00  100.00
Tech. Services Co., Services Co., Ltd. information products
Ltd.
" OGS Europe B.V. Selling of communication ~ 100.00  100.00
products
" Zaozhuang Bestyield Resources Recycling and selling of ~ 100.00 - Note 6
Recycling Co., Ltd. renewable resources
Senyun Precise Optical Dongguan Senyun Precise Selling of mold and 100.00  100.00
Co., Ltd Optical Co., Ltd industrial plastic
products

Note 1: This company has completed the liquidation process on April 17, 2019.

Note 2: This company resolved to liquidate on December 25, 2019.
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Note 3: This company has completed the liquidation process on December 24, 2019.

Note 4: On January 5, 2018 and December 25, 2018, Chi-Ga Investment Corp. increased its
capital investment in Senyun Precise Optical Co., Ltd. by cash in the amount of $248,091
and $102,275, respectively. After the acquisition, the total share interest ratio was 76.86%.
On December 20, 2019, Chi-Ga Investment Corp. increased its capital investment in
Senyun Precise Optical Co., Ltd. by cash in the amount of $262,878. After the acquisition,
the total share interest ratio was 86.24%.

Note 5: This company has completed the liquidation process on November 5, 2019.
Note 6: This company was newly established in 2019.

C. Subsidiaries not included in the consolidated financial statements: None.

D. Adjustments for subsidiaries with different balance sheet dates: None.

E. Significant restrictions: None.

F. Subsidiaries that have non-controlling interests that are material to the Group: None.
(4)Eoreign currency translation

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements are presented in New Taiwan dollars, which is
the Company’s functional currency and the Group’s presentation currency.

A. Foreign currency transactions and balances

(a)Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions or valuation where items are remeasured.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

(b)Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the period end are re-
translated at the exchange rates prevailing at the balance sheet date. Exchange differences
arising upon re-translation at the balance sheet date are recognised in profit or loss.

(c)Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies held at fair value
through profit or loss are re-translated at the exchange rates prevailing at the balance sheet
date; their translation differences are recognised in profit or loss. Non-monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies held at fair value through other comprehensive
income are re-translated at the exchange rates prevailing at the balance sheet date; their
translation differences are recognised in other comprehensive income. However, non-
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are not measured at
fair value are translated using the historical exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions.

(d)AIl other foreign exchange gains and losses based on the nature of those transactions are
presented in the statement of comprehensive income within ‘other gains and losses’.

B. Translation of foreign operations
(a) The operating results and financial position of all the group entities and joint arrangements
that have a functional currency different from the presentation currency are translated into
the presentation currency as follows:
i. Assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are translated at the closing
exchange rate at the date of that balance sheet;
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Ii. Income and expenses for each statement of comprehensive income are translated at
average exchange rates of that period; and
ii. All resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income.
(b)When the foreign operation partially disposed of or sold is a joint arrangements, exchange
differences that were recorded in other comprehensive income are proportionately
reclassified to profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on sale. In addition, even when the
Group still retains partial interest in the former foreign joint arrangements after losing joint
control of the former joint arrangement, such transactions should be accounted for as
disposal of all interest in these foreign operations.

(c)When the foreign operation partially disposed of or sold is a subsidiary, cumulative exchange
differences that were recorded in other comprehensive income are proportionately
transferred to the non-controlling interest in this foreign operation. In addition, even when
the Group still retains partial interest in the former foreign subsidiary after losing control of
the former foreign subsidiary, such transactions should be accounted for as disposal of all
interest in the foreign operation.

(5)Classification of current and non-current items

A. Assets that meet one of the following criteria are classified as current assets; otherwise they are
classified as non-current assets:

(a) Assets arising from operating activities that are expected to be realised, or are intended to be
sold or consumed within the normal operating cycle;

(b)Assets held mainly for trading purposes;

(c)Assets that are expected to be realised within twelve months from the balance sheet date;

(d)Cash and cash equivalents, excluding restricted cash and cash equivalents and those that are

to be exchanged or used to pay off liabilities more than twelve months after the balance sheet
date.

B. Liabilities that meet one of the following criteria are classified as current liabilities; otherwise
they are classified as non-current liabilities:

(a)Liabilities that are expected to be settled within the normal operating cycle;
(b)Liabilities arising mainly from trading activities;
(c)Liabilities that are to be settled within twelve months from the balance sheet date;

(d)Liabilities for which the repayment date cannot be extended unconditionally to more than
twelve months after the balance sheet date. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the
counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its
classification.

(6)Cash equivalents

Cash equivalents refer to short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. Time deposits
that meet the definition above and are held for the purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments
in operations are classified as cash equivalents, or shall be classified as financial assets at amortised
cost — current or financial assets at amortised cost — non-current based on its maturity date if the
maturity is longer than three months.
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(7)Einancial assets at fair value through profit or loss

A.

B.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are financial assets that are not measured at
amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income.

On a regular way purchase or sale basis, financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised and derecognised using settlement date accounting.

. At initial recognition, the Group measures the financial assets at fair value and recognises the

transaction costs in profit or loss. The Group subsequently measures the financial assets at fair
value, and recognises the gain or loss in profit or loss.

. The Group recognises the dividend income when the right to receive payment is established,

future economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of
the dividend can be measured reliably.

(8)Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

A.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income comprise equity securities
which are not held for trading, and for which the Group has made an irrevocable election at initial
recognition to recognise changes in fair value in other comprehensive income and debt
instruments which meet all of the following criteria:

(a) The objective of the Group’s business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash
flows and selling financial assets; and

(b) The assets’ contractual cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest.

. On a regular way purchase or sale basis, financial assets at fair value through other

comprehensive income are recognised and derecognised using trade date accounting.

. At initial recognition, the Group measures the financial assets at fair value plus transaction costs.

The Group subsequently measures the financial assets at fair value:

(a) The changes in fair value of equity investments that were recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to retained earnings and are not reclassified to profit or loss following
the derecognition of the investment. Dividends are recognised as revenue when the right to
receive payment is established, future economic benefits associated with the dividend will
flow to the Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

(b) Except for the recognition of impairment loss, interest income and gain or loss on foreign
exchange which are recognised in profit or loss, the changes in fair value of debt instruments
are taken through other comprehensive income. When the financial asset is derecognised, the
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified
from equity to profit or loss.

(9)Financial assets at amortised cost

A.

B.

Financial assets at amortised cost are those that meet all of the following criteria:
(a) The objective of the Group’s business model is achieved by collecting contractual cash flows.
(b) The assets’ contractual cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest.

The Group’s time deposits which do not fall under cash equivalents are those with a short
maturity period and are measured at initial investment amount as the effect of discounting is
immaterial.
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(10) Accounts and notes receivable

A. Accounts and notes receivable entitle the Group a legal right to receive consideration in
exchange for transferred goods or rendered services.

B. The short-term accounts and notes receivable without bearing interest are subsequently
measured at initial invoice amount as the effect of discounting is immaterial.

(11) Impairment of financial assets

For financial assets at amortised cost, at each reporting date, the Group recognises the impairment
provision for 12 months expected credit losses if there has not been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition or recognises the impairment provision for the lifetime expected credit
losses (ECLs) if such credit risk has increased since initial recognition after taking into
consideration all reasonable and verifiable information that includes forecasts. On the other hand,
for accounts receivable that do not contain a significant financing component, the Group
recognises the impairment provision for lifetime ECLs.

(12) Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to receive the cash flows

from the financial asset expire.

(13) Leasing arrangements (lessor) — operating leases

Lease income from an operating lease (net of any incentives given to the lessee) is recognised in

profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

(14) Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined using the

weighted-average method. The cost of finished goods and work in progress comprises raw

materials, direct labour, other direct costs and related production overheads (allocated based on
normal operating capacity). It excludes borrowing costs. The item by item approach is used in
applying the lower of cost and net realisable value. Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated cost of completion and applicable
variable selling expenses.

(15) Investments accounted for using equity method / associates

A. Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant influence but not control. In
general, it is presumed that the investor has significant influence, if an investor holds, directly
or indirectly 20 percent or more of the voting power of the investee. Investments in associates
are accounted for using the equity method and are initially recognised at cost.

B. The Group’s share of its associates’ post-acquisition profits or losses is recognised in profit or
loss, and its share of post-acquisition movements in other comprehensive income is recognised
in other comprehensive income. When the Group’s share of losses in an associate equals or
exceeds its interest in the associate, the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.

C. When changes in an associate’s equity that are not recognised in profit or loss or other
comprehensive income of the associate and such changes not affecting the Group’s ownership
percentage of the associate, the Group recognises change in ownership interests in the associate
in ‘capital surplus’ in proportion to its ownership.

D. Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its associates are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s interest in the associates. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
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transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
associates have been adjusted where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted
by the Group.

E. In the case that an associate issues new shares and the Group does not subscribe or acquire new
shares proportionately, which results in a change in the Group’s ownership percentage of the
associate but maintains significant influence on the associate, then ‘capital surplus’ and
‘investments accounted for under the equity method’ shall be adjusted for the increase or
decrease of its share of equity interest. If the above condition causes a decrease in the Group’s
ownership percentage of the associate, in addition to the above adjustment, the amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to the associate are
reclassified to profit or loss proportionately on the same basis as would be required if the
relevant assets or liabilities were disposed of.

F. Upon loss of significant influence over an associate, the Group remeasures any investment
retained in the former associate at its fair value. Any difference between fair value and carrying
amount is recognised in profit or loss.

G. When the Group disposes its investment in an associate and loses significant influence over this
associate, the amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to the
associate, are reclassified to profit or loss, on the same basis as would be required if the relevant
assets or liabilities were disposed of. If it retains significant influence over this associate the
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to the associate are
reclassified to profit or loss proportionately in accordance with the aforementioned approach.

H. When the Group disposes its investment in an associate and loses significant influence over this
associate, the amounts previously recognised as capital surplus in relation to the associate are
transferred to profit or loss. If it retains significant influence over this associate, the amounts
previously recognised as capital surplus in relation to the associate are transferred to profit or
loss proportionately.

(16) Investment accounted for using equity method — joint ventures

The Group accounts for its interest in a joint venture using equity method. Unrealised profits and
losses arising from the transactions between the Group and its joint venture are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s interest in the joint venture. However, when the transaction provides
evidence of a reduction in the net realisable value of current assets or an impairment loss, all such
losses shall be recognised immediately. When the Group’s share of losses in a joint venture equals
or exceeds its interest in the joint venture together with any other unsecured receivables, the Group
does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the joint venture.

(17) Property, plant and equipment

A. Property, plant and equipment are initially recorded at cost. Borrowing costs incurred during
the construction period are capitalised.

B. Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount
of the replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or
loss during the financial period in which they are incurred.
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C. Land is not depreciated. Other property, plant and equipment apply cost model and are
depreciated using the straight-line method to allocate their cost over their estimated useful lives.
Each part of an item of property, plant, and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation
to the total cost of the item must be depreciated separately.

D. The assets’ residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at each balance sheet date. If expectations for the assets’ residual values and useful
lives differ from previous estimates or the patterns of consumption of the assets’ future
economic benefits embodied in the assets have changed significantly, any change is accounted
for as a change in estimate under IAS 8, ‘Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Errors’, from the date of the change. The estimated useful lives of property, plant
and equipment are as follows:

Buildings and structures 3~55 years
Machinery and equipment 3~10 years
Research and development equipment 3~ 8 years
Office equipment 2~20 years
Other tangible operating assets 1~15 years
(18) Leasing arrangements (lessee) — right-of-use assets/ lease liabilities
Effective 2019

A. Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability at the date at
which the leased asset is available for use by the Group. For short-term leases or leases of low-
value assets, lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.

B. Lease liabilities include the net present value of the remaining lease payments at the

commencement date, discounted using the incremental borrowing interest rate. Lease payments
are comprised of the following: Fixed payments, less any lease incentives receivable.
The Group subsequently measures the lease liability at amortised cost using the interest method
and recognises interest expense over the lease term. The lease liability is remeasured and the
amount of remeasurement is recognised as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset when there
are changes in the lease term or lease payments and such changes do not arise from contract
modifications.

C. At the commencement date, the right-of-use asset is stated at cost comprising the following:
(a) The amount of the initial measurement of lease liability;
(b) Any lease payments made at or before the commencement date;
(c) Any initial direct costs incurred by the lessee.

The right-of-use asset is measured subsequently using the cost model and is depreciated from
the commencement date to the earlier of the end of the asset’s useful life or the end of the lease
term. When the lease liability is remeasured, the amount of remeasurement is recognised as an
adjustment to the right-of-use asset.
(19) Operating leases (lessee)
Prior to 2019

Payments made under an operating lease (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are
recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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(20) Investment property

An investment property is stated initially at its cost and measured subsequently using the cost
model. Except for land, investment property is depreciated on a straight-line basis over its
estimated useful life of 20 years.

(21) Intangible assets

A. Computer software

Computer software is stated at cost and amortised on a straight-line basis over its estimated
useful life of 1 to 10 years.

B. Trademark right (indefinite useful life)

Trademark right is stated at cost and regarded as having an indefinite useful life as it was
assessed to generate continuous net cash inflow in the foreseeable future. Trademark right is
not amortised, but is tested annually for impairment.

(22) Impairment of non-financial assets

A. The Group assesses at each balance sheet date the recoverable amounts of those assets where
there is an indication that they are impaired. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount
by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount
is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell or value in use. When the circumstances
or reasons for recognizing impairment loss for an asset in prior years no longer exist or diminish,
the impairment loss is reversed. The increased carrying amount due to reversal should not be
more than what the depreciated or amortised historical cost would have been if the impairment
had not been recognised.

B. The recoverable amounts of intangible assets with an indefinite useful life are evaluated

periodically. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount.

(23) Borrowings
Borrowings comprise long-term and short-term bank borrowings. Borrowings are recognised
initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently stated at
amortised cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest
method.
(24) Notes and account payable
A. Accounts payable are liabilities for purchases of raw materials, goods or services and notes
payable are those resulting from operating and non-operating activities.
B. The short-term notes and accounts payable without bearing interest are subsequently measured
at initial invoice amount as the effect of discounting is immaterial.
(25) Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation specified in the contract is either
discharged or cancelled or expires.
(26) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events, and it is probable that an outflow of economic resources will be required to settle
the obligation and the amount of the obligation can be reliably estimated. Provisions are measured

-216-



at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation on the
balance sheet date, which is discounted using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects the current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the obligation. When discounting
is used, the increase in the provision due to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.
(27) Employee benefits
A. Short-term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits are measured at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected
to be paid in respect of service rendered by employees in a period and should be recognised as
expenses in that period when the employees render service.

B. Pensions
(a) Defined contribution plans

For defined contribution plans, the contributions are recognised as pension expenses when
they are due on an accrual basis. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent
of a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments.

(b)Defined benefit plans

I. Net obligation under a defined benefit plan is defined as the present value of an amount
of pension benefits that employees will receive on retirement for their services with the
Group in current period or prior periods. The liability recognised in the balance sheet in
respect of defined benefit pension plans is the present value of the defined benefit
obligation at the balance sheet date less the fair value of plan assets. The net defined
benefit obligation is calculated annually by independent actuaries using the projected unit
credit method. The rate used to discount is determined by using interest rates of
government bonds (at the balance sheet date) of a currency and term consistent with the
currency and term of the employment benefit obligations.

ii. Remeasurement arising on defined benefit plans are recognised in other comprehensive
income in the period in which they arise and are recorded as retained earnings.

iii. Past service costs are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
C. Termination benefits

Termination benefits are employee benefits provided in exchange for the termination of
employment as a result from either the Group’s decision to terminate an employee’s
employment before the normal retirement date, or an employee’s decision to accept an offer of
redundancy benefits in exchange for the termination of employment. The Group recognises
expense as it can no longer withdraw an offer of termination benefits or it recognises relating
restructuring costs, whichever is earlier. Benefits that are expected to be due more than 12
months after balance sheet date shall be discounted to their present value.

D. Employees’ compensation, directors’ and supervisors’ remuneration

Employees’ compensation and directors’ and supervisors’ remuneration are recognised as
expenses and liabilities, provided that such recognition is required under legal obligation or
constructive obligation and those amounts can be reliably estimated. Any difference between
the resolved amounts and the subsequently actual distributed amounts is accounted for as
changes in estimates. If employee compensation is distributed by shares, the Group calculates
the number of shares based on the closing price at the previous day of the board meeting
resolution.
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(28) Employee share-based payment

For the equity-settled share-based payment arrangements, the employee services received are
measured at the fair value of the equity instruments granted at the grant date, and are recognised
as compensation cost over the vesting period, with a corresponding adjustment to equity. The fair
value of the equity instruments granted shall reflect the impact of market vesting conditions and
non-market vesting conditions. Compensation cost is subject to adjustment based on the service
conditions that are expected to be satisfied and the estimates of the number of equity instruments
that are expected to vest under the non-market vesting conditions at each balance sheet date.
Ultimately, the amount of compensation cost recognised is based on the number of equity
instruments that eventually vest. The aforementioned grant date represents the grant date resolved
by the Board of Directors.

(29) Income tax

A. The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in profit
or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income
or items recognised directly in equity, in which cases the tax is recognised in other
comprehensive income or equity.

B. The current income tax expense is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries where the Company and its
subsidiaries operate and generate taxable income. Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in tax returns with respect to situations in accordance with applicable tax regulations. It
establishes provisions where appropriate based on the amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities. An additional tax is levied on the unappropriated retained earnings and is recorded
as income tax expense in the year the stockholders resolve to retain the earnings.

C. Deferred income tax is recognised, using the balance sheet liability method, on temporary
differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the consolidated balance sheet. However, the deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises
from initial recognition of goodwill or of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a
business combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit or loss. Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising on investments
in subsidiaries and associates, except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws)
that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to
apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability
is settled.

D. Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised. At each
balance sheet date, unrecognised and recognised deferred income tax assets are reassessed.

E. Current income tax assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the balance
sheet when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset on the balance sheet when the entity has the legally
enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current tax liabilities and they are levied by
the same taxation authority on either the same entity or different entities that intend to settle on
a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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F.

A deferred tax asset shall be recognised for the carryforward of unused tax credits resulting
from acquisitions of equipment or technology, research and development expenditures and
equity investments to the extent that it is possible that future taxable profit will be available
against which the unused tax credits can be utilised.

(30) Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares or stock options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

(31) Dividends

Dividends are recorded in the Company’s financial statements in the period in which they are
resolved by the Company’s shareholders. Cash dividends are recorded as liabilities.

(32) Revenue recognition

Sales of goods

A. The Group manufactures and sells computer peripheral and component parts products. Sales

are recognised when control of the products has transferred, being when the products are
delivered to the customer. Delivery occurs when the products have been shipped to the specific
location, the risks of obsolescence and loss have been transferred to the customer, and either
customer has accepted the products in accordance with the sales contract, or the Group has

objective evidence that all criteria for acceptance have been satisfied.

. Revenue from sales is recognised based on the price specified in the contract, net of the

estimated business tax, volume discounts, sales returns and allowances. Accumulated
experience is used to estimate and provide for the volume discounts, using the expected value
method, and revenue is only recognised to the extent that it is highly probable that a significant
reversal will not occur. The estimation is subject to an assessment at each reporting date. As the
time interval between the transfer of committed goods or service and the payment of customer
does not exceed one year, the Group does not adjust the transaction price to reflect the time

value of money.

C. The Group’s obligation to provide a repair for faulty products under the standard warranty terms

D.

1s recognised as a provision.
A receivable is recognised when the goods are delivered as this is the point in time that the
consideration is unconditional because only the passage of time is required before the payment

1s due.

(33) Business combinations

A. The Group uses the acquisition method to account for business combinations. The

consideration transferred for an acquisition is measured as the fair value of the assets
transferred, liabilities incurred or assumed and equity instruments issued at the acquisition date,
plus the fair value of any assets and liabilities resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement. All acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred. Identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are
measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. For each business combination,
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the Group measures at the acquisition date components of non-controlling interests in the
acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to the proportionate share
of the entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation at the present ownership instruments’
proportionate share in the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All
other non-controlling interests should be measured at the acquisition-date fair value.

B. The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquire and the fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair value of
the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed is recorded as goodwill at the
acquisition date. If the total of consideration transferred, non-controlling interest in the
acquiree recognised and the fair value of previously held equity interest in the acquiree is less
than the fair value of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed, the difference
is recognised directly in profit or loss on the acquisition date.

(34) Operating segments

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision-maker. The Group’s chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible
for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments, has been identified
as the Board of Directors that makes strategic decisions.

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND KEY SOURCES OF
ASSUMPTION UNCERTAINTY

The preparation of these consolidated financial statements requires management to make critical
judgements in applying the Group’s accounting policies and make critical assumptions and estimates
concerning future events. Assumptions and estimates may differ from the actual results and are
continually evaluated and adjusted based on historical experience and other factors. Such assumptions
and estimates have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year; and the related information is addressed below:

(1) Critical judgements in applying the Group’s accounting policies

None.
(2) Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

Evaluation of inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value. For inventory which is saleable
and obsolete inventory that is checked item by item, the net realizable value are determined based
on past experience on industry. Management’s judgement on determining net realizable value
involves material judgement.

6. DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTS

(1) Cash and cash equivalents

December 31,2019 December 31, 2018

Cash on hand and revolving funds $ 4,149 $ 4,395
Checking accounts and demand deposits 4,974,316 6,638,664
Time deposits 4,929,380 1,967,848

$ 9,907,845 $ 8,610,907
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A. The Group transacts with a variety of financial institutions all with high credit quality to
disperse credit risk, so it expects that the probability of counterparty default is remote.

B. The Group reclassified the pledged bank deposits and time deposits with more than three
months maturity to “Financial assets at amortised cost”, please refer to Notes 6(4) and 8 for the
details.

(2) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss-current

Financial assets mandatorily measured at fair value December 31, 2019 December 31, 2018
through profit or loss

Listed stocks $ 48979 $ 165,138
Emerging stocks - 53,478
Unlisted stocks 67,715 154,273
Beneficiary certificates 579,020 343,447
Government bonds 16,298 125,586
Corporate bond 50,127 104,373
762,139 946,295
Valuation adjustment (including allowance for ( 32,712) ( 55,064)

uncollectible accounts)
$ 729,427 $ 891,231

A. Amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss are listed below:

Years ended December 31,

2019 2018
Financial assets mandatorily measured at fair value
through profit or loss
Equity instruments $ 48,483 ($ 34,281)
Debt instrument 10,414 ( 2,353)
Beneficiary certificates 4,719 357
$ 63,616 ($ 36,277)

B. The Group has no financial assets at fair value through profit or loss pledged to others.
C. Information relating to credit risk of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is
provided in Note 12(2).
(3) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income - non-current
December 31, 2019 December 31, 2018

Equity instruments

Listed stocks $ 888,387 $ 888,387
Unlisted stocks 44,364 44,364
932,751 932,751

Valuation adjustment (including allowance for 1,291,039 781,593

uncollectible accounts)
$ 2,223,790 $ 1,714,344
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A. The Group has elected to classify investments that are considered to be strategic investments as
financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income. The fair value of such
investments amounted to $2,223,790 and $1,714,344 as at December 31, 2019 and 2018,
respecitvely.

B. In June 2018, the Group sold the investments on Ningbo Minth Automotive Electronic
Technology Co., Ltd., whose fair value was $9,010 to adjust the stock position, resulting in an
accumulated loss on disposal of $480.

C. Amounts recognised in profit or loss and other comprehensive income in relation to the

financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income are listed below:

Years ended December 31,
2019 2018

Equity instruments at fair value through other
comprehensive income

Fair value change recognised in other
comprehensive income $ 509,446 $ 127,094

Cumulative losses reclassified to retained
earnings due to derecognition $ - (8 480)

Dividend income recognised in profit or loss
held at end of year $ 132,013 $ 49,888

D. As at December 31, 2019 and 2018, without taking into account any collateral held or other

credit enhancements, the maximum exposure to credit risk in respect of the amount that best
represents the financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income held by the
Group was $2,223,790 and $1,714,344, respectively.

E. The Group has no financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income pledged
to others.

F. Information relating to credit risk of financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive

income is provided in Note 12(2).

(4) Financial assets at amortised cost

December 31, 2019 December 31, 2018

Current items:

Time deposits with more than three months $ 701,246 $ 1,162,817

maturity
Pledged bank deposits 4,516 -
$ 705,762 $ 1,162,817

Non-current items:
Pledged bank deposits $ 211,075 $ -
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A. Amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to financial assets at amortised cost are listed

below:

Years ended December 31,
2019 2018
Interest income $ 23464 $ 13,868

B. As at December 31, 2019 and 2018, without taking into account any collateral held or other

credit enhancements, the maximum exposure to credit risk in respect of the amount that best
represents the financial assets at amortised cost held by the Group was $916,837 and $1,162,817,
respectively.

C. Details of the Group’s financial assets at amortised cost pledged to others as collateral are
provided in Note 8.

D. Information relating to credit risk of financial assets at amortised cost is provided in Note 12(2).

(5) Notes and accounts receivable

December 31, 2019 December 31, 2018

Notes receivable $ 299% $ 3,047
Accounts receivable $ 6,799,600 $ 5,971,900
Less: Allowance for uncollectible accounts ( 180.,458) ( 158,632)

$ 6,619,142 $ 5,813,268

A. Details of notes receivable of the Group that were not yet past due and ageing analysis of
accounts receivable are provided in Note 12(2).

B. As of December 31,2019 and 2018, and January 1, 2018, the balances of receivables (including
notes receivable) from contracts with customers amounted to $6,802,596, $5,974,947 and
$6,858,790, respectively.

C. The Group has no notes and accounts receivable pledged to others.

D. As at December 31, 2019 and 2018, without taking into account any collateral held or other
credit enhancements, the maximum exposure to credit risk in respect of the amount that best
represents the Group’s notes and accounts receivable were $2,996 and $3,047, $6,619,142 and
$5,813,268, respectively.

E. Information relating to credit risk of accounts receivable and notes receivable is provided in
Note 12(2).
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(6) Inventories

December 31, 2019
Allowance for

Cost valuation loss Book value
Raw materials and supplies $ 3,029,112 ($ 137,118) $ 2,891,994
Work in progress 2,018,892 ( 29,251) 1,989,641
Finished goods and merchandise
inventories 6,780,943 ( 318,286) 6,462,657
$ 11,828,947 (3 484,655) $ 11,344,292
December 31, 2018
Allowance for
Cost valuation loss Book value
Raw materials and supplies $ 3,921,139 ($ 115,790) $ 3,805,349
Work in progress 1,068,007 ( 28,751) 1,039,256
Finished goods and merchandise
inventories 7,504,775 ( 829,227) 6,675,548

$ 12,493,921 ($ 973,768) $ 11,520,153

The cost of inventories recognised as expense for the year:

Years ended December 31,

2019 2018
Cost of inventories sold $ 51,845,122 $ 49,571,351
Cost of warranty 835,699 557,134
(Gain on reversal of valuation) loss on valuation ( 490,436) 664,529
Others 7,362

$ 52,190,385 $ 50,800,376
For the year ended December 31, 2019, the Group reversed a previous inventory write-down and
accounted for as reduction of cost of goods sold because of the sale of part of its inventories which
were declining in market value.

(7) Other current assets

December 31, 2019 December 31, 2018

Pledged assets $ - $ 106,022
Others 20,704 65,334
$ 20,704 $ 171,356

Information about the restricted assets that were pledged to others as collateral is provided in Note
8.
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(8) Investments accounted for using the equity method

2019 2018
At January 1 $ 48,519 $ 76,901
Share of loss of investments accounted for using ( 25,768) ( 26,183)
equity method
Changes in other equity items ( 1,558) ( 2,199)
At December 31 $ 21,193 $ 48,519

December 31, 2019 December 31, 2018

Joint ventures
LCKT Yuan Chang Technology Co., Ltd. (Cayman) $ 21,193 $ 48,519

A. Abovementioned investments accounted for using equity method are based on investee
companies’ financial statements audited by other auditors.

B. The Group has no material joint venture investment. The Group’s share of the operating results
of the aforementioned investments are summarized below:

The Group’s interests in all individually immaterial joint ventures and the Group’s share of the
operating results are summarized below:

Years ended December 31,
2019 2018
Comprehensive loss (% 27,326) ($ 28,382)
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(10) Leasing arrangements — lessee

Effective 2019

A. The Group leases various assets including land, buildings and transportation equipment.
Rental contracts are typically made for periods of 1 to 10 years. Lease terms are negotiated
on an individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. The lease
agreements do not impose covenants, but leased assets may not be used as security for
borrowing purposes.

B. Short-term leases with a lease term of 12 months or less comprise of buildings and business
vehicles. Low-value assets comprise multifunction printers. As at December 31, 2019,
payments of lease commitments for short-term leases amounted to $3,331.

C. The carrying amount of right-of-use assets and the depreciation charge are as follows:

Year ended
December 31, 2019 December 31, 2019

Carrying amount  Depreciation charge

Buildings $ 113,417 $ 65,801
Land-use right 38,880 1,503
Transportation equipment 30,401 25,024

$ 182,698 $ 92,328

D. For the year ended December 31, 2019, the additions to right-of-use assets was $45,939.
E. The information on profit and loss accounts relating to lease contracts is as follows:

Year ended
December 31, 2019

Items affecting profit or loss

Interest expense on lease liabilities $ 3,307
Expense on short-term lease contracts 88,479
Expense on leases of low-value assets 6,204

F. For the year ended December 31, 2019, the Group’s total cash outflow for leases was $189,020.
(11) Leasing arrangements — lessor

Effective 2019

A. The Group leases various assets including land and buildings. Rental contracts are typically
made for periods of 1 and 7 years. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and
contain a wide range of different terms and conditions.

B. For the year ended December 31, 2019, the Group recognised rent income in the amount of
$18,199, based on the operating lease agreement, which does not include variable lease
payments.
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C. The maturity analysis of the lease payments under the operating leases is as follows:
December 31, 2019

2020
2021
2022
2023

(12) Investment property

At January 1
Cost

Accumulated depreciation

Opening net book amount
Depreciation charge

Net exchange differences
Closing net book amount

At December 31
Cost
Accumulated depreciation
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$

8,860
6,324
5,993
2,781

23,958

2019
Buildings

$ 109,285

( 51,970)
$ 57,315

$ 57,315
( 4,530)
( 1,794)
$ 50991

$ 105,549

( 54,558)
$ 50,991



2018

Land Buildings Total
At January 1
Cost $ 82,275 $ 150,144 $ 232,419
Accumulated depreciation - ( 49.427) ( 49.427)
$ 82,275 $ 100,717 $ 182,992
At January 1 $ 82,275 $ 100,717 $ 182,992
Reclassifications ( 82,275) ( 32,124) ( 119,399)
Depreciation charge - ( 5,026) ( 5,026)
Net exchange differences - ( 1,252) ( 1,252)
At December 31 $ - $ 57,315 $ 57,315
At December 31
Cost $ - $ 109,285 $ 109,285
Accumulated depreciation - ( 51,970) ( 51,970)
$ - $ 57,315 $ 57,315

A.Rental income from investment property and direct operating expenses arising from
investment property are shown below:

Years ended December 31,
2019 2018
Rental income from investment property $ 8,411 $ 7,859

Direct operating expenses arising from the

investment property that generated rental income

in the year $ 4530 $ 5,026

B. The fair value of the investment property held by the Group as at December 31, 2019 and
2018 was $78,646 and $85,295, respectively, which was valuated with reference to the future
rental income and the related discounted cash flows, which was categorized within Level 3 in
the fair value hierarchy. Key assumptions are as follows:
December 31, 2019 December 31, 2018

Discount rate 3.130% 3.250%
C. The Group has no investment property pledged to others.

(13) Other non-current assets

December 31, 2019 December 31, 2018

Prepayments for purchase of business facilities $ 144,001 $ -
Guarantee deposits paid 62,388 65,703
Pledged assets - 66,196
Land-use right - 41,743
Other 46,796 75,528

$ 253,185 $ 249,170

Information about the restricted assets that were pledged to others as collateral is provided in
Note 8.
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(14) Short-term borrowings

December 31, 2019 Interest rate range  Collateral

Unsecured borrowings $ 245,000 1.59%~2.60% None
Secured borrowings 20,000 1.79%~2.00% Bank deposits
Loan for purchase of raw material 24,088 2.60% None

$ 289,088

December 31, 2018 Interest rate range  Collateral

Unsecured borrowings $ 175,000 1.79%~2.00% None
Secured borrowings 110,000 1.59%~1.65% Bank deposits
Loan for purchase of raw material 24,722 1.59% None

$ 309,722

For the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, the Group’s interest expense from short-term

and long-term borrowings recognised in profit or loss were $6,740 and $3,835, respectively.

(15) Other payables

December 31, 2019 December 31, 2018

Salary and bonus payable $ 2,594,847 $ 2,668,600
Employees' compensation and directors' and

supervisors' remuneration payable 305,821 376,051
Marketing fee payable 252,697 205,817
Shipping and freight-in payable 158,308 129,375
Royalties payable 75,159 66,776
Others 548,078 387,931

$ 3,934,910 $ 3,834,550
(16) Provisions — current
2019
Warranty Litigation Total

At January 1 $ 433,059 $ - $ 433,059
Additional provisions 835,699 43,230 878,929
Used during the year ( 755.190) - ( 755.190)
At December 31 $ 513,568 § 43230 $ 56,798
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2018

Warranty Litigation Total
At January 1 $ 444,706 $ - 3 44,706
Additional provisions 557,134 - 57,134
Used during the year ( 568,781) - ( 568,781)
At December 31 $ 433,059 $ - 3 433,059

Analysis of total provisions:

A. Warranty
The Group gives warranties on the peripherals and accessories of computer hardware sold.
Provision for warranty is estimated based on the historical repair records of the product.

B. Legal claims
On October 27, 2019, certain customers filed a lawsuit against the Group with the Court of

First Instance for contract damages. In the directors’ opinion, after taking appropriate legal
advice, the outcome of these legal claims may potentially result to a loss of $43,230 to the
Group to compensate the customers. Therefore, a provision of $43,230 is recognised for these

legal claims and recorded as other losses.

(17) Other current liabilities

December 31, 2019 December 31, 2018

Long-term borrowings, current portion $ 7,667 $ 8,000
Other 228,994 304,121
$ 236,661 $ 312,121
(18) Long-term borrowings
Type of Borrowing period Interest
borrowings and repayment term rate range Collateral December 31, 2019
Unsecured Borrowing period is from 1.92% None § 1,667

borrowings October 30, 2015 to October 30,
2020; interest is repayable

Secured Borrowing period is from 2.00% None 9,000
borrowings December 3, 2018 to May 15,
2021; principal is repayable in
installments by 3 months from
February 15, 2019.
Less: Current portion ( 7,667)

$ 3,000
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Type of Borrowing period Interest
borrowings and repayment term rate range Collateral December 31, 2018
Unsecured Borrowing period is from 1.92% None § 3,833
borrowings October 30, 2015 to October 30,
2020; interest is repayable

Secured Borrowing period is from 2.00% None 15,000
borrowings December 3, 2018 to May 15,
2021; principal is repayable in
installments by 3 months from
February 15, 2019.
Less: Current portion ( 8.000)

$ 10,833

(19) Pensions

A. The Company and its domestic subsidiaries have a defined benefit pension plan in accordance
with the Labor Standards Law, covering all regular employees’ service years prior to the
enforcement of the Labor Pension Act on July 1, 2005 and service years thereafter of
employees who chose to continue to be subject to the pension mechanism under the Law.
Under the defined benefit pension plan, two units are accrued for each year of service for the
first 15 years and one unit for each additional year thereafter, subject to a maximum of 45
units. Pension benefits are based on the number of units accrued and the average monthly
salaries and wages of the last 6 months prior to retirement. The Company and its domestic
subsidiaries contribute monthly an amount equal to 2% of the employees’ monthly salaries
and wages to the retirement fund deposited with Bank of Taiwan, the trustee, under the name
of the independent retirement fund committee. Also, the Company and its domestic
subsidiaries would assess the balance in the aforementioned labor pension reserve account by
December 31, every year. If the account balance is insufficient to pay the pension calculated
by the aforementioned method, to the employees expected to be qualify for retirement in the
following year, the Company and its domestic subsidiaries will make contributions for the
deficit by next March.

(a) The amounts recognised in the balance sheet are as follows:
December 31, 2019 December 31, 2018

Present value of defined benefit obligations  ($ 800,796) (% 764,063)
Fair value of plan assets 228,540 221,165
Net defined benefit liability $ 572,256) ($ 542,898)
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(b) Movements in net defined benefit liabilities are as follows:

Balance at January 1

Current service cost
Interest (expense) income
Past service cost

Remeasurements:

Return on plan assets (excluding
amounts included in interest income
or expense)

Change in demographic assumptions

Change in financial assumptions

Experience adjustments

Pension fund contribution
Paid pension
Balance at December 31

Balance at January 1
Current service cost
Interest (expense) income
Past service cost

Remeasurements:

Return on plan assets (excluding
amounts included in interest income
or expense)

Change in demographic assumptions

Change in financial assumptions

Experience adjustments

Pension fund contribution
Paid pension
Balance at December 31

2019
Present value of  Fair value

defined benefit of Net defined
obligations plan assets  benefit liability
(% 764,063) $ 221,165 ($ 542,898)
( 3,570) - ( 3,570)
( 7,602) 2,241 ( 5,361)
4,684 - 4,684
( 770,551) 223,406 ( 547,145)
- 7,863 7,863
( 6,684) - ( 6,684)
( 24,306) - ( 24,306)
( 5,957) - ( 5,957)
( 36,947) 7,863 ( 29,084)
- 3,673 3,673
6,702 ( 6,702) -
% 800,796) $ 228,240 ($ 572,556)

2018
Present value of  Fair value

defined benefit of Net defined
obligations plan assets  benefit liability
(% 776,787) $ 218,767 ($ 558,020)
( 4,735) - ( 4,735)
( 9,657) 2,770 ( 6,887)
4,496 - 4,496
( 786,683) 221,537 ( 565,146)
- 6,220 6,220
( 3,099) - ( 3,099)
( 24,054) -( 24,054)
38,269 - 38,269
11,116 6,220 17,336
- 4,912 4,912
11,504 ( 11,504) -
% 764,063) $ 221,165 ($ 542,898)
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(c) The Bank of Taiwan was commissioned to manage the Fund of the Company’s and
domestic subsidiaries’ defined benefit pension plan in accordance with the Fund’s annual
investment and utilisation plan and the “Regulations for Revenues, Expenditures,
Safeguard and Utilisation of the Labor Retirement Fund” (Article 6: The scope of
utilisation for the Fund includes deposit in domestic or foreign financial institutions,
investment in domestic or foreign listed, over-the-counter, or private placement equity
securities, investment in domestic or foreign real estate securitization products, etc.). With
regard to the utilisation of the Fund, its minimum earnings in the annual distributions on
the final financial statements shall be no less than the earnings attainable from the amounts
accrued from two-year time deposits with the interest rates offered by local banks. If the
earnings is less than aforementioned rates, government shall make payment for the deficit
after being authorized by the Regulator. The Company and its domestic subsidiaries have
no right to participate in managing and operating that fund and hence the Company and its
domestic subsidiaries are unable to disclose the classification of plan assets fair value in
accordance with IAS 19 paragraph 142. The composition of fair value of plan assets as of
December 31, 2019 and 2018 is given in the Annual Labor Retirement Fund Utilisation
Report published by the government.

(d) The principal actuarial assumptions used were as follows:

Years ended December 31,
2019 2018
Discount rate 0.75% 1.00%

Future salary increases 3.00% 3.00%

Assumptions regarding future mortality experience are set based on actuarial advice in
accordance with 2012 Taiwan Standard Ordinary Experience Mortality Table.
Because the main actuarial assumption changed, the present value of defined benefit
obligation is affected. The analysis was as follows:
Discount rate Future salary increases
Increase 0.25% Decrease 0.25% Increase 0.25% Decrease 0.25%
December 31, 2019

Effect on present
value of defined
benefit obligation ($ 24,434) $ 25504 $ 24,873 ($ 23,968)

December 31, 2018

Effect on present

value of defined

benefit obligation ($ 24,070) $ 25133 $ 24,574 ($ 23,669)
The sensitivity analysis above is based on one assumption is changed while the other
conditions remain unchanged. In practice, more than one assumption may change all at
once. The method of analysing sensitivity and the method of calculating net pension
liability in the balance sheet are the same.
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The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not
change compared to the previous period.

(e) Expected contributions to the defined benefit pension plans of the Group for the year
ending December 31, 2020 amounts to $14,199.

(f) As of December 31, 2019, the weighted average duration of the retirement plan is 12 years.
The analysis of timing of the future pension payment was as follows:

Within 1 year $ 8,217
1-2 year(s) 20,917
2-5 years 82,951
Over 5 years 762,521

$ 874,606

B. Effective July 1, 2005, the Company and its domestic subsidiaries have established a defined
contribution pension plan (the “New Plan’’) under the Labor Pension Act (the “Act”), covering
all regular employees with R.O.C. nationality. Under the New Plan, the Company and its
domestic subsidiaries contribute monthly an amount based on 6% of the employees’ monthly
salaries and wages to the employees’ individual pension accounts at the Bureau of Labor
Insurance. The benefits accrued are paid monthly or in lump sum upon termination of
employment. The pension costs under the defined contribution pension plans of the Group for
the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018 were $97,450 and $92,133, respectively.

The Company’s mainland China subsidiaries have a defined contribution plan. Monthly
contributions to an independent fund administered by the government in accordance with the
pension regulations in the People’s Republic of China (PRC) are based on certain percentage
of employees’ monthly salaries and wages. The contribution percentage for the years ended
December 31, 2019 and 2018 was both 12%~20%. Other than the monthly contributions, the
Group has no further obligations. For the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, the
Company’s mainland China subsidiaries have recognised pension cost of $82,296 and $85,964,
respectively.

(20) Share-based payment

A. For the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, the Group’s share-based payment

arrangements were as follows:

Quantity  Contract

Type of arrangement Grantdate _ granted _period  Vesting conditions
Employee stock options- Senyun ~ 2018.1.10 1,670,000 5years 0~1 years’ service
Precise Optical Co., Ltd. shares vested immediately
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B. Details of the share-based payment arrangements are as follows:

Employee stock options — Senyun Precise Optical Co., Ltd

2019 2018
Weighted- Weighted-
average average
exercise exercise

No. of options price No. of options price
(in thousands) (in dollars) (in thousands) (in dollars)

Options outstanding at 1,515 §  10.00 - 8 -
January 1

Options granted - - 1,670 10.00

Options forfeited ( 845) 10.00 ( 155) 10.00

Options outstanding at 670 10.00 1,515 10.00

December 31

Options exercisable at 670 1,515
December 31

C. As of December 31, 2019 and 2018, the range of exercise price of stock options outstanding
of Senyun Precise Optical Co., Ltd was both $10.00, and the weighted-average remaining
vesting period was 3.03 years and 4.03 years, respectively.

D. Expenses incurred to share-based payment transactions are shown below:

Years ended December 31,
2019 2018
Equity-settled $ - $ 1,196

E. For the stock options granted by the Company with the compensation cost accounted for using
the fair value method, their fair value on the grant date is estimated using the Black-Scholes
option-pricing model. The weighted-average parameters used in the estimation of the fair

value are as follows:

Type of Stock Exercise  Price Interest  Fair value
arrangement  Grant date  price price volatility Option life Dividends  rate per unit
Employee 2018.1.10 5.2 $ 10 55.00% 3 years - 0.50% $ 1

stock options

(21) Share capital

As of December 31, 2019 the Company’s authorized capital was $9,500,000, consisting of
950,000 thousand shares of ordinary stocks (including 250,000 thousand shares reserved for
employee stock options and for convertible bonds issued by the Company), and the paid-in
capital was $6,356,889 with a par value of $10 (in dollars) per share. All proceeds from shares
issued have been collected. The number of the Company’s ordinary shares outstanding in the
beginning and ending of the year is both 635,688,886 shares.
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(22) Capital surplus

Pursuant to the R.O.C. Company Act, capital surplus arising from paid-in capital in excess of par
value on issuance of common stocks and donations can be used to cover accumulated deficit or
to issue new stocks or cash to shareholders in proportion to their share ownership, provided that
the Company has no accumulated deficit. Further, the R.O.C. Securities and Exchange Law
requires that the amount of capital surplus to be capitalised mentioned above should not exceed
10% of the paid-in capital each year. Capital surplus should not be used to cover accumulated
deficit unless the legal reserve is insufficient.

(23) Retained earnings

A.Under the Company’s Articles of Incorporation, the current year’s earnings, if any, shall first
be used to pay all taxes and offset prior year’s operating losses and then 10% of the remaining
amount shall be set aside as legal reserve, unless accumulated legal reserve has reached an
amount equal to the Company’s paid-in capital. And then special reserve shall be set aside or
reversed according to the laws or decrees or the regulations of competent authorities.
Appropriation (5% ~ 80%) of the remainder plus prior year’s accumulated retained earnings
shall be proposed by the Board of Directors, and resolved by the stockholders when distributed
by issuance of new shares. The Company’s dividend policy is as follows: not less than 5% of
total distribution amount shall be distributed in the form of cash. If the cash dividend is less
than ten cents (NT$0.1) per share, such dividend shall be distributed in the form of shares.

B. Except for covering accumulated deficit or issuing new stocks or cash to shareholders in
proportion to their share ownership, the legal reserve shall not be used for any other purpose.
The use of legal reserve for the issuance of stocks or cash to shareholders in proportion to their
share ownership is permitted, provided that the balance of the reserve exceeds 25% of the
Company’s paid-in capital.

C. In accordance with the regulations, the Company shall set aside special reserve from the debit
balance on other equity items at the balance sheet date before distributing earnings. When
debit balance on other equity items is reversed subsequently, the reversed amount could be
included in the distributable earnings.

The amount previously set aside by the Company as special reserve of $426,354 on initial
application of IFRSs in accordance with Jin-Guan-Zheng-Fa-Zi Letter No. 1010012865, dated
April 6, 2012, shall be reversed proportionately when the relevant assets are used, disposed of
or reclassified subsequently.

D. The appropriation of 2018 earnings had been proposed by the Board of Directors on June 12,
2019 and the appropriation of 2017 earnings had been resolved at the stockholders’ meeting
on June 11, 2018. Details are summarized below:

2018 2017
Dividends Dividends
per share per share
Amount (in dollars) Amount (in dollars)
Legal reserve $ 256,651 $ 278,641
Cash dividends 1,907,067 $ 3.00 2,542,756 $ 4.00
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E. As of the date of the auditor’s report, the appropriation of retained earnings for 2019 has not
been resolved by the Board of Directors. Information about employees’ compensation (bonus)
and directors’ and supervisors’ remuneration of the Company as proposed by the Board of
Directors and resolved by the shareholders will be posted in the “Market Observation Post
System” at the website of the Taiwan Stock Exchange.

F. For the information relating to employees’ compensation and directors’ and supervisors’
remuneration, please refer to Note 6(29).

(24) Operating revenue

Years ended December 31,
2019 2018

Revenue from contracts with customers $ 61,781,254 $ 60,923,590

A. Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers

The Group derives revenue at a point in time in the following major product lines and segment

information:
Year ended December 31, 2019
Global brand Other

Product type business group  _business group Total
Peripheral cards $ 23,865,538 $ 649,640 $ 24,515,178
Main boards 23,690,414 669,371 24,359,785
Computer servers - 7,858,228 7,858,228
Peripherals 724,345 - 724,345
Others 2,291,120 2,032,598 4,323,718

$ 50571417 § 11,209,837 $§ 61,781,254

Year ended December 31, 2018

Product tvbe bGI(_JbaI brand _Other

rrocuctape usIness group business group Total
Peripheral cards $ 27,382,643 § 505,098 § 27,887,741
Main boards 20,368,850 1,070,996 21,439,846
Computer servers - 7,255,517 7,255,517
Peripherals 351,638 - 351,638
Others 2,337.425 1.651.423 3.988.848

$ 50440556 $ 10483,034 § 60,923,590
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B. Contract assets and liabilities

(a) The Group has recognised the following revenue-related contract liabilities:

December 31, 2019 December 31, 2018 January 1, 2018

Contract liabilities —
advance sales receipts $ 247,156 $ 335,964 $ 326,954

(b) Revenue recognised that was included in the contract liability balance at the beginning of

the year:

Years ended December 31,

2019 2018
Revenue recognised that was included in the
contract liability balance at the beginning of
the year
Advance sales receipts $ 318,290 $ 326,954

(25) Other income
Years ended December 31,

2019 2018
Interest income:
Interest income from bank deposits $ 79,220 $ 85,081
Interest income from financial assets measured at
amortised cost 23,464 13,868
Interest income from financial assets measured at fair
value through profit or loss 4,195 4,358
Other 2,618 4,080
Total interest income 109,497 107,387
Rental revenue 18,199 20,861
Dividend income 135,974 58,430
Other income - others 532,513 638,367
$ 796,183 $ 825,045
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(26) Other gains and losses

Losses on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Gains on disposal of investments

Foreign exchange gains (losses)

Gains (losses) on financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss

Compensation losses of litigation

Profit from lease modification

Others

(27) Einance costs

Interest expense
Interest expense

Interest expense on lease liabilities

Other interest expense

(28) Expenses by nature

Cost of goods sold
Employee benefit expense

Warranty cost of after-sale service
Depreciation and amortisation

Import/export expense
Transportation expenses
Marketing service charge
Expected credit gains
Other costs and expenses
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Years ended December 31,

2019 2018
$ 6,723) ($ 12,103)
- 707
54,824 ( 62,401)
63,616 ( 36,277)
( 43,230) -
13 -
( 12,055) ( 7,376)
% 56,445) (3 117,450)
Years ended December 31,
2019 2018
$ 6,740 $ 3,835
3,307 -
798 394
$ 10,845 $ 4,229
Years ended December 31,
2019 2018
$ 49594963 $ 47,371,290
5,344,721 5,598,803
835,699 557,134
700,881 596,518
492,833 479,981
406,366 389,991
258,522 196,542
28,415 ( 9,934)
2,671,621 3,467,677
$ 60,334,021 $ 58,648,002




(29) Employee benefit expense

Years ended December 31,

2019 2018
Wages and salaries $ 4,627,270 $ 4,915,001
Labor and health insurance fees 271,718 292,353
Pension costs 183,993 185,223
Other personnel expenses 261,740 206,226

$ 5344721 $ 5,598,803

A. In accordance with Articles of Incorporation of the Company, a ratio of distributable profit of
the current year, after covering accumulated losses, shall be distributed as employees'
compensation and directors’ remuneration. The ratio shall be 3% ~ 10% for employees’
compensation and shall not be higher than 3% for directors’ remuneration.

B. For the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, employees’ compensation was accrued at
$245,385 and $328,323, respectively; while directors’ and supervisors’ remuneration was
both accrued at $46,000. The aforementioned amounts were recognised in salary expenses.

The employees’ compensation and directors’ and supervisors’ remuneration were estimated
and accrued based on 10% and 1.87% of distributable profit of current year for the year ended
December 31, 2019. The employees’ compensation and directors’ and supervisors’
remuneration resolved by the Board of Directors were $245,385 and $46,000, respectively,
and the employees’ compensation will be distributed in the form of cash.

Employees’ compensation and directors’ and supervisors’ remuneration of 2018 as resolved
by the Board of Directors were in agreement with those amounts recognised in the 2018
financial statements.

Information about employees’ compensation and directors’ and supervisors’ remuneration of
the Company as resolved by the Board of Directors will be posted in the “Market Observation
Post System” at the website of the Taiwan Stock Exchange.

(30) Income tax
A. Income tax expense

(@) Components of income tax expense:
Years ended December 31,

2019 2018
Current tax:
Current tax on profits for the year $ 388,831 $ 677,062
Tax on undistributed surplus earnings 548 -
Prior year income tax overestimation ( 16,338) ( 21,935)
373,041 655,127

Deferred tax:
Origination and reversal of temporary differences ( 14,636) ( 160,631)
Impact of change in tax rate - ( 43,207)
Effect of the exchange rate ( 2,700) 5,357

( 17,336) ( 198,481)
Income tax expense $ 355,705 $ 456,646
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(b) The income tax (charge)/credit relating to components of other comprehensive income is

as follows:
Years ended December 31,
2019 2018
Remeasurement of defined benefit obligations  ($ 5,817) $ 3,468
Impact of change in tax rate - ( 3,724)
¢ 5817) ($ 256)

. Reconciliation between income tax expense and accounting profit
Years ended December 31,

2019 2018

Tax calculated based on profit before tax and

statutory tax rate (Note) $ 452,650 $ 590,554
Expenses disallowed by tax regulation ( 97,094) 74,633
Tax exempt income by tax regulation ( 21,359) ( 13,483)
Effect from investment tax credit ( 75,735) ( 71,184)
Taxable loss not recognised as deferred tax assets 158,337 -
Changes in assessment of realisability of deferred tax

assets ( 110,724) ( 73,493)
Prior year income tax overestimation ( 16,338) ( 21,935)
Tax on undistributed surplus earnings 548 -
Separate taxation 8,383 -
Impact of change in tax rate - ( 43,207)
Effect of tax from different applicable taxes within

the Group 57,037 14,761
Income tax expense $ 355,705 $ 456,646

Note: The basis for computing the applicable tax rate is the rate applicable in the parent

company’s country.
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C. Amounts of deferred tax assets or liabilities as a result of temporary differences, tax losses
and investment tax credits are as follows:

Year ended December 31, 2019
Recognised in

Recognised other
in profit ~ comprehensive
January 1 or loss income December 31
Deferred tax assets
Provision for warranty expense $ 86612 $ 16,102 $ - $ 102,714
Loss on inventory 195,677 ( 92,609) - 103,068
Amount of allowance for bad debts
that exceed the limit for tax purpose 28,715 6,151 - 34,866
Pension expense 46,710 115 - 46,825
Unrealised profit on intercompany
sales 59,855 23,794 - 83,649
Unrealised exchange loss 1,457 11,568 - 13,025
Remeasurement of defined benefit
obligations 21,360 - 5,817 27,177
Others 81,976 49,438 - 131,414
522,362 14,559 5,817 542,738
Deferred tax liabilities
Others ( 77) 77 - -
$ 52228 $ 14636 $ 5817 $ 542,738

Year ended December 31, 2018
Recognised in

Adjustments  Recognised other
under new in profit ~ comprehensive
January 1 standards or loss income December 31
Deferred tax assets
Provision for warranty
expense $ 75601 $ - $ 11011 $ - % 86,612
Loss on inventory 25,963 - 169,714 - 195,677
Amount of allowance for
bad debts that exceed the
limit for tax purpose 14,092 378 14,245 - 28,715
Pension expense 39,327 - 7,383 - 46,710
Unrealised profit on
intercompany sales 17,715 - 42,140 - 59,855
Unrealised exchange loss 3,043 - ( 1,586) - 1,457
Remeasurement of defined
benefit obligations 21,104 - - 256 21,360
Others 128,614 - ( 46,638) - 81,976
325,459 378 196,269 256 522,362

Deferred tax liabilities
Others ( 7,646) - 7,569 - ( 77)
$ 317813 $ 378 $ 203838 $ 256 $ 522,285

~244-



D. Expiration dates of unused taxable loss and amounts of unrecognised deferred tax assets are

as follows:
December 31, 2019
Amount filed/ Unrecognised Usable
Year incurred assessed Unused amount deferred tax assets until year

2010 $ 334750 $ 316,850 $ 316,850 2020
2011 125,459 116,913 116,913 2021
2012 155,923 155,923 155,923 2022
2013 120,379 101,551 101,551 2023
2014 164,552 153,966 153,966 2024
2015 298,581 298,581 298,581 2025
2016 384,201 344,635 344,635 2026
2017 339,952 339,952 339,952 2027
2018 307,694 307,694 307,694 2028
2019 (Note) 816,989 816,989 816,989 2029

$ 3048480 $ 2953054 $ 2,953,054

December 31, 2018
Amount filed/ Unrecognised Usable
Year incurred assessed Unused amount deferred tax assets until year

2009 $ 423520 $ 415,024 $ 415,024 2019
2010 334,750 316,850 316,850 2020
2011 125,459 118,521 118,521 2021
2012 155,923 155,923 155,923 2022
2013 120,379 120,379 120,379 2023
2014 164,552 164,552 164,552 2024
2015 298,581 298,581 298,581 2025
2016 384,201 344,635 344,635 2026
2017 335,949 335,949 335,949 2027
2018 (Note) 310,567 310,566 310,566 2028

$ 2653880 $ 2,580,980 $ 2,580,980

Note: These amounts were based on estimates.

E. The Company has not recognised taxable temporary differences associated with investment
in subsidiaries as deferred tax liabilities. As of December 31, 2019 and 2018, the amounts of
temporary difference unrecognised as deferred tax liabilities were $356,093 and $120,652,

respectively.

F. The Company’s income tax returns through 2017 have been assessed and approved by the Tax

Authority.
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G. Under the amendments to the Income Tax Act which was promulgated by the President of the
Republic of China on February 7, 2018, the Company’s applicable income tax rate was raised
from 17% to 20% effective from January 1, 2018. The Group has assessed the impact of the
change in income tax rate.

(31) Earnings per share

Year ended December 31, 2019

Weighted average
number of ordinary Earnings per
shares outstanding share

Amount after tax _ (shares in thousands)  (in dollars)

Basic earnings per share

Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders of
the parent $ 1,939,241 635,689 $ 3.05

Diluted earnings per share

Assumed conversion of all dilutive potential
ordinary shares

—Employees’ compensation - 6,386

Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders of
the parent plus assumed conversion of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares $ 1,939,241 642,075 $ 3.02

Year ended December 31, 2018

Weighted average
number of ordinary Earnings per
shares outstanding share

Amount after tax _ (shares in thousands)  (in dollars)

Basic earnings per share
Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders of
the parent $ 2,566,512 635,689 $ 4.04
Diluted earnings per share
Assumed conversion of all dilutive potential
ordinary shares
—Employees’ compensation - 9,202
Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders of

the parent plus assumed conversion of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares $ 2,566,512 644,891 $ 3.98
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(32) Transactions with non-controlling interest

A. The Group did not participate in the capital increase raised by a subsidiary proportionally to
its interest to the subsidiary.

On December 20, 2019, the Group’s subsidiary, Senyun Precise Optical Co., Ltd has increased
its capital by issuing new shares. As the Group did not acquire shares proportionately, the
shareholding ratio was increased by 9.38%. This transaction resulted in an increase in the non-
controlling interest by $27,468 and a decrease in the equity attributable to owners of the parent
by $27,468. The effects on equity attributable to owners of the parent of aforementioned
capital increase are shown as follows:

Year ended
December 31, 2019
Cash amount for acquiring 9.38% share interest $ 59,506
Carrying amount of non-controlling interest 32,038

Capital surplus - recognition of changes in ownership interest in
subsidiaries $ 27,468

On January 5, 2018 and December 25, 2018, the Group’s subsidiary, Senyun Precise Optical
Co., Ltd has increased its capital by issuing new shares. As the Group did not acquire shares
proportionately, the shareholding ratio was increased by 6.52% and 2.24%, respectively. This
transaction resulted in an increase in the non-controlling interest by $24,561 and $14,744 and
a decrease in the equity attributable to owners of the parent by $24,561 and $14,744,
respectively. The effects on equity attributable to owners of the parent of aforementioned
capital increase are shown as follows:

Year ended
December 31, 2018
Cash amount for acquiring 8.76% share interest $ 77,938
Carrying amount of non-controlling interest 38,633

Capital surplus - recognition of changes in ownership interest in
subsidiaries $ 39,305

B. Disposal of equity interest in a subsidiary (that did not result in a loss of control)

On December 25, 2018, the Group disposed of 0.43% of shares of its subsidiary-Senyun
Precise Optical Co., Ltd, for a total cash consideration of $1,184. The carrying amount of non-
controlling interest in Senyun Precise Optical Co., Ltd was $26,395 at the disposal date. This
transaction resulted in a decrease in the non-controlling interest by $307 and an increase in
the equity attributable to owners of the parent by $307. The effect of changes in interests in
Senyun Precise Optical Co., Ltd on the equity attributable to owners of the parent for the year
ended December 31, 2018 is shown below:
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Year ended
December 31, 2018

Carrying amount of non-controlling interest disposed $ 877

Consideration received from non-controlling interest 1,184

Capital surplus - difference between proceeds on disposal of equity
interest in a subsidiary and its carrying amount $ 307

(33) Supplemental cash flow information

Investing activities with partial cash payments:
Years ended December 31,

2019 2018
Purchase of property, plant and equipment $ 567,083 $ 625,029
Add: Opening balance of payable on equipment 14,621 }
Less: Ending balance of payable on equipment ( 16.054) ( 14,621)
$ 565,650 $ 610,408

Cash paid during the year

(34) Changes in liabilities from financing activities

Year ended December 31, 2019

Liabilities
Short-term  Long-term Guarantee from financing
borrowings borrowings Lease liability deposits received activities-gross
$ 309,722 $§ 18833 $ 190,460 $ 8,567 § 527,582
At January 1
Changes in cash flow from financing activities (20,634)( 8,166) ( 91,030) 341 ( 119,489)
Interest paid (Note) ( 3,307) - ( 3,307)
Impact of changes in foreign exchange rate B - ( 1,453) - ( 1,453)
Changes in other non-cash items = = 47.242 = 47.242
$ 289,088 § 10,667 $ 141912 § 8,908 § 450,575

At December 31
Note: Listed under cash flows from operating activities.

Year ended December 31, 2018

Liabilities
Short-term  Long-term Guarantee from financing
borrowings borrowings deposits received activities-gross
At January 1 $ 329,680 § 5834 § 9,127 $ 344,650
Changes in cash flow from financing activities (_19.967) 12.999 ( 260) ( 7.528)
At December 31 $ 309,722 § 18,833 $ 8,567 § 337,122

7. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(1) Significant related party transactions and balances

The related parties are included in the consolidated financial statements, and the related

transactions are all eliminated.
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(2) Key management compensation

Years ended December 31,

2019 2018
Salaries and other short-term employee benefits $ 398,539 $ 448,488
8. PLEDGED ASSETS
The Group’s assets pledged as collateral are as follows:
Book value
Pledged asset December 31, 2019 December 31, 2018 Purpose
Pledged asset -current
(accounted for as “Other
current assets”)
-Demand deposits $ - $ 49,798 Project grants and collateral
loan
-Time deposits - 56,224 Guarantee for the customs
duties
Pledged assets -current
(accounted for as “Financial
assets at amortised cost -
current”)
-Demand deposits 4,516 = Collateral loan
$ 4516 $ 106,022

Pledged asset-non-current
(account for as “Other non-
current assets”)

-Demand deposits $ -3 4,218 Guarantee for the customs
duties and security deposit
for office leasing

-Time deposits - 61,978 Guarantee for the customs
duties
Pledged assets - non-current

(accounted for as “Financial
assets at amortised cost - non-

current”)
-Demand deposits 101,091 - Security deposit for office
leasing and offshore
funds repatriated account
-Time deposits 109,984 - Guarantee for the customs

duties
3 211075 $ 66,196
9. SIGNIFICANT CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND UNRECOGNISED CONTRACT COMMITMENTS

None.
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10. SIGNIFICANT DISASTER LOSS

None.
11. SIGNIFICANT EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

None.
12. OTHERS

1)

(@)

Capital management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and to maintain an optimal capital
structure to reduce the cost of capital. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, issue employee stock option or
buyback and retire treasury stock.

Financial instruments
A. Financial instruments by category

December 31,2019 December 31, 2018

Financial assets

Financial assets mandatorily measured at fair 3 729427 $ 891,231
value through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income
Designation of equity instrument 2,223,790 1,714,344
Financial assets at amortised cost
Cash and cash equivalents 9,907,845 8,610,907
Financial assets at amortised cost 916,837 1,162,817
Notes receivable 2,996 3,047
Accounts receivable 6,619,142 5,813,268
Other receivables 129,617 105,666
Guarantee deposits paid 62,388 65,703
Other financial assets - 172,218
$ 20,592,042 $ 18,539,201
Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Short-term borrowings $ 289,088 $ 309,722
Notes payable 58,116 11,465
Accounts payable 7,230,678 5,272,720
Other payables 3,934,910 3,834,550
Long-term borrowings (including current portion) 10,667 18,833
Guarantee deposits received 8,908 8,567
Lease liabilities 141,912 -
$ 11,674279 $ 9,455,857

B. Financial risk management policies

(a) The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including
foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

(b) Risk management is carried out by a central treasury department (Group treasury) under
policies approved by the Board of Directors. Group treasury identifies, evaluates and
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hedges financial risks in close co-operation with the Group’s operating units. The Board
provides written principles for overall risk management, as well as written policies
covering specific areas and matters, such as foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit
risk, use of derivative financial instruments and non-derivative financial instruments, and
investment of excess liquidity.

C. Significant financial risks and degrees of financial risks
(a) Market risk
Foreign exchange risk

I. The Group operates internationally and is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising
from the transactions of the Company and its subsidiaries used in various functional
currency, primarily with respect to the USD and RMB. Foreign exchange risk arises
from future commercial transactions and recognised assets and liabilities.

ii. Management has set up a policy to require group companies to manage their foreign
exchange risk against their functional currency. The companies are required to hedge
their entire foreign exchange risk exposure with the Group treasury.

iii. The Group’s businesses involve some non-functional currency operations (the
Company’s and certain subsidiaries’ functional currency: NTD; other certain
subsidiaries’ functional currency: RMB). The information on assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies whose values would be materially affected by the
exchange rate fluctuations is as follows:

December 31, 2019

Foreign
currency
amount Exchange  Book value
(In Thousands) rate (NTD)
(Foreign currency: functional currency)
Financial assets
Monetary items
USD:NTD $ 466,270 30.106 $ 14,037,525
RMB:NTD 64,910 4.323 280,606
Non-monetary items
USD:NTD $ 5,663 30.106 $ 170,483
Financial liabilities
Monetary items
USD:NTD $ 360,065 30.106 $ 10,840,117
RMB:NTD 266,111 4.323 1,150,398
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December 31, 2018

Foreign
currency
amount Exchange  Book value
(In Thousands) _ rate (NTD)
(Foreign currency: functional currency)
Financial assets
Monetary items
USD:NTD $ 333,542 30.733 $ 10,250,746
RMB:NTD 105,479 4.476 472,124
Non-monetary items
USD:NTD $ 837 30.733 $ 25,724
Financial liabilities
Monetary items
USD:NTD $ 228,787 30.733 $ 7,031,311
RMB:NTD 492,495 4.476 2,204,408

iv. The total exchange gain (loss), including realised and unrealized arising from
significant foreign exchange variation on the monetary items held by the Group for the
years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, amounted to gain of $54,824 and loss of
($62,401), respectively.
. Analysis of foreign currency market risk arising from significant foreign exchange
variation:

Year ended December 31, 2019

Sensitivity analysis

Effect on other
Degree of Effecton  comprehensive

variation profit or loss income
(Foreign currency: functional currency)
Financial assets
Monetary items
USD:NTD 1% $ 140,375 $ -
RMB:NTD 1% 2,806 -
Financial liabilities
Monetary items
USD:NTD 1% $ 108,401 $ -
RMB:NTD 1% 11,504 -
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Year ended December 31, 2018

Sensitivity analysis

Effect on other
Degree of Effecton  comprehensive

variation profit or loss income
(Foreign currency: functional currency)
Financial assets
Monetary items
USD:NTD 1% $ 102,507 $ -
RMB:NTD 1% 4,721 -
Financial liabilities
Monetary items
USD:NTD 1% $ 70,313 $ -
RMB:NTD 1% 22,044 -

Price risk

The Group’s equity securities, which are exposed to price risk, are the held financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss and financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income. To manage its price risk arising from investments in equity
securities, the Group diversifies its portfolio. Diversification of the portfolio is done in
accordance with the limits set by the Group.

. The Group’s investments in equity securities comprise shares and beneficiary

certificates issued by the domestic and foreign companies. The prices of equity
securities would change due to the change of the future value of investee companies.
If the prices of these equity securities had increased/decreased by 1% with all other
variables held constant, pre-tax profit for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018
would have increased/decreased by $6,625 and $6,751, respectively, as a result of
gains/losses on equity securities classified as at fair value through profit or loss and
beneficiary certificates. Other components of equity would have increased/decreased
by $22,238 and $17,143 respectively, as a result of gains/losses on equity investment
at fair value through other comprehensive income.

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

1.

The domestic/overseas bond funds investment and bond products with fixed interest
rate by the Group was held mainly for trading purposes, the effective interest rate of
this fund is affected by the market interest rate.

. For fixed interest rate bond investments held by the Group classified as financial assets

at fair value through profit or loss, changes in market interest rates would affect their
fair values. At December 31, 2019 and 2018, if market interest rates had been 1%
higher/lower with all other variables held constant, pre-tax profit for the years ended
December 31, 2019 and 2018 would have been $669 and $2,161 lower/higher,
respectively.

At December 31, 2019 and 2018, if interest rates on borrowings had been 0.1%
higher/lower with all other variables held constant, profit for the years ended
December 31, 2019 and 2018 would have been $220 and $229 higher, respectively,
mainly as a result of higher interest expense on floating rate borrowings.
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(b) Credit risk

Vi.

vil.

viii.

Credit risk refers to the risk of financial loss to the Group arising from default by the
clients or counterparties of financial instruments on the contract obligations. The main
factor is that counterparties could not repay in full the accounts receivable based on
the agreed terms, and the contract cash flows of debt instruments stated at fair value
through profit or loss.

The bond fund held by the Group was issued by well-known foreign banks and
securities investment trust companies owned by or affiliated with domestic financial
holding companies with good credit standing. Since the Group trades with several
securities investment trust companies, credit risk is low.

The Group has lower significant concentrations of credit risk, due to investment in
corporate bonds or financial bonds. The maximum loss to the Group is the total amount
of all book value.

The Group manages their credit risk taking into consideration the entire group’s
concern. According to the Group’s credit policy, each local entity in the Group is
responsible for managing and analysing the credit risk for each of their new clients
before standard payment and delivery terms and conditions are offered. Internal risk
control assesses the credit quality of the customers, taking into account their financial
position, past experience and other factors. Individual risk limits are set based on
internal or external ratings in accordance with limits set by the Board of Directors. The
utilisation of credit limits is regularly monitored.

The Group adopts the assumptions under IFRS 9, the default occurs when the contract
payments are not expected to be recovered.

The Group adopts following assumptions under IFRS 9 to assess whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk on that instrument since initial recognition:

If the contract payments were past due over 30 days based on the terms, there has been
a significant increase in credit risk on that instrument since initial recognition.

The Group classifies customers’ accounts receivable in accordance with credit rating
of customer, insurance coverage and characteristics of collateral. The Group applies

the simplified approach to estimate expected credit loss under the provision matrix
basis.

The following indicators are used to determine whether the credit impairment of debt

instruments has occurred:

(i) It becomes probable that the issuer will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganization due to their financial difficulties;

(if) The disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial
difficulties;

(iii) Default or delinquency in interest or principal repayments;

(iv) Adverse changes in national or regional economic conditions that are expected to
cause a default.

The Group used the forecastability of macroeconomic growth by the International

Monetary Fund to adjust historical and timely information to assess the default

possibility of accounts receivable. As at December 31, 2019 and 2018, the provision

matrix is as follows:
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Up to 30 31 to 60 days

Not past due past due past due
December 31, 2019
Expected loss rate 0.09%~3.79%  0.09%~21.54%  0.09%~37.14%
Total book value $ 5421276 § 760,772 $ 61,628
Loss allowance $ 33404 $ 7275 $ 3.494

61 to 90 days

past due Over 90 days Total
Expected loss rate 0.09%~65.05% 10%~100%
Total book value $ 14376 3 131,870 3 6,389,922
Loss allowance $ 5,675 $ 130,610 $ 180,458
Up to 30 31 to 60 days

Not past due past due past due
December 31, 2018
Expected loss rate 0.11%~6.18%  0.11%~64.37%  0.11%~73.51%
Total book value $ 4,598,495 $ 1,126,406 $ 45,366
Loss allowance $ 21,936 $ 12,428 $ 5,084

61 to 90 days

past due Over 90 days Total

Expected loss rate 0.11%~80.23% 10%~100%
Total book value $ 72,032 $ 129,601 $ 5,971,900
Loss allowance $ 11,276 $ 107,908 $ 158,632

Movements in relation to the Group applying the simplified approach to provide loss
allowance for notes receivable and accounts receivable are as follows:

2019
Notes Accounts
receivable receivable Total
At January 1 $ - $ 158,632 $ 158,632
Reversal of impairment loss - 28,415 28,415
Write-offs - ( 4,741) ( 4,741)
Effect of exchange rate changes - ( 1,848) ( 1,848)

$ 180,458 $ 180.458

&l
1

At December 31
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Xi.

At January 1

Adjustments for retrospective
application of IFRS 9

Reversal of impairment loss
Write-offs
Effect of exchange rate changes

At December 31

2018

Notes Accounts
receivable receivable Total
- 3 168,863 $ 168,863
- 8,835 8,835
- ( 9,934) ( 9,934)
- ( 7,198) ( 7,198)
- ( 1.934) ( 1,934)
- S 158,632 $ 158.632

Considering the credit insurance on accounts receivable, the abovementioned amounts
were not recognised as allowance for uncollectible accounts amounting to $60,469 and
$115,794 as at December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively. For provisioned loss in 2019
and 2018, the impairment losses and the reversal of impairment losses arising from
customers’ contracts amounted to ($28,415) and $9,934, respectively.

For investments in debt instruments at amortised cost, the credit rating levels are

presented below:

December 31, 2019

Lifetime
Significant
increase in Impairment
12 months credit risk of credit Total
Financial assets at
amortised cost
Group 1 $ 701,246 $ - 9 - $ 701,246
Group 2 215.591 - - 215.591
$ 916,837 § - 3 - $ 916,837
December 31, 2018
Lifetime
Significant
increase in Impairment
12 months credit risk of credit Total
Financial assets at
amortised cost
Group 1 $ 1.162817 $ - S - $ 1,162,817

Group 1: Refers to the time deposits maturing in excess of three months.

Group 2: Pledged time deposits.
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(c) Liquidity risk
i.  Group treasury monitors rolling forecasts of the Group’s liquidity requirements to
ensure it has sufficient cash to meet operational needs while maintaining sufficient
headroom on its undrawn committed borrowing facilities at all times.

ii. The Group does not have any undrawn amount of long-term borrowing facilities at
fixed interest rate.

iii. The table below analyses the Group’s non-derivative financial liabilities into relevant
maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the balance sheet date to the
contractual maturity date for non-derivative financial liabilities. Except for the
contractual undiscounted cash flows of short-term borrowings, notes and accounts
payable, other payables as well as guarantee deposits received were equivalent to their
carrying amounts and were expiring within one year, the amounts disclosed in the table
are the contractual undiscounted cash flows of other financial liabilities:

Non-derivative financial liabilities:

Between 1 and

December 31, 2019 Less than 1 year 2 years  Qver 2 years Total
Lease liability $ 89,538 $ 37,9208 22467 $ 149,925
Long-term borrowings 7,801 3,015 - 10,816

(including current
portion)

Non-derivative financial liabilities:

Between 1 and

December 31, 2018 Less than 1 year 2 years Over 2 years Total
Long-term borrowings $ 8,292 $ 7,801 $ 3,015 $ 19,108
(including current
portion)

iv. The Group does not expect the timing of occurrence of the cash flows estimated
through the maturity date analysis will be significantly earlier, nor expect the actual
cash flow amount will be significantly different.

(3) Fair value information

A. The different levels that the inputs to valuation techniques are used to measure fair value of
financial and non-financial instruments have been defined as follows:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the
entity can access at the measurement date. A market is regarded as active where a
market in which transactions for the asset or liability take place with sufficient
frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis. The fair
value of the Group’s investment in listed and emerging stocks, beneficiary
certificates, corporate bonds and government bonds is included in Level 1.
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Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3: Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

B. Fair value information of investment property at cost is provided in Note 6(12).

C. The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial instruments not measured at fair value
(including cash and cash equivalents, financial assets at amortised cost (bank deposits), notes
receivable, accounts receivable, other receivables, guarantee deposits paid, pledged assets,
short-term borrowings, notes payable, accounts payable, other payables, long-term
borrowings and guarantee deposits received) are approximate to their fair values.

D. The related information of financial and non-financial instruments measured at fair value by
level on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the assets and liabilities as at
December 31, 2019 and 2018 is as follows:

(@) The related information of natures of the assets and liabilities is as follows:
December 31, 2019 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets

Recurring fair value
measurements-assets

Financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss

Equity instrument $ 63,077 $ -$ 19089 $ 82,166
Debt instrument 66,922 - - 66,922
Beneficiary certificates 580,339 - - 580,339

Financial assets at fair
value through other
comprehensive income

Equity instrument 2,194,972 - 28,818 2,223,790
Total $ 2905310 % -3 47907 $ 2,953,217
December 31, 2018 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets

Recurring fair value
measurements - assets

Financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss

Equity instrument $ 250,098 $ -$ 81086 $ 331,184
Debt instrument 216,127 - - 216,127
Beneficiary certificates 343,920 - - 343,920
Financial assets at fair

value through other

comprehensive income

Equity instrument 1,684,761 - 29,583 1,714,344

Total $ 2,494,906 $

$ 110669 $ 2,605,575
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(b) The methods and assumptions the Group used to measure fair value are as follows:
I.  The instruments the Group used market quoted prices as their fair values (that is,
Level 1) are listed below by characteristics:
Government bond
Listed shares Open-end fund and corporate bond

Weighted average
Market quoted price Closing price  Net asset value quoted price

ii.  Except for financial instruments with active markets, the fair value of other financial
instruments is measured by using valuation techniques or by reference to
counterparty quotes. The fair value of financial instruments measured by using
valuation techniques can be referred to current fair value of instruments with similar
terms and characteristics in substance, discounted cash flow method or other
valuation methods, including calculated by applying model using market information
available at the balance sheet date.

ili. When assessing non-standard and low-complexity financial instruments, for example,
debt instruments without active market, the Group adopts valuation technique that is
widely used by market participants. The inputs used in the valuation method to
measure these financial instruments are normally observable in the market.

iv. For high-complexity financial instruments, the fair value is measured by using self-
developed valuation model based on the valuation method and technique widely used
within the same industry. The valuation model is normally applied to derivative
financial instruments, debt instruments with embedded derivatives or securitised
instruments. Certain inputs used in the valuation model are not observable at market,
and the Group must make reasonable estimates based on its assumptions.

v.  The output of valuation model is an estimated value and the valuation technique may
not be able to capture all relevant factors of the Group’s financial and non-financial
instruments. Therefore, the estimated value derived using valuation model is adjusted
accordingly with additional inputs, for example, model risk or liquidity risk and etc.
In accordance with the Group’s management policies and relevant control procedures
relating to the valuation models used for fair value measurement, management
believes adjustment to valuation is necessary in order to reasonably represent the fair
value of financial and non-financial instruments at the balance sheet date. The inputs
and pricing information used during valuation are carefully assessed and adjusted
based on current market conditions.

vi. The Group takes into account adjustments for credit risks to measure the fair value
of financial and non-financial instruments to reflect credit risk of the counterparty
and the Group’s credit quality.

E. For the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, there was no transfer between Level 1 and
Level 2.
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F. The following chart is the movement of Level 3 for the years ended December 31, 2019 and
2018:
Years ended December 31,

2019 2018
At January 1, $ 110,669 $ 352,667
Gains (losses) recognized in profit or loss 26,712 ( 54,688)
Losses recognised in other comprehensive income ( 765) ( 23,300)
Acquired in the year 190,175 35,402
Sold in the year ( 278,884) ( 21,010)
Transfers out from level 3 - ( 178,455)
Effects of changes exchange rate - 53
At December 31, $ 47,907 $ 110,669

G. For the year ended December 31, 2019, there was no transfer into or out from Level 3.
Emerging stocks held by the Group have quoted market prices and sufficient liquidity.
Therefore, for the year ended December 31, 2018, the Group transferred emerging stocks
measured at fair value from Level 3 into Level 1.

H. Financial segment is in charge of valuation procedures for fair value measurements being
categorised within Level 3, which is to verify independent fair value of financial instruments.
Such assessment is to ensure the valuation results are reasonable by applying independent
information to make results close to current market conditions, confirming the resource of
information is independent, reliable and in line with other resources and represented as the
exercisable price, and frequently updating inputs used to the valuation model and making any
other necessary adjustments to the fair value.

I. The following is the qualitative information of significant unobservable inputs and sensitivity
analysis of changes in significant unobservable inputs to valuation model used in Level 3 fair
value measurement:

Valuation
technigue

Significant
unobservable input

Relationship of
inputs to fair value

Market
comparable
companies

Net asset value

Valuation
technique

Price-to-book ratio,
enterprise value to
operating income ratio
multiple, discount for
lack of marketability

Not applicable

Significant
unobservable input

The higher the
discount for lack of
marketability, the
lower the fair value

Not applicable

Relationship of
inputs to fair value

Fair value at
December 31, 2019
Unlisted shares $ 21,182
Venture capital shares
Private equity fund
investment $ 26,725
Fair value at
December 31, 2018
Unlisted shares $ 83,179
Venture capital shares
Private equity fund
investment $ 27,490

Market
comparable
companies

Net asset value
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enterprise value to
operating income ratio
multiple, discount for
lack of marketability

Not applicable

The higher the
discount for lack of
marketability, the
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Not applicable



J. The Group has carefully assessed the valuation models and assumptions used to measure fair
value. However, use of different valuation models or assumptions may result in different
measurement. The following is the effect of profit or loss or of other comprehensive income
from financial assets and liabilities categorised within Level 3 if the inputs used to valuation

models have changed:

December 31, 2019
Recognised in other
Recognised in profit or loss comprehensive income
Favourable Unfavourable Favourable Unfavourable

Input Change change change change change
Financial assets
Market
Equity instruments comparable +1% § 191 ($ 191) $ 21 ($ 21)
companies
Equity instruments Net asset value +1% - - 267 ( 267)
$ 191 ($ 191) $ 288 ($ 288)
December 31,2018
Recognised in other
Recognised in profit or loss comprehensive income
Favourable Unfavourable Favourable Unfavourable
Input Change change change change change
Financial assets
Market
Equity instruments comparable +1% § 811 ($ 811) § 21 (8 21)
companies
Equity instruments Net asset value +1% - - 275 ( 275)
$ 811 ($ 811) $ 296 ($ 296)

13. SUPPLEMENTARY DISCLOSURES

(1) Significant transactions information
A. Loans to others: None.

B. Provision of endorsements and guarantees to others: None.

C. Holding of marketable securities at the end of the period (not including subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures): Please refer to table 1.

O

. Acquisition or sale of the same security with the accumulated cost exceeding $300 million or

20% of the Company’s paid-in capital: None.

@G mm

. Acquisition of real estate reaching $300 million or 20% of paid-in capital or more: None.
Disposal of real estate reaching $300 million or 20% of paid-in capital or more: None.
. Purchases or sales of goods from or to related parties reaching $100 million or 20% of paid-in

capital or more: Please refer to table 2.
H. Receivables from related parties reaching $100 million or 20% of paid-in capital or more:

Please refer to table 3.

I. Trading in derivative instruments undertaken during the reporting periods: None.
J. Significant inter-company transactions during the reporting periods: Please refer to table 4.

(2) Information on investees

Names, locations and other information of investee companies (not including investees in

Mainland China): Please refer to table 7.
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3)

Information on investments in Mainland China

A. Basic information: Please refer to table 6.

B. Significant transactions, either directly or indirectly through a third area, with investee
companies in the Mainland Area: Please refer to table 7.

14. SEGMENT INFORMATION

1)

@)

(3)

General information

The Group management has determined the operating segments based on the reports reviewed by
the Board of Directors that are used to make strategic decisions. The Group’s operating segments
are segregated into the global brand business group and other business group based on the revenues
from all sources.

Global brand business group: in-charge of the development and sale of main boards, interface
cards, notebooks and computer peripherals.

Other business group: in-charge of the development and sale of network & communication
products and cell phones.

The Group’s company organisation, basis of department segmentation and principles for
measuring segment information for the period were not significantly changed.

Measurement of segment information

The Board of Directors assesses the performance of the operating segments based on the
operating income (loss).

Information about segment profit or loss, assets and liabilities

The segment information provided to the Chief Operating Decision-Maker for the reportable
segments is as follows:

Year ended December 31, 2019

Global brand Other business

business group group Total
Total segment revenue $ 50571417 $ 11,209,837 $ 61,781,254
Operating income (loss) $ 2,188,278 ($ 741,045) $ 1,447,233
Depreciation and amortization $ 7,322 $ 693,559 $ 700,881
Total assets (Note) $ -$ - $ -
Total liabilities (Note) $ -$ - $ -

Year ended December 31, 2018
Global brand  Other business

business group group Total
Total segment revenue $ 50,440,556 $ 10,483,034 $ 60,923,590
Operating income (loss) $ 2,990,459 ($ 714,871) $ 2,275,588
Depreciation and amortization $ 6,628 $ 589,890 $ 596,518
Total assets (Note) $ - 3 - $ -
Total liabilities (Note) $ - 3 - $ -

Note: As the Group’s assets and liabilities are not the measurement items used by the Chief
Operating Decision-Maker in evaluating segments, the measurement amount of the assets

and liabilities that shall be disclosed is zero.
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(4) Reconciliation for segment income (10ss)

The revenue from external parties and segment profit (loss) reported to the Chief Operating
Decision-Maker are measured in a manner consistent with those in the statement of
comprehensive income. Therefore, such reconciliation is not required.

(5) Information on products and services

The revenue from external parties was derived primarily from the development and sale of
interface cards, main boards, notebooks, computer peripherals, network & communication
products and cell phones.

Details of revenue is as follows:
Years ended December 31,

Items 2019 2018
Peripheral cards $ 24515178 $ 27,887,741
Main boards 24,359,785 21,439,846
Computer servers 7,858,228 7,255,517
Peripherals 724,345 351,638
Others 4,323,718 3,988,848

$ 61,781,254 $ 60,923,590

(6) Geographical information

Geographical information for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018 is as follows:
A. Revenue by geographic area:

Years ended December 31,

2019 2018
Europe $ 21,018,146 $ 21,073,660
USA and Canada 12,903,626 11,421,629
China 12,326,203 13,348,786
Taiwan 1,648,723 1,884,277
Others 13,884,556 13,195,238
Total $ 61,781,254 $ 60,923,590

B. Non-current assets:

2019 2018
Taiwan $ 2,935,166 $ 2,679,216
China 1,128,065 1,236,980
Others 540,354 573,755
Total $ 4,603,585 $ 4,489,951

(7) Major customer information

There was no customer accounting for more than 10% of the Group’s operating revenue for the
years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018.
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VI. State the financial position of the Company if any insolvency occurs in the Company or
affiliates in the most recent year until the date this report is printed: None
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Seven. Financial position and the review and analysis of

financial performance and risks

I.Financial Position

Analysis on financial positions - I[FRS

Unit: NTD 1,000

Year 2019 2018 Change
Subject (Consolidated) | (Consolidated) Amount %
Current assets 30,109,160 28,959,419 1,149,741 3.97
Fixed Assets Real
estate, factory, and 4,085,922 4,131,468 -45,546 -1.10
equipment
Intangible assets 30,789 51,998 221,209 -40.79
Other assets 3,485,670 2,591,710 893,960 34.49
Total assets 37,711,541 35,734,595 1,976,946 5.53
Current liabilities 12,665,285 10,955,638 1,709,647 15.61
Other Non-current 693,145 610,291 82,854 13.58
liabilities
Total liabilities 13,358,430 11,565,929 1,792,501 15.50
Equity attributable to 24297 811 24,083,475 214336 0.89
owners of the parent
Equity 6,356,889 6,356,889 0 0.00
Capital surplus 3,896,889 3,924,357 27,468 -0.70
Retained earnings 13,426,344 13,417,437 8,907 0.07
Other shareholder’s 617,689 384,792 232,897 60.53
Equity
Non-controiling 55.300 85.191 229,891 -35.09
interests
E“a.l shareholder’s 24.353,111 24,168,666 184,445 0.76
quity

period.

Significant Material Changes and Analysis:
1. Intangible assets: Mainly due to the amortization of computer software in the current

2. Other assets: Mainly due to the increase in fair value of financial assets measured at fair
value through other comprehensive gain or loss.
3.  Other equity: Mainly due to the recognition of increase in unrealized gains and losses on
financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive gain or loss.
4. Non-controlling interests: Mainly due to the decrease in the proportion of non-controlling
interests held by subsidiaries.
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II. Financial Performance

(I) Comparison of Operatimg Results - IFRS

Unit: NTD1,000

Year 2019 2018 Differences
Subject {Consolidated) {Consolidated)
Amount %
Sales 61,781,254 60,923,590 857,664 1.41
Gross profit 9,590,869 10,123,214 -532,345 -5.26
Operating income 1,447,233 2,275,588 -828,355 -36.40
Non-operafing income & 816,015 677,183 138,832 20.50
expenses
Net profit before tax 2,263,248 2,952.711 -689,523 -23.35
Net income from continuing 1,907,543 2,496,125 588,582 |  -23.58
operations
Loss from discounted _ _ _ _
operations
Net Income 1,907,543 2,496,125 -588,582 -23.58
Other comprehensive 200,630 15,127 194,503 |  1285.80
incomes (net after tax)
Total comprehensive income 2,117,173 2,511,252 -394.079 -15.69

Analysis of Changes:

1. Operating income and Net Income decreased is mainly due to the decline of the coin-mining

machine boom this year, the company no longer sells coin-mining machines, the supply and demand
of graphics card products returned to normal, and the gross profit of related products decreased

compared with the previous year.

2. Non-operating income increased is due to foreign exchange gains.
3. Other comprehensive incomes increased is due to the recognition of increase in unrealized gains
and losses on financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive gain or loss.
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III.Cash Flow

Analysis of Cash Flow - IFRS

(I)  Analysis of liquidity over the last two years
Unit:%
Subject /year 2019 2018 Difference (%)
Cash flow ratio 30.68 -21.31 51.99
Cash flow adequacy ratio 84.83 80.06 4.77
Cagh reinvestment ratio 7.44 -18.04 25.48

Explanation for changes:
Due to the Spontaneous liabilities for purchasing materials and positive cash flows from operating
activities in 2019 caused cash flow-related ratios to differ from last year.

(IT) Analysis on liquidity for the next year

Unit; NTD1,000

Cash Balance Estimated cash Estimated cash Corrective actions on cash
A - flow from Estimated cash balance (short) short
t beginning 0 ions for th f For th
eriod (1) perations for the outtlow or the year Investment Financial plan
P year (2) For the year (3) (D+(2)-(3) plan P
9,907,845 1,438,194 1,478,736 0,867,303 — —

(1)
)

1. Analysis of projected cash flow Changes in 2020
Business activity: 2020 revenues remain stable and generate cash income from business activities.
Investment and financing activities: No major equipment purchases or local and overseas
investments are planned in 2020. The emphasis will remain on the issuing of cash dividends.

2.Measures to make up deficient cash flow and liquidity analysis: N/A

IV.The Effect of major capital spending on financial position and operation

@

Major capital spending and sources of capital:

Unit: NTD1,000

The plan

Equipment Purchase

Actual or Total amount of | Actual or projected use of capital
projected date of | capital needed
) 2019
completion
2019.12 565,650 565,650

(I) Expected Result: N/A.
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Analysis on Direct Investments

V.The direct investment policy of the Company over the last five years, major cause for profit or
loss and improvement plan, investment plan in next year

Unit: NTD 1,000

The amcunt .
- . Major cause .
escription|of investment| Investment Improvement | Investment plan in
. : for profit or
income Policy loss plan the future
Item (loss}(Note)
Transform
products into
Sales of NB and [High niche products/
G-Style (14,536) [gaming NB competition, |HQ integrates None
products low margin  |marketing
resources to assist
NB sales
Strengthen
production
process
Revenue not  |management to
SenYun Precision manufacture, up to an improve yield
. (261,151) iand sales of . . None
Optical . economic and improve
optical lens
scale. overall
operational
management
efficiency
Strict control
over repair and
maintenance
BYTE Promotion and  |cost and
International Co., 30,663 |Repairing of ITC|increase in None None
Lid. products income and
profit from
repair and
maintenance.
Research and Revenue not E;;[;rl:fi, tifé‘os:fego
GIGAIPC CO,, up to an "
LTD (7,814) |development and cconomic market and solicit [None
’ selling of [PC more ODM
scale. )
clients

Note:Disclosed companies are subsidiaries that are actively operating and over which Gigabyte has
controlling power (owns 50% of their shares).
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VIL.Risk Management and Evaluation

@

(1D

(I1I)

The effect of interest rate and exchange rate volatility, inflation on the income status of
the Company and measures to cope with the problem:

1.  Effect of interest rate volatility and countermeasures: None

2.  Effect of exchange rate volatility and countermeasures:

(1) Over 90% of the Company’s products are exported and traded in US Dollar.
Major purchases are also traded in US Dollar. Naturally, the Company hedges
80% of such transactions. Gigabyte monitors currency market trends and
steadily regulates the USD position to reduce the impact of exchange rates on
the Company’s profit.

(2) All domestic sales in China by subsidiaries are traded in CNY. As large
volatility in the CNY exchange rate will affect our Company's hedging strategy
and profitability we use natural hedging and forward exchange in principle. As
USD and CNY often go reversely, our Company balances these USD and CNY
positions for hedging.

3. The effect of inflation on the profit and loss status of the Company and

responding measures: None

The engagement in the investment in high risk and high leverage investments, financing
a third party, acting as guarantor in favor of a third party by endorsement, and the policy
in derivative trade, the causes of loss or profit from such activities and the measures for
coping with the problem:

For outward loans, endorsement/guarantee and derivatives, Giga-Byte has faithfully
complied with the policies duly enacted in accordance with “Procedures in Acquirement
or Disposal of Assets”, “Procedures in Outward Loans of Capitals” and “Procedures in
Endorsement/guarantee” and conservative policy. Under no circumstances has
Giga-Byte engaged in high leverage investment.

R&D plans, the current progress of R&D plans in progress, R&D expenses that should
be committed in the future, expected date of volume production, and the factors
contributing to successful R&D in the future in the most recent year and up to the
publication date of the annual report:

1. 2020 R&D Plans :

Product R&D

Expected finish
time

(1) World leading motherboard
- Develop latest AORUS gaming motherboard
- Develop latest Intel® platform motherboards 2020 Q2~Q3
- Develop latest AMD® platform motherboards

(2) World leading graphic cards
- Develop latest AORUS gaming graphic cards
- Develop latest Intel® platform graphic cards 2020 Q2~Q3
- Develop latest AMD® platform graphic cards
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(3)Industry innovative cloud server

- Develop latest Intel® platform servers

- Develop latest AMD® platform servers

- Develop latest AI computing applicable G-series servers

- Develop latest hyper-converged infrastructure applicable
H-series servers

- Develop latest big data storage service S-series servers

- Develop latest multimedia designer or software development
engineer specific W-series workstation

- Develop latest enterprise internal IT structure applicable
R-series servers

- Develop latest OCT computing structure compliant
RACKLUTIONOP and large datacenter grand scale deployment
applicable rack products

- Develop servers with ultra-speed Al acceleration cards

2020 Q1~Q3

(4) Al smart gaming notebook computer
- Develop latest AORUS gaming notebook computer
- Develop next generation Al smart learning notebook computer
- Develop next generation AERO series performance notebook
computer
- Develop next generation Intel® high performance notebook
computer

2020 Q1~Q4

(5) Award winning gaming peripherals
- Develop next generation smart gaming display
- Develop next generation smart gaming peripheral products

2020 Q2~Q4

2. Progress of unaccomplished R&D plans:

(V)

3.

Persist to present different types of new products ahead of the others in the industry.
The R&D expenses that should be committed will remain at the same level as that of
the previous year. About NT$1,463 million more will be invested.

Projection on mass production:

Mass production has proceeded as scheduled in the research and development plans,
A number of advanced and diverse products were presented.

. Major factors that affect the future success of R&D

Initiation of projects that further expand our superiority in R&D, supporting
hardware and equipment with Cloud services and applications for innovative
software and hardware integrations. In addition to providing users with astounding
functions, our products have also continued to garner awards and external recognition.
We are able and confident in providing our customers with the best products by
driving new innovative technologies and marketing of our new products and adhering
to our practical and steadfast business philosophies that aims to sustainably maximize
the value of our brand

The influence of significant Changes of policies and laws, domestic or foreign, toward
the finance of the Company and the corresponding measures in the most recent year and
up to the publication date of the annual report:

Gigabyte management is compliant to both local and international laws, Various
departments are able to keep track of changes to major policies and laws and adjust our
internal control and management policies as well as business activities where
appropriate to ensure smooth business operations. Hence, Gigabyte is able to respond in
a timely and effective manner to changes in important policies and laws.
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Addressing International Tax Anti-Avoidance and strong demands by EU countries, he
British Virgin Islands (BVI), the Cayman Islands (Cayman) and the Malaysian Labuan
has been demanding actual operation identification and relevant annual tax reporting
beginning this year. This company is continuously watching the promulgation of
relevant enforcement rules in the aforementioned districts and carring out related
reporting operations in compliance with these regulations.

Amendments to tax exemption issues in the Statute for Industrial Innovation included
extending the original tax measure period (expiration at the end of 2019) by 10 years,
and adding regulations on "the deduction of undistributed earnings invested in
substantive investment" and on investments in smart machinery and 5G mobile
communication systems. The Company will use the tax exemption measures to obtain
more resources for product innovation and transformation.

(V) The influence of Changes of technology and in the industry toward the finance of the

Company and the corresponding measures in the most recent year and up to the
publication date of the annual report:
Gigabyte has been involved in this industry for many years and has continuously
invested large amounts of resources for the R&D of new technologies, achieving a first
rate R&D capability in our fields. Additionally, Gigabyte's management team maintains
constant vigilance for future trends and technologies, and would adjust corporate
business strategies and expand new market opportunities so that Gigabyte would remain
in effective command of the overall economic environment and be aware of possible
changes to corporate finances and businesses resulting from changes in the industry.

(VD) Gigabyte gamnered another award for the 22 time in a row and has repeatedly won
international design awards. We shall be able to maintain our superior corporate image.

(VII) Expected results from mergers and acquisition and possible risk: N/A

(VIII)Expected results from expansion of facilities and possible risk: See Item IV.

(IX) Possible risks from concentration of purchase and sales:

The customers who accounted for more than 10% of the sales of the Company are the
sales platforms of the Company in Europe and Mainland China. The sales of this
subsidiary are mainly from various European and Mainland China customers, so there is
no risk of high concentration of sales. In addition, in terms of purchasers, Intel, NVIDIA
and AMD motherboards and VGA chip makers are leading companies in the
information industry. This is an industrial feature and there is no risk of concentration.

(X) The effect and risk of the massive transaction of or conversion of shares by directors,
supervisors or dominant shareholders of the Company holding more than 10% of the
stakes:

There were no massive transactions or conversion of shares effected by thedirectors or
dominant shareholders of the Company holding more than 10% of the stakes in 2019 or
as of date of publication.

(XI) The effect and risks of the Change of the management: N/A.

(XII) Litigious or Non-Litigious Events: There have been no litigious or non-litigious events

that may significant affect the Company.
(XIII) Other major risks and responding measures: None.
VII.Others: None.

-281-



£O/50/Z10T
e (wa10)
YT "y2oL 2kqesin)
25001
RIAWD102
A e e
-~ - l Kung wenIRw = UTOEL,
oabT o8 vorstnorg unfuag Jo, 00, [L_UOAUDS TRORRNOA | — o.mh Lg10e 100 oy voddig
YO/ VVEDOT 1Z/L0/STOE BI/DI/ELL
-] Yo AolouyasL PIT 0D SOOIAISS (MLOIIEN]) dﬁuumﬂhﬂwwwowﬂnﬂmuﬁnmﬂ—m&uﬂ Yo 00H
TUSOIOOE ifaudlZ 0qFaNN o], plOSAYE UHEISTS “A' 0 D0 L TTPOIE00C
oAt 4 o %001 26001 P 1ad
%09 L pen o =00t .* = I * » % B {uipul) YI3L, AAqediny
ZIEO W90/ SOOVIO0T LI/T1/R6GT 001
> .EWU “Em.wmmé. vw ..ou_w%_mk P17 “00) FOOIAIG *pr] 0D samonsaqg ¢ AT
- A3o[ouyso], pIo1Asog ogiuy ;AqeStD vendluod
sl 1 au] puanenn 1 U] 214qesin oguiN [ouyEs ], PRIAISIE 0GAUIN d qean ST
26001 A 26001 A L > s3] "oy, 24A0eArD
LATATIALITA 24001
001 P60 DAIVDID QS/E0/T00Z » PG i
b “pIry 00 A0louysa], R
a1Aqediny oq3upy 001
CIMYSTOZ
1 oot ﬂ T T/G00E
22001 00 UEIpAly EILSS > ?Mnnwu D.wm .
R0ZO/I00Z BOVBG6T STTLO0T E1/S0/D00T VIARWZI0Z og007 |L_EUEGST 0L OMaeSin
ZIT10I0T aag) (ueiey) (RISAR[E[N) (risAE[EN) _Gnaoy
aag) poury PARAF] PYT SUIUTIAUT B i g “ONI 2up Suipeiy, TLVED/G661
P sTurproyr 2ann,g BRI uossjreys DIEADY FHD NET LD aUqedn - I 'Pr1 oD
%001 o o YL LD
ibiiily 25001 A %001 A ol 24001 A 26001 A va001 A
ZTSHVGO0Z
ST/T/HO0T prlsmabiapiy
(aIndwRoIs) “[20. MAQETED
PV "01d SOy
- %LETS ﬁ 2,00t *
sonL T
€1/L0/1002
WSQ/P00Z T1/60IL66T SOZT/EGGT /
oot ity - et anm pridner> ot cromisoy o G
weumaitysmo || osda | | g | oo Tideo iy BR
E = = A 7Y
snor 2001 4 sowes sa001 4 ws001 4 sicogr A 2001 24001
(aemre])
P11 oD "YoaJ, S1hg-evi3isy
TE/CT/6T0T
) " =
Y eI M B e e 2

"HRYD uonezIuedio eIV (1)
sojerige Jo uonezmediQ |
sojeRIIIe JO smes Arewrung (1)
SOJRI[IJE WO UOTJRULIONUI paje[ay |

STONEIA Te1ddds Y31y

-282-



(apno D¢y s1onpoad 31|

a0 ssauisng L1BwLag

jo Buuteday pue uonowosg|0000000¢ ALN uemge), * A1) 1ad1RL MON “ISIQ WEIPULY “PY UDISG E "9 ‘507 "ON Zd LIE0900C “Pr1 0 [euoneIIN] LA
sy00ga10u Jo 318S|(00°000'02L ALN wemie], " 10 wdie], maN “3siq uepury “py uixiag ‘¢ 938 12T "ON AS LTLOS00C 'pr1 oD 3JA15-D
duon ¢ w_Euﬁton poyury
%m._ i m:.._w.um_noﬁ”_ _EnE %ﬂwﬁm& 000°000°0% ANI lequiniy “py aucisuydg ONIM-T ‘UMOIPIIA tewen 200]4 1§ ‘208 7P L08 LTv0°£00T oeaprg  (epup) ASorowyoal,  #14qeSin
ssowisng gupnsuoa pue| . dnoin
JuswaSeuews jendes  aImuap 000 00001 ALLN uease, A1 ediel, Jowmsig uee( ‘peoy YINog enqund ‘7 U0100g Q71 "ON ¢ 1001 YIS] 12507002 Justuadeue]y  [BUCHBIILSIU]  PuUdl]-E3D)
uonelado panuNU0ISIA|08E 88K 1T ALN uemeL, A0 ©dig], MaN “Is1q uelpury Py wixiad 'g 1035 ‘60T ON.7d S0 S0+00T “SU[ SuonRIIUNUIICY) NAg-E3ID
Yewsgeuew| e
uonensidal Yiewopel], OC0'ELO'E ADS arodeSurg arenbg 1eqoy AR 1¢-L0# PROY 120D BAR 09 STT0H00Z P ‘914 Snuoy
speraydnad pue 1sndwos . .
‘preoguaiopy g0 uopowozg| 000 WAV ejensny *L91€ DIA YINOS YSPEO PRoY FPULELD £2-61/10) 8TII00 P Aad A80j0uyo3, 14qeBID
seoyduad pue| ., e pr1 e
nduoo “Emoﬁhﬁow_z.mo ownm 000°000°8Z AND Suerpayz ‘ogBuIN ‘auoz 159 papuog ofFuIN ‘peoy IgaA BuBD § YOp0'E002 Sugpur), ABojouyoa], ey Sunyz oq3uin
e e pI7 dnoip
Auedwos SunpjoH 000°006'¢69 A.LN uemIg], ¢ AN radie, “Isiq ue B py S BNun(y ‘g 09§ ‘94 'oN ‘Z-'d9 9220'E002 JUDUNSIAU]  [EUCHEMNU]  Pual-Bd1D
speroyduad pue B o
1amdwos ‘preoqInlol Jo ajes 000053 AN SPUBMIAYION “USAOUPUIH (I 9Z9€ ‘HT UaAOUI1S EIL0°100Z ‘A'd ASojompoar, AiAg-e31n
sjeraydoad pue| . 0
1omdwos ‘preoqaIop ’ Jo sjes 000°000°8 SN Suerrayz “ogSuIN BucZ 1534 papuod og3ulN ‘prOY IgaASueny) 6 £0'90°T00Z Suiper], [euonemdu] 214qedtn oqIuiN
saydoad| N PIT U020 20UBUIIEIA]
‘1andurod Jo mcEmmoM 0000085 SN Bueirayz ‘og3uIN ‘Gucyz 159p papuog ogauty ‘peoy JgaASuenD 6 §090'1002 pue  1redoy PlalA-1s2g oqiuiN/
speragduad pue sandwoa| S
‘PIECQIRTIONN JO SuLm)oBnueRA; 89L 62958 ASN Buerrarz ‘ogSumIN ‘Bucy 153A\ popuog ogBulN ‘proy JHaxSuent) 6 0E'E0'1002 PIT “o)) M1iqedin oq3uIN
o Spue[s| u1gr, e
Kueduwos Surpioy 986vs 68 TE ASN ysnug ‘0111DA “BlOHO], UMOL, PEOY II AR SWRR{DIA, ‘20UD SIIAIRG BEME& m..amm» 80'co1o0z pajnury ann edin
sjerayduad pue 1nduros
‘preoqiapio Jo runo|— VISAVIVIN £1°60°000¢
ul JMOBAUEIL 0] STU O, ‘wenqe “14 000LS TNOPISIAl ULler ‘uenge Yied [RISUBLL] I2m0], 2010 WeW (1V)$1 19497 ou] NgT1°L'dD
Auedwod JUIPIOH |000°69S°LE6'T ALN uemie], * AND [adivg, “Isig Susyzauoyz Py 1]9A3s00y *[ "92S ‘01 "ON 9 0£'80°6661 "G107) JUSUNSAAUL ED-1D
sretoyduad pue ssndmos| | MNS .
‘preogroyioly yo_ wonourasg| 200 008 €5 TSN PULIEU Saukay] UOHTIAL I UONAAOM ‘OBE[JIA SOUJO ULIE] UDUE PIEA USLEM €1 910°6661 'PY1 ‘0 Y991 16D
sfewayduad pue sndwos
‘prroqIaIoIN JO SupmognueR |000°08E 0E (1SN FuoBuenn ‘vennBupyq “SueifSueny 9omIsI(] [ELISNPU] UBNANA ‘PEOY LAUEAANA € LT 1178661 ‘pY1 -0 sowonosy a14qeSin uendduog
spue(S[ uewie))
Anedmos FuIp[oH |89 THI°ZE0°LE ASN | “SOTI-1AN Wwemde) puein‘peoy Aeg I3 TOXEM SNOSIqIH ‘U0l|1akd pueID 61 11€ X0g'0d 80°H0'8661 PAJIUIF] SJUSUSIAU] UO)SI|IEN )
Auedwod SUIP[OH | +S"169°1L9' k1 ASN ysnug spuefsy WA Q11 IDABOUOL ‘UMOL PEOY THEY X0d'0'd 11'60°L661 “pr1 dnoIn) [eUONEWISIUT WOpa3L]
sierayduad pue 15nduros]000°029°L UNT Aueunag ‘Emquiey LpOZZ ‘91 2ddoyua)ng 12°60°£661
‘DIROGIAYIOI JO UONOWOI] Hquo Surpes], A3cjouyoa), L'gD
s|esayduad pue(ooL'010°9 ASN VST YD Ansnpul Jo A1) ‘1eeng peoa|iey 5Lt 01'+0°0661 ‘oup “L'gD
1nduios ‘preoqIayIoly JO J[ES
wio)] wonanpoad
PIARIYY [ende) SSIIPPY JRWIYSTqE)SH Jo Neq Auedwo)) Jo suxeN

610T 1€ PquI0ag

Apoomput 10 ATj0a11p suonjeIado ssauIsng Jo 90URUY “H YIam soruedwion jeuIpiogns oy Aueduio)) 2y JO Z-69¢ [Ty 0} juensing (¢
“TIN S1sa19)u1 Surjonuos aAey 03 paumsaid Auedwos ajeuipiogns oy Auedwio) ay} JO ¢-69¢ SOV 0) Juensing

SRV £q Blep o1seq '
‘IIN :Auedwo)) a4y £q pajjonuod

4

-283-



‘(1epno D¢} s1onpoxd H 11 3o Sunneday] pue wonowIor] :

"p¥T “0D [euonewaig LA (S)

“euTy) pUeUIRLL 10 siusuodwos pue syonpoid woneuwnoyur Jayndmos yo oes ; prT oD Swiper], A3ojouyos ], eir Sunyyz oq3uIN ()

“eUID) PUBUIL

w sjonpoid uogeuniopur 15)ndwos Jo SOUBUDUIEW SI[ES-I9FY : “PI “00) SO01AISS ‘I I, PO XIS USIZUSYS pue P “0) soueusurely pue yedsyl pisrX-1sag oqsuIN (g)

“BUTY) pUe[UIew JoJ syueuodwoo pue syonpold uoneuioul Jndwod Jo aMmjosInuey : "I <o) 294qeSin oqBuiN « Py 07 SoMONa[g 14qestn vendiuo( (7)
uo18a1 s1y19E,J o pue visY ‘edoing ‘seousury atf ut sjonpoxd

wonemuoym 1aindwoo Jo medal pue  uonowexd ‘ofeg + ouy Surper], 21£qeSin pue T AFo[ounoa], 514qeSiD « Auzdwo) paiuIr] 20ISWO) AF0[OWY03 ], HOTRULIOJU]

914qeStn « "N"T'S VNV JSH £Soouyoa], 914qeSD « *0"0"Z "dS Pue[od A8ojougaa ] a1£qesiy) « “dio)) 914g-e310 GOddIN « paymuil] ayeatid (e1pu]) AS0[oUaa],

AAqeBLD « P 91 SOV « Py A1 ABojouTos ], 314qeSn « *A g ASojouyos, ag-eBID « prT 0D Yoo, L'd'D + HQWD Suiper] ASojouyos), "L'ED « ou] “L'aD (1)

:SMO[JO] SP ST SARI[LJe 511 £q paSeurwr ssoulstq preogistpowr o1 Jo adoos o], “sferoyduad 19nduiod 15130
pue spreo oyde1d ‘spieogisyjow Jo Suipen pue Suissasold ‘@InjogInuew o) sapnoul s)eIIJe s)I pue Auedwo) ay) Jo 2doos ssaulsng sy,
SIIBI[I}JE oY} JO ssouisnq Jo adoos [[RIAQ b

"[IN :UonewpIoqns 10 jsalajul SUI[oNT0D YIm 2)RT[IJe Ue SB BIED JSPOYIIRYS SWIRS I} SARY 0} PaWINSald "¢

spesatpduad pue sndurod

Ayl “TNEANV.LS]

Auediio]) paInulT 3212UILI0 )

1o ssouisng A1eurrry

‘preogquatgiopy Jo uoyourosg[ P00 00T AYL WHASYIV 787/1'NdY ONVAIST VIO “3S ANJITHYIN AQNTVIRIVENNINN Y0102 ASojouysa)  woneuuoju]  21Kqedi
$IOINOSAT FqEMDUN . BUN]D 99UIAOI] SuopuRiS pr1 “ 0D Sunaiony
30 aqes pue Fujofooy |00 0021 AND ‘AnD Suemyzoez “151g Sueyseny “py Suelinnz ‘za Suwppng Suelinuz QHOS ‘1091 aung O£ 11'810T S0INOS  plRikissag duenyzoey
syenpoxd uoneuuojur rmdiuos
‘sued pue spauoduod| 00000000 ALN uemie], ‘ Ar) 1adie], #aN “ISI URIPUTY “PY WIXIRg °g "8 50T ON 191 PIZILIOT
21u01195]2 30 Fuj|ag ALT 0D DIVOID
sued pue symauodiuos . e jus
ouonosla pue Jeando Suyppg 055°L2€ AND uenH3UO( ‘aNUdAY JusyJUERN ‘prOY reLenD [ ][ ISjua’) EIOURUL] UBTIUI J0O) (11 L7 8TH9102 o reandQ asisald unAuag uengduog
sped aAgowiome
Jo soes pue  SULIMOBINUEW 000°000°0S LN 8I'H0°910T
“uamidorassp JuAUZISUOT) uemriel, ¢ A1) tedie], maN ‘18I ueipury “py uixiag ‘g 109s ‘c0z "ON 7d pr1 “o) uolsioald eies
. WYZUYS ‘Su0Z papuog . pYl
preoqisyioly Jo Suureday 000°000°¢ ANDY uelng‘pec: engoe], ¢ 9w sonsiZe]  AFojowysal, ueiggony ‘g u_MMnH%%a yi ,_vu %uo_m 0£°90°5 102 0D $90IAIRS "YORL, P[RIAISIY USYZUNS
sreaydnad pue Jonduwtos| | e
‘preograoly  Jo Suureday 000°00¢ ¥N4 SPURMSI[I2N “USACYPUIY “Y(] 9795 ‘FT USACUIS 8T'0I't10Z ‘A'd edomg SO0
sjuRuodod
OTUO1}0R]R pue 1eondo|0ZL ¢86°PE9 ALN ET'SO'E10T
jo ojes pue SuumorjnuURp uemiel, ‘gzg A1) uenfor] “isi(] 1300yZ “py ‘N Suerlduog ‘7 ON PiT 0D eond) os1901] uniusg
ssauissnq WAo[000‘0s asn V'S0 VD "Ansnply Jo A0 '12a11g proIIEy 85EL] ¥1'30°C102 “ou] Suipei], 2AQeEID
sjezaydpad pue somdwos} L s
‘preoquaoyyJo__ uonourorg|000 000 0F8 MDA va10Y YOS “TNOFS TIONVSONOA OUOAHNOA ‘S€T 905 Lsoeloe D71 AB0jouyoa) MAGeSID
Auediwos Suip[oy [000°006°9 ASN spue[s| wi3lA ysnUg ‘B[OHO], ‘UMO], PROY ‘THEE X0d ' d ‘SI9QUWRYT) 20YSIaNIf Zrrotoz rciilitiy | SZUIP|OH Ju0ZEIID
sjeayduad pue anduiod . Lo
‘preograyoly g0 uopowarg|000 S WA VNVASE ‘VNOTIOUVE 8§ I 0eqIg 21120 0£'L0'600c N"T'S VNVdSE &Sojomnyoa), akqesio
sjereyduad pue sondwmod . L
‘preograpoyy 3o Sunneday| 00 05 N1d PUBOJ ‘ME[I0IM “609-£G 0T BUZO A1qe] [n TS0'6002 "Q'0Z d5 puefod £3ojotnaay, s1dqedin
sjezaydoad pue 1adwios . o
‘pIEOQINPO JO  uonowold 000°000°01 Adf uedef “cANOY, ‘epeAIy)) Bweyonyoy Bpuey §1-G1 §T°60°800C o)) a)Ag-edin uoddiy
. e[sAeje o
Sunepmbiy 000’01 asn ‘aenqey Jo Alonna], fewps,] QoOLguenfoway uefer’ BpUSZE] BWSIWM ‘¢ [IAE B T _uQ—\.M 62°10°L002 panwi] (uenqe) oouLApy B30
w3 uonanpoad
y paa2ay [epde) SSAIPPY JUIWTST[qEISTH JO 2Jeq Auwedmo)) yo smen

-284-



- L Sur x~umyuay) :eanejuasaidsy -0 juaunsaau] vEin]1os1atadng
. Cep Fui-uny) Fuas], « Sulpy-nojy
9866 1E85¥1'T ey « Sunisg-Suiy ‘nr « uaD-lod “Us A eanejuasarday pr] “op ASojouyos], afig-eSin| Iowan( "JU] SUCHEIIUNUNLO.) NAF-REIN
— — Surp-noy ey « Sunisg-Sutly ‘mry|  a01020Qq P11 A S0y
— — SueT-no A uayy) « SurN-nOIN ‘Bl ~ SuniSH-Fuiy ‘] « usyD-lad Ys Ay 1030211(] ‘Pr1 A4 £Sojouypa], 914qesin
= — 1 oD
Sunisyg-Surpg ‘nr|  2owanq| Surpery, ASojouysa], vif Sunyz 0q3uiN
- — WIS-noA 1y WD
. Rar ) -unyy’y ‘uayny aaneuasaxday d10)) Jusunseau] en-1yD{osiazadng pr1 dnoin
001 000°062°s9 BUIN-TON B - SURISH-SULN ‘O] - USU)-13d Y2 A eaneuasasday ‘1o jusumsaau] ey  J00axd|  juounsaau] [UOLRIISU] pual]-e21n
- - ulg-yiyf ‘uelry)  Jopag "A '€l A3ojouyaa ], 3)Ag-e3In
001 — Sui-uny) ‘Juas], « SulA-NoA )
‘B « Tunis-Sury *nr] .« UsYD-19d ‘Yo Xeanejusserdsy oMW SIUSUNSAAU] UiSaIEyD| Jojoang| Surpri] jeuonewoyu] aAqesin oqauln
001 — JurA-uny)) “Suas], « SUlA-NON "PIT 0D SdUBURIUIRIA
‘eI » Sunisyg-Sury ‘ni < uayDr1ad ‘Yo AaANmIuasaldsy pajuIr] SIUSUNSIAU] UOISIlIRYD|  JOIsRNQ pue Jieday protA-1sag oqiuIN
_ 1a-1/m oY WD
- Sun-uny) Suas] « SUN-NOJA] “BIA] « SUNISH-SUI 01 ~ wal)-1a ‘Ya x|  J010a1g PIT 00 ;Mhqeiin oq3ury
— — Suty-nop BN ~ SunisH-3uljy ‘a1 - GaYD-Iogd ‘Ya 4|  J010aug pajuury a1n j e5in
loot — uay-1ad ‘Yo X dAneIuasal1day "pr] dnoif) [RUONBWISIU] WOPAR1y|  IOJ03II(] ouf NI1 . L9D
I3 [3 mcmzlﬂog
001 00595162 ‘I ~ Sumisi-Suiy ‘nr « wayD-lad ‘Yo danejussaxdoy pr1 <o) ABojouyos], aihg-eSin| 1opalg -dro7y waunsaAU] BO-1YD)
— — eNH-onnBueny] « SumSp-Bully] ‘]| 1030211(] PIT 0D YIIL LD
- - 1a-19pm o WD
001 - Surp-nop 123!
‘I « Sumsy-Bury ‘nry - UaYD-19d Yok eanguesaadoy poymry sjusunssAul uosspey)| 1opang| o) sowoenosly oidqesin uenssuog
001 89 I¥1°2E0°LS SulA-noy
‘BN ~ Sums-Fuiy ‘ni] « uayD-19d ‘Yo A eanEjudsaldey pr7 dnoln [BUOHEWLIY] WOP3SLY| 10393 P SIUQUNSIAUT U0ISITIeYD)
001 TS TEO 1L9T] nay-134 “Ys A aanejuasorday] "pr] o)) Adojouyoa], aAg-edin| aopang “py1 dnoin [BuOHBEUIAIU] WGPIAL]
— - eny-onnBueny « SunisH-Suiy ary[  Jojoanc Hquio Surpel], £8ojouy2a], "1, 9D
— — 1PpM-Suay7 *n] ~ SutjA-noy B « SUNISH-SUIN nr ~ UsyD-Tad Yax|  Joldang Ul “Lg'D
o/ oney saIeyg|  saxeyg Jjo Jaqurnp
aanelmasaxday] / awmen Aoy Lueduroy Jo smeN
PIPH S2Iey§ JO Jaquuny]

6102°1€ rquaag

:9)e1[ye £q s108euew [RIDUSZ pue sI0osIAIadNS ‘S10309211p o) WO UOHRULION] ¢
*§90IN0SO1 S[qRMOUDT JO a[eS pue SUT[2A29Y] I'PY “00) SuroAoay s20In0say plaiAlsag Suenyzoez (#1)
-sjonpold voneuiour Jnduros ‘sired pue sjuswodwos smwoensaja yo Sures : "qIT “0D 2AVOID (£1)
“eury)) puejurew xof syred pue sjusvodinos srmonosye pue [eondo Jo Sumag : pr “on [eondQ ssioaid unkusg uensFuo(T (71)
‘s1red 9ANIOWOME Jo sa[es pue Suumorynuew Juowdo[aasp JuawaSIsuoy) ; Py “0p) uorsIoal] enpes (1)
‘sjusnodmon srmonsays pue Teondo Jo sjes pue Surmpoenuely : Py oD [eandQ ostoead unfueg (01)
"$j00gejon Jo 3§ : PrT 0D 2jK15-D (6)
-sjeraqduad pue randwos ‘preoqiaio Jo Suinedsy : "A'g odomyg $OO (8)
‘Kuediros Smpjoy : payunr] sSuIp[of] auozeSiH pue pamary 2amng eSi0 « pr WWAUNSAU] Uoisa(Ien) « pi] dnoln [euonewINu] WopsaLi(L)
sreroqdurad pue xemndwros ‘preogIa)olA] JO BUTE) U 2IMoBJNUR 0] Jsunus o, ; -oul NgT "L dD(9)

~-285-



Fuir-ueg ‘uay) :eaneIussaldoy pYT 0D 2UBUUIRI pue aeday PISIA-)Sag 0qBUIN]

Jos1at2dng

pI7 oD Fuipdoay

PISY SRy JO Joquuny]

001 - Fuig)-1y) U] eAneiussaiday] Py 0D SOUBUAUIRKY pUe Jeday] pal A-15ag oqsuIN] 10302110 §a3In0saY pilisag Suenyzoey
001 000°000°0Z Suepy-Bueyz ‘uay) « enp-uend ‘g « AR ‘I 2anmuasaiday “dio) jusunsaau] eD-)|  Jowang ‘al1 0D DdIVOID
— - Sury -y ‘uayp|sosiatadng ™
BN-nj SUBn[ - eng-SUenp ‘eg « noy[-lng weu)| Jojpancg| “op) [eandQ 95101 unfuog ueniBuocy
001 000°000°S BN-3uenD Teg . Suay)) OrYD .« SUIN-UNYY “TuasT, :aaneuasaiday] "dio) jusunsaau] en-1yy|  10J0311J "PY] 0D UoIstoal] BIIjag
‘PY1%0D
- - Suyp-1gy ‘ury| 1030211 SIDIAIY YOI L, PISL A 1SS USYZUSYS
- — Buyd-1g) Uy ~ SUA-NOW BN 101322L "A'g adoing §00
69°1 LT ELOT FuL-unyD Uy « Sunis-Suny i -eaneiussaxday ‘pr o)) JuAnsaau] 1 Surjy|Josiatadng
1A V18°LTLYS mo-uir
ue{ - nOYZ-IN{ uayy) « eny-Sueny ‘reg « 194-19° 04 wanmuasaiday “di1o) usunsaau] en-1yD| 1010211
£8°0 820°9ZS am-I§ noyZ| 103081
— - PM-Fuayz ‘0 « Sumsy-Sutjy ‘nry| 10109111 -ouy Suipea), :Aqesin
Su1 x-unyo‘usi)|1o0siatedng
B B Suag i) M) « SuI-ROIN B[ J0an( "7 ASooupa], a1kqedin
— — uonnjoss]p preod a1 pue Sunepinbi[  1owang payunr sSmploy auozedin
— — wr-Suoyz nry[ 203317 Luedwo) pajuiry 215G,
001 000°8 Sur], Suip ‘uay):eanevuasaiday "pr] “o) Adojouyoa ], a)fg-es1n|  lowang AJojouyoa L, uvoneunoyuy a1Lqedin
- - eif-ueny) Suey| 1opang| ‘NTT'S VNV JSH A3o[outoa ], aiqesin
— — eng-onn suenyy| Joand|'Q'0Z dS puejed Aojoutoa ], atAqesin
Funis-Sury ‘nry|1osialadng
- - FUIAFNO “BIA « USYD-194 ‘U2 A « i -Suoj uryr  Jojoan(] -d109 s38g-e31ny voddiy
— — Sunepinbi]|  Joposigg panun] (uenge) asueapy 2310
Funisg-Suny N eanejuasaiday pr <o) ASojouyaa] Mhg-ein|iosiatadng
001 000°000°¢ Suaj-dusyz
ey « Sulgn-yy ‘wry s wayD-lag Yo i maneussaiday prT “op ASojouypa], ahg-eSin] dopang ‘py1 “'0)) [BUOHEUWINU] ALAG
Sul ungyuayy saneussaxday "piT o) ASojouysa ], ahg-esin|1osiatadng
001 000°000°Z4 Funisy-Fury
nry - w19 J ‘Yo - Suip-noly ‘el eanejussaxday pyl “op ASojouyoa], ;Ag-edin| Joweng pIT 0D 9lA15-D
WY
- - [exa10) ung « Suny) v iy « Sunisg-Suwy ‘o] Joppaxg| geanry (eipug) Aojouyda], Bﬂﬁmmo
— -~ Qui A -unyyuaypfaosiazadng
I 000°01 UIG-NOAF]|  Ioj0allg dnoip
09 000°009 Funis-Fuipy “nr - vay)-1ad Yo & oalejuasaiday] ‘o) aunseAu] e3in|  Jowanq| juswaSeurpy [ruclEwIU] pual) -eEin
o OBy SAAeySg| SaIRYS JO AdqUInN
aaneIuasaaday 7 aweN ajoy Luedwro) Jo ameN

-286-



“X3 AL 788 968'Gh 851°%¢ 9¢0'y #61°8€ $E5°ZT "7 ASoj0uypa], 24qeSID
(65°66) {9g¥'t) - - - - - - panu] $3ulp|oy auozedin
h:mQEOU _uou_E_,.m vo._UEEOU
1z 291 79T $E0'y LTeT 9LE £0LC 1383 AZojouyoa], uoneunoju] 34qesln
09I 207 762 63L7I £97'p 956 618t 14T 1S YNVISH A30j0uyaa), MAqESID
0Z¢ 43 3 LTF 1] TvLl 089 1TV'e 96¢ "0°0 Z dS pue[og A5ojouyoa], AqESIH
11 P11 9681 CRTTE 9£v'01 7L 11 LL1TE S6Y'E ‘107 94 g-e310 uoddiN
(oFcT) (r£2) (cze) 0 091°11 0 091°11 10€ paiwry (uenqe-T) 90UBAPY BIID
701 £99°0€ AL LFS 011 698°L8 086°€T 6P 111 000°0¢ YT F0) JeuoeUINU] H 1AL
(oc0) (ogsk1) (zZ6€°5T) 162°9¢6°1 LIFLTE TLI'T19 685'8€6 000°02L pr1°0D 914380
pamur]
5L0 8EP'e 1.6 8LOFS 910°1§ 160t LO1'S6 ST6'SE areau (1pu]) £8ojouypa], Q;Mmm_o
:O._U
£8°6 £58°6 060°C1 - ¥09°0€ 1899 162°LE 000°01 wewaieury] |puoewAU] pual] -e8IH
{zI'o {(8¢7) {L97) £9T 0£6'TT LTL'S] 159°8¢ 8317 "9U[ SUDLEdIUNWWO)) 24 g-E81D
(z6'0) {ot8°D) {9¢8°7) 0 §S1°0T LE] 6702 87.°89 "PIT 93 SNy
. (erensny ) pr]
180 £66°1 1022 $90°0L 190°6S £6L¢Cl #6239 #9965 "A1d A30[ouyda], 914qeSID)
PY1“0D
T Q10N L9122l SE1°ET1 691°21£°T1 {1¢z°078) LOL'EF9T 9L5'eTI‘l RO TZ1 Surpery, A30jouysay, v1f unyz om_m,__z
.ﬁud zo.uo
70 145°8T (€£58°sT) - 97 E0L 0£9'8 760°T14 006259 JusUSIAU] [RUONEUINU] PUSI]-EFIH)
17 58L°T 9/9°¢CT £6L1T £F0°TO0'1 26L°C9 6LEPTI LLL88T P36'ST ‘A€l K30[0Uy33] 23X g-¥51D)|
05
T 90N 6SE°811 (L6r'S) PLVE] 9182C1°1 0ZL Tt i | £57°98C Surpes], jeuoneuiau] a1£qedin oq3ulN
99¢'ZL1 “PI] 00 aouBUS)UIRIA
T 910N 9817 1.9 679°85¢€ 0£8°191 €509 £87°TTT pue 1edoy platA-isog oqSuIN
7 20N £LS 88T TTTSET 1#L1$9°T1 61L°061°¢ SHELIG ¥96°L90'F 0S8PE6'T "PrT “0D MAQESID 0gSuIN
$C°E £9T°€6T (Z5) 0 SIT'TPT'E 215°1 £L9°TrT'e SOLEGH'C pajwIT aIning e8I
7 90N (679'+1T) (16¥"991) £rs (866°F0F) Er891¥ SERI1 0 DUl N1 LD
(1’0 (6£27°67) (0z9) - R6R°CEO°E L0] SO6°6E9'C $9C°LE6'T “dio]) Juaunsaau] ED-1YD
LET 768°1 091°7 1£7°8T £8r'el 8LI'S 19981 88 LY "M "0 Y93l LD
Yl
T MON 1£1°861 1£0°S0T £60°095°6 19811 £28°881°1 FRI‘ELT a4 Al “07) sa1uo1p3]g A4qealn uengguo(g
209 L39°0PE {£91) 0 9/8'€6LT 095°T 9eH'96L°T 0I0°LILT PINWIIT SJUAUNSIAU] UOISB[IRYD)
3 1+9°CLy {geg'L) 0 966'661'0 00111 oS1°11Z'9 789°L19F "p¥] dnolo [EUONEULIUL WOPIDIL]
7 3N 289°F Loy 09996 617°66T 60°6 £1€°80¢ 656TLT Hqup Suipey), AFojouysay, |1 gD
68°L6T1 naddl L6F'961 $5T02TTI 801°00€ 196°66L°C 699'660'¢ 6£7981 U “L'gD
aaeys Jad {x¥) amoous 1R3YY) a3 d ANUIAIL oM 13 d fued
B — 1234 213 103 313027 merd suned Supessdo . N sapIqen [elol, §]assE [¥10], junowe |ejde)) weN Auedwo))

SN/ sareys 1000, ALN U 610Z°1€ FqWa0ag

:a1e1[IgR Aq s)nsa1 Suneledo pue snjejs [RIOUBULY
:S91BI[ITY Jo suonelad() ssaursng Jo Areumung (11)

-287-



‘QUON : dep wodaz

SIS [BOURUL 0) dn PUB J89A JUSLIND JO B 10V 98URydXY 29 SONLIN0DS oy} Jo 7 wiayl ¢ vied g¢ aponIy 0} Surureliad souesyIusis Jo sJuaploul AUy A

XIS, U1

. &L

- SUON : uoneurojul Arejusureddns 1ay0 AUy

‘Al

‘a1qeorjdde j0N : a1ep 1odol Juswiates [erouenly o} dn pue Ieak JuaLINO Jo se sa1Rys Fursodsip 1o Suipfoy ATeIpIsqng  TII

-QuON : 2ep Jodal Juswraiels Terourury 0) dn pue Jeak JuaLng Jo st A1nbs ajeanrd Jo Fuissaoorg  II

uoN : Moday uoneruyy (Al
" ATRUIING [RIOURUL]

SOLIBIPISqNS SY) JO JUSWDTRIS [RIOUBUL] PAIEPI[OSUO)) PAYIPNY TEQ JUSLINY),, ) 01 J9Ja1 sseald Juswale)s [eroueuly pajeprjosuo) (I11)

‘a1qeorddy 10N "Auedwros pajiua] v :Z 910N

(spuesnop)

Q1N uI pajuasaid pue oyep 1odal o3 UO Se 9Je) ) J& PALISATOD 2 IS STUSWS]ER]S SUIOIUT PUE S}00YS 20UL[Rq 9A1}03dSaX 31 ‘A1US SESSISAO UR ST d)eI[gJe oY) J] -] 9)O0N

PIT “0D FuloAsy

T 310N 8LLT 65L°T STy S16'9 ¥LT 63I°L 381°¢ sanInosay ple1Aseq Suenyzoez

(6£°0) (P18°L) (SPE'8) 10¥'SLT L90°0L1 ¥1.'981 18L'96€ 000002 a1 0D IdIVDID

P

7 90N (z06) (995) 26+ 1T (s31) TI6'TE LTLTE 6091 07 [eond( 9s10alg unduag uendsuo(

(v0°0) {t81) (98+) £67°1 TTVLE 08t 706°LE 00005 "I "0 ucisiaal] eiRs

696T1 ]

7 30N (15p) (gov) TrL'9T PIF'E 796'01 9LE Y] 0D §021A198 Y90, plalLIsaq UsYZuayg

£€°697°1 06L°€C 154°1 CLESY £Fcl 1L£°81 PI1TTL 611°01 ‘A’d 2domd SO0

@iy {151°197) (r16°6v7) LEG'STT L89°TIE 0¢STLE £77°589 P8RS FED "pr1 o) [eondQ as10a1 uniusg

(zo'1) (1) (18) - DES'I - 0£8°1 5051 ‘ou] Fulpel], AajeS1n

aauys Jad (xe) auioau 120}V) d Supesad SnAsd BUTURE) SInIqeI| (B30 SJassE [e)o unowe [eyde aweN Aueduio

sBunureg sE2 211 303 MIOI moad Sugeradg Supesado yprom N nIpel| (B30 ], jasse [eJ0], |3 eyde) N D

-288-



1
]

l‘l ﬁ ﬁnf-‘:ﬁnang
A L FERERRE .
V i ET
Vi . RERF
’ Wyt - #% 2% -
’ NHGIO GIGABYTE TECHNOLOGY 0TS
" |
-

-
#itMLF)  Tape Headquarter HENTME  Nan P ng Factory Taiwan AREER Dong Guan Faclory China AREMHM  Ning Bo Factory China

Allintellectual property rights, including without limitation to copyright and trademark of this work and its derivative works are the property of, or are licensed to,
GIGA-BYTE TECHNOLOGY CO., LTD. Any unauthorized use is strictly prohibited.





